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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report, including in the sectionsetitI'Risk Factors,” "Management's Discussion andysigof Financial Condition and Results of
Operations" and "Business," contains, in additmhistorical information, forward-looking stateme&ntVe may, in some cases, use words such
as "project,” "believe," "anticipate,” "plan,” "exq," "estimate,” "intend," "continue," "shouldyduld,” "could," "potentially,” "will," "may" o
similar words and expressions that convey uncegtaihfuture events or outcomes to identify thessviird-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements in this Annual Report on ForrrKlfay include, among other things, statements abou

. the progress of, timing of and amount of expenssee@ated with our research, development and coniatization activities;
. the success of our clinical studies for our prodactdidates;
. our ability to obtain U.S. and foreign regulatoppaoval for our product candidates and the abdftpur product candidates

meet existing or future regulatory standards;

. our expectations regarding federal, state anddareggulatory requirements;

. the therapeutic benefits and effectiveness of oodyct candidate:

. the safety profile and related adverse events ppoaduct candidate:

. our ability to manufacture sufficient amounts of 88, RAD1901 and RAD140 for commercialization aititas with target
characteristics;

. our plans with respect to collaborations and liesn®lated to the development, manufacture orcadar product candidate

. our expectations as to future financial performaegpense levels and liquidity sources;

. our ability to compete with other companies that@r may be developing or selling products thatcarapetitive with our

product candidates;

. anticipated trends and challenges in our potentakets;
. our ability to attract and motivate key personaeig
. other factors discussed elsewhere in this re

The outcome of the events described inetfi@svard-looking statements is subject to knowd anknown risks, uncertainties and other
important factors that could cause actual resaltliffer materially from the results anticipatedtbgse forward-looking statements. These
important factors include our financial performanger ability to attract and retain customers, @development activities and those other fac
we discuss in Item 1A of this Annual Report on FA®K under the caption "Risk Factors." You shawdd these factors and the other
cautionary statements made in this report as begipdicable to all related forwaldoking statements wherever they appear in thientephese
risk factors are not exhaustive and other sectidrtisis report may include additional factors whaduld adversely impact our business and
financial performance.

You should read the following discussioroaf financial condition and results of operatiomsonjunction with our financial statements
and related notes set forth in this report.
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CURRENCY AND CONVERSIONS

In this report, references to "dollar" 8t ‘are to the legal currency of the United Stadesl references to "euro" or "€" are to the single
currency introduced on January 1, 1999 at the sfdhe third stage of European Economic and Mawgdtknion, pursuant to the Treaty
establishing the European Communities, as amengldukblreaty on European Union and the Treaty obfemdam. Unless otherwise
indicated, the financial information in this repbes been expressed in U.S. dollars. Unless otkerstated, the U.S. dollar equivalent
information translating euros into U.S. dollars bagn made, for convenience purposes, on the dfatsie noon buying rate published by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve as oééer 30, 2011, which wad ©0 = $1.2973. Such translations should not bstcoed as
representation that the euro has been, could heeme tr could be converted into U.S. dollars atr#te indicated, any particular rate or at all.

Trademarks appearing in this report areptioperty of their respective holders.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Unless otherwise provided in this report, all refeces in this report to "we," "us," "our companiqur," or the "Company" refer to
Radius Health, Inc. after giving effect to the Margnd the Sho-Form Merger (each as defined under "Corporate tnfation” below).

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focosedeveloping new therapeutics for the treatmemtstéoporosis and other women's health
conditions. Our lead product candidate is BAOS8pgel synthetic peptide analog of human parathyhoidnone-related protein, or hPTHrP, a
naturally-occurring bone building hormone. We are develof8A@®58 as a treatment for osteoporosis in both tigacand transdermal methc
of administration. Osteoporosis is a disease cheniaed by low bone mass and structural deterionatif bone tissue, which can lead to an
increase in fractures. We believe that BA058 stated the rapid formation of new, high-quality bameatients suffering from osteoporosis
and may restore bone mineral density, or BMD, &sthpatients into the normal reference range.

In August 2009, we announced positive PRadata that showed BAO058 Injection produced faater greater BMD increases at the spine
and the hip after six months and 12 months of tneat with substantially less hypercalcemia effeantdid Forteo, the only approved anabolic
agent for the treatment of osteoporosis in theadh@tates. Specifically, our study demonstratetitthial analyzable hip BMD showed a more
than five-fold benefit of BAO58 at a dose of 80pgoForteo after six months, and BA058 at a dos#0pf) increased mean lumbar spine Bl
by 6.7% at six months, compared to 5.5% with Foréem by 12.9% at 12 months, compared to 8.6% katteo. We believe that BA0O58 has
the following potential advantages over other appdoagents for the treatment of osteoporosis:

. greater efficacy;

. faster benefit for building bon
. shorter treatment duration;

. less hypercalcemia;

. no additional safety risks; a1

. no refrigeration required in us

In April 2011, we began dosing patientsipivotal, multinational Phase 3 clinical studyidasd to show that BA058 Injection prevents
new vertebral fracture compared to placebo. We expereport top-line data from this Phase 3 chhitudy in the first half of 2014.

We are also developing BA058 MicroneedlteRaa short wear time, transdermal form of BAOB& iis delivered using a microneedle
technology from 3M Drug Delivery Systems, or 3M. Wadieve the BA058 Microneedle Patch may elimirtheeneed for daily injections, lead
to better treatment compliance for patients andeghe existing market. We reported the followtioygr-line results from a Phase 1b study in
December 2011:

. rapid release of BAO58 from the microneedle pa

. peak transdermal drug levels consistent with BADB&ction;

. faster time to peak concentration, and faster aeltion in plasma, compared to BA058 Injection;

. increase in the bone-formation marker procollagpe tLN-terminal propeptide, or PINP, in serum afaren days of exposure,

consistent with bone-building activity; and
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. identification of optimal wear time of five minutes less, and effective sites of application.

The National Osteoporosis Foundation, erNKOF, has estimated that 10 million people inUhéed States, comprising eight million
women and two million men, are already diagnoset asteoporosis, and another 34 million have lowebmass placing them at increased
for osteoporosis. In addition, the NOF has estioh&tat osteoporosis was responsible for more twvamtillion fractures in the United States
2005 resulting in an estimated $19 billion in co$tse NOF expects that the number of fracturestdwssteoporosis will rise to three million
2025.

There are two main types of osteoporosigslcurrently available in the United States, aedbrptive agents and anabolic agents. Anti-
resorptive agents act to prevent further boneldgsshibiting the breakdown of bone whereas analedients stimulate bone formation to build
new, high-quality bone. We believe there is a largmet need in the market for osteoporosis treatimecause existing therapies have
shortcomings in efficacy, tolerability and convemie. For example, the current standard of car@hoisphonates, an anti-resorptive agent, has
been associated with infrequent but serious adwrsets, or SAEs, such as osteonecrosis of thegjaial fibrillation and anomalous fractures,
especially of long bones, resulting from "frozeméd These atypical fractures have created inangasincern with physicians and patients.
Many physicians are seeking alternatives to curatitresorptive therapies, which we believe willvd greater demand for bone anabolic
agents in the future. We believe there is a sigaift opportunity for a new anabolic agent, sucB/A4858, that will increase BMD to a greater
degree and at a faster rate than other approves dou the treatment of osteoporosis with addedathges in convenience and safety.

We are also developing RAD1901, a seleatsteogen receptor modulator, or SERM, which wenge from Eisai Co. Ltd., or Eisai in
2006. We previously completed an initial one mdpkiase 2a clinical study for the treatment of vagomgymptoms, commonly known as hot
flashes, in women entering menopause. Our thirdyrbcandidate, RAD140, is in preclinical developm&AD140, a selective androgen
receptor modulator, or SARM, is an orally-activelaogen agonist on muscle and bone and is a poténet@ment for age-related muscle loss,
frailty, weight loss associated with cancer cachexid osteoporosis.

OUR PRODUCT CANDIDATES

Preclinical Phase 1

BAO5S8
Oslagporosis
Injection

BAO5S8
Osteoporosis
Microneedie FPalch

RAD1901 :' 5
Oral :

RAD140
Osteoporosis | Frailty
Oral
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OUR STRATEGY

We plan to build a biopharmaceutical comypfarcused on developing new therapeutics for ostemgis and other women's health
conditions by:

. completing the pivotal Phase 3 clinical study of & Injection for the treatment of osteoporosithmm first half of 2014

. pursuing the clinical development of BA058 MicrodkePatch as a follow-on product for the treatnwdrdsteoporosis;

. seeking regulatory approval of BA058 Injection &4l058 Microneedle Patch for the treatment of osteogis if the clinical
trials for these product candidates are successftiglly in the United States and subsequentlirope;

. potentially collaborating with third parties foretlworldwide commercialization of BA058 (except Jay.

. pursuing the potential application of BAO58 in thederate osteoporosis market, as well as the frabtealing market;

. potentially collaborating with third parties forettiurther development and commercialization of RADI and RAD140 on a

worldwide basis; and

. building a strong management team and board oftoire with significant pharmaceutical developmeagulatory and
commercial experience.

BACKGROUND ON OSTEOPOROSIS

Osteoporosis is a disease characterizéovbpone mass and structural deterioration of lesseie, which can lead to an increase in
fractures. A bone density test is the only non-givatest that can diagnose osteoporosis beforekai bone occurs and is reported using t-
scores. The test uses a procedure called boneatesiy, or DXA, which is performed in the radiojogr nuclear medicine departments of
hospitals or clinics. A BMD t-score is the numbéstandard deviations above or below the mean Bbitathealthy 30 year old adult of the
same sex and ethnicity as the patient. A t-scoré.0for above implies normal bone density, wheeetiscore of -2.5 or below implies a
diagnosis of osteoporosis.

Worldwide, osteoporosis affects an estith&@0 million women according to the Internatio®ateoporosis Foundation, or IOF. Many
individuals may have osteoporosis but do not kniowhe Office of the Surgeon General of the Uniitdtes has said that based on survey
results by The National Health and Nutrition Exaation Survey, or NHANES, testing at the hip showreat four times as many men (four
percent) and 2.5 times as many women (26%) acthalliiyosteoporosis than reported that they hadisieask. All bones become more fragile
and susceptible to fracture as the disease prageBsople tend to be unaware that their bonegedtiag weaker, and a person with
osteoporosis can fracture a bone from even a nfilor

Fractures due to osteoporosis are modyltkeoccur in the hip, spine and wrist. The IO lestimated that 1.6 million hip fractures occur
worldwide each year, and by 2050 this number coegdh between 4.5 and 6.3 million. According toNt&F:

. osteoporosis was responsible for more than twdanifractures in the United States in 20
. vertebral (spinal) fractures may result in sevexektpain, loss of height or spinal deformiti
. there were approximately 293,000 Americans agendicoaer admitted to hospitals in 2005 with a fraetof the femoral neck, a

common type of hip fracture that is associated w#teoporosis;
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. a women's lifetime risk of a hip fracture is eqteaher combined risk of breast, uterine and ovatemcer; and

. an average of 24% of hip fracture patients agedrEDover die in the year following their fractunéhile an additional 20% ¢
patients who were ambulatory before their hip fieetrequire long-term care.

The debilitating effects of osteoporosigéiaubstantial costs. Loss of mobility, admissmnursing homes and dependence on caregivers
are all common consequences of osteoporosis. THehd® estimated that osteoporosis-related fractuees responsible for $19 billion in
costs in 2005.

The prevalence of osteoporosis is growimdy according to the NOF, is significantly undecagnized and unddreated in the populatio
While the aging of the population is a primary ériwf an increase in cases, osteoporosis is atsearing from the use of drugs that induce
bone loss, such as chronic use of glucocorticadag$thma, aromatase inhibitors that are incresimgd for breast cancer and the hormone
therapies used for prostate cancer.

The range of treatment and prevention ogtifor osteoporosis has expanded in recent yearsdnti-resorptive drugs that act to prevent
bone loss by blocking bone resorption, which isgheess by which bone is broken down in the bady/the resulting minerals, including
calcium, are released into the blood, to inclugphosphonates, SERMs, calcitonins, and most rgcien?i010, a genetic-based therapy known
as receptor activator of nuclear factor kappa-Br} known as a RANKL inhibitor. Bisphosphonatesa@ the current standard of care, led
by Actonel, Boniva and Fosamax. Generic versionsasfamax (alendronate) became available in theeti@tates in 2008 and have now
gained market share from branded oral bisphospbsnat

The only anabolic drug approved in the EahiStates for osteoporosis is Forteo, which wasoseg by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or FDA, in December 2002. In 201 medical journal, Osteoporosis Internationablished results of a study indicating that
patients' preferences for osteoporosis medicatdomstrongly influenced by the mode of adminisbratin particular, when given the choice of
subcutaneously injected Forteo versus other thesapatients preferred the alternative drugs oweteB, which requires once-daily, self-
administered injections and must be refrigeratesgtorage between uses. We believe that this redssaggests that there is a substantial
opportunity to optimize patient outcomes and expéwedmarket by improved treatment compliance wibhoae anabolic drug that offers an
alternative to daily injection, is stable at roe@mperature and requires a shorter treatment daratich as BA058 Microneedle Patch. Forteo
had worldwide sales of $594 million in 2006 and &®4&illion in 2011.

BAO58
Overview

BAO58 is a novel synthetic peptide analbgTHrP that we are developing as a bone anatreldment for osteoporosis. hPTHrP is
critical in the formation of the embryonic skeletaninvolved in the regulation of bone formatiardds able to rebuild bone with low
associated risk of inducing the presence of toomuadcium in the blood, known as hypercalcemiaa aile effect. Human PTHrP is different
to hPTH in its structure and role. In 2009, the maldournal, Nature Chemical Biology, publisheduks of a study indicating that PTH and
PTHrP activate the same parathyroid hormone recept@THR1, but produce divergent effects in bduoe to differences in downstream cell
signaling. We believe that BA058 is the most adeancPTHrP analog in clinical development for tleatment of osteoporosis. We acquired
and maintain exclusive worldwide rights, excluditapan, to certain patents, data and technicalnretion related to BA058 through a license
agreement with an affiliate of Ipsen Pharma SASpsen.
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Injection

In August 2009, we announced positive PRadata that showed BAO058 Injection produced faater greater BMD increases at the spine
and the hip after six months and 12 months ofitneat than Forteo, which was a comparator in oudystidey findings were that the highest
dose of BA058, which was 80 g, increased mean durspine BMD at six months and 12 months by 6.7%#h9% compared to the
increases seen with Forteo in the study of 5.5%8®%, respectively. BA058 Injection also produgesteases in mean femoral neck BMD at
the hip at six months and 12 months of 3.1% an#leL@mpared to increases for Forteo of 1.1% and 2r88pectively. We believe there to be
a strong correlation between an increased levBMD and a reduction in the risk of fracture foripats with osteoporosis. BA0O58 was
generally safe and well tolerated in this studythwidverse events similar between BA058, placelddmamteo groups. In addition, the
occurrence of hypercalcemia as a side effect wHisha seen with Forteo for the 80 g dose of B&05

In March 2011, we entered into an agreematht Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII 8/ or Nordic, to manage the Phase 3
study of BAO58 Injection. The study is being contgwlcin 12 countries at 37 centers operated by #raet for Clinical and Basic Research, or
CCBR, as well as other medical centers. CCBR &adihg global clinical research organization, oiGCRiith extensive experience in global
osteoporosis registration studies. We expect tortéppdine data from the Phase 3 study of BA058 Injectiothe first half of 2014. Before v
submit a New Drug Application, or NDA, to the FD&rfBAO058 as a treatment for osteoporosis, we musiptete several additional studies,
including our pivotal Phase 3 study, a thoroughRigise 1 study, which is a study designed to aisegmtential arrhythmia liability of a drug
by measuring the effect on the start to finish timhéhe ventricular main part of the cardiac coctia, also known as the QT interval, a Pha
pharmacokinetic, or PK, study in renal patientBhase 1 PK study in hepatic patients, a carcinogesitudy in rats, and bone quality studies
in rats and monkeys.

Our ongoing Phase 3 study, which commeircégril 2011, is targeting enroliment of a totdl2)400 subjects to be randomized equally
to receive daily doses of one of the following: 8§ of BA058, a matching placebo, or the approveskdi 20 pg of Forteo for 18 months. The
study is designed to support, or not, our beliaf BA058 is superior to placebo for prevention eftebral fracture and Forteo for greater BMD
improvement at major skeletal sites and for a losgaurrence of hypercalcemia. We believe the stutlyalso show that BMD gains for
BAO058 patients will occur earlier than for Forteatipnts.

Based upon guidance we have received fren-DA and the European Medicines Agency, or thédEWe believe that a successful,
single pivotal placebo-controlled, comparative hadracture study will be sufficient to suppongisgration of BA058 Injection for the
treatment of osteoporosis in both the United Statekthe European Union.

Microneedle Patch

We successfully completed combined singlg-ahd seven-day repeat-dose Phase 1b clinicaéstafiIBA058 Microneedle Patch in
healthy subjects. We plan to select a dose rangertduct a Phase 2 clinical study comparing mdtiaily doses of BA058 Microneedle Pa
to placebo and BA058 Injection using lumbar spifdBat six months as the primary endpoint. We expettegin the Phase 2 BA058
Microneedle Patch clinical study in the middle 6fl2 with top-line data expected to be availablthenmiddle of 2013. If BA0O58 Injection is
already approved by the FDA, we believe that wé avily need to conduct a single non-inferiority B&a8 clinical study comparing the change
in lumbar spine BMD at 12 months for patients doséti BA0O58 Microneedle Patch to patients dosedBA058 Injection to show that the
effect of BAO58 Microneedle Patch treatment iswotse than that of BAO58 Injection.
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We believe that development costs for BABB&roneedle Patch will be lower than the injecéabérsion as we currently do not intend to
conduct an additional pivotal fracture study fastfollow-on product. As a result of the comprespathway, if our clinical trials of BA058
Injection and BA058 Microneedle Patch are succéssk expect that marketing approval of BA058 Miweedle Patch can occur soon after
BAO058 Injection. Therefore, the FDA approval, ahd timing of any such approval, is dependent uperapproval of BA0O58 Injection. As a
result, BA0O58 Microneedle Patch is not likely taeg&ve FDA approval, if ever, until at least two yeéollowing approval of BA058 Injection.

Clinical Development Program

We are developing BA058 for the preventibifractures in postmenopausal women at risk afténae from severe osteoporosis.
Recognizing both the therapeutic potential of BA@b&is indication as well as the drawbacks inhene self-injection therapies in this
population, we are also developing BA058 Micronedghtch for transdermal administration of the pobadising a microneedle technology
from 3M. We plan to develop and register BA0O58 ¢tifgen as our lead product, with BA0O58 Microneedédh as a follow-on product that
provides greater patient convenience. We beliegability of BA058 Microneedle Patch to capitalae the more extensive fracture study data
of BAO58 Injection will allow the patch product b accelerated through later-phase developmenbutitiequiring its own fracture study.

Ongoing BAO058 Injection Phase 3 Study

The Phase 3 study for BA058 Injection ($tBAA058-05-003) was submitted as a draft protoodhvestigational new drug, or IND,
73,176 on December 18, 2009, and was the subjecTgpe B End of Phase 2 Meeting conducted witH-b& on January 21, 2010. The
protocol was subsequently revised and submittéldetd-DA on December 17, 2010. In April 2011, wedredosing patients in this study. The
study is planned to enroll 2,400 patients at upfanedical centers in 12 countries in the Uniteate3, Europe, Latin America, India and Asia.

Study objectives

The primary objective of this study is &termine the safety and efficacy of BA058 Injectédra dose of 80 ug when compared to a
matching placebo for prevention of vertebral fraetin otherwise healthy ambulatory postmenopausahen at risk of fracture from severe
osteoporosis. Patients, investigators and indeperadsessors will be blinded as to treatment fatr dlatcome. The secondary objectives of this
study are to determine the safety and efficacy B8 at a dose of 80 pg when compared to placebprévention of non-vertebral fractures
and for change in vertical height. Additional kegsndary efficacy outcomes include BMD of sping, &d femoral neck and frequency of
hypercalcemia when compared to Forteo.

Study population

The study will enroll otherwise healthy amtdiory women who have been postmenopausal feat five years aged 50 to 85 (inclusive),
meet the study entry criteria and have providedteniinformed consent. The women will have a BM§zore< -2.5 and >-5.0 at the lumbar
spine or hip (femoral neck) by DXA and radiologiegidence of two or more mild or one or more motiehambar or thoracic vertebral
fractures, or history of low trauma forearm, hunsesacral, pelvic, hip, femoral or tibial fractwéhin the past five years. Postmenopausal
women older than 65 who meet the above fractuter@ibut have a t-scoee-2.0 and >-5.0 may be enrolled. Women older thaweé do not
meet the fracture criteria may also be enrolldfiefr t-score< -3.0 and >-5.0. Osteoporosis is defined as wheatiamnt's t-scorg -2.5,
meaning that the patient has a BMD that is twoahdlf standard deviations below the mean BMD oétlimically matched thirty year old rr
or woman, as applicable. All patients are to bgdod general health as determined by medical lisphrysical examination (including vital
signs) and clinical laboratory testing.




Table of Contents

Study design

Inclusion Criteria

* Healthy postrmenapausal
women, 50-85 years obd
with severe osteoporosis

¥ BMOD t-score = -2.5 and
> -5.0 at the lumbar spine
(L1-L4) or femoral neck

¥ Fracture criteria

Exclusion Criteria

» History of more than 4
spine fractures

¥ Prior treatment with
bisphosphonates in the

past 5 years
¥ Chronicillness or other

hone diseases |

The planned 2,400 eligible patients willreadomized equally to receive one of the followiag18 months:

Primary Endpoint

¥ Reduction in new
vertebral fractures in
BAOSE-treated at EOT vs.
placebo

Secondary Endpoints

¥ Changes in spine, total hip,
femoral neck and wrist
BMD in BAQSB-treated
from baseline to EOT vs.
Forteo

¥ Ditference in
hypercalcemia rates in
BADSE-treated at EOT vs.
Forteo

¥ New non-vertebral
fractures in BAOSB-treated
at EQT vs. placebo

R
A
N
D
O
M
|

Z
A
T
|

0
N

. BAO58 at a dose of 80 pg;
. a matching placebo; «

. Forteo at a dose of Zug.

Study drug will be blinded to patients anddical personnel until the randomization procesompleted. Treatment with BA058 at a d
of 80 pg or placebo will remain blinded to all pastthroughout the study. Forteo comes as a ptapyiprefilled drug and device combination
that cannot be repackaged. Therefore, its ideaéibinot be blinded to treating physicians and pttience use begins. Study medication will be
self-administered daily by subcutaneous injectmmaf maximum of 18 months. All enrolled patientd afiso receive calcium and vitamin D
supplementation from the time of enroliment urit#é £nd of the treatment period. It will be recomdeshto patients that they also continue
these supplements through the one month followerg.

Primary efficacy endpoint

The primary efficacy endpoint will be thember of BA058-treated patients showing new vesgtkfactures at end-of-treatment when
compared to placebo as evaluated by a blinded ssascording to a standardized graded scale efisgwf the vertebral deformity. The
sample size per treatment arm provides 90% powetwab-sided alpha to detect a superiority diffeeshetween placebo patients and those
who receive BA058 at a dose of 80 g on vertebaaitfire incidence.
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Secondary efficacy endpoints

Secondary efficacy parameters will alsdude reduction in the incidence of non-vertebratfures to the wrist, hip and rib, for example,
and reduction in moderate and severe vertebralires. Other secondary efficacy endpoints willuide changes in BMD of the spine, hip,
femoral neck and wrist from baseline to end-ofttrent as assessed by DXA.

Additional secondary endpoints will incluckeange in standing height and changes in seruma towmation markers across treatment, ¢
as P1NP, osteocalcin and bone-specific alkalinspihatase. The frequency of hypercalcemia acroasrtemt groups will also be assessed.

Safety outcomes

Safety evaluations to be performed willie physical examinations, vital signs, 12-leat&bcardiograms, or ECGs, clinical laboratory
tests and monitoring and recording of adverse asv&pecific safety assessments will include posedur hours) determination of serum
calcium, determination of creatinine clearance(jlose ECG assessments at selected visits andassds of postural hypotension (60
minutes post-dose) at selected clinic visits.

Bone biopsy of the iliac crest will be perhied in a subset of patients receiving BA058 @bse of 80 g and placebo (up to 100 patients
per group) for assessment of quantitative bonetmistphometry which is the quantative study of therascopic organization and structure of
the bone tissue, and will be read blinded to treatnby an independent blinded assessor. Renal/sailebe further evaluated in a subset of
100 patients in each treatment group by renal céetpiomography, or CT, scan.

Overall study safety will be monitored byiadependent data safety monitoring board.
Planned BA0O58 Microneedle Patch Phase 2 Study

We plan to initiate a Phase 2 randomizé&akgbo-controlled, parallel group dose-finding icla study in the middle of 2012. The study
will evaluate the safety and efficacy of the d&Kx058 Microneedle Patch in women with osteopordais.intend to enroll about 250 patients
and the study will be similar in design to the Rhasstudy for BAO58 Injection. The study will evata the effects of three doses of BA058
Microneedle Patch, compared to placebo and BAORtion at a dose of 80 g, on change in BMD and anabolic bone markers sixer
months of treatment. The study will be powereddtedt clinically meaningful changes in BMD and barkers as efficacy measures.

Safety will be assessed as changes ingénciel of adverse events, changes in laboratory geasnin particular serum calcium, change
from baseline in the patient's vital signs and ptgleexamination.

Study participation will be preceded byrfateeks of pretreatment with calcium and vitamisupplements and treatment conclusion will
be followed by a one month period of safety obsgona

Completed BAO58 Injection Phase Study

We conducted a randomized, placebo-coetipfparallel group dose-finding Phase 2 study (5BA058-05-002) in the United States,
Argentina, India and the United Kingdom. The pumoéthe study was to evaluate the safety andagffiof daily injections of BA0O58
Injection in women with osteoporosis. Postmenoplaneanen between the ages of 55 and 85 (inclusive) had a BMD t-scorg -2.5 at the
lumbar spine or hip (femoral neck) by DXA or a BMH3core< -2 and a prior low trauma fracture or an additionglt factor were candidates
for this study. The study evaluated the effectBA058 Injection at multiple doses (placebo,|28, 40u g and 8Qu g) on recovery of BMD, a
marker of fracture risk, and on biomarkers of afiatand resorptive activity in bone. The study afsduded a Forteo treatment arm for
reference. These efficacy measures (BMD and baredrikers)
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were designed for statistical significance. Afteg tnitial 24 weeks of treatment, eligible patiewere offered a second 24 weeks of their
assigned treatment. Safety was assessed throutieostiidy and reported on at both six months anad2hs. BA058 Injection and placebo
were self-administered using a prefilled cartridtya pen-injector device. Forteo was self-adminéesteas the marketed product at the approved
dose of 20 ug per day by subcutaneous injectionr weeks prior to start of treatment, patients begéting calcium and vitamin D
supplements that continued throughout the study.

A total of 270 patients (mean age: 65 yeansered the pretreatment period, 222 patiente wardomized, and 221 patients received s
treatment and were analyzed in the intent-to-ti@alT T, population with 55 continuing into an atloihal 24 weeks of treatment. A total of 155
patients were included in the efficacy populatipar(protocol) in the initial 24 weeks of treatment.

Initial 24 weeks of treatme!

The efficacy results of Study BA058-05-Gfahfirmed the preclinical and early clinical hypesis that BA058 Injection induces a dose-
dependent increase in BMD and in markers of bon®deling measurable at both the 12-week and 24-asgsssments.

In the ITT population, the mean percentngeain total analyzable spine BMD at week 12 inseelwith dose as shown in Figure A bel
The mean gains in BMD (active treatment—placeboBf&058 Injection 40 ug and 80 pg groups were stiatlly significant (p = 0.0013 and
p < 0.001, respectively). The difference was natistically significant in the BA058 20 pg groupdgst missed significance in the Forteo
group (p = 0.055).

At week 24, the mean percent change froselbee continued to increase and was statisticigigificantly proportional to dose (p < 0.0(
as shown in Figure A below. Again, the mean gaitotal analyzable spine BMD was statistically sfipaint for BA058 Injection 40 pg (p <
0.001) and 80 ug (p < 0.001) groups. The mean BMID gt week 24 was also statistically significatthe Forteo group (p < 0.001). The
response of lumbar spine BMD to BAO58 Injection wlase dependent, and the 80 nug BAO058 Injection dasduced a larger percentage
increase in BMD at the lumbar spine than the apgd®0 pg Forteo dose.
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Figure A~—Mean Standard Error of the Mean (SEM) Percent @eainom Baseline at weeks 12 and 24 in Total AadlgzSpine BMD (ITT
Population, N = 221
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An even greater proportional response inCBas elicited in the hip region. By week 24, meancent changes in total analyzable hip
BMD were 0.4%, 1.4%, 2.0% and 2.6% for the plac&®058 at a dose of 20 pg, BA058 at a dose of 40apd BA0O58 at a dose of 80 pg
groups, respectively. Mean percent change in tme6¢0.5%) group was similar to placebo as showigure B below. The change in total
analyzable hip BMD showed a dose response to BAG&8tion and a more than five-fold benefit of BAD&t a dose of 80 pug over Forteo. A
similar relative benefit of BA058 at a dose of 8pquer Forteo was seen in all regions of the hip.
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Figure E—Mean (SEM) Percent Change from Baseline at wezlend 24 in Total Analyzable Hip BMD (ITT PopulatjdN=221)
4.0
Week 12 mm Week 24

35 4

3.0

1 I
:L[[[

Placebo BAOSB 20 yg BAD5B 40 pg BA058 80 g FORTEO
(PTH)

Percent Change in Total Analyzable BMD Hip

BAO58 Injection also induced a dose-depandse in major markers of bone anabolic activitigluding PANP, bone specific alkaline
phosphatase, or BSAP, and osteocalcin. The resporis®teo was generally somewhat greater forrabalic markers but also bone resorp
markers (C-telopeptides of type | collagen crogsljior CTX, and N-telopeptides of type | collageosslinks, or NTX), consistent with
published data on later gradual loss of Forteo Bi&Defit.

BAO58 Injection was well tolerated at atisgs and safety events were consistent with usedical events in a study population of this
and gender. The safety profile was also similah&t of Forteo and there were no treatment-relgigrificant SAEs. However, adverse events
were reported by 74% of patients in the first sontis of treatment, with a similar incidence acralssreatment groups. The majority of on-
treatment events were mild-to-moderate in sevarity there were no deaths reported. Seven subjsctmtinued due to adverse events: one in
the BA058 20 g group, one in the BA058 40 pg grdlgee in the BA058 80 g group and two in thed@group. Eight patients (four
percent) experienced at least one SAE and thedncilof such events was similar across treatmenpgr Five SAEs, unrelated to treatment,
were reported in three patients. Local tolerandbainjection site was similar across treatmentigs and fewer than 20% of subjects reported
any symptoms, such as redness, at the injectierasibss the many months of injections.

The level of calcium in the blood, knownsasum calcium levels, were monitored throughoetstudy and clinically significant elevated
levels (greater than or equal to 10.5 milligramsgeiliter, or mg/dL) were observed in 40% of fateo group while also observed in four
percent, 12%, 19% and 18% of the placebo, BAOS&ctign at a dose of 20 pg, 40 pg and 80 pg graappectively. Most elevations were
noted at the four-hour post-injection time point.

Blood pressure was assessed throughostuldg for postural change. Postural changes indofwessure (predetermined level of chang
systolic or diastolic from lying to standing) weeported in seven patients, including 0%, 5%, 2%,ahd 7% of patients in the placebo,
BAO58 Injection 20 ug,

13




Table of Contents

40 pg, 80 pg and Forteo groups, respectively. Bse-gostural changes in blood pressure were siaglass treatment groups. There were no
clinically meaningful differences in ECG parameteetween the placebo and active treatment groups.

Sixteen patients had low titer antibodigaiast BA058 after six months of treatment. Of &)dive were in the BA058 20 g group, Six
were in the BA058 40 g group and five were inB#€©58 80 pg group. There were no associated sefetyts or attenuation of treatment
efficacy. One antibody-positive patient in the BAQ&jection 40 pug group was found to have evidesfageutralizing activity at 24 weeks
without evidence of attenuation of drug efficacgvimg a 9.3% gain in total analyzable spine BMEhatweek 24 assessment.

Extended 24 weeks of treatm

Patients who completed the initial 24 weekseatment and continued to meet eligibilityteria were offered participation in the 24-week
extension study in which they would continue tlesisigned treatment. On completion of the regulgboogess to approve the study extension,
69 patients remained eligible and 55 participaiteduding 13, 10, 7, 11 and 14 patients in BAO5g@dtion 20u g, 40 g, 80U g, placebo and
Forteo groups, respectively. Forty-eight patiemtspleted the extended treatment period.

BMD continued to increase during the exeh@4 weeks of treatment, with the largest pertemeases in total analyzable spine BMD,
femoral neck BMD and total analyzable hip BMD obserin the BA0O58 Injection 80 g group. By week A&an percent changes in spine
BMD were 0.7%, 5.1%, 9.8% and 12.9% for the plac&@#058 20 g, BA058 40 pg and BA058 80 ug, grougspectively, while mean
percent change from baseline in the Forteo group&w8%. At week 48, the mean femoral neck BMD anB#A\058 Injection 80 pg group
gained 4.1% compared to the mean of the Forteqogao@.2%. The gain total analyzable hip BMD wa&8,.2.0%, 2.1% and 2.7% for the
placebo, BA058 20 pg, BA058 40 pg and BA058 80 foyps, respectively, compared to 1.3% for the Feogt@up.

No treatment-related SAEs or deaths weverted during this time period. Two patients didoored treatment, one for bilateral femoral
hernias (BA058 Injection 80 pg) and one for modesicope (BA058 Injection 40 pg). Study-relatedease events occurred in a similar
proportion of patients in each treatment group s&the 5aveek study period and the majority of events weild or moderate in severity. Tl
profile of events was not different during the setgix months of study treatment.

Local tolerance of study drug injectionssvedso similar during the second six months oftinest. There were no safety signals observed
in the evaluation of clinical laboratory parameters

Conclusions

This study demonstrated that treatment BA058 Injection induces a substantial positiverg@in BMD at both spine and hip in worr
with osteoporosis, with a particular advantage ¢vateo at the hip, and achieves this benefit gafiel with substantially less hypercalcemia
effect than Forteo.

BAO058 Injection Phase 1 Studies
First Phase 1 Stud

The first Phase 1 clinical study was a lgirdpse study conducted as a randomized, doubieslgiacebo-controlled, parallel-group dose
escalation study of BA058 Injection in a vial forfation administered as a single subcutaneous a@dsealthy male and female subjects with a
mean age of 61 years. The study administered sgugleutaneous doses of 2, 5, 7.5, 10, 15, 20,84@B0and 100 pg BA058 Injection or
placebo. Sixteen subjects also received 2.5 pgA®5B Injection by the
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intravenous, or 1V, route and 15 pg subcutaneousteparate study periods. In total, 76 subjeatsived BA058 while 20 received a placebo.
No elevation in serum calcium was observed at do686 g or lower and no clinically relevant effects ci@8 Injection on ECG or
continuous monitoring through the use of a Holtenitor readings were observed. In summary, thidystemonstrated that BA058 Injectior
100% bioavailable, meaning it is absorbed comptetghen administered by the subcutaneous route SBAGjection did not induce
hypercalcemia and was well tolerated at doses 80 {og subcutaneously.

Second Phase 1 Study

The second Phase 1 clinical study admirgdt8A058 Injection once daily for seven days. Bhwere 39 study subjects, all healthy
postmenopausal women with an average age of 60.démses of BA058 Injection (5 ug, 20 pg, 40 pg®@pg) and a matching placebo were
studied, with seven or eight women receiving eaxdedor the seven days of the study. BA058 Injectias well tolerated at all doses and t
were no medically important adverse events. Aleoddverse events were mild or moderate in intgasit did not appear to be related to the
dose of study drug. No subjects dropped out omditicued the study.

BAO058 was rapidly absorbed following injectand reached peak blood levels within one hohbe drug was rapidly cleared from the
circulation, resulting in half-life values rangifrgm 1.05 to 2.59 hours. Following BA058 adminiiba, serum parathyroid hormone
decreased, as would be expected, and serum 1,28rdityvitamin D, an activated form of vitamin D,caserum P1NP rose in a dose-related
manner. Both 1,28ihydroxyvitamin D and P1NP are expected and beisfeffects of the study drug and its class. Agested, serum calcit
showed a slight rise following BAO58 Injection admstration, although it remained within the normeaige at all times in all patients other t
isolated minor and transient elevations in twoefes1 placebo and three of 32 study subjects.

Third Phase 1 Study

The third Phase 1 clinical study was a irddse study, with the same design as the secoasePhstudy, but using a liquid prefilled
multidose cartridge of BA0O58 and conducted at dogé¥® g, 100 pg and 120 pg. BAO58 Injection @cpbo was administered daily as a
subcutaneous dose for seven days to healthy pogpraasal women. Thirty healthy postmenopausal wowigna mean age of 61 years were
enrolled and 29 completed treatment.

BAO58 Injection was well tolerated at dosésip to 100 pg but not at 120 pg which met datéor termination of dose escalation. One
patient in the 120 pug group was intolerant of stddyg and was discontinued. All adverse eventsrebdevere mild or moderate in intensity.
No study subject developed serum antibodies to BABBowing the seven days of exposure. BA058 Iti@tpharmacokinetics were agi
characterized by rapid absorption, reaching meak pesma concentration within approximately 0.88pmean half-life values ranged from
1.13 hours to 1.65 hours. Similar responses innsdtliH, 1,25-dihydroxyvitamin D and serum P1NP warserved. These higher doses of
BAO58 Injection were not associated with occurreoickypercalcemia. In summary, BA058 Injection waadl tolerated at up to 1009 once
daily for seven days.

BAO58 Microneedle Patch
First Phase 1 Stud

The objectives of the BA058 Microneedledhd®hase 1 study were to determine the safety,m@Kime course of delivery of BA058
Microneedle Patch in healthy postmenopausal womedrt@compare the PK profiles of BA058 Microneeich delivered transdermally to
BAO058 Injection administered subcutaneously.
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This study was a randomized, double-blpidcebo-controlled, ascending single-dose studyeandlled 38 healthy postmenopausal
women with a mean age of 57.6 years. Subjects umifetrup to three single dose exposures to BAO58dveedle Patch, Placebo Microneedle
Patch or BA058 Injection 80 g over the coursehaée study periods.

BA058 Microneedle Patch was characterized bapid absorption and elimination. The, ¢, or maximum plasma concentration of the
drug, and half-life times were shorter than for B&0njection administration.

BAO058 Microneedle Patch was well toleratgdfety events were similar between BA058 Microme&dtch and BA058 Injection, with
99% of adverse events being mild and, of theset mere reactions at the application site. There measlinically notable difference in
laboratory or cardiac safety parameters acrosssdafS8A058 or routes of administration.

In conclusion, the first Phase 1 study ADB8 Microneedle Patch demonstrated that BA058sediely be delivered by this route of
administration.

Second and Third Phase 1 Studies

A second Phase 1 single-day and a thirdéhaseven-day application study of BA058 Microe&thtch have been completed in the
United States and Canada using an optimized MiedleePatch system with top-line results announeddeicember 2011. These studies were
designed as safety, dose-ranging and time-coursandipharmacodynamic studies. The second andRhiade 1 studies also investigated
optimal dose, wear time and application site fansdermal delivery of BA058 using an optimized mieedle array. The results obtained u
BAO058 Microneedle Patch were compared to thoseAfFEB Injection at a dose of 80 ug.

BAO58 Microneedle Patch was characterized bapid release of BAO58 with a faster time @ctepeak concentration as well as more
rapid elimination in plasma compared to BA058 Itijat. Peak transdermal drug levels were consistéhtBA058 Injection. An optimal wear
time of five minutes or less was identified as vealleffective sites of application.

BAO58 Microneedle Patch showed an incréasiee bone-formation marker P1NP in serum afteeselays of exposure, consistent with
bone-building activity.

BAO58 Microneedle Patch was shown to be aafl well tolerated in all doses studied.
Preclinical Pharmacology of BAOE
In pharmacology studies conducted with B&Qhe following has been shown:

. BAO58 is a potent selective agonist of the humaHRIRT receptor

. In models of calcium mobilization, BA0O58 has sigeaitly less calcium mobilizing activity at highégoses than the native
hPTHrP(1-34), and less activity than hPTH(1-34);

. BAO058 Injection stimulates the formation of normakll-organized bone and restores BMD in ovariectomine@VX,
osteopenic rats and primates. Additionally, meatertesting of bones from OVX rats after treatmeith BA058 Injection
revealed a significant increase in femur and veatdione strength. BA058 Injection exhibited thearity of its effects through
the growth of trabecular bone without compromisiogtical bone. Similar studies in rats with BAO58ckéneedle Patch show
comparable restoration of bone;

. BAO58 Injection was well tolerated over a wide ramf doses in two species, rats and primates,ddo six months and nine
months, respectively;
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. Safety pharmacology studies demonstrated no régpirgastroenterologic, hematologic, renal or r@mervous system effects
(tachycardia and hypotension were observed in Gulgsving both intravenous and subcutaneous aditnatisn, but such
effects were not observed in other species);

. The No Observed Adverse Effect Level was 15, 252pg/kg/day in rats in the 4-, 13- and 26-weeklists, respectively, and
100, 50 and less than 10 pg/kg/day in monkeysardth13- and 39-week studies; and

. Repeat subcutaneous dose studies in both ratsyancholgus monkeys at doses up to 300 and 450 gigrespectively,
revealed a relatively fast absorption (T from 0.083 to 1.0 hr); peak serum concentrationAureh Under the Curve, a measure

of drug exposure, increased as the dose increased.

These preclinical studies suggest that @yegpto hPTH(1-34), BAO58 Injection can potentidis/used to restore lost BMD with a
reduced risk of hypercalcemia and loss of cortiaie.

Ongoing Preclinical Safety Studies for BA058

A two-year subcutaneous injection carcimigiey study of BA058 in Fischer 344 albino ratigrently ongoing and will assess the
carcinogenic potential of BA058. The study is betogducted according to the provisions set fortGuidance ICH-S1A, ICH-S1B, and ICH-
S1C(R2), and the design was accepted by the FDAlyn15, 2009. This study will evaluate three BA@ESe levels. The doses were selected
based upon findings and tolerance in completed-teng rat toxicology studies and the anticipatddramnce over a two-year dosing period.
Furthermore, the doses represent a good exposutiplmover maximum clinical doses. An active comgiar arm is also included as a posi
control. A cohort of rats will be dosed with hPTH34), because it is anticipated that osteosarasithbe observed over time. The active
comparator will allow confirmation of the sensitivof the model. This study will be conducted imglkel with the Phase 3 clinical study.

We also expect to conduct one preclinicalébquality study in OVX rats for up to 12 montliglaily BA0O58 subcutaneous injection and a
second preclinical bone quality study in adult Okinkeys for up to 18 months. The primary objectiféhese studies is to demonstrate that
long-term treatment with BA058 Injection will nadd to deleterious effects on bone quality by deiting BA058's effect on the mass,
architecture and strength of bones. These studiebaxconducted in parallel with the Phase 3 clithistudy and, in both studies, BA058 will
compared to placebo. The 12-month rat study isgopérformed in OVX skeletally mature Sprague-Dawilg, an appropriate species for
osteoporosis studies as a result of the cancetlons changes and bone strength changes similay imo humans. In this study, a 13-week
bone depletion period will occur after ovariectoshdm surgery and prior to initiation of daily sutaseous injection dosing with vehicle or
three different dose levels of BAO58.

The 16-month nonhuman primate study isdemrformed in OVX monkeys, a larger remodelingciggewhose bone depletion can be
induced by estrogen deficiency, as in human merggdu this study, an approximate nine-month bamedion period will occur after
OVX/sham surgery and prior to initiation of dailytecutaneous injection dosing with vehicle or thiese levels of BA058. The specific
objectives and measured outcomes of both studéetanvestigate the potential safety and efficacBA058 on prevention of bone loss.
Retention of bone mass, both cortical bone, whiatoiminant in long bones, and cancellous bone,iwisidominant in spinal bone, will be
assessed by BMD. Preservation of cortical and dsebone on strength will be determined by biohaatcal testing. The mechanisms by
which BA058 affects bone will be assessed by evminaf biomarkers of bone turnover and histomorpbtric indices of bone turnover. PK
BAO058 and development of antidrug antibodies w#babe evaluated.
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Manufacturing of BA05:

The active pharmaceutical ingredient, ot,APBA058 is manufactured on a contract basis¢byza Group Ltd., or Lonza, under GMP
conditions using a solid phase peptide synthesisnaBly process, and purification by high pressigigd chromatography. BA0O58 Injection is
supplied as a liquid in a multi-dose cartridgedee in a pen delivery device. The multi-dose adges are manufactured by Vetter. BA0O58
Microneedle Patch is manufactured by 3M based ein fatented microneedle technology to administegsl through the skin, as an alterne
to subcutaneous injection.

Patents relating to BAOS

Composition of matter of BA058 is claimedissued patents in the United States (US 5,969,8360pe, Australia, Canada, China, Hong
Kong, South Korea, New Zealand, Poland, Russiayeiare, Mexico, Hungary and Taiwan. These cases &daormal patent expiration date
of 2016 absent the possibility of patent term esi@m The Phase 3 clinical dosage of BA058 by tlEstaneous route for use in treating
osteoporosis is covered by US Patent No. 7,803,ATi02028 (statutory term extended with 175 dafypaient term adjustment due to delay
patent prosecution by the United States Patenfaadiemark Office, or USPTO) in the United Statdssént any patent term extension under
the Hatch-Waxman Act). Related cases granted in&laind currently pending in Europe, China, Austr&anada, Japan, Brazil, Mexico,
Singapore, South Korea, India, Israel, New Zeal&laiway, Russia and Ukraine will have a normal deeded patent expiration date of 2027.
Two priority patent applications covering variospeacts of BA058 for microneedle patch applicatiamehbeen filed in 2011 in the United
States (US app. no. 61/478,466 and 61/578,120ulRegpplications claiming priority to these 20Tbyisional applications are expected to be
made in 2012, and any claims that might issue fitoese regular applications will have a normal exdeite no earlier than 2032.

Competition for BAO58

The development and commercialization of peoducts to treat osteoporosis and women's hesalttghly competitive, and there will be
considerable competition from major pharmaceutis@technology and specialty pharmaceutical congsarVlany of our competitors have
substantially more resources than we do, incluBiotty financial and technical. In addition, manytledse companies have longer operating
histories and more experience than us in precliricd clinical development, manufacturing, regutatand global commercialization. See,
"Risk Factors—If we cannot compete successfullynfiarket share against other drug companies, wenogchieve sufficient product
revenues and our business will suffer."

Potential competitors with BA058 includet lare not limited to, Amgen, Merck & Co., Novartislly and Zosano. Lilly launched Forteo
in December 2002 as the first-to-market anabolibare-building agent for the treatment of osteopistd.illy has also announced that it is
investigating a transdermal method of delivery oft€o. Zosano is also developing a transdermal ffrrhPTH(134) that would compete wi
BAO058 Microneedle Patch. We have no products amtder sale and therefore have no share of angpeetic markets in which we hope to
introduce BA058.

RAD1901
Clinical Development Program

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tloeldwide rights (except Japan) to RAD1901 from Eibaparticular, we have licensed US
Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective filing date Decenitie 2003, statutory term extended to August D262with 967 days of patent term
adjustment due to delays by the USPTO). We areldeive RAD1901, a SERM, in an oral formulation aseatment for vasomotor
symptoms, commonly known as hot flashes.
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Background on Vasomotor Symptc

Hot flashes and night sweats are commorpsyms during menopause, with up to 85% of womereggpcing them during the
menopause transition, for a median duration of f@ars. In 2008, more than 11.5 million women ia thhited States were in the 45- to yihi
age range to enter menopause. In addition, mostenoeteiving systemic therapy for breast cancdeshbt flashes, often with more sever
prolonged symptoms than women experiencing menepdimese symptoms can disrupt sleep and interfihequality of life. An estimated
two million women undergo menopause every yeahénnited States, with a total population of 50lioml postmenopausal women.

Historically, hormone replacement therapyHRT, with estrogen and/or progesterone was densd the most efficacious approach to
relieving menopausal symptoms such as hot flaghesever, data from the Women's Health Initiative\\HI, identified increased risks for
malignancy and cardiovascular disease associatbdesfrogen therapy. Sales of HRT declined suliathnafter the release of the initial WHI
data, but HRT remains the current standard of frarsnany women suffering from hot flashes. Howewkre to concerns about the potential
long-term risks and contraindications associatdtl WRT, we believe that there is a significant nesrchew therapeutic options to treat
vasomotor symptoms. Pfizer's Premarin productrémeains the market leader for drugs to manage nzarsgh symptoms with 2010 worldwi
sales of $1 billion.

Pharmacologic Characteristic

RAD1901 has been shown to bind to the gstraeceptor alpha, or &R, and to have both estrogéke and estrogen antagonist effect
different tissues. RAD1901 has also been showrate Iboth estrogen-like behavioral effects in anénaald to reduce vasomotor signs in an
animal model of menopausal hot flashes. In bondDEF01 protects against castration-induced bonevitde showing no unwanted
stimulation of the endometrium. In cell culture, BEO01 does not stimulate replication of breast eacells and antagonizes the stimulating
effects of estrogen. Overall, therefore, RAD190hikits a number of properties that would makest#able drug candidate for the
management of menopausal symptoms, particularlyréa@ment of vasomotor symptoms.

Phase 1 Stud

A Phase 1 safety, PK and bioavailabilitydstwas conducted in 80 healthy postmenopausal wamer a range of doses of RAD1901,
including placebo. After single dosing with RAD196yt mouth, the mean half-life ranged between 2Adi22.5 hours. Bioavailability was
determined to be approximately 10%. Food effect algg investigated and the presence of food wasméted to increase absorption and
delay clearance of RAD1901.

RAD1901 was generally well tolerated. Alidy-related adverse events were of mild intensiith some increase in frequency at the
higher doses in the multiple dose group, most comyngastrointestinal symptoms and headaches. There no SAEs observed.

Phase 2 Stud

A Phase 2 proof of concept study was cotetbim 100 healthy postmenopausal women usingdoses of RAD1901 (10 mg, 25 mg, 50
mg and 100 mg) and placebo. The primary study omécavas reduction in the frequency and severity ofl@enate and severe hot flashes. W
a classic dose-response effect was not demonsteffedcy was determined to occur at the 10 mgedegel which achieved a statistically
significant reduction in the frequency of moderaitel severe hot flashes both by linear trend tesbgircomparison to placebo and in overall
(mild-moderate-severe) hot flashes at either tree tilree- or four-week time-points. A similar retion in composite score (frequency x
severity of hot flashes) was identified at all thp@ints, with a statistically significant
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difference from placebo achieved at the two-, thoedour-week time-points. Numerical reductionsriean severity and mean daily severity
were observed, but did not reach statistical sicguifce.

No SAEs were reported during the coursthefstudy. Overall, 69% of patients had an adveveat, generally mild or moderate in
severity, with some evidence of dose dependenal/eaants were most commonly gastrointestinal symptand headaches. Three severe
adverse events occurred, one in a placebo paéiedtyere not considered treatment related. Twempistidiscontinued treatment due to an
adverse event, neither in relation to the 10 mgdos

Our current strategy is to collaborate wftind parties for the further development and caroralization of RAD1901. Therefore, the d
of any FDA approval of RAD1901, if ever, cannotgredicted at this time. As a result of the uncetiaes around the completion of a
collaboration arrangement for RAD1901 with thirdtjes, we are unable to determine the durationcasts to complete current or future
clinical stages of our RAD1901 product candidatevben, or to what extent, we will generate reverfum®s the commercialization and sale of
RAD 1901. From January 1, 2009 through Decembe2@11, we incurred $3.9 million in research andedepment costs related to RAD19
Any failure by us to obtain, or any delay in obtag@ regulatory approvals for RAD1901 could sigeetfitly increase our need to raise additi
working capital funds and materially adversely efffeur product development efforts and our busioeesall. We can give no assurances that
any additional capital that we are able to obtailhlve sufficient to meet our cash flow needs. B do not succeed in the timely raising of
additional funds on acceptable terms, we may bélerta complete planned preclinical and clinicalds¢s or obtain approval of any product
candidates, including RAD1901 from the FDA and ottegulatory authorities. In addition, we couldfbeced to discontinue product
development, reduce or forego sales and marketfogseand forego attractive business opportunitfesy additional sources of financing will
likely involve the issuance of additional equitgssaties, which will have a dilutive effect on skbmlders.

Manufacturing of RAD190

The API of RAD1901 is manufactured for usaocontract basis by Irix Pharmaceuticals, In@ present good manufacturing practice, or
GMP, of RAD1901 comprises nine synthetic steps feonon-GMP starting material. The current manuféguprocess requires no
chromatographic separations. RAD1901 is a chirdene present as essentially one enantiomer.

Patents relating to RAD19(

RAD1901 as a composition of matter is ceddny US Patent No. 7,612,114 (statutory term edddrio 2026 with 967 days of patent term
adjustment absent any Hatgtlaxman extension). A corresponding case has ako issued in Australia and Canada with relatedscpsading
in India and Europe, with normal expiry of 2023paAtent application covering methods of using RADILA the treatment of hot flashes has
been filed in the United States (published as UBAML05733A1), Europe and Canada and any claimggsvill have a normal expiry of
2027. In addition, a Patent Cooperation Treatyp©il, application covering a dosage form has bded, fand any claims that might issue from
applications claiming priority to the PCT or thedenlying US Provisional Application No. 61/334,088| have a normal expiry date no earlier
than 2031.

Competition for RAD1901

The development and commercialization ef peoducts to treat women's health is highly coritipet and there will be considerable
competition from major pharmaceutical, biotechnglagd specialty pharmaceutical companies. Manyuottompetitors have substantially
more resources than we do, including both finarenial technical. In addition, many of these compahaeve longer operating histories and
more experience than us in preclinical and clind&lelopment, manufacturing,
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regulatory and global commercialization. See "Higsktors—If we cannot compete successfully for magkare against other drug companies,
we may not achieve sufficient product revenuesamndusiness will suffer" above.

Our potential competitors in relation to B2901 include, but are not limited to, Pfizer (NDAder review) and Depomed (Phase 3) who
both have agents in more advanced stages of deweldghan RAD1901. We believe that RAD1901 willdi#e to compete with other agents
for the treatment of hot flashes because we exptrhave a similar efficacy and better safetyfjgdhan estrogen products, as well as a better
efficacy and safety profile than non-estrogen potsluNe have no products approved for sale anéfibver have no share of any therapeutic
markets in which we hope to introduce RAD1901.

RAD140
Pharmacologic Characteristic

RAD2140 is a nonsteroidal SARM that resufrean an internal drug discovery program that beiga2005. RAD140 has demonstrated
potent anabolic activity on muscle and bone in lpteal studies and has completed 28-day preclirimédcology studies in both rats and
monkeys. Because of its high anabolic efficacyepsar selectivity, potent oral activity and longalion half life, we believe that RAD140 has
clinical potential in a number of indications whéhe increase in lean muscle mass and/or bonetdesifieneficial, such as treating the weight
loss due to cancer cachexia, muscle frailty anelogsirosis.

Our current strategy is to collaborate wiitind parties for the further development and caroialization of RAD140 so the date of any
FDA approval of RAD140, if ever, cannot be predict this time. As a result of the uncertaintiesuad the completion of a collaboration
arrangement for RAD140 with third parties, we amahle to determine the duration and costs to camplgrrent or future clinical stages of «
RAD140 product candidate or when, or to what exteetwill generate revenues from the commercidbraand sale of RAD140. From
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2011, weried$2.4 million in research and development cadtged to RAD140. Any failure by us
to obtain, or any delay in obtaining, regulatorpmagvals for RAD140 could significantly increase owed to raise additional working capital
funds and materially adversely affect our prodwstedlopment efforts and our business overall. Wegbas no assurances that any additional
capital that we are able to obtain will be suffitiéo meet our cash flow needs. If we do not suddeehe timely raising of additional funds on
acceptable terms, we may be unable to complet@@thpreclinical and clinical studies or obtain awal of any product candidates, including
RAD140 from the FDA and other regulatory authositi;n addition, we could be forced to discontinvedoict development, reduce or forego
sales and marketing efforts and forego attractiv@ress opportunities. Any additional sourcesmdificing will likely involve the issuance of
additional equity securities, which will have autiive effect on stockholders.

Patents relating to RAD14

RAD140 as a composition of matter and mashaf using RAD140 is covered by US Patent No. BA43 (effective filing date
February 19, 2009, and a statutory term extendéd2@1 days of patent term adjustment due to déigythe USPTO). Additional patent
applications are pending in the United States amdarous additional countries worldwide. Any patesssied from these filings will have a
normal expiry of 2029 absent any extensions.

Competition for RAD140

The development and commercialization af peoducts to treat women's health is highly corntipet and there will be considerable
competition from major pharmaceutical, biotechnglagd
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specialty pharmaceutical companies. Many of ourgtitors have substantially more resources thadayéncluding both financial and
technical. In addition, many of these companiesHawuger operating histories and more experienge ts in preclinical and clinical
development, manufacturing, regulatory and globahmercialization. See "Risk Factors—If we cannahpete successfully for market share
against other drug companies, we may not achieffieisat product revenues and our business wilfetifabove.

Potential competitors to Radius in relatiofRAD140 include, but are not limited to, GTx é8k 3) and Ligand (Phase 1/2) who both have
agents in more advanced stages of developmenfRA&140. We believe that RAD140 will be able to catgwith other SARM agents
because we expect it to have high potency to isereauscle and bone with a strong safety profile Haiee no products approved for sale and
therefore have no share of any therapeutic mankethich we hope to introduce RAD140.

Collaborations and License Agreements
Nordic Bioscience

We entered into a letter of intent with Nioron September 3, 2010, pursuant to which weddmuteparatory work by Nordic in respect of
a Phase 3 clinical study of BA058 Injection. Thigdeof intent was extended on December 15, 20H0oanJanuary 31, 2011. Pursuant to the
letter of intent and the two extensions, we fundeaggregate $1.5 million of preparatory work bydioduring 2010 and funded an additio
$750,000 of preparatory work by Nordic during 200h. March 29, 2011, we entered into a Clinical T&arvices Agreement (which
superseded and subsumed the letter of intent autalgt extensions), a Work Statement NB-1 under €lltical Trial Services Agreement and
a related Stock Issuance Agreement with Nordicsiamt to Work Statement NB-1, as amended on Deaei2©11, Nordic is managing the
Phase 3 clinical study of BAO58 Injection and we arquired to make various payments denominatedtimeuros and U.S dollars over the
course of the Phase 3 study of a total of both&B88llion ($46.4 million), and $5.3 million.

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemaeartliblagreed to purchase the equivalent of €371g8@de Former Operating Company's
series A-5 convertible preferred stock at a prieeghare equal to $8.142. Nordic purchased 64 A8@s of the Former Operating Company's
series A-5 convertible preferred stock on May 107l Pfor proceeds of $525,154 to the Former Opagaiompany. These shares were
exchanged in the Merger for 6,443 shares of ouesé-5 preferred stock, which will convert autoroally into 64,430 shares of common
stock upon a listing of the common stock on a matigecurities exchange. The Stock Issuance Agretpnevides that Nordic will receive
additional shares of capital stock, having an agafe=value of up t035.8 million ($47.7 million), which, following thautomatic conversion
all of our preferred stock as a result of a listoigour common stock on a national securities ergkawill be in the form of shares of common
stock, at certain times during the performancéefRhase 3 clinical study that is the subject ofi\Biatement NB-1.

The Clinical Trial Services Agreement hds/a-year term unless it is sooner terminated. Thirical Trial Services Agreement or any
Work Statement may be terminated by mutual agreeofahe parties at any time. Either party may aé&minate any Work Statement upon a
material breach by the other party with respestith Work Statement unless such other party cheesalteged breach within the notice period
specified in the Clinical Trial Services Agreemenif not capable of being cured within such petiloe party alleged to be in breach
commences efforts to cure and diligently proceedsite. Termination of any Work Statement doesresult in termination of the Clinical
Services Agreement or any other Work Statementghademain in force until terminated. Either pamay also terminate a Work Statement if
force majeure conditions have prevented performagdaée other party for more than a specified gedbtime. We may also terminate a W
Statement with notice to Nordic if authorizatiordaapproval to perform any clinical study that ie Bubject of such Work Statement is
withdrawn by the FDA or other relevant health auities or human or
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toxicological test results support terminationtwé tlinical study relating to such Work Statememtréasons of safety or if the emergence of
any adverse event or side effect in the clinicadlgtrelating to such Work Statement is of such nitade or incidence in our opinion as to
support termination.

The Clinical Trial Services Agreement camsacustomary risk allocation clauses with eactypademnifying the other in respect of third-
party claims arising out of or resulting from: ffile negligence or intentional misconduct of suctypdéts employees, agents or representatives
in performing its obligations under the Clinicalriees Agreement or any Work Statement; and (ij) lreach by such party of its
representations and warranties under the Clinidal $ervices Agreement. We have agreed to indgnivdfrdic in respect of thirgharty claims
for product liability or personal injury arisingdim or relating to our products or our use of anljvdeables. In addition, we separately provide
indemnification to the investigative sites perfongniservices pursuant to Work Statement NB-1 ingespf third-party claims of injury, illness
or adverse side effects to a patient in the stbdyis the subject of Work Statement NB-1 thatatébutable to the Radius study drug under
indemnification letters with such investigativeesit The Clinical Services Agreement contains athetomary clauses and terms as are
common in similar agreements in the industry.

In December 2011, we entered into an amendito Work Statement NB-1, or the Nordic Amendme@ursuant to the original terms of
the Work Statement, the study was to be conducté@ icountries at a specified number of sites wigdch country. The terms of the Nordic
Amendment provide for two additional countries (thated States and India) in which the study wdldonducted, specify a certain number of
sites within each such additional country for tbaduct of the study, and amend various terms aodgions of the Work Statement to reflect
the addition of such countries and sites withinghgly's parameters. Payments to be made by usrthd\under the Nordic Amendment in
connection with the conduct of the study in suctiit@hal countries are denominated in both euraklars. dollars and total up to both
€717,700 ($930,000) and $289,663 for the 15 additistudy sites in India contemplated by the NoAtieendment and up to botii 2 million
($1.6 million) and $143,369 for the five additiorsalidy sites in the United States contemplatedhbyNordic Amendment.

3M

In December 2008, we entered into a FdagiBigreement with 3M whereby 3M assessed theibglity of developing a BA058
microneedle patch product and supplying the prothrgbreclinical studies in an animal model. Upoeeessful completion of the feasibility
study, during June 2009, we entered into a Devedopirand Clinical Supplies Agreement with 3M undéicl 3M is responsible to develop a
BAO058 microneedle patch product and manufacturecel and toxicology supplies of such patch prodacpreclinical, Phase 1 and Phase 2
studies on an exclusive basis. We pay 3M for sesvielivered pursuant to the Development and Glir8cipplies Agreement on a fee for
service or a fee for deliverable basis as specifig¢tle Development and Clinical Supplies Agreem&ht Feasibility Agreement expired on or
around September 2009. We have paid 3M approxisn&#®R million, in the aggregate, through Decengier2011 in respect to services and
deliverables delivered pursuant to the FeasibMigyeement and the Development and Clinical Sup@lgeement.

The Development and Clinical Supplies Agneat remains in effect until the completion of therkplan that the parties are performing
thereunder, unless it is sooner terminated. Ejplaety may terminate the Development and Clinicgl@ies Agreement upon a material breach
by the other party unless such other party curesilieged breach within the notice period specifiethe Development and Clinical Supplies
Agreement. We are permitted to terminate the Dearaknt and Clinical Supplies Agreement without causdelivering notice to 3M a
specified period before the termination date. Tledopment and Clinical Supplies Agreement contairgtomary risk allocation clauses with
3M indemnifying us in respect of third-party claimssing from any personal injury to the extent
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that such claim results from 3M's breach of wasrawith respect to BA058 Microneedle Patch meetipglizable specifications; and us
indemnifying 3M in respect of third-party claimgsang with from our or our agent's use, testinglorical studies of BA058 Microneedle
Patch. The Development and Clinical Supplies Agr@noontains other customary clauses and termseaemon in similar agreements in
the industry.

Ipsen Pharma

In September 2005, we entered into a Lieekgreement with Ipsen, as amended in Septembér &0@ May 2011, under which we
exclusively licensed certain Ipsen compound teabhgphnd related patents covering BA058 to reseakebelop, manufacture and
commercialize certain compounds and related predaall countries, except Japan (where we do alat tommercialization rights) and
France (where our commercialization rights areesttltp certain co-marketing and peamotion rights retained by Ipsen). Ipsen alsotga us
an exclusive right and license under the Ipsen aung technology and related patents to make ane imade compounds or product in Japan.
Ipsen also granted us an exclusive right and lieemsler certain Ipsen formulation technology aated patents solely for purposes of
enabling us to develop, manufacture and commezeiaibmpounds and products covered by the compeahdology license in all countries,
except Japan (where we do not hold commercializatghts) and France (where our commercializatights are subject to certain co-
marketing and co-promotion rights retained by Ips@ith respect to France, if Ipsen exercisesotsnarketing and co-promotion rights then
Ipsen may elect to receive a percentage of theegatg revenue from the sale of products by bottiegan France (subject to a mid-double
digit percentage cap) and Ipsen shall bear a qureling percentage of the costs and expenses éuchyrboth parties with respect to such
marketing and promotion efforts in France; Ipseallsiso pay us a mid-single digit royalty on Ip'sesilocable portion of aggregate revenue
from the sale of products by both parties in Frasgecifically, we licensed US Patent No. 5,969, {@8ective filing date March 29, 1996,
statutory term expires March 29, 2016) entitled dhags of Parathyroid Hormone," US Patent No. 6 844, (effective filing date March 29,
1996, statutory term ends March 29, 2016) entithrtblogs of Parathyroid Hormone" and the correspragdbreign patents and continuing
patent applications.

In addition, we have rights to joint inedtual property including rights to US Patent N&0B,770 (effective filing date October 3, 2007,
statutory term expiring October 3, 2027 extended By days of patent term adjustment due to detapsiient prosecution by USPTO) and
related patent applications both in the Unitedetaind worldwide (excluding Japan) that cover teéhod of treating osteoporosis using the
Phase 3 clinical dosage strength and form.

As consideration for the rights to BAO5&elsed to us by Ipsen, we paid Ipsen a non-refuadabn-creditable initial license fee of
$250,000. The License Agreement requires us to rpagments to Ipsen upon the achievement of cetiaelopment milestones in the range
of $750,000 and upon the achievement of certaieldgment, regulatory and commercial milestonesiénrainge of €10.0 million to
€36.0 million ($13.0 million to $46.7 million), anwle have, as of December 31, 2011, paid $750,0@tlastone payments and issued 17,326
shares of series A-1 convertible preferred stodksen on May 17, 2011 in lieu of a €1.0 milliorshgayment due to Ipsen upon initiation of
the first BAO58 Phase 3 clinical study. If we or sublicensees commercialize a product that inaddbde compound licensed from Ipsen or
analog thereof, we will be obligated to pay to Ipsdfixed five percent royalty based on net saféh@product on a country-by-country basis
until the later of the last to expire of the licedgatents or for a period of 10 years after thg iommercial sale in such country.
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The date of the last to expire of the BA@B&ents, barring any extension thereof, is expetctde March 26, 2028. In the event that we
sublicense the rights licensed from Ipsen to atparty, we are obligated to pay Ipsen a percergégertain payments received from such
sublicensee (in lieu of milestone payments notead at the time of such sublicense). The appkcpbtcentage is in the low double digit
range. In addition, if we or our sublicensees conziaéze a product that includes a compound discedéy us based on or derived from
confidential Ipsen know-how, we will be obligatedpay to Ipsen a fixed low single digit royalty net sales of such product on a country-by-
country basis until the later of the last to exmif®ur patents that cover such product or forr@opeof 10 years after the first commercial sal
such product in such country. The License Agreeragpires on a country by country basis on the lat€r) the date the last remaining valid
claim in the licensed patents expires, in that tguior (i) a period of 10 years after the firgtnemercial sale of the licensed products in such
country, unless it is sooner terminated.

The License Agreement may be terminatedsbwith prior notice to Ipsen. The License Agreetmeay be terminated by Ipsen upon
notice to us with immediate effect, if we, in arguatry of the world, bring an action or proceedssgking to have any Ipsen patent right
declared invalid or unenforceable. The License Agrent can also be terminated by Ipsen if we failg®e reasonable commercial efforts to
develop the licensed product for sale and commiézatin in those countries within the territory ere it is commercially reasonable to do so
as contemplated by the License Agreement, ordailse reasonable commercial efforts to perfornobligations under the latest revised
version of the development plan approved by thet jgieering commitee, or fail to use reasonablensernial efforts to launch and sell one
licensed product in those countries within theitery where it is commercially reasonable to doEither party may also terminate the License
Agreement upon a material breach by the other pariyss such other party cures the alleged bre#&bimwhe notice period specified in the
License Agreement. Ipsen may terminate the Lic&ggeement in the event that the License Agreensassigned or sublicensed or in the
event that a third party acquires us or in the etleat we acquire control over a PTH or a PTHrP pound that is in clinical development or is
commercially available in the territory and thatldwing such assignment, sublicense, acquisitiwgcquisition of control by us, such
assignee, sublicensee, acquirer or we fail to itineetimetable under the latest revised versiomefdevelopment plan approved by the joint
steering committee under the License Agreement.failyre to meet such timetable for purposes ohgecmination clause is deemed a
material breach by us.

The License Agreement contains customalyailocation clauses with each party indemnifytimg other in respect of third-party claims
arising out of or resulting from: (i) the gross higgnce or willful misconduct of such party, itdibdtes, licensees, distributors or contractors;
(if) any breach by such party of its representatiand warranties or any other provision of the h#seAgreement or any related agreement;
(i) the manufacture on behalf of such party of éinensed product or compound; (iv) (in the cakkpsen) the use, development, handling or
commercialization of any licensed compound, licenseduct or the Ipsen formulation technology byntbehalf of Ipsen or any of its
affiliates, licensees, distributors or contractansg (v) (in our case) the making, use, developnfentdling or commercialization of any
licensed compound or any licensed product by aswrbehalf or any of our affiliates, licensees onttactors. The License Agreement cont
other customary clauses and terms as are comnsimilar agreements in the industry. The Licenseeggrent was amended on Septembe
2007 and May 11, 2011.

In January 2006, we entered into a Pharaoianzé Development Agreement as contemplated by ibense Agreement with Ipsen. The
Pharmaceutical Development Agreement as amendadyir?007, February 2009, June 2010 and Decemlddr @@vides for the supply of
quantities of licensed product for use in certdinical trials. Beaufour Ipsen Industrie SAS, a sidiary of Ipsen, is responsible for the supply
of BAO58 Injection in liquid form in a multi-doseadridge for use in a pen delivery device. The irddise cartridges are manufactured for
Beaufour Ipsen Industrie SAS by
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Vetter under a separate agreement between thasespand BA058 APl is manufactured by Lonza foaud is delivered to Vetter for vialing
in the multi-dose cartridges. The Pharmaceuticaldiment Agreement expires upon the completiaiefvork plan entered into under the
Pharmaceutical Development Agreement unless dasar terminated. The Pharmaceutical Developmeneégent shall automatically
terminate upon termination of the Ipsen licenseeggnent. We may terminate the Pharmaceutical Den@opAgreement at any time and for
any reason with a specified prior notice periotbgen. Either party may terminate the Pharmacedulieselopment Agreement upon a material
breach by the other party with respect to the Phaeutical Development Agreement or the Ipsen Liegxgreement unless such other party
cures the alleged breach within the notice perpmtiied in the Development and Manufacturing SmsiAgreement. The Pharmaceutical
Development Agreement contains other customarysefsand terms as are common in similar agreenrettig industry.

Eisai

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tlelawide (except Japan) rights to research, devetgmufacture and commercialize RAD1901
and related products from Eisai. Specifically, wemsed the patent application that subsequerye as US Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective
filing date December 25, 2003, statutory term eaéehto August 18, 2026 with 967 days of patent tadjnstment due to delays by the
USPTO) entitled "Selective Estrogen Receptor Maujathe corresponding foreign patent applicatiand continuing patent applications. As
consideration for the rights to RAD1901, we paiddtian initial license fee of $500,000. In conrmttvith the License Agreement, we have
agreed to pay Eisai certain fees in the range df #illion to $20.0 million (inclusive of the $5@MO0 initial license fee), payable upon the
achievement of certain clinical and regulatory stilmes. As of December 31, 2011, we do not belieee were any milestones probable of
being achieved in the foreseeable future.

Should a product covered by the licenselinelogy be commercialized, we will be obligateg&y to Eisai royalties in a variable mid-
single digit range based on net sales of the ptaalu@ country-by-country basis until the latettad last to expire of the licensed patents or the
expiration of data protection clauses covering qurciduct in such country; the royalty rate shadirtbe subject to reduction and the royalty
obligation will expire at such time as sales offiavgeneric version of such product account for enibran a specified minimum percentage of
the total sales of all products that contain therised compound. The latest valid claim to expiagsing any extension thereof, is expected on
August 18, 2026.

We were also granted the right to sublieanih prior written approval from Eisai, and sultj® a right of first negotiation held by Eise
we seek to grant sublicenses limited to particAlsian countries. If we sublicense the licensednetdgy to a third party, we will be obligated
to pay Eisai, in addition to the milestones refeezhabove, a fixed low double digit percentageenfain fees we receive from such sublicensee
and royalties in low single digit range based onsades of the sublicensee. The license agreemgirtes on a country by country basis on the
later of (i) date the last remaining valid clainmtfire licensed patents expires, lapses or is ingtitlin that country, the product is not covered
by data protection clauses, and the sales of lagénéric version of the product account for moenth specified percentage of the total sal
all pharmaceutical products containing the licens@apound in that country; or (ii) a period of 1€ays after the first commercial sale of the
licensed products in such country, unless it imgoterminated.

The license agreement may be terminateashyith respect to the entire territory with primtice to Eisai if we reasonably determine that
the medical/scientific, technical, regulatory omzuoercial profile of the licensed product does wstify continued development or marketing.
The license agreement can also be terminated lay &isa country by country basis at any time piéathe date on which we have filed for
either an FDA NDA approval or an EMA marketing apal with
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respect to a licensed product, upon prior writtetice to us if Eisai makes a good faith determorathat we have not used commercially
reasonable efforts to develop the licensed proidutte territory having reference to prevailingnmiples and time scales associated with the
development, clinical testing and government apalrof products of a like nature to such licensemtipct, unless such default is cured within
the period specified in the license agreement notfcapable of being cured within such period wemence efforts to cure and make diligent
efforts to do so. Either party may also terminatelicense agreement upon a material breach bythee party unless such other party cures
alleged breach within the notice period specifiethie license agreement. Either party may alsoitet® the license agreement upon the
bankruptcy or insolvency of the other party. Eisaily also terminate the license agreement with madice if we are acquired by, or if we
transfer all of our pharmaceutical business agsetan essential part of such assets) or more50& of our voting stock to, any third party
person or organization, or otherwise come undecdimrol of, such a person or organization, whetbsulting from merger, acquisition,
consolidation or otherwise in the event that Eieasonably determines that the person or orgaaizassuming control of us is not able to
perform the license agreement with the same degrskill and diligence that we would use, such dataation being made with reference to
the following criteria with respect to the persarooganization assuming control of us: (1) whethsrh person or organization has the financial
resources to assume our obligations with respad¢velopment and commercialization of productswBgther such person or organization
personnel with skill and experience adequate tarassour obligations with respect to development@rdmercialization of products at the
stage of development and commercialization asefidte of such change; and (3) whether such persorganization expressly assumes all
obligations imposed on us by the license agreemshiagrees to dedicate personnel and financialiress to the development and
commercialization of the licensed product thatatrkeast as great as those provided by us. Eigdlifsither have the right to terminate if the
acquiring person or organization: (a) has any nedtand active litigations with Eisai; (b) is a tz@n type of pharmaceutical company; or (c) is
a hostile takeover bidder against us which hasaeh approved by our board of directors as cotetitummediately prior to such change of
control.

The license agreement contains customskyallocation clauses with each party indemnifytimg other in respect of third-party claims
arising out of or resulting from: (i) the negligenceckless or intentional acts or omissions ohquarty, its affiliates, and licensees; (ii) any
breach by such party of its representations andantes; and (iii) any personal injury arising ofithe labeling, packaging, package insert,
other materials or promotional claims with resgedny licensed product by such party or its &ffés, licensees or distributors in the territory
(in our case) or Japan (in the case of Eisai).liCe@se agreement contains other customary clargk$erms as are common in similar
agreements in the industry.

Lonza

In October 2007, we entered into a Develepnand Manufacturing Services Agreement with Lok¥e and Lonza have entered into a
series of Work Orders pursuant to the DevelopmedtManufacturing Services Agreement pursuant takvhonza has performed
pharmaceutical development and manufacturing sesvimr our BA058 product. We pay Lonza for serviegglered and deliverables delivered
pursuant to these work orders on a fee for sehdsts as specified in the applicable work stateniér Development and Manufacturing
Services Agreement will expire on April 4, 2013esH it is sooner terminated, and is subject towahby us for successive multipjear term
with notice to Lonza.

The Development and Manufacturing Servisgeement or any Work Order may be terminated theeiparty upon a material breach by
the other party with respect to the DevelopmentMadufacturing Services Agreement unless such qtagy cures the alleged breach within
the notice period specified in the Development lslashufacturing Services Agreement. Either party rasp
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terminate a Work Order if force majeure conditibase prevented performance by the other party fmerthan a specified period of time with
respect to such Work Order. Termination of any Worker for force majeure shall not result in teration of the Development and
Manufacturing Services Agreement or any other Woréters, which shall remain in force until termirtht&ither party may also terminate the
Development and Manufacturing Services Agreemeahupe bankruptcy or insolvency of the other paie may also terminate the
Development and Manufacturing Services AgreemeangrWork Order with prior notice to Lonza for cemience. We may also terminate
Development and Manufacturing Services AgreemeangrWork Order if we reasonably determine thatdzois or will be unable to perform
the applicable services in accordance with theeatgon timeframe and budget set forth in the apple Work Order, or if Lonza fails to
obtain or maintain any material governmental lieansr approvals required in connection with suchises.

The Development and Manufacturing Servisggeement contains customary risk allocation clawsih each party indemnifying the
other in respect of thirgarty claims arising out of or resulting from: ffile negligence or willful misconduct of such paity affiliates and the
respective officers, directors, employees and agenperforming its obligations under the Develgpand Manufacturing Services Agreement;
and (ii) any breach by such party of its reprederia and warranties under the Development and Kéatwring Services Agreement. We have
agreed to indemnify Lonza in respect of third-patgims arising from or relating to the use of prwduct.

On December 23, 2011, we entered into V@nder No. 4, or Work Order No. 4, under that certaevelopment and Manufacturing
Services Agreement with Lonza. Pursuant to WorkeDMb. 4, Lonza agreed to perform activities regghifor our filing of an NDA in the
United States with the FDA and similar applicatioequired by the EMA and other authorities, exabgdauthorities in Japan, for BA058,
including production of three validation batcheke3e activities will provide for full process quighition and all required documentation
necessary for regulatory submissions of the ND#&FDA and the NDA equivalents to such other attiles. The total compensation paya
to Lonza from us for services performed under W@rker No. 4 is up to €363,500, plus up to €1.1ia1il($471,000, plus up to $1.4 million),
for the regulatory qualification and validation gaaigns (based on a rate of 180 grams of produnghesed in connection with the activities to
be conducted as part of such campaigns).

Charles River Laboratories

In March 2004, we entered into a Labora®eyvices and Confidentiality Agreement with ChaiRéver Laboratories, Inc., or CRLI, and
amended this agreement on November 7, 2008. Wedraeeed into a series of letter agreements withl@Rrsuant to this Laboratory
Services and Confidentiality Agreement, covering plerformance of certain testing and analyticalises concerning our product candidates.
We pay CRLI for services rendered and deliverabiivered pursuant to these letter agreementsfea #or service basis. We are permitted to
terminate any on-going study under the LaboratenyiSes and Confidentiality Agreement at any tinithwhe specified prior notice to CRLI
and subject to the payment of applicable studyscastl fees. Either party may terminate the Laboya@ervices and Confidentiality Agreem
at any time with the specified prior notice to titeer party and subject to the completion of amntbn-going studies and the payment by us of
any fees for such studies. Either party may aleuiteate the Laboratory Services and Confidentigliggeement upon a material breach by the
other party unless such other party cures theedidgeach within the notice period specified inlthboratory Services and Confidentiality
Agreement.

The Laboratory Services and Confidentialigreement contains customary risk allocation asusith each party indemnifying the other
in respect of third-party claims arising out ofieiconnection with the negligence or willful misatuct of such party. We also agreed to
indemnify CRLI in respect of third-party claimssing out of or in connection with the manufactutisfribution, use, sale or
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other disposition by us, or any of our distributangstomers, sublicensees or representatives yabfasur products or processes and/or any
other substances which are produced, purifiededest vialed by CRLI. We also agreed to indemniRLCagainst any and all liability that m
be incurred as the result of any contact by usuoemployees with CRLI's animals, tissues or spensrduring visits to CRLI or after delivery
of any samples/specimens to us. The Laboratoryi@srand Confidentiality Agreement contains othestemary clauses and terms as are
common in similar agreements in the industry.

Government Regulation

United States—FDA ProcessThe research, development, testing, manufadeveling, promotion, advertising, distributiondan
marketing, among other things, of our productsextensively regulated by governmental authoritiethe United States and other countries
the United States, the FDA regulates drugs undeF#deral Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or the FD&® its implementing regulations.
Failure to comply with the applicable United Stateguirements may subject us to administrativeidicjal sanctions, such as FDA refusal to
approve pending NDAs, warning letters, product ltecproduct seizures, total or partial suspensibproduction or distribution, injunctions,
and/or criminal prosecution. We expect BA058, RADL&nd RAD140 will each be subject to review by HBA as a drug under NDA
standards though we currently only have an acti2 &pplication in relation to BA058 in the Unitethfs

Drug Approval Process. None of our drugs may be marketed in the Un8tades until the drug has received FDA approvaé Jteps
required to be completed before a drug may be redka the United States include:

. preclinical laboratory tests, animal studies, amdnulation studies, all performed in accordancénlie FDA's Good Laborato
Practice, or GLP, regulations;

. submission to the FDA of an IND application for ramclinical testing, which must become effectivéobe human clinica
trials may begin and must be updated annually;

. adequate and well-controlled human clinical trtalgstablish the safety and efficacy of the drugefach indication to FDA's
satisfaction;

. submission to the FDA of an NDA;

. satisfactory completion of an FDA inspection of thanufacturing facility or facilities at which tldeug is produced to assess
compliance with current good manufacturing practerecGMP, regulations; and

. FDA review and approval of the NDA.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evétwaof product chemistry, toxicity, and formulaticas well as animal studies. The conduct of the
preclinical tests and formulation of the compoufatgesting must comply with federal regulationsl aaquirements. The results of the
preclinical tests, together with manufacturing mfiation and analytical data, are submitted to thé s part of an IND application, which
must become effective before human clinical tmatsy begin. An IND application will automatically d@me effective 30 days after receipt by
the FDA, unless before that time the FDA raisesceoms or questions about issues such as the coofding trials as outlined in the IND
application. In such a case, the IND applicatioonsor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding EDrAcerns or questions before clinical
trials can proceed. We cannot be sure that submnisgian IND application will result in the FDA aWing clinical trials to begin.

Clinical trials involve the administratiof the investigational drug to human subjects urldersupervision of qualified investigators.
Clinical trials are conducted under protocols detgithe
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objectives of the study, the parameters to be irsatbnitoring safety, and the effectiveness créitéo be evaluated. Each protocol must be
submitted to the FDA as part of the IND application

Clinical trials necessary for product apgaicare typically conducted in three sequentialdesabut the Phases may overlap. The study
protocol and informed consent information for stsdijects in clinical trials must also be approlgdn Institutional Review Board, or IRB,
for each institution where the trials will be cowtied, and each IRB must monitor the study until pletion. Study subjects must sign an
informed consent form before participating in aidal trial. Clinical testing also must satisfy emsive good clinical practice, or GCP,
regulations and regulations for informed conseut gnivacy of individually identifiable informatiorPhase 1 usually involves the initial
introduction of the investigational drug into pespb evaluate its short-term safety, dosage toterametabolism, pharmacokinetics and
pharmacologic actions, and, if possible, to gairary indication of its effectiveness. Phase Histsiare usually conducted in healthy
individuals and are not intended to treat diseaskness. However, Phase 1b studies are conduetedalthy volunteers or in patients
diagnosed with the disease, or condition for whighstudy drug is intended, who demonstrate sowmdiiker, surrogate, or possibly clinical
outcome that could be considered for "proof of epi¢ Proof of concept in a Phase 1b study typjcadinfirms the hypothesis that the current
prediction of biomarker, or outcome benefit is catiipe with the mechanism of action. Phase 2 uguallolves trials in a limited patient
population to: (i) evaluate dosage tolerance amdagpiate dosage; (ii) identify possible adverdeat and safety risks; and (iii) evaluate
preliminarily the efficacy of the drug for specifitdications. Several different doses of the druy e looked at in Phase 2 to see which dose
has the desired effects. Patients are monitoresidereffects and for any improvement in theirdis, symptoms, or both. Phase 3 trials usually
further evaluate clinical efficacy and test furtlfier safety by using the drug in its final forman expanded patient population. A Phase 3 trial
usually compares how well the study drug works carag with an inactive placebo and/or another apgatawedication. One group of patients
may receive the new drug being tested, while amafmip of patients may receive the comparator dalrgady-approved drug for the disease
being studied), or placebo. There can be no asserthat Phase 1, Phase 2 or Phase 3 testing witirbpleted successfully within any
specified period of time, if at all. Furthermoreg wr the FDA may suspend clinical trials at anyetiom various grounds, including a finding
the subjects or patients are being exposed to acceptable health risk.

The FDCA permits FDA and the IND applicatigponsor to agree in writing on the design ane sfzlinical studies intended to form the
primary basis of an effectiveness claim in an NDAis process is known as a Special Protocol Assessrar SPA. Under an SPA, the FDA
agrees to not later alter its position with resgieadequacy of the design, execution or analysteecclinical trial intended to form the primary
basis of an effectiveness claim in an NDA withdwe sponsor's agreement, unless the FDA identifeesatantial scientific issue essential to
determining the safety or efficacy of the drug afesting begins.

Assuming successful completion of the regpliclinical testing, the results of the preclimisdies and of the clinical studies, together
with other detailed information, including inforn@t on the manufacture and composition of the dang,submitted to the FDA in the form of
an NDA requesting approval to market the producbfee or more indications. The testing and apprpwatess requires substantial time, effort
and financial resources. The FDA reviews the apfiben and may deem it to be inadequate, and corapaainnot be sure that any approval
will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. ThBA may also refer the application to an approprateisory committee, typically a panel of
clinicians, for review, evaluation and a recommeiugieas to whether the application should be apgiloWhe FDA is not bound by the
recommendations of the advisory committee, bytpically follows such recommendations.

The FDA has various programs, including fesck, priority review and accelerated approttzt are intended to expedite or simplify the
process for reviewing drugs and/or provide for appt on the
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basis of surrogate endpoints. Generally, drugsrtizat be eligible for one or more of these programesthose intended to treat serious or life-
threatening conditions, those with the potentisdddress unmet medical needs, and those that prové@ningful benefit over existing
treatments. A company cannot be sure that anyg afritgs will qualify for any of these programsjfa drug does qualify, that the review time
will be reduced.

Before approving an NDA, the FDA usuallylwispect the facility or the facilities at whit¢he drug is manufactured and will not approve
the product unless the manufacturing is in compkanith cGMP regulations. If the NDA and the marmtifiaing facilities are deemed
acceptable by the FDA, it may issue an approvaieor in some cases, an approvable letter foltblyean approval letter. Both letters usually
contain a number of conditions that must be metder to secure final approval of the NDA. When #&ntose conditions have been met to
FDA's satisfaction, the FDA will issue an approledder. The approval letter authorizes commerciathkating of the drug for specific
indications. As a condition of NDA approval, the &Dnhay require post-marketing testing and survedéato monitor the drug's safety or
efficacy, or impose other conditions. Approval nadso be contingent on a Risk Evaluation and MitgaStrategy, or REMS, that limits the
labeling, distribution or promotion of a drug praetluOnce issued, the FDA may withdraw product apalrd ongoing regulatory requirements
are not met or if safety problems occur after tradpct reaches the market.

After approval, certain changes to the appd product, such as adding new indications, nga&értain manufacturing changes or making
certain additional labeling claims, are subjeditther FDA review and approval. Before a compaay market products for additional
indications, it must obtain additional approvalsnfrthe FDA. Obtaining approval for a new indicatgenerally requires that additional clinical
studies be conducted. A company cannot be suratiyaddditional approval for new indications foygmoduct candidate will be approved on
a timely basis, or at all.

Post-Approval Requirements.Often times, even after a drug has been apgrbyedhe FDA for sale, the FDA may require thataier
post-approval requirements be satisfied, includirggconduct of additional clinical studies. If symstapproval conditions are not satisfied,
FDA may withdraw its approval of the drug. In addfit holders of an approved NDA are required fprgport certain adverse reactions to the
FDA, (ii) comply with certain requirements concemiadvertising and promotional labeling for theiogucts, and (iii) continue to have quality
control and manufacturing procedures conform to &a®gulations after approval. The FDA periodicatiypects the sponsor's records related
to safety reporting and/or manufacturing facilitigs latter effort includes assessment of ongaimgipliance with cGMP regulations.
Accordingly, manufacturers must continue to exptme, money and effort in the area of productiod gnality control to maintain cGMP
compliance. We have used and intend to continuseathirdparty manufacturers to produce our products inadirand commercial quantitie
and future FDA inspections may identify compliaigsies at the facilities of our contract manufaatsithat may disrupt production or
distribution, or require substantial resourcesdawert. In addition, discovery of problems withraguct after approval may result in restrictic
on a product, including withdrawal of the produc the market.

Hatch-Waxman Act. Under the Drug Price Competition and PatentTRestoration Act of 1984, also known as the HMxman Act
Congress created an abbreviated FDA review prdoeggeneric versions of pioneer (brand name) dmeglpcts. In considering whether to
approve such a generic drug product, the FDA reguimat an Abbreviated New Drug Application, or AN@&pplicant demonstrate, among
other things, that the proposed generic drug priglactive ingredient is the same as that of tfereace product, that any impurities in the
proposed product do not affect the product's safesffectiveness, and that its manufacturing pgsee and methods ensure the consistent
potency and purity of its proposed product.

The Hatch-Waxman Act provides five yearslafa exclusivity for new chemical entities whialeyents the FDA from accepting ANDAs
and 505(b)(2) applications containing the protectetive
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ingredient. We expect to be eligible for five yeafglata exclusivity following any FDA approval BA058 Injection.

The Hatch-Waxman Act also provides thremryef exclusivity for applications containing tlesults of new clinical investigations (other
than bioavailability studies) essential to the FDApproval of new uses of approved products, ssctew indications, delivery mechanisms,
dosage forms, strengths, or conditions of useekample, if BAO58 Injection is approved for comnialization and we are successful in
performing a clinical trial of BA0O58 Microneedle teh that provides a new basis for approval (a diffie delivery mechanism) it is possible 1
we may become eligible for an additional three ymatod of data exclusivity which protects agathst approval of ANDAs and 505(b)(2)
applications for the protected use but will nothpbit the FDA from accepting or approving ANDAs®05(b)(2) applications for other produ
containing the same active ingredient.

The Hatch-Waxman Act requires NDA applisaautd NDA holders to provide certain informatiomatpatents related to the drug for
listing in the FDA's list of Approved Drug Produetith Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations (commdmigwn as the Orange Book). ANDA
and 505(b)(2) applicants must then certify regaydiach of the patents listed with the FDA for tbierence product. A certification that a lis
patent is invalid or will not be infringed by thearketing of the applicant's product is called aré@eaph IV certification.” If the ANDA or 505
(b)(2) applicant provides such a notification ofgrd invalidity or noninfringement, then the FDA yn&ccept the ANDA or 505(b)(2)
application beginning four years after approvathaf NDA. If an ANDA or 505(b)(2) application contétig a Paragraph IV certification is
submitted to the FDA and accepted as a reviewdbig by the agency, the ANDA or 505(b)(2) applitdimen must provide, within 20 days,
notice to the NDA holder and patent owner stathrag the application has been submitted and progitie factual and legal basis for the
applicant's opinion that the patent is invalid ot imfringed. The NDA holder or patent owner theaynfile suit against the ANDA or 505(b)(2)
applicant for patent infringement. If this is domithin 45 days of receiving notice of the Paragr@igltertification, a one-time 3@onth stay c
the FDA's ability to approve the ANDA or 505(b)@)plication is triggered. The 30-month stay beginthe end of the NDA holder's data
exclusivity period, or, if data exclusivity has éqal, on the date that the patent holder is natifiethe submission of the ANDA. The FDA n
approve the proposed product before the expiratidhe 30month stay if a court finds the patent invalid ot mfringed or if the court shorte
the period because the parties have failed to catp@ expediting the litigation.

European Union—EMA Process

In the European Union, or the EU, medicpralducts are authorized following a similar deniaggrocess as that required in the United
States. Applications are based on the ICH Commaffiieal Document and must include a detailed ptaupédiatric approval, if such
approval is sought. Medicines can be authorizetierEuropean Union by using either the centralengithorization procedure or national
authorization procedures.

Centralized procedure. Under the centralized procedure, after the BEbSies an opinion, the European Commission isseag)ie
marketing authorization valid across the Europeaik) as well as Iceland, Liechtenstein and Nonilde centralized procedure is
compulsory for human medicines that are: derivethfbiotechnology processes, such as genetic engigeeontain a new active substance
indicated for the treatment of certain diseasesh 13 HIV/AIDS, cancer, diabetes, neurodegenerdis@ders or autoimmune diseases and
other immune dysfunctions, and officially desigibtephan medicines. For medicines that do nowfdhin these categories, an applicant has
the option of submitting an application for a cafired marketing authorization to the EMA, as l@sgthe medicine concerned is a significant
therapeutic, scientific or technical innovationjfdts authorization would be in the interest afiytic health.
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National authorization procedures.There are also two other possible routes thaxite medicinal products in several countries,clvhi
are available for products that fall outside thepecof the centralized procedure:

. Decentralized proceduriUsing the decentralized procedure, an applicant apgyy for simultaneous authorization in more t
one European Union country of a medicinal prodhat has not yet been authorized in any Europeaaritountry and that do
not fall within the mandatory scope of the cengdi procedure.

. Mutual recognition procedurdn the mutual recognition procedure, a medicinfir$s authorized in one European Uni
Member State, in accordance with the national gioces of that country. Thereafter, further marlgtinthorizations can be
sought from other European Union countries in &@dore whereby the countries concerned agree ¢gméxre the validity of
the original, national marketing authorization.

In light of the fact that there is no pgliat the EU level governing pricing and reimbursemthe 27 EU Member States each have
developed their own, often varying, approachesmamy EU Member States, pricing negotiations must fdace between the Marketing
Authorization Holder and the competent nationahatities before the product is sold in their mankéh Marketing Authorization Holders
required to provide evidence demonstrating thephao-economic superiority of their product in comigzan with directly and indirectly
competing products. We have reviewed our developmegram, proposed Phase 3 study design, andlbreraclinical and clinical data
package to support future regulatory approval oDB& Injection with EMA but have not initiated aniclissions with EMA with respect to
seeking regulatory approval of our other productgurope.

Good manufacturing practices.Like the FDA, the EMA, the competent authosta the EU Member States and other regulatory
agencies regulate and inspect equipment, facilitiresprocesses used in the manufacturing of phautiael and biologic products prior to
approving a product. If, after receiving clearafroen regulatory agencies, a company makes a mhtdrdage in manufacturing equipment,
location, or process, additional regulatory reveavd approval may be required. Once we or our pat@mmercialize products, we will be
required to comply with cGMP, and product-speaiéigulations enforced by, the European Commissi@EMA and the competent
authorities of EU Member States following produgpeoval. Also like the FDA, the EMA, the competentthorities of the EU Member States
and other regulatory agencies also conduct regodaindic visits to re-inspect equipment, facibti@and processes following the initial approval
of a product. If, as a result of these inspectidtris,determined that our or our partners' equiptniacilities, or processes do not comply with
applicable regulations and conditions of produgirapal, regulatory agencies may seek civil, crichoraadministrative sanctions and/or
remedies against us, including the suspension ofamufacturing operations or the withdrawal of ptoduct from the market.

Other International Markets—Drug approval process

In some international markets (e.g., Clindapan), although data generated in United StatE) trials may be submitted in support of a
marketing authorization application, additionahaal trials conducted in the host territory, ardsting people of the ethnicity of the host
territory, may be required prior to the filing qu@oval of marketing applications within the coyntr

Pricing and Reimbursement

In the United States and internationalsles of products that we market in the future, @mdability to generate revenues on such sales,
are dependent, in significant part, on the avditgtand level of reimbursement from third-partyypas such as state and federal governments,
managed care providers and private insurance pgRainate insurers, such as health maintenance zaéns and
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managed care providers, have implemented costigutid reimbursement initiatives and likely willntimue to do so in the future. These
include establishing formularies that govern thaegdrand biologics that will be offered and alsodhé&of-pocket obligations of member
patients for such products. In addition, particylar the United States and increasingly in othaurdtries, we are required to provide discounts
and pay rebates to state and federal governmedtagencies in connection with purchases of ourymtsithat are reimbursed by such entities.
It is possible that future legislation in the UnitStates and other jurisdictions could be enacteidiwcould potentially impact the
reimbursement rates for the products we are deiejaggnd may develop in the future and also coutth&r impact the levels of discounts and
rebates paid to federal and state governmententitiny legislation that impacts these areas ciouiéct, in a significant way, our ability to
generate revenues from sales of products thaicfessfully developed, we bring to market.

There is no legislation at the EU level gianing the pricing and reimbursement of medicimabpcts in the EU. As a result, the competent
authorities of each of the 27 EU Member States laaopted individual strategies regulating the pgcnd reimbursement of medicinal
products in their territory. These strategies oftary widely in nature, scope and application. Hegrea major element that they have in
common is an increased move towards reductionemalmbursement price of medicinal products, actdn in the number and type of
products selected for reimbursement and an incdeasderence for generic products over innovatigelpcts. These efforts have mostly been
executed through these countries' existing priserobmethodologies. The government of the UK, wltibntinuing for now to utilize its
established Pharmaceutical Pricing Reimbursemdmr8e approach, has announced its intentions torghies by 2014, a new value-based
pricing approach, at least for new product intrdturs. Under this approach, in a complete depaftora established methodologies,
reimbursement levels of each drug will be expljciihsed on an assessment of value, looking atehefits for the patient, unmet need,
therapeutic innovation, and benefit to society aghale. It is increasingly common in many EU MemBéaites for Marketing Authorization
Holders to be required to demonstrate the pharneaocoomic superiority of their products as compaoegroducts already subject to pricing
and reimbursement in specific countries. In orderdfugs to be evaluated positively under sucleidat pharmaceutical companies may nee
re-examine, and consider altering, a number ofttoaghl functions relating to the selection, studpd management of drugs, whether currently
marketed, under development, or being evaluatedrdidates for research and/or development.

Future legislation, including the curreetsions being considered at the federal levelénthited States and at the national level in EU
Member States, or regulatory actions implementeagnt or future legislation may have a significgfféct on our business. Our ability to
successfully commercialize products depends ingrathe extent to which reimbursement for the costaur products and related treatments
will be available in the United States and worldevfdom government health administration authorjt@s/ate health insurers and other
organizations. Substantial uncertainty exists @béaeimbursement status of newly approved healéhproducts by third-party payors.

Sales and Marketing

The FDA regulates all advertising and prtioroactivities for products under its jurisdictiboth prior to and after approval. A company
can make only those claims relating to safety dficaey that are approved by the FDA. Physiciany mreescribe legally available drugs for
uses that are not described in the drug's labelithat differ from those tested by us and apptdoyethe FDA. Such off-label uses are
common across medical specialties, and often tedl@bysician's belief that the off-label use is ltest treatment for the patients. The FDA
does not regulate the behavior of physicians iir tieice of treatments, but FDA regulations do @® stringent restrictions on manufactui
communications regarding off-label uses. Failuredmply with applicable FDA
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requirements may subject a company to adversegitybknforcement action by the FDA, corrective edising, consent decrees and the full
range of civil and criminal penalties availablghe FDA.

We may also be subject to various federdlstate laws pertaining to healthcare "fraud dnge," including anti-kickback laws and false
claims laws. Anti-kickback laws make it illegal famprescription drug manufacturer to solicit, off@ceive, or pay any remuneration in
exchange for, or to induce, the referral of bussnexluding the purchase or prescription of aipaldr drug. Due to the breadth of the statutory
provisions and the absence of guidance in the fifrregulations and very few court decisions addngssdustry practices, it is possible that
our practices might be challenged under anti-kicklar similar laws. Moreover, recent healthcaremef legislation has strengthened these
laws. For example, the recently enacted PPACA, anudiner things, amends the intent requirementefelderal anti-kickback and criminal
healthcare fraud statutes, so that a person dyemtiionger needs to have actual knowledge ofdtaitite or specific intent to violate it. In
addition, PPACA permits the government to assett @ahclaim that includes items or services regyitiom a violation of the federal anti-
kickback statute constitutes a false or fraudubdgitn for purposes of the false claims statutetsé=elaims laws prohibit anyone from
knowingly and willingly presenting, or causing te presented for payment, to third-party payorsluiog Medicare and Medicaid) claims for
reimbursed drugs or services that are false odfrint, claims for items or services not providedtkimed, or claims for medically
unnecessary items or services. Our activitiesingldb the sale and marketing of our products magubject to scrutiny under these laws.
Violations of fraud and abuse laws may be punighallcriminal and civil sanctions, including fingsd civil monetary penalties, the
possibility of exclusion from federal healthcaregmams (including Medicare and Medicaid) and caapointegrity agreements, which impose,
among other things, rigorous operational and manigorequirements on companies. Similar sanctionspenalties also can be imposed upon
executive officers and employees, including crimganctions against executive officers under thealed "responsible corporate officer”
doctrine, even in situations where the executifie@f did not intend to violate the law and waswaee of any wrongdoing.

Given the significant penalties and finsttcan be imposed on companies and individuaisn¥icted, allegations of such violations of
result in settlements even if the company or irdlial being investigated admits no wrongdoing. 8eténts often include significant civil
sanctions, including fines and civil monetary p&ral and corporate integrity agreements. If theegoment were to allege or convict us or our
executive officers of violating these laws, ouribess could be harmed. In addition, private indieild have the ability to bring similar actions.
Our activities could be subject to challenge fa teasons discussed above and due to the broagl sttiese laws and the increasing attention
being given to them by law enforcement authoriti@gther, there are an increasing number of stats that require manufacturers to make
reports to states on pricing and marketing inforomtMany of these laws contain ambiguities as batis required to comply with the laws.
Given the lack of clarity in laws and their implem&tion, our reporting actions could be subjed¢htpenalty provisions of the pertinent state
authorities.

Similar rigid restrictions are imposed e promotion and marketing of medicinal producthsEU and other countries. Laws (includ
those governing promotion, marketing and anti-kaddbprovisions), industry regulations and profesai@odes of conduct often are strictly
enforced. Even in those countries where we arelinettly responsible for the promotion and marketirf our products, inappropriate activity
by our international distribution partners can hawplications for us.

Other Laws and Regulatory Processes

We are subject to a variety of financialalibsure and securities trading regulations asbéiggoompany in the United States, including
laws relating to the oversight activities of theCS&nd, if any or our capital stock becomes listeéd mational securities exchange, we will be
subject to the regulations of such exchange onlwbiz shares are traded. In addition, the Finadagabunting
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Standards Board, or FASB, the SEC and other bad&save jurisdiction over the form and contenbof accounts, our financial statements
and other public disclosure are constantly discigsand interpreting proposals and existing proneurents designed to ensure that companies
best display relevant and transparent informataating to their respective businesses.

Our international operations are subjeatdampliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Acthe FCPA, which prohibits corporations
and individuals from paying, offering to pay, ottlarizing the payment of anything of value to aageign government official, government
staff member, political party, or political candidan an attempt to obtain or retain business atherwise influence a person working in an
official capacity. We also may be implicated untter FCPA for activities by our partners, collaborat CROs, vendors or other agents.

Our present and future business has begmw#ircontinue to be subject to various other laamsl regulations. Various laws, regulations
and recommendations relating to safe working camht laboratory practices, the experimental usenirhals, and the purchase, storage,
movement, import and export and use and dispodadzdirdous or potentially hazardous substancesing®hnection with our research work
are or may be applicable to our activities. Certgireements entered into by us involving excluloense rights or acquisitions may be sub
to national or supranational antitrust regulataspteol, the effect of which cannot be predictede Eixtent of government regulation, which
might result from future legislation or administvataction, cannot accurately be predicted.

Intellectual Property

As of January 31, 2012, we owned two isdueited States patents, as well as nine pendingedi8tates patent applications and 28
pending foreign patent applications in Europe aBidther jurisdictions, two granted foreign pateantsl three pending international
applications. As of January 31, 2012, we had liesris nine United States patents, one United Spatiesit application as well as numerous
foreign counterparts to many of these patents aehp applications. We licensed these patents atahpapplications on an exclusive basis for
all countries except Japan though our rights im&eawith respect to BA058 are subject to certaipimonotion and conarketing rights held b
Ipsen and our rights to sublicense in certain Asaific countries in respect of RAD1901 are subject right of first refusal held by Eisai, all
as described herein in our discussion of our lieeagreements with Ipsen and Eisai.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we employed nitletime employees and two part-time employeesr fifiwhom held Ph.D. or M.D. degrees.
Five of our employees were engaged in researcldanelopment activities and six were engaged in et ministration, including business
development and finance. We intend to use CROo#ret third parties to perform our clinical studé&sl manufacturing.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in the state of Delawm February 4, 2008 under the name MPM Acquisi€orp. In May 2011, we entered int
reverse merger transaction, or the "Merger," withgredecessor, Radius Health, Inc., a Delawangocation formed on October 3, 2003, or
the Former Operating Company, pursuant to which-tivener Operating Company became a wholly-ownedididry of ours. Immediately
following the merger transaction, the Former Opega€ompany was merged with and into us, or thetSharm Merger, we assumed the
business of the Former Operating Company and cliamgiename to "Radius Health, Inc."
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Set forth below are risks and uncertainties thatlda@ause actual results to differ materially frole results contemplated by the forward-
looking statements contained in this report. Beeaafsthe following important factors, as well abetvariables affecting our operating rest
past financial performance should not be considexgd reliable indicator of future performance anuestors should not use historical trer
to anticipate results or trends in future periods.

Risks Related to Our Business

Risks Related to Our Financial Position and Need faCapital
We are not currently profitable and may never beaaprofitable.

We have a history of net losses and exjpeicicur substantial losses and have negative tipgreash flow for the foreseeable future, and
may never achieve or maintain profitability. We lzadet loss of $42.5 million for the year ended &eber 31, 2011 and $14.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010. As of December 31, @@ had an accumulated deficit of $122.4 milliéwen if we succeed in developi
and commercializing one or more of our product tdeugs, we expect to incur substantial lossesterfdreseeable future and may never
become profitable. We also expect to continue taiirsignificant operating and capital expenditwared anticipate that our expenses will
increase substantially in the foreseeable futunseas

. continue to undertake preclinical development dimdoal trials for product candidates;
. seek regulatory approvals for product candide

. implement additional internal systems and infratrce; anc

. hire additional personnel.

We also expect to experience negative flaghfor the foreseeable future as we fund our apieg losses and capital expenditures. As a
result, we will need to generate significant revenin order to achieve and maintain profitabilitye may not be able to generate these
revenues or achieve profitability in the future.cArdingly, unless and until we generate revenudshasome profitable, we will need to raise
additional capital to continue to operate our bes# including after the consummation of this dfigrOur failure to achieve or maintain
profitability or to raise additional capital cout@égatively impact the value of our securities.

We currently have no product revenues and will ngedaise additional capital to operate our busirses

To date, we have generated no product teserntil, and unless, we receive approval froenutS. Food and Drug Administration, or
FDA, and other regulatory authorities for our prodeandidates, we will not be permitted to sell durgs and will not have product revenues.
Currently, our only product candidates are BAO58PR901 and RAD140, and none of these products dael is approved by the FDA for
sale. Therefore, for the foreseeable future, wehaive to fund our operations and capital expenedrom cash on hand, borrowings undet
credit facility, or our credit facility, with Oxfat Finance LLC and General Electric Capital Cordorgtor GECC, licensing fees and grants and
potentially, future offerings of our securities. \Welieve that our existing resources, together aithilable borrowings of $12.5 million under
our $25.0 million credit facility, will be sufficig to fund our planned operations into the firsader of 2013. We have based this estimate on
assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and wedaosg our available capital resources sooner tleaaurrently expect. Our future capital
requirements will depend on many factors, includimg scope and progress made in our research aetbgment activities and our clinical
studies.
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Our credit facility imposes significant restrictianon our business, and if we default on our obligats, the lenders would have a right to
foreclose on substantially all our asse

In May 2011, we entered into our $25.0 imillcredit facility with GECC, as agent and lenderd Oxford Finance LLC, as lender. We
drew $12.5 million under our credit facility duri®11 and had available borrowings of $12.5 milésnof December 31, 2011. Our credit
facility contains a number of covenants that impsigaificant operating and financial restrictionsws. These covenants limit our ability to:

. dispose of our business or certain assets;

. change our business, management, ownership ordsssiocations

. incur additional debt or liens;

. make certain investments or declare dividends;

. acquire or merge with another entity for considerain excess of an allowable amou
. engage in transactions with affiliates;

. encumber our intellectual property.

Our credit facility may limit our abilityotfinance future operations or capital needs @migage in, expand or pursue our business
activities. It may also prevent us from engagingdtivities that could be beneficial to our bussand our stockholders unless we repay the
outstanding debt, which may not be desirable osiptes

We have pledged substantially all of owets other than our intellectual property to seoureobligations under our credit facility. If we
default on our obligations and are unable to obgaivaiver for such a default, the lenders wouldehavight to accelerate the debt and termi
all commitments under our credit facility. They aalso have the right to foreclose on the pledagskts, including our cash and cash
equivalents. Any such action on the part of len@gainst us would significantly harm our business aur ability to operate.

We will need to seek additional sources of finangjrwhich may not be available on favorable termfsat all.

If we do not succeed in the timely raisgigadditional funds on acceptable terms, we mayrtable to complete planned preclinical and
clinical trials or obtain approval of any produeindidates from the FDA and other regulatory autlesri In addition, we could be forced to
discontinue product development, reduce or fored@ssand marketing efforts and forego attractiverimss opportunities. Any additional
sources of financing will likely involve the issu@nof additional equity securities, which will haaelilutive effect on stockholders.

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to pexisting stockholders, restrict our operations cequire us to relinquish rights to ou
technologies or product candidates.

Until such time, if ever, as we can geregtbstantial product revenues, we expect to fimanc cash needs through a combination of
equity offerings, debt financings, collaboratiossategic alliances, licensing arrangements anerottarketing and distribution arrangements.
We do not have any committed external source adgunther than under our credit facility. To theéeex that we raise additional capital
through the sale of equity or convertible debt siéies, your ownership interest will be diluted dafne terms of these securities may include
liquidation or other preferences that adverselgctff/our rights as a stockholder. Debt financifgyailable, may involve agreements that
include covenants limiting or restricting our atyilio take specific actions, such as incurring addal debt, making capital expenditures or
declaring dividends. If we raise additional fundeotigh marketing and distribution arrangementstioerocollaborations, strategic alliances or
licensing arrangements with
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third parties, we may have to relinquish valuaidéts to our technologies, future revenue streaesgarch programs or product candidates or
to grant licenses on terms that may not be faverbUs. If we are unable to raise additional fuildsugh equity or debt financings when
needed, we may be required to delay, limit, redurderminate our product development or commemadibn efforts or grant rights to develop
and market product candidates that we would otrsenprefer to develop and market ourselves.

We are a company with a limited operating historgan which to base an investment decision.

We are a company with a limited operatirggdry and have not demonstrated an ability togrenfthe functions necessary for the
successful commercialization of any product caneislarhe successful commercialization of any prodandidates will require us to perform
a variety of functions, including:

. continuing to undertake preclinical development elirtical trials;
. participating in regulatory approval processes;

. formulating and manufacturing products; ¢

. conducting sales and marketing activiti

Our operations have been limited to orgagiand staffing our company, acquiring, developng securing our proprietary technology
and undertaking preclinical and clinical trialsoafr product candidates. These operations provloeited basis for you to assess our ability to
commercialize our product candidates and the alNitseof investing further in our securities.

Our financial results may fluctuate from quarter tquarter, which makes our results difficult to préxd and could cause our results to fall
short of expectations

Our financial results may fluctuate assuteof a number of factors, many of which are m&®f our control. For these reasons,
comparing our financial results on a periodstEriod basis may not be meaningful, and you shoatdely on our past results as an indicatio
our future performance. Our revenues, if any, nhagtfiate from quarter to quarter and our futurertpily and annual expenses as a percentage
of our revenues may be significantly different frtose we have recorded in the past or which weaXpr the future. Our financial results in
some quarters may fall below expectations. Anyhebe events as well as the various risk factaesdlis this section could adversely affect our
financial results and cause our stock price to fall

Risks Related to the Discovery, Development and Carmrercialization of Our Product Candidates

We are heavily dependent on the success of BA05&ciion, which is under clinical development. Werg#ot be certain that BA058
Injection will receive regulatory approval or be soessfully commercialized even if we receive re¢itg approval.

BAO58 Injection is our only product candielén late stage clinical development, and ourress currently depends heavily on its
successful development, regulatory approval andeerdialization. We have no drug products for saleently and may never be able to
develop marketable drug products. The researdingesnanufacturing, labeling, approval, sale, neéirlg and distribution of drug products
subject to extensive regulation by the FDA and othgulatory authorities in the United States atigtocountries, which regulations differ
from country to country. We are not permitted tarkea BA0O58 Injection in the United States unlesd antil we receive approval of an NDA
from the FDA, or in any foreign countries unlessl amtil we receive the requisite approval from fagary authorities in such countries. In
addition, the approval of BA0O58 Microneedle Patstadollow-on product is dependent on the earlier approvBIAG58 Injection. We have n
submitted an NDA to the FDA or comparable applmasito other regulatory authorities. Obtaining appt of an NDA is
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an extensive, lengthy, expensive and uncertaingsi@nd any approval of BA058 Injection may bayksd, limited or denied for many
reasons, including:

. we may experience delays in the enrollment of p&ien our ongoing Phase 3 clinical tri

. we may not be able to demonstrate that BAO58 is aafl effective as a treatment for osteoporodisesatisfaction of the FDA;

. the results of our clinical studies may not meetlével of statistical or clinical significance téged by the FDA for marketing
approval;

. the FDA may disagree with the number, design, siaaduct or implementation of our clinical studi

. the CRO that we retain to conduct clinical studies/ take actions outside of our control that matgradversely impact our

clinical studies;

. the FDA may not find the data from preclinical sagdand clinical studies sufficient to demonstthtt BA058's clinical an
other benefits outweigh its safety risks;

. the FDA may disagree with our interpretation ofadfitobm our preclinical studies and clinical studiesnay require that w
conduct additional studies;

. the FDA may not accept data generated at our elisiudy sites;

. if our NDA is reviewed by an advisory committeeg thDA may have difficulties scheduling an advisooynmittee meeting in a

timely manner or the advisory committee may recomainggainst approval of our application or may recend that the FDA
require, as a condition of approval, additionalkfinécal studies or clinical studies, limitations approved labeling or
distribution and use restrictions;

. the FDA may require development of a REMS as a itiondof approval;
. the FDA may identify deficiencies in the manufaaigrprocesses or facilities of our third-party miaoturers; or

. the FDA may change its approval policies or ad@pt negulations.

Before we submit an NDA to the FDA for BAD&S a treatment for osteoporosis, we must compiateral additional studies, including
our pivotal Phase 3 study, a thorough QT Phasedysta Phase 1 PK study in renal patients, a Ph&€ study in hepatic patients, a
carcinogenicity study in rats, and bone qualityas in rats and monkeys. We have not commenced tidkse required studies and the results
of these studies will have an important bearinghenapproval of BA058. In addition to fracture é8lD, our pivotal Phase 3 study will
measure a number of other potential safety indisatncluding anti-BA058 antibodies which will haga important bearing on the approval of
BAO058. In addition, the results from the rat caogianicity study, which includes hPTH(1-34), a dailypcutaneous injection of recombinant
human parathyroid hormone as a comparator, may #awBA058 dosing results in more osteosarcomas BTH, which may have a mate
adverse bearing on approval of BA058.

If we experience delays in the enroliment of patierin our Phase 3 clinical trial of BAO58 Injectioor any other clinical trial, our receipt o
necessary regulatory approvals could be delayegrvented.

We may not be able to initiate or contimlirical trials for some of our product candidaifese are unable to locate and enroll a sufficient
number of eligible patients to participate in th&ggs as required by the FDA or other regulataaghorities. If we do not enroll patients in our
Phase 3 clinical trial of BA0O58 Injection at theerghat we expect, we will not be able to comptbtetrial in a timely manner and may be
required to incur additional expenses in ordereteksto accelerate the rate of
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patient enrollment. In addition, many of our coniees have ongoing clinical trials for product céates that could be competitive with our
product candidates, and patients who would otherlvéseligible for our clinical trials may insteaatr@l in clinical trials of our competitors'
product candidates.

Enrollment delays in our clinical trials yneesult in increased development costs for oudpeo candidates, which would cause the value
of the company to decline and limit our abilitydbtain additional financing. Our inability to enralsufficient number of patients for any of
current or future clinical trials would result iigsificant delays or may require us to abandon@mmore clinical trials altogether.

If we do not obtain the necessary United Statedareign regulatory approvals to commercialize angoduct candidate, we will not be ab
to sell our product candidates.

We cannot assure you that we will receheedpprovals necessary to commercialize any opmduct candidates, including BA058,
RAD1901 and RAD140, or any product candidate weuger develop in the future. We will need FDA apyal to commercialize our
product candidates in the United States and apfgdnam the FDA-equivalent regulatory authoritieforeign jurisdictions to commercialize
our product candidates in those jurisdictions. rtteo to obtain FDA approval of any product candigdate must submit to the FDA an NDA
demonstrating that the product candidate is safadmans and effective for its intended use. Tkimdnstration requires significant research
and animal tests, which are referred to as predirstudies, as well as human tests, which areregfe¢o as clinical trials. Satisfaction of the
FDA's regulatory requirements typically takes mgagrs, depends upon the type, complexity and npeélthe product candidate and requires
substantial resources for research, developmentestidg. We cannot predict whether our researchcéinical approaches will result in drugs
that the FDA considers safe for humans and effedty indicated uses. The FDA has substantial eisnr in the drug approval process and
may require us to conduct additional preclinical afinical testing or to perform post-marketingdies. The approval process may also be
delayed by changes in government regulation, fuegislation or administrative action or change&A policy that occur prior to or during
its regulatory review. Delays in obtaining regutgtapprovals may:

. delay commercialization of, and our ability to deerproduct revenues from, our product candidates;
. impose costly procedures on us; and
. diminish any competitive advantages that we magmtise enjoy

Even if we comply with all FDA requestsethDA may ultimately reject one or more of our NDXge may never obtain regulatory
clearance for any of our product candidates. Failorobtain FDA approval of any of our product ddates will severely undermine our
business by leaving us without a saleable produnt,therefore without any source of revenues, antither product candidate can be
developed. There is no guarantee that we will beegible to develop or acquire any product candidate

In foreign jurisdictions, we must receivgpeoval from the appropriate regulatory authoritbegore we can commercialize any drugs.
Foreign regulatory approval processes generallydtecall of the risks associated with the FDA appt@rocedures described above. We
cannot assure you that we will receive the appsomatessary to commercialize any of our produalidartes for sale outside the United Ste

Most of our product candidates are in early staggfclinical trials.

Except for BA058, each of our other prodtemdidates, which are RAD1901 and RAD140, is iyesiages of development and requires
extensive preclinical and clinical testing. We catnpredict
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with any certainty if or when we might submit an Nior regulatory approval for any of our produchdédates or whether any such NDA will
be accepted.

Clinical trials are very expensive, time-consumiagd difficult to design and implement.

Human clinical trials are very expensive difficult to design and implement, in part beaatisey are subject to rigorous regulatory
requirements. A substantial portion of our BAO58&lepment costs are denominated in euro and argraglynovement in the dollar/euro
exchange rate will result in increased costs agdire us to raise additional capital to compleedkvelopment of our products. The clinical
trial process is also time consuming. We estimaae ¢linical trials of BA058 Injection will take geral additional years to complete.
Furthermore, failure can occur at any stage ofriaés, and we could encounter problems that casge abandon or repeat clinical trials. The
commencement and completion of clinical trials rhaydelayed by several factors, including:

. unforeseen safety issues;

. determination of dosing issue

. lack of effectiveness during clinical trials;

. slower than expected rates of patient recruitmadtemrollment;

. inability to monitor patients adequately duringadter treatment; an

. inability or unwillingness of medical investigatdosfollow our clinical protocols

In addition, we, the FDA, or other regulgtauthorities and ethics committees with jurisidictover our studies may suspend our clinical
trials at any time if it appears that we are expggarticipants to unacceptable health risks trd@fFDA or other authorities find deficiencies in
our regulatory submissions or the conduct of thieaks. Therefore, we cannot predict with any dettathe schedule for existing or future
clinical trials.

The results of our clinical trials may not suppoadur product candidate claims.

Even if our clinical trials are completesi@anned, we cannot be certain that the resultswiport our product candidate claims. Success
in preclinical testing and early clinical trialsenot ensure that later clinical trials will besessful, and we cannot be sure that the results of
later clinical trials will replicate the results pfior clinical trials and preclinical testing. Fexample, our Phase 3 study of BAO58 Injection for
fracture prevention may not replicate the positfficacy results for BMD from our Phase 2 studyeTtinical trial process may fail to
demonstrate that our product candidates are safeufoans and effective for indicated uses. Thisifaiwould cause us to abandon a product
candidate and may delay development of other ptatArdidates. Any delay in, or termination of, olimical trials will delay the filing of our
NDAs with the FDA and, ultimately, our ability t@mmercialize our product candidates and generatgugt revenues. In addition, our clini
trials to date have involved small patient popolasi Because of the small sample sizes, the resfultiese clinical trials may not be indicative
of future results.

Any product candidate for which we obtain marketiragpproval could be subject to restrictions or witlagval from the market and we may
subject to penalties if we fail to comply with relgtory requirements or if we experience unanticigat problems with our products, whe
and if any of them are approved.

Any product candidate for which we obtaiarketing approval, along with the manufacturinggesses, post-approval clinical data,
labeling, advertising and promotional activities $oich product, will be subject to continual reguients of and review by the FDA and other
regulatory authorities. These requirements inckudamissions of safety and other post-marketingim&tion and reports, registration and
listing requirements, cGMP requirements relatinguality control, quality assurance
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and corresponding maintenance of records and dausgrequirements regarding the distribution of gl®1to physicians and recordkeeping.
Even if we obtain marketing approval of a prodwntdidate, the approval may be subject to limitation the indicated uses for which the
product may be marketed or to the conditions ofaygd, or contain requirements for costly post-nedirky testing and surveillance to monitor
the safety or efficacy of the product. The FDA elgsegulates the post-approval marketing and ptmm®f drugs to ensure drugs are
marketed only for the approved indications anddeoadance with the provisions of the approved lalgelThe FDA imposes stringent
restrictions on manufacturers' communications miggroff-label use and, if we do not market ourdurats for their approved indications, we
may be subject to enforcement action for off-labearketing.

In addition, later discovery of previousigknown problems with our products, manufacturenmanufacturing processes, or failure to
comply with regulatory requirements, may yield was results, including:

. restrictions on such products, manufacturers orufaturing processe
. restrictions on the labeling or marketing of a pret

. restrictions on product distribution or use;

. requirements to conduct p-marketing clinical trials

. warning or untitled letters;

. withdrawal of the products from the market;

. refusal to approve pending applications or supplemt® approved applications that we sub
. recall of products

. fines, restitution or disgorgement of profits oveaue;

. suspension or withdrawal of marketing approvals;

. refusal to permit the import or export of our proti

. product seizure; ¢

. injunctions or the imposition of civil or crimingknalties.

Physicians and patients may not accept and use duwgs.

Even if the FDA approves one or more of prrduct candidates, physicians and patients magetept and use them. Acceptance ant
of any of our products will depend upon a numbefaofors including:

. perceptions by members of the healthcare communitiyding physicians, about the safety and effectess of our drug
. cost-effectiveness of our product relative to cotimgeproducts;

. availability of coverage and reimbursement for praduct from government or other healthcare payerd;

. effectiveness of marketing and distribution effdrysus and our licensees and distributors, if i

Because we expect sales of our currentymtochndidates, if approved, to generate substyrdidof our product revenues for the
foreseeable future, the failure of these drugsain gharket acceptance would harm our business andtiwequire us to seek additional
financing.
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We may expend our limited resources to pursue atigatar product candidate or indication and fail toapitalize on product candidates or
indications that may be more profitable or for whidhere is a greater likelihood of success.

Because we have limited financial and managresources, we focus on research programgutlict candidates that we identify for
specific indications. As a result, we may foregalelay pursuit of opportunities with other prodoandidates or for other indications that later
prove to have greater commercial potential. Oupuese allocation decisions may cause us to faibfatalize on viable commercial products
profitable market opportunities. Our spending orrent and future research and development progeantiproduct candidates for specific
indications may not yield any commercially viablegucts. If we do not accurately evaluate the corarakpotential or target market for a
particular product candidate, we may relinquistuahle rights to that product candidate throughatatation, licensing or other royalty
arrangements in cases in which it would have beare mdvantageous for us to retain sole developarhtommercialization rights to such
product candidate.

If serious adverse or inappropriate side effecteadentified during the development of our produzdndidates, we may need to abandon
development of some of our product candidates.

All of our product candidates are stillgreclinical or clinical development. It is impodsilto predict when or if any of our product
candidates will prove effective or safe in humanwidl receive regulatory approval, if ever. If oproduct candidates result in undesirable side
effects or have characteristics that are unexpestednay need to abandon their development.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties
Our drug development program depends upon third{yaresearchers, investigators and collaborators wdre outside our control.

We depend upon independent researchemsstigators and collaborators, such as Nordic, talgot our preclinical and clinical trials
under agreements with us. These third parties@reur employees and we cannot control the amoutitning of resources that they devote to
our programs. These third parties may not assigiveest a priority to our programs or pursue therdigently as we would if we were
undertaking such programs ourselves. If outsidialotators fail to devote sufficient time and reses to our drug-development programs, or
if their performance is substandard, the approfauo FDA applications, if any, and our introductiof new drugs, if any, will be delayed.
These collaborators may also have relationships etlier commercial entities, some of whom may cdmpath us. If our collaborators assist
competitors at our expense, our competitive pasitvould be harmed.

If a regulatory or governmental authority determisethat a financial interest in the outcome of thén®se 3 study of BA058 Injection by al
of the entities managing our Phase 3 study affectld reliability of the data from the Phase 3 stydyur ability to use the data for our
planned regulatory submissions could be compromisetiich could harm our business and the value ofra@aommon stock

The Phase 3 study of BAO58 Injection isgahanaged by Nordic at certain clinical sites apet by CCBR. Nordic controls, and hold:
ownership interest in, the local CCBR clinical sit&€he clinical trial investigators are employeE€GBR and may also hold an equity interest
in the local CCBR clinical trials.

In consideration of Nordic's managemerthaf Phase 3 study, we agreed to make variouspgashents to Nordic over the course of the
Phase 3 study equal to a total of €35.8 millior6(@4million) and a total of $5.3 million. We alsgraed to sell shares of capital stock to Nordic
that
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were exchanged in the Merger for 6,443 shares 0§eties A-5 convertible preferred stock for prateef approximately $525,000. These
shares of our series A-5 convertible preferredistaitl automatically convert into 64,430 sharesoaf common stock upon the listing of our
common stock on a national securities exchangesuat to the terms of our agreements with Nordewi also issue to Nordic additional
shares of common stock with an aggregate valu@ o6 €36.8 million ($47.7 million). These additidrshares of common stock accrue at a
quarterly rate based on the progress of the Phakei&l study and are issuable at a price pereshgual to the greater of $8.142 or the 20-day
average of the closing price of our common stockngttime after our common stock is publicly traded

The fair market value of our common stockyrbe subject to wide fluctuations in responseatgous factors, many of which are beyond
our control, including any negative outcome of Bifease 3 study. Accordingly, the shares of commackghat we will issue to Nordic in
consideration of Nordic's management of the Phadad/ may be less than the full value contemplateter our agreements with Nordic. A
result, the total consideration that Nordic wilteése in cash and common stock may be viewed teebmv the market price paid by other
companies for comparable clinical trial services.

Because of the potential decrease in theewaf the common stock issuable to Nordic upoegative outcome of the Phase 3 study,
Nordic, CCBR and the clinical trial investigatorsiyrbe viewed as having a financial interest indbzome of the study. We have obtail
written acknowledgments from the clinical trial @stigators certifying that they have no financigérest in the outcome of the Phase 3 study.
However, if the FDA, EMA or any other similar regtdry or governmental authority determines thatdigrCCBR or the clinical trial
investigators have a financial interest that affddhe reliability of the data from the Phase 8igtuve could be subject to additional regulatory
scrutiny and the utility of the Phase 3 data fampses of our planned regulatory submissions cheldompromised, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business and theevafl our common stock.

We will rely exclusively on third parties to formate and manufacture our product candidates.

We have no experience in drug formulatiomanufacturing and do not intend to establishawan manufacturing facilities. We lack the
resources and expertise to formulate or manufacturewn product candidates. We have entered mteesnents with contract manufacturers
to manufacture BA058 Injection for use in clinit@l activities. These contract manufacturersanmeently our only source for the production
and formulation of BA058. We currently do not haficient clinical supplies of BA0O58 to completeetPhase 3 study for BA058 Injection
but believe that our contract manufacturers wilbbée to produce sufficient supply of BA058 to cdete all of the planned BAO58 clinical
studies. However, if our contract manufacturersugnable to produce, in a timely manner, adequéatéecal supplies to meet the needs of our
clinical studies, we would be required to seek wewtract manufacturers that may require us to ngaalif finished product formulation and
modify or terminate our clinical studies for BAOS81y modification of our finished product or modidition or termination of our Phase 3
clinical study could adversely affect our abilitydbtain necessary regulatory approvals and sagmfly delay or prevent the commercial
launch of the product, which would materially hasor business and impair our ability to raise cdpita

We depend on a number of single sourceraoinimanufacturers to supply key components of BBAG®r example, we depend on Lonza,
which produces supplies of bulk drug product of B8@o support BA058 Injection and BA058 MicroneeBkch clinical studies and poten
commercial launch. We also depend on Beaufort Ipsémstrie SAS and its subcontractor Vetter Phaferigung GmbH & Co, or Vetter, for
the production of finished supplies of BA058 Injeotand we depend on 3M for the production of BAQ&8roneedle Patch. Because of our
dependence on Vetter for the "fill and finish" pafrthe manufacturing process for BA058 Injectiove, are subject to the
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risk that Vetter may not have the capacity frometito time to produce sufficient quantities of BAGb8neet the needs of our clinical studie
be able to scale to commercial production of BA®&cause the manufacturing process for BA058 Mieeaite Patch requires the use of 3M's
proprietary technology, 3M is our sole source foished supplies of BAO58 Microneedle Patch.

While we are currently in discussions, &bed neither we nor our collaborators have entereda long-term agreement with Lonza, Vetter
or 3M, each of whom currently produce BA058 or teacomponents on a purchase order basis for uardingly, Lonza, Vetter and 3M
could terminate their relationship with us at ainyet and for any reason. We may not be able to ietgdbng-term agreements on acceptable
terms, or at all. If our relationship with any bese contract manufacturers is terminated, oelf tire unable to produce BAO58 or related
components in required quantities, on a timelydasiat all, or if we are forced to accept unfabteaerms for our future relationship, our
business and financial condition would be materiairmed. If any of our current product candidateany product candidates we may dev:
or acquire in the future receive FDA approval, wik rely on one or more third-party contractorsm@anufacture our drugs or related
components. Our anticipated future reliance ométéid number of third-party manufacturers exposeuhe following risks:

. We may be unable to identify manufacturers on aedxdg terms, or at all, because the number of piatenanufacturers i
limited and the FDA must approve any replacementreator. This approval would require new testing aompliance
inspections. In addition, a new manufacturer wddude to be educated in, or develop substantialljvatéent processes for,
production of our products after receipt of FDA apgl, if any.

. Our third-party manufacturers might be unable tonfelate and manufacture our drugs or related comptsrin the volume and
of the quality required to meet our clinical neadsl commercial needs, if any.

. Our future contract manufacturers may not perfosragreed or may not remain in the contract manuifisgt business for th
time required to supply our clinical trials or tacsessfully produce, store and distribute our pctslu

. Drug manufacturers are subject to ongoing periadennounced inspection by the FDA, the Drug Enfolet Administration,
and corresponding state agencies to ensure strighlance with good manufacturing practice and ogovernment regulations
and corresponding foreign standards. We do not bamtrol over third-party manufacturers' compliamgth these regulations
and standards.

. If any thirc-party manufacturer makes improvements in the matwrfiag process for our products, we may not owmay
have to share, the intellectual property rights&innovation.

Each of these risks could delay our clihidals, the approval, if any, of our product catates by the FDA or the commercialization of
our product candidates or result in higher costeqrive us of potential product revenues.

If we are not able to establish additional collakaiions, we may have to alter our development ple

Our product development programs and theri@l commercialization of our product candidatéls require substantial additional cast
fund expenses. For some of our product candidatesnay decide to collaborate with pharmaceuticdllzintechnology companies for the
development and potential commercialization of ghpsoduct candidates.

We face significant competition in seekapmpropriate collaborators. Collaborations are cempind time-consuming to negotiate and
document. We may also be restricted under existiigboration
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agreements from entering into agreements on ceaggims with other potential collaborators. We may e able to negotiate collaborations on
acceptable terms, or at all. If that were to ocaugmay have to curtail the development of a paldicproduct candidate, reduce or delay its
development program or one or more of our otheeligment programs, delay its potential commeraéilin or reduce the scope of our sales
or marketing activities, or increase our expenésuaind undertake development or commercializattivites at our own expense. If we elect
to increase our expenditures to fund developmenbormercialization activities on our own, we magaéo obtain additional capital, which
may not be available to us on acceptable terms alt. df we do not have sufficient funds, we wilbt be able to bring our product candidates to
market and generate product revenue.

Risks Relating to Marketing and Sale of Our Producs
We have no experience selling, marketing or distriimg products and no internal capability to do so.

We currently have no sales, marketing etrithiution capabilities. We do not anticipate hgvihe resources in the foreseeable future to
allocate to the sales and marketing of our propgseducts. Our future success depends, in paxuombility to enter into and maintain
collaborative relationships for such capabilitige collaborators' strategic interest in the presluader development and such collaborators'
ability to successfully market and sell any suabdpicts. We intend to pursue collaborative arrangesnegarding the sales and marketing of
our products. However, there can be no assuraatevihwill be able to establish or maintain sucletmrative arrangements, or if we are able
to do so, that our collaborators will have effeetsales forces. To the extent that we decide natrtare unable to, enter into collaborative
arrangements with respect to the sales and magketiour proposed products, significant capitalenditures, management resources and time
will be required to establish and develop an indeomarketing and sales force with technical exgerirhere can also be no assurance that we
will be able to establish or maintain relationshiyh third-party collaborators or develop in-howssdes and distribution capabilities. To the
extent that we depend on third parties for markeéind distribution, any revenues we receive wileted upon the efforts of such third parties,
and there can be no assurance that such effoftbenvdluccessful. In addition, there can also bassarance that we will be able to market and
sell our products in the United States or overseas.

If we cannot compete successfully for market shagainst other drug companies, we may not achieviisient product revenues and ot
business will suffer.

The market for our product candidates &rabterized by intense competition and rapid teldgical advances. If any of our product
candidates receives FDA approval, it will competdnva number of existing and future drugs and thiesadeveloped, manufactured and
marketed by others. If we fail to develop BA058 kticeedle Patch, our commercial opportunity for Ba08ll be limited. Existing or future
competing products may provide greater therapeatiwvenience or clinical or other benefits for acifieindication than our products, or may
offer comparable performance at a lower cost. tffrpducts fail to capture and maintain market shae may not achieve sufficient product
revenues and our business will suffer.

We will compete against fully integratechpimaceutical companies and smaller companies teatadlaborating with larger
pharmaceutical companies, academic institutiongegonent agencies and other public and privatearebeorganizations. Many of these
competitors have compounds already approved oewveldpment. In addition, many of these competiteither alone or together with their
collaborative partners, operate larger researctdemdlopment programs or have substantially gréet@ncial resources than we do, as well as
significantly greater experience in:

. developing drugs
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. undertaking preclinical testing and human clinicills;
. obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals ofgdr
. formulating and manufacturing drugs; and

. launching, marketing and selling drugs.
Developments by competitors may render our produsttechnologies obsolete or n-competitive.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical indestare intensely competitive and subject to rapid significant technological change. Some
of the drugs that we are attempting to developh siscBA058, RAD1901 and RAD140 will have to competit existing therapies. In additic
a large number of companies are pursuing the dpredat of pharmaceuticals that target the same shseand conditions that we are targeting.
We face competition from pharmaceutical and bioteblgy companies in the United States and abreedddlition, companies pursuing
different but related fields represent substamahpetition. Many of these organizations competiith us have substantially greater capital
resources, larger research and development stadf&ailities, longer drug development history taining regulatory approvals and greater
manufacturing and marketing capabilities than weTdmse organizations also compete with us tocttpaalified personnel and parties for
acquisitions, joint ventures or other collaborasioand therefore, we may not be able to hire ainejualified personnel to run all facets of our
business.

Our ability to generate product revenues will bexdnished if our drugs sell for inadequate prices patients are unable to obtain adequate
levels of reimbursement.

Our ability to commercialize our drugs,raoor with collaborators, will depend in part oe #xtent to which coverage and reimbursement
will be available from:

. government and health administration authorities;
. private health maintenance organizations and headtirers; and
. other healthcare paye!

Significant uncertainty exists as to thientmursement status of newly approved healthcardymts. Healthcare payers, including Medic
are challenging the prices charged for medical petedand services. Government and other healtipegrers increasingly attempt to contain
healthcare costs by limiting both coverage anddtiel of reimbursement for drugs. Even if one of ptoduct candidates is approved by the
FDA, insurance coverage may not be available, amdbursement levels may be inadequate, to covér dug. If government and other
healthcare payers do not provide adequate covaradjecimbursement levels for one of our productliates, once approved, market
acceptance of such product could be reduced.

We may incur substantial liabilities and may be rgced to limit commercialization of our products iresponse to product liability lawsuits.

The testing and marketing of medical pragwntail an inherent risk of product liability. e cannot successfully defend ourselves ag
product liability claims, we may incur substantiabilities or be required to limit commercializati of our products. Our inability to obtain
sufficient product liability insurance at an acadpé cost to protect against potential produciliigtzlaims could prevent or inhibit the
commercialization of pharmaceutical products weettgy, alone or with collaborators.

48




Table of Contents
Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

If we fail to comply with our obligations in our itellectual property licenses with third parties, weuld lose license rights that are importe
to our business.

We are a party to a number of intellecturalperty license agreements with third parties expect to enter into additional license
agreements in the future. Our existing licenseeagents impose, and we expect that any future lecagseements will impose, various
diligence, milestone payment, royalty, insurance ater obligations on us. If we fail to comply vihese obligations, our licensors may have
the right to terminate these agreements, in whiglmewe might not be able to develop and marketmoguct that is covered by these
agreements. Termination of these licenses or remuot elimination of our licensed rights may résalour having to negotiate new or
reinstated licenses with less favorable terms.ddweirrence of such events could materially harmboiginess.

If our efforts to protect our intellectual propertyelated to BA058, RAD1901 and/or RAD140 fail toegliately protect these assets, we r
suffer the loss of the ability to license or sucs@dly commercialize one or more of these candida

Our commercial success is significantlyetegent on intellectual property related to our paigortfolio. We are either the licensee or
assignee of numerous issued and pending pateritatighs that cover various aspects of our assetsiding BA058, RAD1901 and RAD14

Patents covering BA058 as a compositiomafter have been issued in the United States (WhPo. 5,969,095), Europe and several
additional countries. Because the BA058 composibiomatter patent was filed in 1996, it is expedietiave a normal expiry of approximately
2016 in the United States (this date does not decthe possibility of Hatch-Waxman patent term esien of up to five years which could
extend the expiration in the United States untieast the fourth quarter of 2020) and additiomairdries where it has issued.

We and Ipsen, are also coassignees to t&ntdo. 7,803,770 that we believe provides exeltysuntil 2028 in the United States (absent
any Hatch-Waxman patent term extensions) for thihatkof treating osteoporosis with the intendedapeutic dose for BA058 Injection.

Currently, additional intellectual propetyvering BA058 Microneedle Patch is the subjedtraf US provisional patent applications with
priority dates of 2011. Regular applications claigpriority to these 2011 provisional applicati@me expected to be made in 2012, and any
issued claims resulting from these applications expire no earlier than 2032. However, pendingpaapplications in the United States and
elsewhere may not issue since the interpretatigheofegal requirements of patentability in viewctdimed inventions are not always
predictable. Additional intellectual property covey BA058 Microneedle Patch technology exists ia filrm of proprietary information
contained by trade secrets. These can be accifjedisdlosed to, independently derived by or migappiated by competitors, possibly
reducing or eliminating the exclusivity advantagéshis form of intellectual property, thereby allmg those competitors more rapid entry into
the marketplace with a competitive product thusioaty our marketing advantage of BA0O58 Micronedetiéch. In addition, trade secrets may
in some instances become publicly available reduiisclosures in regulatory files. Alternativelpnepetitors may sometimes reverse engineer
a product once it becomes available on the makesn where a competitor does not use an idengcahiblogy for the delivery of BA05S, it
possible that they could achieve an equivalentenesuperior result using another technology. Swdurrences could lead to either one or
more alternative competitor products availabler@nrharket and/or one or more generic competitadysrts on the market with a
corresponding decrease in market share and/or fmid®@A058 Microneedle Patch. See "Business—Pateiating to BA058."

Patents covering RAD1901 as a compositfanatter have been issued in the United Statesadzaand Australia and are pending in
Europe and several additional countries. The RAD190
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composition of matter patent in the United Statgsires in 2026 (not including any Hatch-Waxman agten). Additional patent applications
relating to methods of treating vasomotor symptartisical dosage strengths and combination treatmmerdalities all covering RAD1901 he
been filed. Pending patent applications in the &thibtates and elsewhere may not issue since trpilietation of the legal requirements of
patentability in view of any claimed invention befdhat patent office are not always predictabke akesult, we could encounter challenges or
difficulties in building, maintaining and/or defend our intellectual property both in the Uniteci®s and abroad. See "Business—Patents
relating to RAD1901."

We have yet to conduct comprehensive freetiboperate searches to determine whether our use gfatents licensed or issued to us
are believed to cover BA0O58 and RAD1901 would imde patents owned by third parties. We may becaarty fo, or threatened with, future
adversarial proceedings or litigation regardingliettual property rights with respect to theseéssor licensed patents, including interference
proceedings before the USPTO. Third parties magrassringement claims against us based on exjgietents or patents that may be granted
in the future. If we are found to infringe a thjpdrty's intellectual property rights, we could bquired to obtain a license from such third party
to continue developing and marketing our produntstachnology. However, we may not be able to otaaly required license on
commercially reasonable terms or at all. Even ifwege able to obtain a license, it could be noritestee, thereby giving our competitors
access to the same technologies licensed to ugolé be forced, including by court order, to ceesmmercializing the infringing technolo
or product. In addition, we could be found liabbe fnonetary damages. A finding of infringement copitevent us from commercializing our
product candidates or force us to cease some dfu®iness operations, which could materially haumbusiness. Claims that we have
misappropriated the confidential information odiasecrets of third parties could have a similgatige impact on our business.

Patent applications covering RAD140 ancep®ARM compounds that are part of the SARM poidfbbhve been granted in the United
States, and are pending in the United States aesvBkere. The RAD140 composition of matter caseregpn 2029 in the United States (this
does not include the possibility of any Hatch-Warneatension) and additional countries if and whessiues. Since patents are both highly
technical and legal documents that are frequenthjest to intense litigation pressure, there ik tigat even if one or more RAD140 patents
does issue and is asserted that the patent(evibund invalid, unenforceable and/or not infridgehen subject to said litigation. Finally, the
intellectual property laws and practices can vamysiderably from one country to another and alsoatenge with time. As a result, we could
encounter challenges or difficulties in buildingaimtaining and defending our intellectual propéxtgh in the United States and abroad. See
"Business—Patents relating to RAD140."

If we are unable to obtain and maintain patent peation for our technology and products, or if ouicensors are unable to obtain ar
maintain patent protection for the technology orguiucts that we license from them, our competitomtd develop and commercialize
technology and products similar or identical to asjrand our ability to successfully commercializerdachnology and products may be
adversely affected.

Our success depends in large part on alipanlicensors' ability to obtain and maintainguatprotection in the United States and other
countries with respect to our proprietary technglagd products. In some circumstances, we may aa the right to control the preparation,
filing and prosecution of patent applications,@mtaintain the patents, covering technology or petelthat we license from third parties.
Therefore, we cannot be certain that these patentsapplications will be prosecuted and enforceal imanner consistent with the best interests
of our business. In addition, if third parties whe@nse patents to us fail to maintain such patemtkse rights to those patents, the rights we
have licensed may be reduced or eliminated.
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The patent position of biotechnology andmpiaceutical companies generally is highly uncertavolves complex legal and factual
guestions and has in recent years been the subjeaich litigation. As a result, the issuance, s;olidity, enforceability and commercial
value of our and our licensors' patent rights agélis uncertain. Our and our licensors' pending frtidre patent applications may not result in
patents being issued which protect our technolagyaducts or which effectively prevent others froommercializing competitive
technologies and products. Changes in either thenplaws or interpretation of the patent lawshia United States and other countries may
diminish the value of our patents or narrow thepgcof our patent protection. The laws of foreignmoies may not protect our rights to the
same extent as the laws of the United States. ¢aloins of discoveries in the scientific literatofeen lag behind the actual discoveries, and
patent applications in the United States and gtivesdictions are typically not published until &@®nths after filing, or in some cases not at all.
Therefore, we cannot be certain that we or ounBoes were the first to make the inventions claiimmeaur owned and licensed patents or
pending patent applications, or that we or oumigzes were the first to file for patent protectadrsuch inventions. Assuming the other
requirements for patentability are met, in the BdiStates, the first to make the claimed invengantitled to the patent, while outside the
United States, the first to file a patent appligatis entitled to the patent. We may become inviineopposition or interference proceedings
challenging our patent rights or the patent rigtitsthers. An adverse determination in any suclegeding could reduce the scope of, or
invalidate, our patent rights, allow third parttescommercialize our technology or products and pete directly with us, without payment to
us, or result in our inability to manufacture ormooercialize products without infringing third-paggtent rights.

Even if our owned and licensed patent apfibns issue as patents, they may not issuedmathat will provide us with any meaningful
protection, prevent competitors from competing wighor otherwise provide us with any competitiveaadage. Our competitors may be abl
circumvent our owned or licensed patents by dewetppimilar or alternative technologies or produaota noninfringing manner. The issuan
of a patent is not conclusive as to its scopeditglor enforceability, and our owned and licenpatents may be challenged in the courts or
patent offices in the United States and abroadh $hallenges may result in patent claims beingawveed, invalidated or held unenforceable,
which could limit our ability to stop or prevent frsm stopping others from using or commercializgigilar or identical technology and
products, or limit the duration of the patent potien of our technology and products. Given the ami@f time required for the development,
testing and regulatory review of new product caatéd, patents protecting such candidates mighteskpeifore or shortly after such candidates
are commercialized. As a result, our owned anch$ied patent portfolio may not provide us with sidint rights to exclude others from
commercializing products similar or identical tarsu

Payments, fees, submissions and various additiaegluirements must be met in order for pending patepplications to advance i
prosecution and issued patents to be maintainedydRous compliance with these requirements is essgd procurement and maintenanc
of patents integral to the product portfolio.

Periodic maintenance fees, renewal feagjignfees and various other governmental feesaterpts and/or patent applications will come
due for payment periodically throughout the lifeleyof patent applications and issued patents. dieroto help ensure that we comply with any
required fee payment, documentary and/or procedecalirements as they might relate to any patemta/hich we are an assignee or co-
assignee, we employ competent legal help and cefatafessionals as needed to comply with thoseirements. Our outside patent counsel
uses Computer Packages, Inc. for patent annuitynpais. Failure to meet a required fee payment, deat production or procedural
requirement can result in the abandonment of aipgnzhtent application or the lapse of an issuedrgaln some instances the defect can be
cured through late compliance but there are sinativhere the failure to meet the required evemta@gbe cured. Such an occurrence could
compromise
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the intellectual property protection around a praecal or clinical candidate and possibly weakerliminate our ability to protect our eventual
market share for that product.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality ofur trade secrets, our business and competitiveitpms would be harmed

In addition to our patented technology prablucts, we rely on trade secrets, including usmtad know-how, technology and other
proprietary information, to maintain our competigosition. We seek to protect these trade sedngisyrt, by entering into non-disclosure and
confidentiality agreements with parties that hasteeas to them, such as our employees, corpordédorators, outside scientific collaborators,
sponsored researchers, contract manufacturersyltamts, advisors and other third parties. We alsier into confidentiality and invention or
patent assignment agreements with our employeesamiltants. In addition, any of these parties bma@ach the agreements and disclose our
proprietary information, and we may not be ablelitain adequate remedies for such breaches. Enfpacclaim that a party illegally disclos
or misappropriated a trade secret is difficult,engive and time-consuming, and the outcome is digieble. In addition, some courts inside
and outside the United States are less willingravilling to protect trade secrets. If any of owade secrets were to be lawfully obtained or
independently developed by a competitor, we woalgetno right to prevent them from using that tedban or information to compete with
us. If any of our trade secrets were to be disddser independently developed by a competitor,competitive position would be harmed.

If we infringe the rights of third parties, we codlbe prevented from selling products and could beckéd to pay damages and defend agal
litigation.

If our products, methods, processes anerdéthnologies infringe the proprietary rightotier parties, we could incur substantial costs
and may have to:

. obtain licenses, which may not be available on cencrally reasonable terms, if at ¢

. abandon an infringing drug candide

. redesign our products or processes to avoid inérimgnt;

. stop using the subject matter claimed in the patkeld by others;

. pay damages; (

. defend litigation or administrative proceedings ethinay be costly whether we win or lose and whimhla result in ¢

substantial diversion of our financial and managemesources.
We may become involved in lawsuits to protect ofoece our patents, which could be expensive, tinnmsuming and unsuccessful.

Competitors may infringe our patents. Targer infringement or unauthorized use, we mayeogired to file infringement claims, which
can be expensive and time consuming. In additoaniinfringement proceeding, a court may decidédhpatent of ours is invalid or
unenforceable, or may refuse to stop the othey iaoin using the technology at issue on the grouhdsour patents do not cover the
technology in question. An adverse result in atigdtion proceeding could put one or more of ouepts at risk of being invalidated or
interpreted narrowly. Furthermore, because of thestantial amount of discovery required in conmectvith intellectual property litigation,
there is a risk that some of our confidential infation could be compromised by disclosure durig type of litigation. In addition, our
licensors may have rights to file and prosecutd sl@ims and we may be reliant on them to do so.
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We may be subject to claims that our employees harengfully used or disclosed alleged trade sectsheir former employers.

Some of our employees were previously eggaaat universities or other biotechnology or pheceutical companies, including our
competitors or potential competitors. Although wetb ensure that our employees do not use therigtapy information or know-how of
others in their work for us, we may be subjectl&ines that we or these employees have used omdidlintellectual property, including trade
secrets or other proprietary information, of angtsamployee's former employer. Litigation may beessary to defend against these claims. If
we fail in defending any such claims, in additiorplying monetary damages, we may lose valual##iéntual property rights or personnel.
Even if we are successful in defending against staims, litigation could result in substantial toand be a distraction to management.

Intellectual property litigation could cause us spend substantial resources and distract our penmselnfrom their normal responsibilities

Even if resolved in our favor, litigation other legal proceedings relating to intellectuaperty claims may cause us to incur significant
expenses, and could distract our technical and geamant personnel from their normal responsibilitiesaddition, there could be public
announcements of the results of hearings, motioagher interim proceedings or developments, asédurities analysts or investors perceive
these results to be negative, it could have a aohat adverse effect on the price of our commouglstSuch litigation or proceedings could
substantially increase our operating losses anaceedur resources available for development aigseitVe may not have sufficient financial
other resources to adequately conduct such liigair proceedings. Some of our competitors maybteta sustain the costs of such litigation
or proceedings more effectively than we can becatiffeeir substantially greater financial resourdéscertainties resulting from the initiation
and continuation of patent litigation or other predings could have a material adverse effect omlbility to compete in the marketplace.

Risks Related to Legislation and Administrative Actons
Healthcare reform may have a material adverse effen our industry and our results of operation

From time to time, legislation is implemedito reign in rising healthcare expenditures. Bréh 2010, President Obama signed into law
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Actam®&nded by the Health Care and Education RecatmiliaAct, or PPACA. PPACA includes
a number of provisions affecting the pharmaceutmmddistry, including annual, non-deductible feesaog entity that manufactures or imports
certain branded prescription drugs and biologiegjfming in 2011, and increases in Medicaid rebate=sd by manufacturers under the
Medicaid Drug Rebate Program. In addition, amorgiothings, PPACA also establishes a new Patiente@ed Outcomes Research Institute
to oversee, identify priorities in and conduct cangtive clinical effectiveness research. A numbetates have challenged the constitution
of certain provisions of PPACA, in particular thamdate that all individuals must obtain insurareel many of these challenges are still
pending final adjudication in several jurisdictioiecluding the U.S. Supreme Court. Congress has @oposed a number of legislative
initiatives, including possible repeal of PPACA. tAts time, it remains unclear whether there wdlldny changes made to certain provisions of
PPACA or its entirety. In addition, other legisietichanges have been proposed and adopted sine® &@A was enacted. Most recently, on
August 2, 2011, President Obama signed into lavBtidget Control Act of 2011, which may result itkichanges as aggregate reductions to
Medicare payments to providers of up to two perpenmtfiscal year, starting in 2013. The full impaatour business of PPACA and the Budget
Control Act is uncertain. We cannot predict whetbigrer legislative changes will be adopted, if amfiow such changes would affect the
pharmaceutical industry generally.
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We are subject to healthcare laws, regulation andf@cement, and our failure to comply with thoseva could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financiabnditions.

We are subject to several healthcare réigniand enforcement by the federal governmentlaadtates and foreign governments in
which we conduct our business. The laws that megcabur ability to operate include:

. the federal Health Insurance Portability and Acaahbility Act of 1996, or HIPAA, as amended by thedith Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,ialhgoverns the conduct of certain electronic lnealte transactions and
protects the security and privacy of protectedthaaformation;

. the federal healthcare programs' Anti-Kickback @&twhich prohibits, among other things, persesamfknowingly and
willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or payingemuneration, directly or indirectly, in excharfgeor to induce either the
referral of an individual for, or the purchase,@rdr recommendation of, any good or service foictvipayment may be made
under federal healthcare programs such as the lsiedand Medicaid programs;

. the federal transparency requirements under PPA@Wch require manufacturers of drugs, devices,dgigls and medical
supplies to report to the Department of Health ldnchan Services information related to physiciannpagts and other transfers
of value and physician ownership and investmemstrasts;

. federal false claims laws, which prohibit, amonigestthings, individuals or entities from knowinglyesenting, or causing to be
presented, claims for payment from Medicare, Mddiaar other third-party payors that are falserautiulent;

. federal criminal laws that prohibit executing aesete to defraud any healthcare benefit program &ingdalse statements
relating to healthcare matters; and

. state law equivalents of each of the above fedawed, such as al-kickback and false claims laws which may applytéonis or
services reimbursed by any third-party payor, iditlg commercial insurers.

If our operations are found to be in vimatof any of the laws described above or any offosernmental regulations that apply to us, we
may be subject to penalties, including civil anienénal penalties, damages, fines, the curtailmemestructuring of our operations, the
exclusion from participation in federal and stagalthcare programs and imprisonment, any of whizhHccadversely affect our ability to
operate our business and our financial results.

Our products may in the future be subject to produecalls that could harm our reputation, busineasd financial results.

The FDA and similar foreign governmentathauwities have the authority to require the recdtommercialized products in the event of
material deficiencies or defects in design, martufacor labeling. In the case of the FDA, the atitiido require a recall must be based on an
FDA finding that there is a reasonable probabtligt the product would cause serious injury orlildat addition, foreign governmental bodies
have the authority to require the recall of ourdurcts in the event of material deficiencies or difén design or manufacture. Manufacturers
may, under their own initiative, recall a producamy material deficiency in a product is foundgdvernment-mandated or voluntary recall by
us could occur as a result of component failuremufacturing errors, design or labeling defectstber deficiencies and issues. Recalls of any
of our products would divert managerial and finahoésources and have an adverse effect on ourdimlecondition and results of operations.
The FDA requires that certain classifications afalis be reported to the FDA within 10 working dafter the recall is initiated. Companies
required to maintain records of recalls, evenéfythare not
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reportable to the FDA. We may initiate voluntargatlis involving our products in the future that determine do not require notification of the
FDA. If the FDA disagrees with our determinationg could be required to report those actions aallee@ recall announcement could harm
our reputation with customers and negatively aféestsales. In addition, the FDA could take enforeat action for failing to report the recalls
when they were conducted.

We may be exposed to liability claims associatetthwie use of hazardous materials and chemicals.

Our research and development activities megive the controlled use of hazardous matedal$ chemicals. Although we believe that
safety procedures for using, storing, handling disgosing of these materials comply with federatesand local laws and regulations, we
cannot completely eliminate the risk of accidemgplry or contamination from these materials. la #vent of such an accident, we could be
held liable for any resulting damages and any liiglgould materially adversely affect our businefasancial condition and results of
operations. In addition, the federal, state andll@aws and regulations governing the use, manufacstorage, handling and disposal of
hazardous or radioactive materials and waste pteduoay require us to incur substantial compliarastscthat could materially adversely aff
our business, financial condition and results adfrafions.

Risks Related to Employee Matters and Managing Grott
We may not successfully manage our growth.

Our success will depend upon the expansiaur operations and the effective managementofjoowth, which will place a significant
strain on our management and on administrativesadip@al and financial resources. To manage trogvgr, we may be required to expand our
facilities, augment our operational, financial andnagement systems and hire and train additioraifiga personnel. If we are unable to
manage this growth effectively, our business wdaddarmed.

We may enter into or seek to enter into businessibmations and acquisitions which may be difficuth integrate, disrupt our business,
divert management attention or dilute stockholdealwe.

We may enter into business combinationsaaggisitions. We have limited experience in maldoguisitions, which are typically
accompanied by a number of risks, including:

. the difficulty of integrating the operations andgnnel of the acquired companies;

. the potential disruption of our ongoing businesd distraction of management;

. potential unknown liabilities and expens

. the failure to achieve the expected benefits ofchrabination or acquisitior

. the maintenance of acceptable standards, conpmralsedures and policies; and

. the impairment of relationships with employees assalt of any integration of new management ahérgpersonnel.

If we are not successful in completing asifjons that we may pursue in the future, we wdagdrequired to reevaluate our business
strategy and we may have incurred substantial esggeand devoted significant management time amdiress in seeking to complete the
acquisitions. In addition, we could use substamtiations of our available cash as all or a portibthe purchase price, or we could issue
additional securities as consideration for thespieitions, which could cause our stockholderauifes significant dilution.
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We rely on key executive officers and scientificcamedical advisors, and their knowledge of our uesss and technical expertise would be
difficult to replace.

We are highly dependent on our chief exgeudfficer and our principal scientific, regulagcand medical advisors. We do not have "key
person" life insurance policies for any of our offis. The loss of the technical knowledge and mamagt and industry expertise of any of our
key personnel could result in delays in productedi@ment, loss of customers and sales and diveadioranagement resources, which could
adversely affect our operating results.

If we are unable to hire additional qualified persael, our ability to grow our business may be hard

We will need to hire additional qualifiedrgonnel with expertise in preclinical testingnidal research and testing, government regule
formulation and manufacturing and sales and margeWe compete for qualified individuals with numies biopharmaceutical companies,
universities and other research institutions. Cditipe for such individuals is intense, and we cainpe certain that our search for such
personnel will be successful. Attracting and retegjrqualified personnel will be critical to our @@ss.

Risks Relating to Our Securities

We have a history of operating losses, expect miimsignificant and increasing operating losses the future, and may never be consister
profitable.

We have a limited operating history for ytowevaluate our business. We have no approvediptednd have generated no product
revenue from sales. We have primarily incurred afieg losses. As of December 31, 2011, we had emnaglated deficit of $122.4 million.
We have spent, and expect to continue to spenaifisent resources to fund the research and dewatop of BAO58 Injection and our other
drug candidates. While we may have net incometimréuperiods as the result of non-recurring coltation revenue, we expect to incur
substantial operating losses over the next seyegak as our clinical trial and drug manufactuiegvities increase. As a result, we expect that
our accumulated deficit will also increase sigrafidy.

Our drug candidates are in varying stadeseclinical and clinical development and may ndwe approved for sale or generate any
revenue. We will not be able to generate produamae unless and until one of our drug candidatesessfully completes clinical trials and
receives regulatory approval. Since even our mipghreced drug candidate requires substantial additidinical development, we do not
expect to receive revenue from our drug candidateseveral years, if at all. Even if we eventugfnerate revenues, we may never be
profitable, and if we do achieve profitability, wieay not be able to sustain or increase profitghilit a quarterly or annual basis.

There is not now and never has been any marketdar securities and an active market may never depelYou may therefore be unable to
re-sell shares of our securities at times and psdéat you believe are appropriate.

There is no market—active or otherwidereur common stock or our preferred stock andheeiis eligible for listing or quotation on a
securities exchange, automated quotation systeanyoother over-the-counter market, such as the Bil&tin Board, or the OTCBB, or the
Pink Sheets. Even if we are successful in obtaiajgroval to have our common stock quoted on th€BH,; it is unlikely that an active
market for our common stock will develop any tine®s thereafter. Accordingly, our common stock ghhty illiquid. Because of this
illiquidity, you will likely experience difficultyin re-selling such shares at times and pricesythatmay desire.
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There is no assurance that our common stock willllsted on a national securities exchange or quotan an automated quotation system.

We plan to seek listing of our common stooka national securities exchange or quotatiosuofcommon stock on the OTCBB, as soac
practicable. However, there is no assurance webwithble to meet the initial listing standardsitifex of those or any other stock exchange or
automated quotation systems, or that we will be &dblmaintain a listing of our common stock on eitbf those or any other stock exchange or
automated quotation system. An investor may findate difficult to dispose of shares or obtain aateliquotations as to the market value of
our common stock while our common stock is listadiee OTCBB. If our common stock is listed on thEGBB, we would be subject to an
SEC rule that, if it failed to meet the criteria &&th in such rule, imposes various practice mrenents on broker-dealers who sell securities
governed by the rule to persons other than estedzlisustomers and accredited investors. Consegusath rule may deter broker-dealers
from recommending or selling our common stock, Whitay further limit its liquidity. This would alsmake it more difficult for us to raise
additional capital.

Shares of our capital stock issued in the Mergeearot freely tradable under federal securities lgwghich will limit stockholders' ability tc
sell such shares of our capital stoc

Shares of our preferred stock and our comstock issued as consideration in the Merger puntstne Merger Agreement are deemed
"Restricted Securities” under the federal securitgvs, and consequently such shares may not bkl mghout registration under the Securi
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Actyitirout an exemption from the Securities Act. FarttRule 144 covering resales of
unregistered securities and promulgated under ¢er8ies Act will not be available for resale afracapital stock unless or until one year
following the date on which we filed the informaticequired by Form 10 as to the performance obmsiness. In addition, all shares of our
stock issued in the Merger is subject to a loclprgyision set forth in the applicable stockholdagfeement.

Because we became an operating company by meaasreferse merger, we may not be able to attractatiention of major brokerag:
firms.

Additional risks may exist as a result af becoming a public reporting operating compamgugh a "reverse merger." Security analysts
of major brokerage firms may not provide coverafjeuw capital stock or business. Because we be@apublic reporting operating company
through a reverse merger, there is no incentivea&erage firms to recommend the purchase of oomeon stock. No assurance can be given
that brokerage firms will want to provide analysterage of our capital stock or business in theréut

The resale of shares covered by our existing resalgistration statement could adversely affect tharket price of our common stock in the
public market, should one develop, which result vidin turn negatively affect our ability to raisedalitional equity capital.

The sale, or availability for sale, of @ammon stock in the public market pursuant to cistmg resale registration statement may
adversely affect the prevailing market price of oommon stock and may impair our ability to raiddiional capital by selling equity or
equity-linked securities. Our existing resale regison statement registered the resale of a sagmf number of shares of our common stock.
The resale of a substantial number of shares of@mmon stock in the public market could adversdigct the market price for our common
stock and make it more difficult for you to selbsbs of our common stock at times and prices thatfgel are appropriate. Furthermore, we
expect that, because there are a large numbeaoéshegistered pursuant to the registration sextgrselling stockholders will continue to
offer shares covered by such registration stateifoerat significant period of time, the precise dima of which cannot be predicted.
Accordingly, the adverse market and
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price pressures resulting from an offering pursuauiie registration statement may continue foextended period of time and continued
negative pressure on the market price of our comstmek could have a material adverse effect orability to raise additional equity capital.

We are subject to Sarbanes-Oxley and the reportiaguirements of federal securities laws, which cha expensive.

As a public reporting company, we are scitfje the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well asnformation and reporting requirements of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetthedExchange Act, and other federal securitieslaie costs of compliance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and of preparing and filing adrand quarterly reports, proxy statements andrattiermation with the SEC, and
furnishing audited reports to stockholders, willsa our expenses to be higher than they wouldwe ifere privately held. We are not subject
to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for tharymnded December 31, 2011, but may be subjeadtod 404 for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Section 404 may require usnanaual basis, to review and evaluate our intesoafrols, and may require our
independent auditors to attest to the effectivepéssir internal controls. Any failure by us to mgiin the effectiveness of our internal controls
in accordance with the requirements of Sectionafifie Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as such requirements today or may be modified,
supplemented or amended in the future, could hawatarial adverse affect on our business, operatisiglts and stock price.

For so long as shares of our preferred stock remaintstanding, if we are sold in a transaction yiétd less than the liquidation preference
payable in the aggregate to holders of outstandprgferred stock, holders of our common stock mayt receive any proceeds from su
transaction and may lose their investment entirely.

As of December 31, 2011, we had outstan@#i399 shares of common stock; 939,612 sharesrifs A-1 preferred stock; 983,208
shares of series A-2 preferred stock; 142,227 shareeries A-3 preferred stock; 3,998 shares iésé\-4 preferred stock; 6,443 shares of
series A-5 preferred stock; warrants to acquir®8 ghares of series A-1 preferred stock; and westanacquire 266 shares of common stock.
As more fully described herein and in our Certificaf Incorporation, holders of shares of our pmefé stock outstanding at the time of a sale
or liquidation will have a right to receive proceed any, from any such transactions, before ayngents are made to holders of our common
stock. In the event that there are not enough e satisfy the entire liquidation preferencewf preferred stock, holders of our common
stock will receive nothing in respect of their aguioldings.

We will incur increased costs as a result of opéngtas a public company, and our management will feguired to devote substantial time
new compliance initiatives.

As a public company that may become listeé national securities exchange, we will incgn#icant legal, accounting and other
expenses that we did not incur as a private compadyprior to any listing of our common stock. tid#ion, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
and rules subsequently implemented by the Seczigtiel Exchange Commission, or the SEC, and thenatsecurities exchanges have
imposed various requirements on public companmetding establishment and maintenance of effediselosure and financial controls and
corporate governance practices. Our managemerataad personnel will need to devote a substantdunt of time to these compliance
initiatives. Moreover, these rules and regulatisikincrease our legal and financial compliancstscand will make some activities more time-
consuming and costly.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the SarbanesyOXtt of 2002, or Section 404, we will be requitedurnish a report by our management on
our internal control over financial reporting, inding an attestation report on internal controlrdireancial reporting issued by our independent
registered public accounting firm at such time asne longer qualify as a smaller reporting compdiyachieve
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compliance with Section 404 within the prescribedqd, we will be engaged in a process to docurardtevaluate our internal control over
financial reporting, which is both costly and ckaljing. In this regard, we will need to continueléalicate internal resources, potentially
engage outside consultants and adopt a detailekl plan to assess and document the adequacy ofi@hteontrol over financial reporting,
continue steps to improve control processes aopppte, validate through testing that controlsfarestioning as documented and impleme
continuous reporting and improvement process fiarival control over financial reporting. Despite efforts, there is a risk that neither we
our independent registered public accounting firithlwe able to conclude within the prescribed tiragfie that our internal control over
financial reporting is effective as required by t8at404. This could result in an adverse readiiotie financial markets due to a loss of
confidence in the reliability of our financial statents.

Our directors, executive officers and principal sikkholders have substantial control over us and cdwdelay or prevent a change in
corporate control.

As of December 31, 2011, our directorscetige officers and holders of more than five paetag our common stock, together with their
affiliates, own, in the aggregate, substantiallyohbur outstanding voting stock. As a result,stastockholders, acting together, have the ability
to control the outcome of matters submitted tosiackholders for approval, including the electidioectors and any merger, consolidatior
sale of all or substantially all of our assetsadilition, these stockholders, acting together, lagability to control the management and aft
of our company. Accordingly, this concentratioroefnership might harm the market price of our comrsimtk by:

. delaying, deferring or preventing a change in caafmcontrol
. impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or othesiness combination involving us;
. discouraging a potential acquirer from making alegroffer or otherwise attempting to obtain conbbls.

Certain provisions in our charter documents and Retare law could discourage takeover attempts aratlléo management entrenchment.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylasgtain provisions that could have the effectelfging or preventing changes in control or
changes in our management without the consentrdf@ard of directors. These provisions include:

. the exclusive right of our board of directors teatla director to fill a vacancy created by theamgion of the board of directc
or the resignation, death or removal of a direatdnich prevents stockholders from being able toséicancies on our board of
directors;

. the ability of our board of directors to determtndssue shares of preferred stock and to deterthmerice and other terms

those shares, including preferences and votingsjgtithout stockholder approval, which could bedito significantly dilute
the ownership of a hostile acquirer; and

. the requirement that a special meeting of stocldrsidhay be called only by the directors or anyceffinstructed by th
directors to call the meeting, which may delaydbéity of our stockholders to force consideratafra proposal or to take acti
including the removal of directors.

We are also subject to certain anti-takegvevisions under Delaware law. Under Delaware, laworporation may not, in general, engage
in a business combination with any holder of 15%nore of its capital stock unless the holder had thee stock for three years or, among o
things, the board of directors has approved thes&retion by which such holder acquired the stock.
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Our ability to utilize our net operating loss carfgrwards and certain other tax attributes may benited.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $129.3ionilbf federal and $111.4 million of state net @ierg loss carryforwards available to offset
future taxable income. Under Section 382 of therimeil Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the, @@deorporation undergoes an
"ownership change" (generally defined as a grahter 50% change (by value) in its equity ownersivipr a three year period), the
corporation’s ability to use its pre-change netafieg loss carryforwards and other pre-changeattaibutes to offset its post-change income
may be limited. We have not performed a detailealyais to determine whether an ownership changen@dction 382 of the Code has
previously occurred. As a result, if we earn ngabde income, our ability to use our pre-changeopetrating loss carryforwards to offset U.S.
federal taxable income may become subject to Itioita, which could potentially result in increadatlre tax liability to us.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

On July 15, 2011, we entered into a leas#)e Lease, for our executive offices with Broagmdampshire Associates Limited
Partnership, or the Landlord, for approximately72,8entable square feet of space in the buildiogtkd at 201 Broadway, Cambridge,
Massachusetts 02139.

The Lease has an initial term of three ye@eommencing on August 1, 2011 and expiring on 3] 2014. Pursuant to the Lease, our
monthly base rent is $15,125.33 in year one, $B08Pin year two and $16,070.67 in year three aadwe required to pay additional monthly
rent in an amount equal to our proportionate sbaoertain taxes and operating expenses, as fusttdorth in the Lease.

An event of default under the Lease isrdfias the occurrence of any of the following evefatilure to pay rent within five business di
after the same is due and payable; provided, howewnethe first occasion of failure to pay rent witkie the Landlord will provide us with
notice and permit us a five-day period to cure dadhre after providing such written notice; fauto pay additional monthly rent within ten
days after the same is due and payable; failupetimrm or observe any other covenant or obligatioder the Lease provided the same is not
cured within thirty days; the voluntary filing ofhbkruptcy or any other petition for the relief @hd, acquiescence in the appointment of a
bankruptcy trustee or a consent to the assignnfeagsets; and the involuntary petition againstnden the bankruptcy code which is not
dismissed within sixty days.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are not currently involved in any madélegal proceedings.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART I

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market for Registrant's Common Equity

There is no market for our common stockl iis not eligible for listing or quotation onysecurities exchange, automated quotation
system or any other over-the-counter market, sscth@OTCBB or the Pink Sheets.

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximate stockholders of record of our common stocle kéve not paid any cash dividends
since inception and do not anticipate paying caglehds in the foreseeable future. Our abilityp#y cash dividends is restricted pursuant to
the terms of our credit facility and we may only@ock dividends so long as no Default or Everibefault exists (as defined in the credit
facility).

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table provides information oar equity compensation plans as of December (3112

Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to Weighted-average available for future issuance
be issued upon exercise exercise price of under equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holder: 3,950,13! $ 2.94 250,00(
Equity compensation

plans not approved by

security holder: 0 0 0

Total 3,950,13! $ 2.94 250,00(

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities
(@)  Sales of Unregistered Securit

We did not sell any equity securities whiolre not registered under the Securities Act duttie year ended December 31, 2011 that
not otherwise disclosed on our quarterly reportsorm 10-Q or our current reports on Form 8-K fitkding the year ended December 31,
2011.

(b) Use of Proceeds from Public Offering of Common &t
None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

You should read the following selected ficial data together with our financial statememd the related notes contained in Item 8 of
Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We halezived the statements of operations data for eate three years ended December 31,
2009, 2010 and 2011 and the balance sheets dafdbasember 31, 2010 and 2011 from the auditedhfifz statements contained in Item 8 of
Part Il of this Form 10-K. The selected balanceetldata as of December 31, 2007, 2008 and 200¢harstatement of operations data for the
year ended 2007 and 2008 have been derived fromuitiéed financial statements for such years rtided in this Form 1-K.

The historical financial information settfo below may not be indicative of our future peni@ance and should be read together with
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinarC@tdition and Results of Operations” and our his&bfinancial statements and notes to
those statements included in Item 7 of Part 1l kewch 8 of Part I, respectively, of this Annual Repon Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Revenue
Option fee $ — $ — $ 161 $ 2421 $ 957
Operating expense
Research and developmt 36,17¢ 11,69: 14,51¢ 22,315 14,46(
General and administrati\ 5,33( 3,63( 2,66¢ 3,05¢ 2,70¢
Restructuring — 217 — — —
Loss from operation (41,509 (15,539 (15,57)) (22,949 (16,217
Other income (expense
Other income (expense), r (23€) 824 @) (62¢) (1,04
Interest income (expense), 1 (737) 85 48¢ 1,211 1,32¢
Net loss $ (42,47¢) $ (14,630 $ (15,089 $ (22,365 $ (15,939
Earnings (loss) attributable to

common stockholdel $ 25 $ (26,77) $ (26,499 $ (7,650 $ (4,759

As of December 31,

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivale $ 25,12¢ $ 1058: $ 7,89 $ 857/ $ 6,254
Marketable securitie $ 3158 $ 7,96¢ $ 23,82t $ 41,817 $ 23,51¢
Working capital $ 56,607 $ 15,44¢ $ 29,88. $ 44,97F $ 18,08
Total asset $ 63,637 $ 18,96¢ $ 32,08 $ 50947 $ 30,267
Total liabilities $ 26,58 $ 3,38 $ 198 $ 565t $ 13,31¢
Total convertible preferred stor

and redeemable convertible

preferred stocl $ 156,65¢ $ 143,83¢ $ 131,69: $ 120,28¢ $ 68,05¢
Total liabilities, convertible

preferred stock, redeemable

convertible preferred stock an

stockholders' defici $ 63,637 $ 18,96¢ $ 32,08 $ 50,947 $ 30,267
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussions in codijiom with our consolidated financial statementsl aelated notes included in this
report. This discussion includes forward-lookingtsments that involve risk and uncertainties. Assalt of many factors, such as those set
forth under "Risk Factors," actual results may eliffnaterially from those anticipated in these ford-looking statements.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focasedeveloping new therapeutics for the treatmermtstéoporosis and other women's health
conditions. We have three product candidates irldgwment, the most advanced of which is BA058. \&keelbegun dosing subjects in a
pivotal Phase 3 clinical study of BAO58 Injectiar the prevention of fractures in women suffering osteoporosis. We are also developing
BAO58 Microneedle Patch, a short wear time, trarmadéform of BA058 that is based on a microneedtdhhology from 3M. We believe that
BAO058 Microneedle Patch may eliminate the needrjgrctions and lead to better treatment complidoc@atients. Our second clinical-stage
product candidate is RAD1901, which has completedhial Phase 2a clinical study for the treatmefwasomotor symptoms, commonly
known as hot flashes, in women entering menopabisethird product candidate, RAD140, is in predalidevelopment and is a potential
treatment for age-related muscle loss, frailty,gleloss associated with cancer cachexia and ostesig.

BAO58 is a novel synthetic peptide analbgRTHrP we are developing as a bone anabolicneat for osteoporosis. hPTHrP is a critical
cytokine for the regulation of bone formation, atdeebuild bone with low associated risk of indwurhypercalcemia as a side effect. In Aug
2009, we announced positive Phase 2 data that shB#&B58 Injection produced faster and greater BMEre@ases at the spine and the hip .
six months and 12 months of treatment than diddegsvhich was a comparator in our study. Key figdiwere that the highest dose of BA058
tested of 80 pug increased mean lumbar spine BMixahonths and 12 months by 6.7% and 12.9% comgparttk increases seen with Forteo
trial arms of 5.5% and 8.6%, respectively. BAOS®gbroduced increases in mean femoral neck BMBeahip at six months and 12 months
3.1% and 4.1% compared to increases for Forteol8b and 2.2%, respectively. We believe there isang correlation between an increased
level of BMD and a reduction in the risk of fraauor patients with osteoporosis. BA0O58 was gehesafe and well tolerated in this study,
with adverse events similar between BA058, placatmb Forteo groups. In addition, the occurrenceypthcalcemia as a side effect for the
80 ug dose of BAO58 was half that seen with Fortedpril 2011, we began the dosing of subjecta pivotal Phase 3 clinical study managed
by Nordic and expect to report top-line data frdms study in the first half of 2014. We designeid fhhase 3 study to enroll a total of 2,400
patients to be randomized equally to receive diilges of one of the following: 80 micrograms (ugBA058, a matching placebo, or the
approved dose of 20 pg of Forteo for 18 months. sthdy is powered to show that BA0O58 is superiqulemebo for prevention of vertebral
fracture. The study is also powered to show tha®BRis superior to Forteo for greater BMD improveitnat major skeletal sites and for a
lower occurrence of hypercalcemia, a condition rich the calcium level in a patient's blood is abaermal.

On May 17, 2011, the Former Operating Campaerged with a subsidiary of ours and the sung\dorporation of such merger was
merged into us. Our efforts and resources are &atpsmarily on developing BA058 and our other phaceutical product candidates, raising
capital and recruiting personnel. We have no prodales to date and we will not receive any revdma product sales unless and until we
receive approval for BAO58 Injection from the FD#,equivalent foreign regulatory bodies. Howevevealoping pharmaceutical products is a
lengthy and very expensive process. Assuming weod@ncounter any unforeseen delays during theseoafrdeveloping BA058, we do not
expect to complete development and file the NDAnsigbion for BA0O58 Injection until
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approximately late 2014 and/or BA058 Microneedl&cRaintil approximately late 2016. Accordingly, auccess depends not only on the
safety and efficacy of BA058, but also on our &pito finance the development of these productschvivill require substantial additional
funding to complete development and file for mairiggepproval. Our ability to raise this additiofimancing will depend on our ability to
execute on the BA058 development plan, completeqatnrollment in clinical studies in a timely féen, manage and coordinate on a cost-
effective basis all the required components ofNB&A submission for BA058 Injection and scale-up B¥&0njection and BA058 Microneedle
Patch manufacturing capacity, as well as overglitaamarket conditions for companies with limiteperating histories.

In addition, we currently have no salestkating or distribution capabilities and thus obility to market BA058 will depend in part on
our ability to enter into and maintain collaboratielationships for such capabilities, the collabors' strategic interest in the products under
development and such collaborators' ability to sasfully market and sell any such products. Oditalbd secure collaborators for BA058 will
depend on the strength of our clinical data. Howewe believe that there are certain favorabledsahat will interest third parties to
collaborate on BA058, including increasing prevakenf osteoporosis due to an increase in the glgepulation in most developed countries,
increased availability and reimbursement of diagindacilities, growing physician and patient awagss regarding the importance of treating
osteoporosis, and concerns regarding the long-¢efety profiles of the bisphosphonates promptingsjaians to be interested in new therapies
for osteoporosis. We are also evaluating strateigcnatives with respect to collaborating withrdhparties for the future development of
RAD1901 and RAD140. Our ability to further develihyese product candidates will be dependent uponutemme of our collaboration
strategy.

Financial Overview
Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses conisistrpy of clinical testing costs, including paynts in cash and stock made to contracted
research organizations, salaries and related paesonsts, fees paid to consultants and outsidéceeproviders for regulatory and quality
assurance support, licensing of drug compoundsptret expenses relating to the manufacture, dpwedot, testing and enhancement of our
product candidates. We expense our research amtbgavent costs as they are incurred.

Our lead product candidate is BA058 anéfiresents the largest portion of our researctdamdlopment expenses for our product
candidates. BA058 is a novel synthetic peptideanaf hPTHrP being developed by us as a treatneerdsteoporosis in both injection and
transdermal methods of administration. BAO58 Ing@tis currently in a Phase 3 study and BA058 Mieredle Patch has completed a Phas
study. Our other clinical-stage program is RAD19EERM, which has completed an initial Phase écel study for the treatment of
vasomotor symptoms, commonly known as hot flasihespmen entering menopause. A Phase 2 study igrdsbto test the efficacy of a
novel treatment and confirm the safety profile klshed in a Phase 1 trial. Our third product cdaté is RAD140, a SARM, which is in
preclinical development.

The following table sets forth our reseaaold development expenses related to BA058 InjecB&058 Microneedle Patch, RAD1901
and RAD140 for the years ended December 31, 20d2@h0. No research and development expensesatioreto our product candidates are
currently borne by third parties. We began traclpnggram expenses for BA058 Injection in 2005, prajram expenses from inception to
December 31, 2011 were approximately $53.3 millidie. began tracking program expenses for BA058 Mieealle Patch in 2007, and
program expenses from inception to December 311 2@e approximately $11.8 million. We began tragkprogram expenses for RAD1901
in 2006, and program expenses from inception tceBder 31, 2011 were approximately $15.4 million. We
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began tracking program expenses for RAD140 in 2808,program expenses from inception to Decembe2(®ll1 were approximately
$5.2 million. These expenses relate primarily teemal costs associated with manufacturing, prairstudies and clinical trial costs.

Costs related to facilities, depreciatisimare-based compensation and research and developupport services are not directly charged
to programs as they benefit multiple research nogrthat share resources.

Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009

BAO058 Injection $ 27,046 $ 4,66/ $ 3,671
BAO058 Microneedle Patc 6,36¢ 1,863 2,81¢
RAD1901 70 1,654 2,18¢
RAD140 23 313 2,031

The majority of our external costs are $menBAO058, as costs associated with later stageal trials are, in most cases, more significant
than those incurred in earlier stages of our pigelin April 2011, we began the dosing of patiemta pivotal Phase 3 clinical study of BA058
Injection for the treatment of osteoporosis. Iniadd, in December 2010, we initiated a Phase kriazll study for BAO58 Microneedle Patch
that was completed in December 2011. We expecfuhate development costs related to BA058 Injecaad BA058 Microneedle Patch
programs will increase significantly through possitmarketing approval in the United States for B80&jection in late 2015 or early 2016 &
for BAO58 Microneedle Patch in late 2017 or eaf1 8. For BA058 Injection, we estimate that futuewelopment costs may exceed
$135.0 million, including $103.0 million for clinét costs, $17.0 million for license and milestoagmpents and NDA filing fees, $8.0 million
for preclinical costs and $7.0 million for manuiaghg costs. For BA0O58 Microneedle Patch, we egtintiaat future development costs may
exceed $45.0 million, including $28.0 million fdirgcal costs, $13.0 million for manufacturing ces$4.0 million for preclinical costs and
NDA filing fees. We expect to finance these futdevelopment costs of BA058 with our existing casti eash equivalents and markete
securities, which include proceeds from the se@mdithird closings of the series A-1 financingtie fourth quarter of 2011, additional
borrowings of $12.5 million pursuant to our crefditility and future offerings of our common stoakpweferred stock. In addition, our current
strategy is to collaborate with third parties foe further development and commercialization of RAD1 and RAD140. Therefore, we do not
expect that we will incur substantial future cdsisthese programs because we expect these cdstsitorne by third parties. Our ability to
further develop these product candidates will hgedelent upon our ability to secure third-party aodirators, and it is not possible to project
the future development costs for RAD1901 and RADd#possible marketing approval timeline at thisei

The successful development of BA058 Infattind BA058 Microneedle Patch is subject to nunrerisks and uncertainties associated
with developing drugs, including the variablesdiébelow. A change in the outcome of any of thes@bles with respect to the development
of any of our product candidates could mean a B@gmit change in the costs and timing associatékl the development of that product
candidate.

BAO058 Injection is our only product candielén late stage development, and our businessmlyrdepends heavily on its successful
development, regulatory approval and commerciaimatiWe have no drug products for sale currently exay never be able to develop
marketable drug products. We have not submittel@A to the FDA or comparable applications to othegyulatory authorities. Obtaining
approval of an NDA is an extensive, lengthy, expanand uncertain process, and any approval of BA@fection may be delayed, limited or
denied for many reasons, including:

. we may experience delays in the enrollment of pédien our ongoing Phase 3 clinical tri
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. we may not be able to demonstrate that BAO58 is aafl effective as a treatment for osteoporodisesatisfaction of the FDA;

. the results of our clinical studies may not meetlével of statistical or clinical significance téged by the FDA for marketin
approval;

. the FDA may disagree with the number, design, siaeduct or implementation of our clinical studies;

. the CRO that we retain to conduct clinical studiesy take actions outside of our control that matlradversely impact ot

clinical studies;

. the FDA may not find the data from preclinical segdand clinical studies sufficient to demonstthte BA058's clinical and
other benefits outweigh its safety risks;

. the FDA may disagree with our interpretation ofadfitom our preclinical studies and clinical studiesnay require that w
conduct additional studies;

. the FDA may not accept data generated at our elisiudy sites

. if our NDA is reviewed by an advisory committeeg thDA may have difficulties scheduling an advisooynmittee meeting in
timely manner or the advisory committee may recomuiregainst approval of our application or may remnd that the FDA
require, as a condition of approval, additionalkfirgécal studies or clinical studies, limitations approved labeling or
distribution and use restrictions;

. the FDA may require development of a REMS as a itiondof approval;
. the FDA may identify deficiencies in the manufaaigrprocesses or facilities of our third-party miaoturers; or

. the FDA may change its approval policies or ad@pt negulations

We are unable to determine the durationcastls to be incurred by us to continue developroERAD1901 and RAD140 until such time
as we are able to secure a third party to collabara the further development and commercializadiotihese product candidates. We antici
that we will make determinations as to which addigil programs to pursue and how much funding tectlito each program on an ongoing
basis in response to the scientific and clinicahad each product candidate, progress on secthirdyparty collaborators, as well as ongoing
assessments of such product candidate's commpat@itial and our ability to fund such product depenent. If we are unable to continue to
fund the development of RAD1901 and/or RAD140 aredumable to secure third-party collaborators fie@se product candidates, our business
will be adversely affected and we will depend sotah the successful development, regulatory apprewvea commercialization of BA058
Injection and BA058 Microneedle Patch.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses copsisiarily of salaries and related expense for atiee, finance and other administrative
personnel, professional fees, business insuraang,general legal activities, including costs afimtaining our intellectual property portfolio
and other corporate expenses. We expect our gaaretaddministrative expenses to increase as & migher costs associated with being a
public company and any listing of our securitiesaamational securities exchange.
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Our results include non-cash compensatkpe®@se as a result of the issuance of stock ac#l sftion grants. Compensation expense for
options granted to employees and directors (exatudirectors who are also scientific advisory baaebers or consultants) represent the
difference between the fair value of our commomrlstand the exercise price of the options at the dagrant. Compensation for options
granted to consultants has been determined basedthe fair value of the equity instruments issaed the unvested portion of such option
grants is remeasured at each reporting periodsidek-based compensation expense is included irefpective categories of expense in the
statement of operations (research and developmengeneral and administrative expenses). We expeetord additional non-cash
compensation expense in the future, which may dpafgiant.

Interest Income and Interest Expense
Interest income reflects interest earnedwncash, cash equivalents and marketable sesuriti

Interest expense reflects interest due wagevious credit facility under which we made fimal payment in 2009, and interest due ul
our current credit facility, which we entered im0 May 23, 2011 and pursuant to which we borrowedggregate of $12.5 million during the
year ended December 31, 2011. See "Financil

Other Income and Other Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2011, etkgense primarily reflects changes in the faingalf the series A-6 preferred stock liability
from the date of the initial accrual to the repugtdate as discussed in Note 16 to our financéaéstents for the year ended December 31,
2011.

Accretion of Preferred Stock

Accretion of preferred stock reflects thegipdic accretions of issuance costs, dividendstheadnvestor rights/obligations on the Former
Operating Company's Series B and C redeemable dibiegreferred stock and accretion of dividendsoar series A-1, A-2 and A-3
convertible preferred stock.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statemeatpiires us to make certain estimates and assumspitiat affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and expenses during the reportetgs. We believe the following accounting policae "critical* because they require us to
make judgments and estimates about matters thanasstain at the time we make the estimate, affiereint estimates, which would have b
reasonable could have been used, which would festdted in different financial results.

Accrued Clinical Expenses

As part of the process of preparing ouafficial statements, we are required to estimatactrued expenses. This process involves
reviewing open contracts and purchase orders, conwaiing with our personnel to identify serviceatthave been performed on our behalf
and estimating the level of service performed dredassociated cost incurred for the service whehawve not yet been invoiced or otherwise
notified of actual cost. Payments under some ottmracts we have with parties depend on factueh as successful enroliment of certain
numbers of patients, site initiation and the cortipteof clinical trial milestones. Examples of estited accrued clinical expenses include:

. fees paid to investigative sites and laboratoriesonnection with clinical studie
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. fees paid to CROs in connection with clinical sagliif CROs are used; and

. fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectiith tie production of clinical study materia

In accruing clinical expenses, we estintlagetime period over which services will be perfedrand the level of effort to be expended in
each period. If possible, we obtain informationaneling unbilled services directly from these sesvicoviders. However, we may be required
to estimate the cost of these services based omiation available to us. If we underestimate arestimate the cost associated with a trial or
service at a given point in time, adjustments seagch and development expenses may be necessaryranperiods. Historically, our
estimated accrued clinical expenses have approgdhattual expense incurred. Subsequent changstnmages may result in a material cha
in our accruals.

Research and Development Expenses

We account for research and developmerts tgsexpensing such costs to operations as intuResearch and development costs
primarily consist of personnel costs, outsourcegaech activities, laboratory supplies and licédess.

Nonrefundable advance payments for good®nvices to be received in the future for useegearch and development activities are
deferred and capitalized. The capitalized amoutitde expensed as the related goods are delivardke services are performed. If
expectations change such that we do not expectillveeed the goods to be delivered or the serviodse rendered, capitalized nonrefundable
advance payments would be charged to expense.

Stock-based Compensation

We recognize the fair value of employeelstbased awards using the straight-line method theerequisite service period of the award,
which is typically the vesting period. We estimtte fair value of each option award using the Bl&ckoles-Merton option-pricing model.

In calculating the estimated fair valueoaf stock options, the Black-Scholes-Merton opfiting model requires the consideration ol
following six variables for purposes of estimatfagr value:

. stock option exercise pric

. expected term of the option;

. grant date price of our common stock, which isasde upon exercise of the option;
. expected volatility of our common stoc

. expected dividends on our common stock;

. risk-free interest rate for the expected optiomter

The expected term of the stock options tg@nepresents the period of time that optionstgrhare expected to be outstanding. For op
granted prior to January 1, 2008, the expected veammcalculated using the "simplified" method asspribed by the SEC's Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 Share-Based Paymenfor options granted after January 1, 2008, weutated the expected term using similar assumptions
The expected volatility is a measure of the amdynivhich our stock price is expected to fluctuateiry the term of the options granted. We
determine the expected volatility based on a reaéthe historical volatility of similar publiclydld companies in the biotechnology field over
a period commensurate with the option's expecten. féd/e have never declared or paid any cash didslen our common stock and we do
expect to do so in the foreseeable future.
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Accordingly, we use an expected dividend yield @foz The risk-free interest rate is the impliedg/@vailable on U.S. Treasury issues with a
remaining life consistent with the option's expddterm on the date of grant. We apply an estimiigditure rate to current period expense to
recognize compensation expense only for those aneaqpected to vest. We estimate forfeitures baped historical data, adjusted for known
trends, and will adjust the estimate of forfeituifesctual forfeitures differ or are expected tffeli from such estimates. Subsequent changes in
estimated forfeitures are recognized through a tatiwe adjustment in the period of change and alflampact the amount of stock-based
compensation expense in future periods.

The following table presents the grant sated related exercise prices of stock optionstgdainom January 1, 2011 to December 31,
2011.

Per Share
Per Share Weighted
Estimated Average
Exercise or Fair Estimated
Purchase Value of Fair
Nature of Number of Price Common Value of
Date of Issuance Issuance Shares per Share Stock(1) Options(2)
November 7, 201 Option grant 849,70¢ $ 322 $ 32z $ 1.8C
December 15, 201 Option grani 1,981,701 $ 38 $ 38¢ $ 2.1¢

(1)  The per share estimated fair value of common stepkesents the determination by our board of dirsatf the fair valu
of our common stock as of the date of grant, taking account various objective and subjectivedetind including the
results, if applicable, of valuations of our comnstack as discussed below.

(2 Our estimate of the per share weighted averagedhie for stock option grants was computed baged the Black-
Scholes-Merton option-pricing model with the asstions through December 31, 2011 as disclosed irioancial
statements included elsewhere in this reg

We have historically granted stock optiahgxercise prices not less than the fair valuguofcommon stock as determined by our boal
directors, with input from management. Our boardioéctors has historically determined, with infreim management, the estimated fair vi
of our common stock on the date of grant based mmeber of objective and subjective factors, inzigd

. the prices at which we sold shares of convertibédgored stock

. the superior rights and preferences of securigesos to our common stock at the time of each grant

. the likelihood of achieving a liquidity event sua a public offering or sale of our company;

. our historical operating and financial performance the status of our research and product deveopeiforts; anc
. the achievement of enterprise milestones, includimgentering into collaboration and license agre®ts

Our board of directors also considered ataduns provided by management in determining tivevedue of our common stock. Such
valuations were prepared as of September 30, 20d Navember 28, 2011 and valued our common stoB.22 and $3.89 per share,
respectively. The valuations have been used tmastithe fair value of our common stock as of emation grant date listed above and in
calculating stock-based compensation expense. @ardlof directors has consistently used the masinevaluation provided by management
for determining the fair value of our common stockess a specific event occurs that necessitategenm valuation.
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The valuations were based on the guidamre theValuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as Compensatioor
Practice Aid, that was developed by staff of theefican Institute of Certified Public Accountantslamtask force comprising representatives
from the appraisal, preparer, public accountingitwee capital and academic communities. The oppidcing method was selected to value our
common stock based on our stage of developmenthendiegree of uncertainty surrounding the futuesss of clinical trials for our product
candidates.

For the valuations prepared as of Septel®@®e2011 and November 28, 2011, we utilized ttodability-weighted expected return
method, or PWERM, as outlined in the Practice Aitlich considers the value of preferred and comntoecksbased upon the probability-
weighted present value of expected future net lasls, considering each of the possible future évesms well as the rights and preferences of
each share class. PWERM is complex as it requiregenous assumptions relating to potential futute@mes of equity, hence, the use of this
method can be applied: (i) when possible future@uies can be predicted with reasonable certainty{i§ when there is a complex capital
structure (i.e., several classes of preferred antheon stock). We utilized the fair value of comnstock derived from the September 30, 2011
valuation for purposes of the November 7, 2011aspgirants and the fair value of common stock derfvem the November 28, 2011
valuation for purposes of the December 15, 201bomrants. We concluded, for purposes of the Ndwam7, 2011 grants, that there were no
significant changes to the assumptions used iPW&RM model between September 30, 2011 and Novemi#811 that would impact the
fair value of our common stock. We concluded, forgmses of the December 15, 2011 grants, that there no significant changes to the
assumptions used in the PWERM model between Nove&)&011 and December 15, 2011 that would imitectfair value of our common
stock. We also used this methodology to estimadatn value of our preferred stock, which we usethe preferred stock extinguishment,
discussed in Note 4 to our financial statementsHeryear ended December 31, 2011, and to detetimenfair value of shares of series A-6
convertible preferred stock due to Nordic at Decen8i, 2011, as discussed in Note 16 to our firrdstatements for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Fair Value Measurements

We define fair value as the price that vddo# received to sell an asset or be paid to tealsliability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Wegrdete fair value based on the assumptions magegitjpants use when pricing the asse
liability. We also use the fair value hierarchyttpeoritizes the information used to develop thassumptions.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highgrsrity to unadjusted quoted prices in active negskor identical assets (Level 1), and the loy
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). Our ficéal assets are classified within the fair valigrdrchy based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. Threé levels of the fair value hierarchy, and itglaability to our financial assets, are described
below:

Level 2—Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thabacessible at the measurement date of identicadstricted assets.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assets, or inputs thatadservable, either directly or indirectly, fatbstantially the full term through
corroboration with observable market data. Leviglcudes investments valued at quoted prices agljuistr legal or contractual restrictions
specific to the security.

Level 3—Pricing inputs are unobservable for the asset,ishanputs that reflect the reporting entity'sroassumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pgitive asset. Level 3 includes private investmérasdre supported by little or no market
activity.
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Our financial assets are classified as Leykevel 2 and Level 3 assets as of Decembe2@1] and 2010. The carrying amounts of our
financial instruments, which include cash equivedemarketable securities, accounts payable amded@xpenses, approximate their
estimated fair values as of December 31, 2011 840.2Money market funds are valued using quotedketgrices with no valuation
adjustments applied. Accordingly, these securéiescategorized as Level 1. Assets utilizing L&viglputs include government agency
securities, including direct issuance bonds, amgarate bonds. These assets are valued usinggéity-pricing resources which generally use
interest rates and yield curves observable at camynguoted intervals of similar assets as obseevaiguts for pricing. Our assets utilizing
Level 3 inputs are valued based upon the fair vafumir series A-6 preferred stock.

Fair value for Level 1 is based on quotexdkat prices. Fair value for Level 2 is based ootegd prices for similar instruments in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similatioments in markets that are not active and modsé&d valuation techniques for which all
significant assumptions are observable in the narkean be corroborated by observable marketfdatsubstantially the full term of the
assets. Inputs are obtained from various sour@sdimg market participants, dealers and brokeas. Value for Level 3 is based upon the fair
values determined using PWERM, as discussed above.

We have assets and liabilities that arenadeéd based upon the fair value of our commonpaaterred stock, as determined using
PWERM, described above. These assets and liabifitiguire Level 3 inputs. We have a stock dividasskt of approximately $3.4 million, a
warrant liability of approximately $450,000, andather liability ("stock liability") of approximatg $10.5 million; the fair value for each of
which is determined by Level 3 inputs being the Y@lue of our common and preferred stock, as dised in Note 7 to our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended Decembge2(RIl1.

The stock dividend asset represents theamtebalance of the accrued stock dividend (“ofiladility" or "stock liability") to issue shares
series A-6 to Nordic, as discussed in Note 16 tofimancial statements for the year ended Decer@bep011, and the amount of research and
development expense related to stock dividend atsdaging recognized ratably over the estimategpgent treatment period. The fair value
of the stock liability is based upon the fair vabfehe series A-6 shares as determined using\ERM, as discussed above. As such the
valuation of the stock dividend and other curresstet was determined to be a Level 3 valuation.

The warrant liability represents the ligtifor the warrants issued to the placement ageobnnection with the series A-1 financings, as
discussed in Note 4 to our consolidated finandgtkesnents for the year ended December 31, 201 ltoathé lenders in connection with our
credit facility, as discussed in Note 4 to our adimgted financial statements for the year endedebwer 31, 2011. The warrant liability is
calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton optidnipg method. This method of valuation includesigsinputs such as the valuation of our
various classes of preferred stock, historical tithg the term of the warrant and rigkee interest rates. The fair value of our shafemmor
and preferred stock was estimated using PWERMessribbed above. As such the valuation of the waiialnility was determined to be a
Level 3 valuation.

The other liability represents the lialyilib issue shares of series A-6 preferred stodkaalic for services rendered in connection with the
Phase 3 clinical study of BAO58 Injection, as d&sad in Note 16 to our financial statements forymr ended December 31, 2011. The
liability is calculated based upon the number @freb earned by Nordic through the performanceiwoicell trial services multiplied by the
estimated fair value of our series A-6 preferrextistat each reporting date. The estimated fairevafour series A-6 preferred stock is
determined using PWERM, as described above. As thechaluation of the other liability was determdrte be a Level 3 valuation.
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As of December 31, 2011, Level 3 assetslawve| 3 liabilities represent approximately fiverpent and 17% of our total assets,
respectively. The other liability ("stock liabilitybalance will continue to increase until we issiue accrued shares of series A-6 to Nordic, as
discussed in Note 16 to our financial statememntshfe year ended December 31, 2011. The stocketiddnd other current asset balance will
fluctuate with the stock liability and amount osearch and development expense related to stomediy amounts being recognized ratably
over the estimated per patient treatment pericatebses and decreases in the aggregate fair Valuese assets and liabilities will affect net
loss as changes in fair value are recognized &s otbome (expense), but the changes will not Saaritly impact our liquidity and capital
resources.

Results of Operations

The discussion under "Results of Operatidiscusses results for the year ended Decembe&(31l, in comparison with the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009. The results for thesyeraded December 31, 2010 and 2009 are the re$utis Former Operating Company.
The results for the year ended December 31, 20dadda our pre- and post-Merger results.

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Revenue
Option Fee $ — $ — $ 1,61¢
Operating expense
Research and developme 36,17¢ 11,69: 14,51¢
General and administratiy 5,33( 3,63( 2,66¢
Restructuring — 217 —
Loss from operation (41,509 (15,539  (15,57)
Other income (expense
Other income (expense), r (23€) 824 @)
Interest income (expense), 1 (731) 85 48¢
Net loss $ (42,47¢) $ (14,630 $ (15,089

Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Years Ended
December 31, Change
2011 2010 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Operating expense

Research and developme $ 36,17¢ $ 11,69: $ 24,48: 20%%
General and administrati 5,33( 3,63( 1,70C 47%
Restructuring — 217 (217) (100%

Revenue: There was no revenue for the years ended DezmeBih 2011 or 2010.
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Research and development expensédsor the year ended December 31, 2011, reseatilevelopment expense was $36.2 million
compared to $11.7 million for the year ended Decandd, 2010, an increase of $24.5 million or 209 the year ended December 31, 2011,
we incurred professional contract services assetiaith the development of BA058 Injection of $2mblion compared to $4.7 million for tl
year ended December 31, 2010. The increase wasigirthe result of expenses incurred in connectidth the initiation of our Phase 3 stu
of BA058 Injection, which began with the dosingpattients in April 2011. We expect this higher le0EBA058 Injection expenses to be
maintained or increase over the course of the PBiasedy, which we expect to complete in the tiaitf of 2014. However, there will be
variability from year to year driven primarily blye rate of patient enrollment, the euro/dollar exae rate and fluctuations in the value of our
stock issued to Nordic under the Stock Issuancedment. Additionally, for the year ended Decemldgr2®11, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2010, we incurred $4.5 million moreantract services associated with the developmieBA058 Microneedle Patch in relati
to the manufacture of toxicology and Phase 2 dimscipplies. These increases during the year eDddedmber 31, 2011 were offset by a
reduction of $290,000 on RAD140 spending, and actdn of $1.6 million in professional contract\eees associated with the developmer
RAD1901 due to the completion of the Phase 2a stfidRAD1901 in early 2010. We also had reductionfacilities expenses of
approximately $436,000 for the year ended Decer@beP011 compared to the year ended December 30, Zhese reductions were
attributable to the closure of a laboratory fagilit September 2010.

General and administrative expensestor the year ended December 31, 2011, genedahdministrative expense was $5.3 million
compared to $3.6 million for the year ended Decam8ie 2010, an increase of $1.7 million or 47%. Tease is primarily the result of
increased legal, accounting, and marketing costejedl as business insurance, related to publicpemy reporting.

Restructuring expenses:We incurred restructuring costs of approxima17,000 in the year ended December 31, 201&gpily
related to lease termination costs associatedwaithting our laboratory space. No similar costsviecurred in the year ended December 31,
2011.

Other income (expense), netfor the year ended December 31, 2011, othearesqy net of other income, was $236,000, whichanilyn
reflects changes in the fair value of the serie® preferred stock liability from the date of théial accrual to the reporting date as discussed in
Note 16 to our financial statements for the pegaded December 31, 2011. No similar costs weretliedun the year ended December
2010. For the year ended December 31, 2010, wethad income, net of other expense, of $824,000clwvas primarily comprised of
approximately $733,000 of grant proceeds from tiierhal Revenue Service pursuant to the qualifiliegapeutic discovery grant program |
approximately $149,000 in proceeds from the salegoipment. We did not receive grant proceeds lbeqaipment during the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Interest income (expense), netFor the year ended December 31, 2011, intesgsinse, net of interest income, was $731,000 cardpa
to interest income, net of interest expense, ofB85bfor the year ended December 31, 2010. Intesgstnse for the year ended December 31,
2011 reflects interest accrued on our credit fiycili

Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Revenue: For the year ended December 31, 2010, reveageb® compared to $1.6 million for the year endeddbnber 31, 2009. The
revenue in 2009 relates solely to an option agre¢signed with Novartis in 2007 pursuant to whiabvirtis obtained an option to license the
exclusive worldwide rights (except Japan) to alhfalations of BA0O58. Revenue was recognized ratakbr the option
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period based on criteria specified in the agreenldrg period of option exclusivity expired in 2088hout exercise by Novartis.

Years Ended
December 31, Change
2010 2009 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Operating expense

Research and developm $ 11,69: $ 1451¢ $ (2,827) (19%
General and administratiy 3,63( 2,66¢ 962 36%
Restructuring 217 — 217  100%

Research and development expensdsor the year ended December 31, 2010, reseathlevelopment expense was $11.7 million
compared to $14.5 million for the year ended Decandd, 2009, a decrease of $2.8 million or 19%.tReryear ended December 31, 2010
incurred professional contract services associatttdthe development of BA058 Injection of approxsitaly $4.6 million compared to
approximately $3.7 million for the year ended Deben31, 2009. The increase is attributable to @ #iillion up-front payment to Nordic for

Phase 3 study expenses. Offsetting these incraasascurred $1.0 million less in contract serviegsociated with the development of BA058

Microneedle Patch. The decrease was mainly thdtmafsihe completion of the feasibility agreemerithwdM for Microneedle Patch in 2009.
Additionally, we spent $1.7 million less on RAD14Ad $531,000 less on RAD1901 for professional emhiservices in the year ended
December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended Dexe3tih2009 as we evaluated strategic optionseofutther development of these
programs. Lastly, we experienced reductions inkstiased and other compensation of approximatelp ®08, professional fees of
approximately $234,000, and facility and other reilemeous costs of approximately $256,000, foryder ended December 30, 2010 comp
to the year ended December 31, 2009. The reduictioompensation was the result of the achievemiecgbain milestones that generated
higher stock-based compensation in 2009. The remuitt professional fees, facilities, and misceflaus other costs was related to the
curtailment of costs for the RAD140 and RAD1901gveans.

General and administrative expensed=or the year ended December 31, 2010, genedahdministrative expense was $3.6 million
compared to $2.7 million for the year ended Decar8ie 2009, an increase of approximately $1.0 arillor 36%. The increase was
attributable to an increase in compensation of @pprately $279,000 and professional fees of appnaxely $715,000. The increase in
compensation consisted mainly of management borwisiet) were higher in 2010 than in 2009. The inseeim professional fees included le
and accounting fees. These increases were offsaidoictions in other individually insignificant ammts.

Restructuring: We incurred restructuring costs of approxima$17,000 in the year ended December 31, 201€eckta lease
termination costs associated with vacating ourdatooy space. No similar costs were incurred inytsa ended December 31, 2009.

Other income (expense), netOther income, net of other expense, of $824d1@ecember 31, 2010 was primarily comprised of
approximately $733,000 of grant proceeds from tiierhal Revenue Service pursuant to the qualifiliegapeutic discovery grant program i
approximately $149,000 in proceeds from the sakegoipment.

Interest income (expense), netinterest income decreased approximately $4@4@dn $489,000 in the year ended December 31, 2009

to $85,000 in the year ended December 31, 2010d&heease is attributable to a lower average ogsivaents and marketable securities
balance in 2010.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

From inception to December 31, 2011, weehaeurred an accumulated deficit of $122.4 milliprimarily as a result of expenses incu
through a combination of research and developmaiitées related to our various product candidated expenses supporting those activities.

We have financed our operations since itigegprimarily through the private sale of prefefistock as well as the receipt of $5.0 million
in fees associated with an option agreement. Whproariate, we also borrow cash under our $25.0anitredit facility, pursuant to which
we have drawn an aggregate of $12.5 million in teron loans and have the ability to draw an addi#i&@i2.5 million term loan. See
"Financings." Our total cash, cash equivalentsraatketable securities balance as of December 31, 2@s $56.7 million.

The following table sets forth the majoustes and uses of cash for each of the periodsrsetbelow:

Year ended December 31
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Net cash provided by (used ii

Operating activitie: $ (35,896 $ (12,98¢) $ (18,29

Investing activities (23,800 15,67( 17,62:

Financing activitie: 74,24: 2 (8
Net increase (decrease) in cash and

equivalents $ 1454¢ $ 268 $ (67

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net cash used in operations for the yededbecember 31, 2011 was $35.9 million, an inered$22.9 million or 176% from the year
ended December 31, 2010. The increase of $22.8®mil net cash used in operations for the yeaedrdecember 31, 2011 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2010 was primarily assatigith an increase in net loss and net changesiking capital related to expens
incurred in connection with the initiation of théase 3 clinical study for BA058 Injection, offset édjustments to reconcile net loss to net «
used in operations, including non-cash expens&3@f3 million and $1.4 million for research and elepment expenses to be settled in stock
and a milestone payment settled with stock, respdgt The changes in working capital included a58@illion increase in prepaid expenses, a
$301,000 decrease in accounts payable offset 848,000 increase in accrued expenses, all of whérke attributable due to the timing of
payments made in connection with our Phase 3 elisitcidy for BA058 Injection.

Net cash used in operations for the yede@mecember 31, 2010 was $13.0 million, a decre&$8.3 million or 29% from the year
ended December 31, 2009. The decrease of $5.®miflinet cash used in operations for the yeareébggember 31, 2010 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2009 was primarily assutiaith a $459,000 decrease in net loss and negelsan working capital, including
$1.5 million increase in accrued expenses relatgueparations to initiate the Phase 3 clinicadlgtior BAO58 Injection, a $94,000 decrease in
the accounts payable in comparison with a $1.lionillecrease for the year ended December 31, 20@9n0 change to deferred revenue in
comparison with a decrease of $1.6 million in deférrevenue due to the expiration of the Novarnisom agreement in the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activitiexibased by $39.5 million for the year ended Deeer@h, 2011 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease was primarily a
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result of a $39.2 million decrease in cash procémuis the maturities of investments, net of purésasn the year ended December 31, 2011.

Net cash provided by investing activitiexibased by $2.0 million for the year ended Dece@bg2010 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarilyut igfsa $2.1 million decrease in net cash procéeiia the sales and maturities of
investments, net of purchases, in the year endedreer 31, 2010, offset by $149,000 in proceedn ftee sale of equipment.

Our investing cash flows will be impactedthe timing of purchases and sales of marketadtargties. All of our marketable securities
have contractual maturities of less than one y@ae. to the short-term nature of our marketable Sies, we would not expect our operational
results or cash flows to be significantly affeckyda change in market interest rates due to the-gdwon duration of our investments.

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Cash flows from financing activities foethiear ended December 31, 2011 included $62.1lomidif proceeds, net of issuance costs, from
the series A-1 and series A-5 financings, $12.1lignilof proceeds, net of issuance costs, from eedit facility and $204,000 of net proceeds
from stock option exercises, offset by $156,00pafments under our credit facility. We did not haignificant cash flows from financing
activities for the years ended December 31, 20H02809.

Our continued operations will depend on tihbewe are able to raise additional funds throumtous potential sources, such as equity and
debt financing and potential collaboration agreeimerhrough December 31, 2011, almost all of awaricing has been through private
placements of preferred stock any borrowings undercredit facility. We will seek to continue torfd operations from cash on hand and
through additional equity and/or debt financing aatential collaboration agreements. We can givassurances that any additional capital
that we are able to obtain will be sufficient toeheur needs. We believe that our existing resa together with available borrowings of
$12.5 million under our $25.0 million credit fatylj will be sufficient to fund our planned operatsinto the first quarter of 2013. We have
based this estimate on assumptions that may poobe wrong, and we could use our available captdurces sooner than we currently
expect. After such date, we will need additionabficing until we can achieve profitability, if ev@rcluding funds to conduct clinical and non-
clinical studies, achieve regulatory approvals @ubject to such approvals, commercially launchpsoduct candidates. Our future capital
requirements will depend on many factors, includimgscope and progress made in our research &etbgeent activities and our clinical
studies. We may also need additional funds foriptesfuture strategic acquisitions of businessesdpcts or technologies complementary to
our business. If additional funds are required may raise such funds from time to time through judd private sales of equity or from
borrowings. Financing may not be available on atai@p terms, or at all, and our failure to raispitza when needed could materially adver
impact our growth plans and our financial conditiord results of operations. Additional equity finsiy may be dilutive to the holders of our
common stock and debt financing, if available, rimaylve significant cash payment obligations ander@ants that restrict our ability to
operate our business.
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Financings

Through December 31, 2011, we receivedexge net cash proceeds of $168.0 million fronstie of shares of our preferred stock as
follows:

Net Proceeds

Issue Year No. Shares(1) (in thousands)
Series B redeemable convertible prefel

stock 2003, 2004, 20C 1,599,99 $ 23,77*
Series C redeemable convertible preferred

stock 2006, 2007, 20C 10,146,62 82,09¢
Series /-1 convertible preferred stor 2011 9,223,04. 61,59:
Series /-5 convertible preferred stox 2011 64,43( 52k

Total 21,034,09 $ 167,98

(@B Share amounts stated in pre-Merger shares, whichected into the rights to one-tenth of one shamsyeant to the Merger.

On May 11, 2011, accredited investors gedes A-1 convertible preferred stock financingthe Series A-1 Private Placement, entered
into an irrevocable legally binding commitment wrghase approximately $64.3 million of seried gsreferred stock in three closings. The 1
closing, or Stage | Closing, of the Series A-1 BtevPlacement occurred on May 17, 2011 and resintgbss proceeds of approximately
$21.4 million through the sale of 2,631,845 sharfehe Former Operating Company's serie$ gonvertible preferred stock. Those shares:
exchanged in the Merger for an aggregate of 263sh@res of series A-1 preferred stock. Each sHareweries A-1 preferred stock is
convertible into ten shares of our common stocle 3écond closing, or Stage Il Closing, occurretlomember 18, 2011, and we received
gross proceeds of approximately $21.4 million tigtothe sale of 263,178 shares of series A-1 pedestock. The third closing, or Stage IlI
Closing, occurred on December 14, 2011, and wevedgross proceeds of approximately $21.4 milimough the sale of 263,180 shares of
series A-1 preferred stock. In connection withébasummation of the Stage | Closing, Stage Il @igsind the Stage Il Closing, Leerink
Swann LLC received on May 17, 2011, November 18128nd December 14, 2011, warrants, which are wilyrexercisable at any time and
expiring five (5) years from the date of issuarateg purchase price of $81.42 per share, for gpttdal of 2,454 shares of series A-1 preferred
stock. After the automatic conversion of the pneférstock upon the listing of our common stock grational securities exchange, these
warrants will be exercisable for a total of 24,5hares of common stock at a purchase price of 3% &dshare.

Concurrently with the Stage | Closing, BF@mer Operating Company issued 64,430 sharegiess&-5 preferred stock to Nordic for
gross proceeds of approximately $525,000. Theseshwere exchanged in the Merger for 6,443 shdrearcseries A-5 convertible preferred
stock, which shares will automatically convert ugle listing of our common stock on a national siéies exchange into 64,430 shares of
common stock.

On May 23, 2011, we entered into our créatitlity with GECC, as agent and a lender, anddBkiFinance LLC, as a lender, consisting of
three term loans, pursuant to which we may draaggregate of $25.0 million. We drew $6.3 milliorden the initial term loan on May 23,
2011. The initial term loan is repayable over antef 42 months, including a six-month interest-opériod, and bears interest at 10.16% per
year. We drew $6.3 million under the second teramlon November 21, 2011. The second term loarpayeble over a term of 36 montl
including an approximately six-month interestly period, and bears interest at 10.0% per y&aivject to the terms and conditions of our cr
facility, we may draw an additional term loan unttes credit facility, which must be funded not tatean May 23, 2012, in an aggregate
principal amount equal to $12.5 million. On eachMafy 23, 2011 and November 21, 2011, we issuedantsito GECC and Oxford
Finance LLC for the purchase of up to a total 3,8f@res of series A-1 preferred stock, which weltdme exercisable for 30,700 shares of
common stock at a purchase price of $8.142 peesiftar the
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listing of our common stock on a national secwsitgchange. In connection with the funding of ttditional term loan, we will be required to
issue warrants to purchase an additional 61,41&sltd common stock at a purchase price of $8.B43Ipare. The exercise period of each
warrant is 10 years from the date of issuance.

Research and Development Agreements

We entered into a letter of intent with Niot or the Letter of Intent, on September 3, 2@i0@suant to which we funded preparatory work
by Nordic in respect of a Phase 3 clinical studBAD58 Injection. The Letter of Intent was extendedDecember 15, 2010 and on Januan
2011. On March 29, 2011, we and Nordic enteredan@inical Trial Services Agreement, a Work StagetrNB-1, or the Work Statement,
under such Clinical Trial Services Agreement amdlated Stock Issuance Agreement. Pursuant to i Btatement, Nordic is managing the
Phase 3 clinical study, or the Clinical Study, &8 Injection and Nordic will be compensated focls services in a combination of cash and
shares of series A-6 convertible preferred stoclafier the automatic conversion into common stafckur convertible preferred stock, in
shares of common stock.

Pursuant to the Work Statement, we areireduio make certain per patient payments denomdhizit both euros and U.S. dollars for each
patient enrolled in the Clinical Study followed tmponthly payments for the duration of the study findl payments in two equal euro-
denominated installments and two equal U.S. dallareminated installments. Changes to the Clinitadiysschedule may alter the timing, but
not the aggregate amounts, of the payments. Th& Btatement, as amended on December 9, 2011, psofod a total of approximately
€35.8 million ($46.4 million) of euro-denominatedyp@ents and a total of approximately $5.3 millionbs. dollar-denominated payments
over the course of the Clinical Study.

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemsrameended, Nordic agreed to purchase the equivall@371,864 of series A-5 preferred stock
at $8.142 per share, and we sold 64,430 sharesiessA-5 preferred stock to Nordic on May 17, 2@driproceeds of $525,000 to the Former
Operating Company. These shares were exchangbd Méerger for an aggregate of 6,443 shares ofegsA-5 convertible preferred stock.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNloatlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock detidls, payable in shares of series A-6
convertible preferred stock or shares of commoaoksifoour preferred stock has been automaticallyvested into common stock in accordance
with our certificate of incorporation, having argaggate value of up to €36.8 million ($47.7 milljpor the series /& Accruing Dividend. Thi
right to receive the series A-5 Accruing Dividesdchbn-transferrable and will remain with Nordidle event it sells the shares of series A-5
preferred stock or in the event the shares of s&i8& preferred stock are converted into commonksto accordance with our certificate of
incorporation. As of December 31, 2011, 167,518eshaf series A-6 preferred stock are due to Noatiafter the automatic conversion into
common stock of our convertible preferred stocg7%,180 shares of common stock.

We recorded $11.0 million of research aedelbpment expense in the year ended Decembe021,r2flecting costs incurred for
preparatory and other start-up costs to initiateGlinical Study in April 2011. We recorded an ditaial $5.1 million of research and
development expense in the year ended Decemb@031, for per-patient costs incurred for patiehtt had enrolled in the Clinical Study as
of December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011dditen to the $10.5 million liability that is reftted in other liabilities on the Balance
Sheet that will be settled in shares of seriespgkederred stock or common stock, as noted abovéjave an asset resulting from payments to
Nordic of approximately $5.2 million that is incled in prepaid expenses on the Balance S
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We are also responsible for certain passitth costs in connection with the Clinical Studée recognized research and development
expense of $5.0 million for pass through costhiaytear ended December 31, 2011.

License Agreement Obligations
BAO58

In September 2005, we exclusively licentbedworldwide rights (except Japan) to BA058 analegs from Ipsen, including US Patent
No. 5,969,095, (effective filing date March 29, §98tatutory term expires March 29, 2016) entitlédalogs of Parathyroid Hormone" th
claims BA058 and US Patent No. 6,544,949, (effectitng date March 26, 1996, statutory term expikéarch 29, 2016) entitled "Analogs of
Parathyroid Hormone" that claims methods of treptiateoporosis using BA058 and pharmaceutical cgitipns comprising BA058, and the
corresponding foreign patents and continuing paigptications. In addition, we have rights to jdimellectual property related to BA058,
including rights to the jointly derived intelleciyaroperty contained in US Patent No. 7,803,778eétive filing date October 3, 2007, statut
term expires October 3, 2027, plus 175 days ofrpagem adjustment due to delays in patent progatbty the USPTO) and related patents
and patent applications both in the United Statesveorldwide (excluding Japan) that cover the metbbtreating osteoporosis using the
Phase 3 clinical study dosage strength and forroothsideration for the rights to BA0O58 and in reuitign of certain milestones having been
met as of December 31, 2011, we have paid to laeeaggregate amount of $1.0 million. The licenseagent further requires us to make
payments upon the achievement of certain futureczll and regulatory milestones. The range of rtoles payments that could be paid under
the agreement is €10.0 million to €36.0 million 3L million to $46.7 million). Should BA058 becoroemmercialized, we or our sublicensees
will be obligated to pay to Ipsen a fixed five pemtroyalty based on net sales of the product @ouatry by country basis until the later of the
last to expire of the licensed patents or for agokeof 10 years after the first commercial salsueh country. The date of the last to expire o
BAOQ58 patents, barring any extension thereof, geeked to be March 26, 2028. In the event thatwidicense BA058 to a third party, we are
obligated to pay a percentage of certain paymewmsived from such sublicensee (in lieu of milestpagments not achieved at the time of <
sublicense). The applicable percentage is in tivediouble digit range. In addition, if we or our §aénsees commercialize a product that
includes a compound discovered by us based onrivederom confidential Ipsen know-how, we will beligated to pay to Ipsen a fixed low
single digit royalty on net sales of such produtiaacountry-by-country basis until the later of kst to expire of our patents that cover such
product or for a period of 10 years after the fi@tnmercial sale of such product in such countfiediive May 11, 2011, Ipsen agreed to
accept shares of series A-1 preferred stock indfeaicash milestone payment of €1.0 million. Waied 173,263 shares of series A-1 preferred
stock to Ipsen on May 17, 2011 to settle the lighiThese shares were exchanged in the Mergaarf@ggregate of 17,326 shares of series A-1
convertible preferred stock and upon the listingwf common stock on a national securities exchaviyeonvert automatically to 173,260
shares of common stock. The license agreementiograther customary clauses and terms as are corimsmilar agreements in the
industry.

RAD1901

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed thueldwide rights (except Japan) to RAD1901 from Eibaparticular, we have licensed US
Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective filing date Decentig 2003, statutory term extended to August D262with 967 days of patent term
adjustment due to delays by the USPTO). In conatder for the rights to RAD1901 and in recognitimfrcertain milestones having been me
date, we have paid to Eisai an aggregate amoutt.6fmillion. The range of milestone payments timatld be paid under the agreement is
$1.0 million to $20.0 million. The license
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agreement further requires us to make payments thgoachievement of certain future clinical andutatpry milestones. Should RAD1901
become commercialized, we will be obligated to fmffisai a royalty in a variable mid-single digghge based on net sales of the product on a
country by country basis for a period that expoeghe later of (i) date the last remaining valairo in the licensed patents expires, lapses or is
invalidated in that country, the product is notemd by data protection clauses, and the salesddil generic version of the product account
for more than a specified percentage of the tatiglssof all pharmaceutical products containinglitensed compound in that country; or (ii) a
period of 10 years after the first commercial sdlthe licensed products in such country, unlegssboner terminated. The latest valid claim is
expected to expire, barring any extension themof\ugust 18, 2026. The royalty rate shall thesigect to reduction and the royalty
obligation will expire at such time as sales offiageneric version of such product account for enibran a specified minimum percentage of
the total sales of all products that contain thensed compound. We were also granted the riggutibcense with prior written approval from
Eisai, but subject to a right of first negotiatioeld by Eisai if we seek to grant sublicenses &uahito particular Asian countries. If we sublice
RAD1901 to a third party, we will be obligated taypEisai, in addition to the milestones referenaldve, a fixed low double digit percentage
of certain fees we receive from such sublicenseerayalties in a variable mid-single digit rangeséa on net sales of the sublicensee. The
license agreement contains other customary clargkserms as are common in similar agreementsimttustry.

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

As of December 31, 2011, we had federalsaatk net operating loss carryforwards of appraxaty $129.3 million and $111.4 million,
respectively. If not utilized, the net operatingdaarryforwards will begin expiring in 2024 andL8dor federal and state purposes,
respectively.

Under Section 382 of the Code, substantiahges in our ownership may limit the amount dfaperating loss carryforwards that coul
utilized annually in the future to offset taxabtedme. Specifically, this limitation may arise iretevent of a cumulative change in ownersh
our company of more than 50% within a three-yeaiope Any such annual limitation may significantiyduce the utilization of the net
operating loss carryforwards before they expiree phivate placements and other transactions thes becurred since our inception, may have
triggered an ownership change pursuant to Sec8@n\8hich could limit the amount of net operatingd carryforwards that could be utilized
annually in the future to offset taxable incomegnfy. Any such limitation, whether as the resulpoér private placements, sales of common
stock by our existing stockholders or additiondsaf common stock by us, could have a materiabes® effect on our results of operations in
future years. We have not completed a study tosasshether an ownership change has occurred, dheilere have been multiple
ownership changes since our inception, due toigreficant costs and complexities associated witbhsstudy. In each period since our
inception, we have recorded a valuation allowanceHe full amount of our deferred tax asset, asdfalization of the deferred tax asset is
uncertain. As a result, we have not recorded adgrd or state income tax benefit in our stateroéoperations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet aman@mts or any relationships with unconsolidatediestof financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured financepacial purpose entities.

New Accounting Standards

In December 2011, FASB issued Accountirgn8ard Update No. 2011-1jsclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities ASU
No. 201:-11, which will require disclosures for entitiestkwvi
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financial instruments and derivatives that areegitiffset on the balance sheet in accordance W@t 210-20-45 or ASC 815-10-45, or subject
to a master netting arrangement. ASU No. 2011-Efféstive for interim and annual periods beginnamgor after January 1, 2013. We have
not completed our review of ASU No. 2011-11, butdeenot expect its adoption to have a material ithpa our results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

In June 2011, FASB issued Accounting Steshtlpdate No. 2011-0%;omprehensive Incomer ASU No. 2011-05, which will require
companies to present the components of net incomi®ther comprehensive income, or OCI, either &sommtinuous statement or as two
consecutive statements. ASU No. 2011-05 elimingite®ption to present components of OCI as pattestatement of changes in
stockholders' equity. The update does not chargéams which must be reported in OCI, how suamét@re measured or when they must be
reclassified to net income. In December 2011, FASSBed Accounting Standard Update No. 2011B&ferral of the Effective Date for
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassificatbitems Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensigenre in ASU 202-05, or ASU
No. 201:-12, which defers the requirement in ASU No. 2051tftat companies present reclassification adjustsnfen each component of
accumulated OCI and OCI. ASU No. 2011-05 was sbeteffective for interim and annual periods begigrafter December 15, 2011, but is
deferred by ASU No. 2011-12. We do not expect ASH 2D11-05 or ASU No. 2011-12 to have a materigdot on our financial statements
or results of operations.

In May 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Bdir Value Measurement (Topic 82)—Amendments téeefCommon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.FG#A&l IFRSsor ASU No. 2011-04. The amendments in this updalteensure that fair
value has the same meaning in U.S. GAAP and in |&R5that their respective fair value measuremedtisclosure requirements are the
same. This update is effective prospectively foerim and annual periods beginning after DecembgeP@11. Early adoption by public entities
is not permitted, and we, therefore, are requiceadiopt this ASU on January 1, 2012. We have noipbeted our review of ASU No. 2011-04,
but we do not expect its adoption to have a mdtenipact on our results of operations, financiasigion or cash flows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of RadiealtH, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balaneetstof Radius Health, Inc. as of December 31, 20112010, and the related statements of
operations, convertible preferred stock, redeemednteertible preferred stock and stockholders'aitefaind cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2011. Tiremecial statements are the responsibility of@renpany's management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait @fuithe Company's internal control over finanaigborting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company's internal contr@rdinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesréxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaidating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statement®erned to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the financial position of Radius Health,. Inc
at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results operations and its cash flows for each of theetlyears in the period ended December 31,
2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted@amting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLF

Boston, Massachusetts
February 6, 2012
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Radius Health, Inc.
Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31  December 31

2011 2010

Assets
Current assett

Cash and cash equivale $ 25,12¢ $ 10,58:

Marketable securitie 31,58( 7,96¢

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 6,68: 282
Total current asse 63,39( 18,83:
Property and equipment, r 167 31
Other asset 8C 10¢E
Total asset $ 63,637 $ 18,96¢
Liabilities, convertible preferred stock, redeeneatxnvertible preferred stock and stockholde

deficit
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 312 $ 614

Accrued expense 3,59( 2,771

Current portion of note payable, net of discc 2,88(
Total current liabilities 6,78: 3,38¢
Note payable, net of current portion and discc 8,88¢ —
Warrant liability 45( —
Other liabilities 10,47( —

Commitments and contingencieNote 10)

Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vaéduwe; 1,000,000 shares authorized, 939,6:
shares issued and outstanding at December 31,&llfto shares issued and outstanding i
December 31, 201 65,67¢ —

Series A-2 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 983,213 shares authorized, 983,208
shares issued and outstanding at December 31,&@llfio shares issued and outstanding
December 31, 201 79,97¢ —

Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vaduwe; 142,230 shares authorized, 142,227
shares issued and outstanding at December 31,&llfo shares issued and outstanding i
December 31, 201 10,20¢ —

Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 4,000 shares authorized, 3,998 shar
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 astares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 201 271 —

Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vaéduwe; 7,000 shares authorized, 6,443 shar
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 astares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 201 52t —

Series A-6 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 800,000 shares authorized, no share
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 astares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 201 — —

Series A Junior Convertible Preferred Stock, $.00@dvalue; no shares authorized, issued, o
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 63,000 shatkerized, 61,664 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2010 (liquidation v&@25,000' — 93

Series B Redeemable Convertible Preferred Sto6k0%. par value; no shares authorized, iss
or outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 1,600,0afs authorized, 1,599,997 shares iss
and outstanding at liquidation value at Decembe2810 — 38,30¢

Series C Redeemable Convertible Preferred StoBR0%. par value; no shares authorized, iss
or outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 10,146&628s authorized, issued and outstan:
at liquidation value at December 31, 2( — 105,43:

Stockholders' deficil
Common stock, $.0001 par value; 100,000,000 staart®rized, 645,399 and 322,807 shar

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 aneinblesr 31, 2010, respective

Additional paic-in-capital 2,744 3

Accumulated other comprehensive I 5 )

Accumulated defici (122,359 (128,25:)
Total stockholders' defic $ (119,610 $ (128,257
Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock, esinable convertible preferred stock and

stockholders' defici $ 63,637 $ 18,96¢

See accompanying notes.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Revenue
Option fee revenu $ — $ — $ 1,61¢
Operating expense
Research and developme 36,17¢ 11,69: 14,51¢
General and administratiy 5,33( 3,63( 2,66¢
Restructuring — 217 —
Loss from operation (41,509 (15,539 (15,57))
Other income (expense
Other income (expense), r (236€) 824 @)
Interest incomt 27 85 48¢
Interest expens (758) — —
Net loss $ (42,479 $ (14,630 $ (15,089
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stockho—basic
and diluted (Note 5 $ 252 $ (26,779 $ (26,499
Earnings (loss) per share (Note
Basic $ 051 $ (83.47) $ (82.69)
Diluted $ 0.07 $ (834) $ (82.69
Weighted average shar¢
Basic 499,94 320,94 320,42:
Diluted 3,454,27 320,94 320,42:

See accompanying notes
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Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, RedeemébConvertible
Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Convertible Preferred Stock

Series A-1 Series A-2 Series A-3 Series A-4 Series A-5 Series A-6

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at
December 31,
2008 —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ —
Net loss
Unrealized loss

on marketable
securities
Total
comprehensiv
loss
Stock-based
compensation
expense
Accretion of
Preferred
Stock issuanc
costs
Accretion of
Preferred
Stock to
redemption
value
Accretion of
Preferred
Stock investol
rights/obligatic

Balance at
December 31,
2009 —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ —

Net loss
Unrealized loss
on marketable
securities
Total
comprehensiv
loss
Issuance of
Common
Stock
Stock-based
compensation
expense
Accretion of
Preferred
Stock issuanc
costs
Accretion of
Preferred
Stock to
redemption
value
Accretion of
Preferred
Stock investol
rights/obligatic

Balance at
December 31,
2010 —$ — — % — — % — —$ — —$ — —$ —

Net loss

Unrealized gain
from
available-for-
sale securitie

Total
comprehensiv
loss

Forced
conversion to
common stocl

Recapitalization
@) 983,20¢ 75,97¢ 142,22’ 9,62¢ 3,99¢ 271

Issuance o



preferred stocl  922,28¢
Accretion of
dividends on
preferred stoc
Stock-based
compensation
expense
Stock options
exercisec
Milestone
payment
settled with
stock 17,32¢

62,297 6,44 52%

1,96¢ 4,00( 57¢

1,41(

Balance at
December 31,

2011 939,61 $ 65,67¢ 983,20( $ 79,97¢ 142,227 $ 10,20¢ 3,99¢ $ 271 6,44:$  52%

1) The recapitalization includes the exchange of SekieSeries B and Series C shares for Series AdeSA-3, and Series A-2 shares, respectivelgditition to
the 1:10 exchange of Serie-2, Series -3, and Series -4 preferred stock, which occurred in conjunctiothvihe Merger, and is more fully described in N&s

See accompanying notes.

87




Table of Contents

Balance at
December 31,
2008
Net loss
Unrealized loss

on marketable
securities

Total
comprehensiv
loss

Stock-based
compensation
expenst

Accretion of
Preferred
Stock issuanc
costs

Accretion of
Preferred
Stock to
redemption
value

Accretion of
Preferred
Stock investor
rights/obligatic

Balance at
December 31,
2009

Net loss

Unrealized loss
on marketable
securities

Total
comprehensiv
loss

Issuance of
Common
Stock

Stock-based
compensation
expense

Accretion of
Preferred
Stock issuanc
costs

Accretion of
Preferred
Stock to
redemption
value

Accretion of
Preferred
Stock investor
rights/obligatic

Balance at
December 31,
2010

Net loss
Unrealized gain
from available
for-sale
securities
Total

comprehensiv
loss

Forced
conversion tc

Radius Health,

Inc.

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, RedeemébConvertible
Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit (Continue)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Convertible Preferred Stock

Stockholders' Deficit

Additional Accumulated

- - : Other Total

Series A Series B Series C Common Stock Paid-In  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders
Capital

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Amount Income (Loss) Deficit Deficit
61,66: $ 93 1,599,99 $32,84: 10,146,62 $ 87,35 320,42: $ — $ 8,01 $ 247 $ (83,256 $ (74,99¢)
(15,089 (15,089
(232) (232)
(15,32)
12t 12t
181 (182 (182)
2,627 7,22¢ (7,959 (1,897) (9,85))
1,37¢ (1,379 (1,379
61,66 $ 93 1,599,99 $35,47( 10,146,62 $ 96,13 320,42: $ — $ 33 15 $ (101,61)% (101,599
(14,63() (14,63()
(18) (18)
(14,64%)
2,38: 2 2
134 134
17¢ (13¢) (37) 7?)
2,83¢ 7,812 (10,657) (10,657)
1,31¢ (1,31¢) (1,31¢)
61,66« $ 93 1,599,99 $38,30¢ 10,146,62 $ 105,43: 322,80 $§ — $ 3% (3)$ (128,25)% (128,25)
(42,47¢) (42,47¢)
8 8
(42,46%)



common stocl  (21,667) (33) (177,69) (29€) (314,499 (22£) 102,76 554 554
Recapitalization

1) (40,009 (60) (1,422,300 (39,187 (9,832,13) (108,42}) 8,26¢ 52,71% 60,98
Issuance of

preferred stoc
Accretion of

dividends on

preferred stoc 1,17C 3,21¢€ (6,590 (4,349 (20,939
Stock-based

compensation

expense 304 304
Stock options

exercisec 219,82} 204 204
Milestone
payment
settled with
stock
Balance at
December 31,

2011 —3% — —% — —$  — 64539($ —$ 274 % 5% (122359% (119,610

1) The recapitalization includes the exchange of SekieSeries B and Series C shares for Series AdeSA-3, and Series A-2 shares, respectivelgditition to
the 1:10 exchange of Serie-2, Series -3, and Series -4 preferred stock, which occurred in conjunctiothvihe Merger, and is more fully described in N&;

See accompanying notes.
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Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegperating

activities:
Depreciatior
Gain on fixed asset dispos

Amortization of premium (accretion of discount) simor-term

investments, ne
Stock-based compensation expel

Research and development expense to be settléaci

Non-cash interes

Change in fair value of warrant liability and othiability

Milestone payment settled with sto
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Prepaid expenses and other current a
Other lon¢-term asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activit
Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipm
Proceeds from sale of equipm
Purchases of marketable securi
Maturities of marketable securiti

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
Financing activities

Proceeds from the sale of common st
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti

Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred <
Proceeds on note payal

Discount on note payab

Deferred financing cos

Payments on notes payal

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Supplemental Disclosure:
Cash paid for intere:

Noncash financing activities
Accretion of preferred stock issuance cc

Accretion of dividends on preferred stc

Accretion of preferred stock investor rights/obtigas
Fair value of preferred stock issued in the reedipdtion, net of

issuance cos!
Fair value of warrants issut

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

$ (42,476 $ (14,630 $ (15,089

40 70 13€
— (100) —

21 302 98

304 134 128
10,29¢ — —
165 — —

264 — —
1,41 — —
(6,465 (139 95

25 27) —

(301) 04 (1123

81¢ 1,491 (922)

— — @61y

$ (35,890 $ (12,980 $ (18,29
(17€) (14) (32

— 14¢ —
(32,479 (24,120 (36,03%)

8,85¢ 39,65¢ 53,69(
$(23,800 $ 1567 $ 17,62

V)
|

204 — —
62,11¢ — —
12,50( — _

(36€) — —

(56) — —

(156) — (8

$ 7424. $ 2% (9
1454¢  2,68¢ (679)
10,58:  7,89¢ 8,57

$ 2512¢ $ 10,58. $ 7,89¢

$ 35¢ $ — 3 —
$ — $ 172 $ 181
$ 10,93¢ $ 10,65 $ 9,85(
$ — $ 1318 $ 1,37¢
$ 8587¢ $ — $ —
$ 46 % — $ —

See accompanying notes.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Nature of Business

Radius Health, Inc. ("Radius” or the "Comygg, which was formerly known as MPM Acquisitiorofp., is a biopharmaceutical company
focused on acquiring and developing new therapgicthe treatment of osteoporosis and other wésreealth conditions. The Company's
lead product candidate, currently in Phase 3 dirdevelopment, is BAO58 Injection, a daily subogsus injection of novel synthetic peptide
analog of human parathyroid hormone-related prqt&@THrP) for the treatment of osteoporosis. Th@B&Injection Phase 3 study began
dosing patients in April 2011. The Company is asweloping BA058 Microneedle Patch, a short waaetitransdermal form of BA058
delivered using a microneedle technology from 3MidDelivery Systems (3M), currently in Phase lichkhdevelopment. The Company also
has two other product candidates, RAD1901, a seéeestrogen receptor modulator, or SERM, in PRasknical development for the
treatment of vasomotor symptoms (hot flashes) imem entering menopause, and RAD140, a selectivged receptor modulator, or
SARM, currently in preclinical development as agutial treatment for age-related muscle loss,tfraileight loss associated with cancer
cachexia and osteoporosis. As used throughout fhresecial statements, the terms "Radius,” "Compatwe," "us" and "our" refer to Radius
Health, Inc. (f/lk/a MPM Acquisition Corp.).

Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Me(ther"Merger Agreement” or the "Merger") enteretbiin April 2011 by and among the
Company (a public-reporting, Form 10 shell companthe time), RHI Merger Corp., a Delaware corgoratind wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company ("MergerCo"), and Radius Health, lagrivately-held Delaware corporation ("Former Gyigxg Company"), MergerCo merged
with and into the Former Operating Company, with Bormer Operating Company remaining as the sungientity and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. This transaction is inereferred to as the "Merger". The Merger wasafée on May 17, 2011, upon the filing of
a certificate of merger with the Delaware Secretdr@tate. Following the Merger on May 17, 201E @ompany's board of directors approved
the Merger of the Former Operating Company with iatal the Company, leaving the Company as the gimyicorporation (the "Short-Form
Merger"). As part of the Short-Form Merger, the Qamy, then named MPM Acquisition Corp., changedasie to Radius Health, Inc. and
assumed the operations of the Former Operating @oyp

The Company is subject to the risks assediwith emerging, technology-oriented companies wilimited operating history, including
dependence on key individuals, a developing busimesdel, market acceptance of the Company's pradunctidates, competition for its
product candidates, and the continued ability tmiobadequate financing to fund the Company's &utperations. The Company has an
accumulated deficit of $122,359 through Decembe2811. The Company has incurred losses and exjmectstinue to incur additional
losses for the foreseeable future. The Companyndstéo obtain additional equity and/or debt finagdn order to meet working capital
requirements and to further develop its productimdates. As part of the Merger and Short-Form Meingé&lay 2011, the Company assumed
the Former Operating Company's agreement withiagisind new investors pursuant to which the For@gerating Company received an
irrevocable, legally binding commitment for proceed $64,284 from the issuance of shares of Sérgonvertible Preferred Stock in three
closings. The proceeds from each closing were géipetue to the Company upon its written requeke Tirst of the three closings was
completed prior to the Merger on May 17, 2011 farsg proceeds of $21,428, the second closing wapleted on November 18, 2011 for
gross proceeds of $21,428, and the third closing seanpleted on December 14, 2011 for gross proasfedizl,428. The Company believes
that its existing cash and cash equivalents an#tetetsle securities,
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Nature of Business (Continued)

coupled with its remaining borrowing capacity untlex Loan and Security Agreement described in Na{eare sufficient to finance its
operations, including its obligations under the dNoagreement described in Note 16, into the §tstrter of 2013.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires the
Company's management to make estimates and assumfitat affect the amounts reported in the firelrstatements and accompanying n
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquidéstment instruments with an original maturity wipemchased of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents at Decemb&031, and 2010 are primarily comprised of money rmiafiknds.

Marketable Securities

All investment instruments with an origimahturity date, when purchased, in excess of threeths have been classified as current
marketable securities. These marketable secuatislassified as available-for-sale and such gexsuare carried at fair value. Unrealized
gains and losses, if any, are included within otteenprehensive income (loss) within stockholdeeficit. The amortized cost of debt securi
in this category is adjusted for amortization cémpiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Sardlortization is included in interest incol
Realized gains and losses on available-for-saleriies are included in interest income. The cdstezurities sold is based on the specific
identification method. The Company periodicallyieavs the portfolio of securities to determine wiegthn other-than-temporary impairment
has occurred. No such losses have occurred to Tadee were no realized gains or losses on theo$alecurities for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value hierarchy gives the highgrsdrity to unadjusted quoted prices in active negskor identical assets (Level 1), and the loy
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The Cany's financial assets are classified within thievialue hierarchy based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value meemment. The three levels of the fair value hidrgrand its applicability to the Company's
financial assets, are described below:

Level 2—Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thebacessible at the measurement date of identicadstricted assets.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assets, or inputs thatadservable, either directly or indirectly, fatbstantially the full term through
corroboration with observable market data. Leviglcudes investments valued at quoted prices agtjustr legal or contractual restrictions
specific to the security.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

Level 3—Pricing inputs are unobservable for the asset,ishinputs that reflect the reporting entity'sroassumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pgitire asset. Level 3 includes private investmdrasdre supported by little or no market
activity.

The Company's financial assets are claskds Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 assets as oéber 31, 2011 and 2010 (Note 7). The
carrying amounts of the Company's financial inseats, which include cash equivalents, marketaldargiees, accounts payable, warrant
liabilities, assets and liabilities related to Nier{Note 16) and accrued expenses, approximateehléimated fair values as of December 31,
2011 and 2010. Money market funds are valued ugiroged market prices with no valuation adjustmepiglied. Accordingly, these securities
are categorized as Level 1. Assets utilizing Levilputs include government agency securitiesuitiolg direct issuance bonds, and corporate
bonds. These assets are valued using third padingresources which generally use interest ratekyield curves observable at commonly
guoted intervals of similar assets as observalpletenfor pricing. Fair value for Level 3 is basgmbn the fair values determined using the
probability-weighted expected return method, or FRNE as discussed in Note 7.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Off-Balance-SheeRisk

Financial instruments that potentially fdbjthe Company to credit risk primarily consistagh and cash equivalents and available-for-
sale marketable securities. The Company mainttsrsash and cash equivalents and marketable geswrith financial institutions. The
Company is currently investing its excess cashamey market funds and other securities, and theagemnent of these investments is not
discretionary on the part of the financial insibat The Company's credit exposure on its marketaéturities is limited by its diversification
among United States government and agency debtisesuThe Company has no significant off-balasbeet risks such as foreign exchange
contracts, option contracts, or other hedging gearents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at codidapreciated using the straight-line method dverestimated useful lives of the respective
assets:

Furniture 3 years

Equipment 5 years

Software 3 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease or useful life of
the asse

See Note 8, Property and Equipment.
Revenue Recognition

To date, all of the Company's revenue leestgenerated under an option agreement. The Cgmpengnized revenue ratably over the
option period.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Research and Development

The Company accounts for research and dpretnt costs by expensing such costs to opera®irecurred. Research and development
costs primarily consist of clinical testing costs;luding payments in cash and stock made to cotgaresearch organizations, personnel costs
outsourced research activities, laboratory suppéied license fees.

Nonrefundable advance payments for good®nvices to be received in the future for useegearch and development activities are
deferred and capitalized. The capitalized amouiitde expensed as the related goods are delivaréte services are performed.

Licensing Agreements
Costs associated with licenses of technotrg expensed as incurred, and are included @arels and development expenses.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

When impairment indicators exist, the Compamanagement evaluates Idivgd assets for potential impairment. Potentigb&inment i
assessed when there is evidence that events agehancircumstances have occurred that indicatiettie carrying amount of a long-lived
asset may not be recovered. Recoverability of thesets is assessed based on undiscounted exfutateccash flows from the assets,
considering a number of factors, including pastrapeg results, budgets and economic projectior@sket trends, and product development
cycles. An impairment in the carrying value of easket is assessed when the undiscounted expatieel ¢ash flows derived from the asset
are less than its carrying value.

Impairments, if any, are recognized in @ags. An impairment loss would be recognized iraarount equal to the excess of the carrying
amount over the undiscounted expected future daglsfNo impairment charges have been recognizex shception.

Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as compsé@in enterprise engaging of business activitiesrhich discrete financial information is
available and regularly reviewed by the chief ofiegadecision maker in deciding how to allocateoteses and in assessing performance. The
Company views its operations and manages its bgsineone operating segment and the Company opénataée geographic segment.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes utigeliability method. Deferred tax assets andilité#s are determined based on differences
between financial reporting and income tax bas&sskts and liabilities, as well as net operatisg tarryforwards, and are measured using the
enacted tax laws that will be in effect when thiéedences reverse. Deferred tax assets are redycadaluation allowance to reflect the
uncertainty associated with their ultimate real@atThe effect on deferred taxes of a changexmage is recognized in income or loss in the
period that includes the enactment date.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

In July 2006, the FASB issued ASC No. 740Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax@SC No. 740-10 establishes a minimum
threshold for financial statement recognition af tienefit of positions taken, or expected to benalkn filing tax returns. ASC No. 740-10
requires the evaluation of tax positions takerexgected to be taken, in the course of preparia@ttmpany's tax returns to determine whether
the tax positions are "more likely than not" ofrigeBustained by the applicable tax authority. Tasitppns not deemed to meet the more-likely-
than-not threshold would be recorded as a tax esgpeihe Company's adoption of ASC No. 740-10 ir02fi@ not have a material effect on
the Company's financial statements.

The Company uses judgment to determinegibegnition threshold and measurement attributdéifiancial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expectée taken in a tax return. Any material interest pedalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits are recognized in income tax expense.

Due to uncertainty surrounding the realorapf the favorable tax attributes in future taturns, the Company has recorded a full valui
allowance against otherwise realizable net defaar@ssets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

Prior to the Series A-1 Financing on May 2011, the carrying value of the Company's S@iesd Series C redeemable convertible
preferred stock was adjusted by periodic accretuth that the carrying value will equal the redgampamount at the redemption date. The
carrying value was also adjusted to reflect diviiethat accrue quarterly on the Series B and Geradble convertible preferred stock
(Note 12). In connection with the recapitalizatiincussed in Note 4, the Company's Preferred Ssoo longer redeemable, other than up
deemed liquidation event, as defined.

Preferred Stock Accounting

The Company accounts for an amendmentiidd, deletes or significantly changes a subsetmtractual term (e.g., one that is at least
reasonably possible of being exercised), or fundaatly changes the nature of the preferred shazemaxtinguishment (Note 4).

Financial Instruments Indexed to and Potentially Stled in the Company's common stock

The Company evaluates all financial instenis issued in connection with its equity offerimggen determining the proper accounting
treatment for such instruments in the Companyaniinal statements. The Company considers a nunfilgemerally accepted accounting
principles to determine such treatment and evaduhie features of the instrument to determine gpeapriate accounting treatment. The
Company utilizes the Black-Scholes method or o#tpgropriate methods to determine the fair valuiésaderivative financial instruments. Key
valuation factors in determining the fair valuelute, but are not limited to, the current stoclceras of the date of measurement, the exercise
price, the remaining contractual life, expectedatibty for the instrument and the risk-free intstreate. For financial instruments that are
determined to be classified as liabilities on th&ahce sheet, changes in fair value are recordadjas or loss in the Company's Statement of
Operations with the corresponding amount recordeahaadjustment to the liability on its Balance &he
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes the compensationoé@snployee stock-based awards using the strdiighimethod over the requisite service
period of the award. The Company accounts for &etisns in which services are received from noniegges in exchange for equity
instruments based on the estimated fair value @i services received or of the equity instrumesdgaed, whichever is more reliably measured.
The fair value of unvested non-employee awardseareasured at each reporting period and expensegdioy vesting term of the underlying
stock options.

During the years ended December 31, 20010 2nd 2009, the Company recorded approximatel® $100 and $100 of employee stock-
based compensation expense, respectively. The Comngstimates the fair value of each option awamdguhe Black-Scholes-Merton option-
pricing model. Weighted-average information andiagstions used in the option-pricing model for enyple stock-based compensation are as
follows.

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Expected term (year: 6.28 6.2t 6.2°5

Volatility 6C% 58% 57-59%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 1.35% 1.92% 2.6-2.7%

In calculating the estimated fair valughe Company's stock options, the Black-Scholes-dfeoiption-pricing model requires the
consideration of the following six variables forrpases of estimating fair value:

. The stock option exercise price;

. The expected term of the option;

. The grant date price of the Company's common stehich is issuable upon exercise of the opt
. The expected volatility of the Company's commortist

. The expected dividends on the Company's commotk;sancl

. The risk-free interest rate for the expected optéym.

The expected term of the stock options t@énepresents the period of time that optionstgrhare expected to be outstanding. For op
granted prior to January 1, 2008, the expected vemmcalculated using the "simplified” method asspribed by the SEC's Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 Share-Based Paymenfor options granted after January 1, 2008, thm@amy calculated the expected term using similar
assumptions. The expected volatility is a measfitheopamount by which the Company stock price jgeexed to fluctuate during the term of
the options granted. The Company determines theateg volatility based on a review of the histdrigaatility of similar publicly held
companies in the biotechnology field over a pedothmensurate with the option's expected term. Toragainy has never declared or paid any
cash dividends on its common stock and does nataxp
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

do so in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, #sian expected dividend yield of zero. The risk-freerest rate is the implied yield available
on U.S. Treasury issues with a remaining life cstesit with the option's expected term on the daggant. The Company applies an estimated
forfeiture rate to current period expense to reenompensation expense only for those awardscéaghéo vest. The Company estimates
forfeitures based upon historical data, adjustedfiown trends, and will adjust the estimate ofditures if actual forfeitures differ or are
expected to differ from such estimates. Subsequieariges in estimated forfeitures are recognizemligiir a cumulative adjustment in the
period of change and also will impact the amourgtotk-based compensation expense in future peridasforfeiture rate was estimated to be
3.7%, 2.8% and 2.4% for the years ended Decemhex031l, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Net income (loss) per common share is ¢afed using the two-class method, which is an egshallocation formula that determines net
income (loss) per share for the holders of the Gomgjs common shares and participating securititsefes of Preferred Stock, excluding
Former Operating Company's Series A Convertibléelried Stock, contain participation rights in anyidend paid by the Company and are
deemed to be participating securities. Net incowalable to common shareholders and participatmgertible preferred shares is allocated to
each share on an as-converted basis as if aleafdimings for the period had been distributed. gdrdcipating securities do not include a
contractual obligation to share in losses of then@any and are not included in the calculation ¢flogs per share in the periods that have i
loss.

Diluted net income per share is computedguthe more dilutive of (a) the two-class method(b) the ifconverted method. The Comp:
allocates net income first to preferred stockhaldersed on dividend rights and then to common eefémped stockholders based on ownership
interests. The weighted-average number of commarestoutstanding gives effect to all potentiallytiie common equivalent shares,
including outstanding stock options, warrants, patential issuance of stock upon the issuance W&SA-6 Convertible Preferred Stock
("Series A-6") as settlement of the liability to fda Bioscience ("Nordic"). Common equivalent stzaaee excluded from the computation of
diluted net income (loss) per share if their efisanti-dilutive.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company discloses all components offzetrensive income (loss) on an annual basis. Cdrapséve income (loss) is defined as the
change in equity of a business enterprise duripgreod from transactions, and other events andigistances from non-owner sources, and
consists of
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
net loss and changes in unrealized gains (lossei$ available-for-sale marketable securities. @ghensive loss was calculated as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net loss $ (42,470 $ (14,630 $ (15,089
Unrealized (loss) gain on marketable

securities 8 (18) (232
Comprehensive los $ (42,46 $ (14,649 $ (15,32)

Recently Adopted Accounting Standard

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2089ASU 2009-13 amends existing revenue recognémmounting pronouncements that are
currently within the scope of FASB ASC Subtopic & (previously included within EITF 00-2Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables("EITF 00-21"). The consensus to ASU 2009-13 presidccounting principles and application guidancevbether multiple
deliverables exist, how the arrangement shoulceparated, and the consideration allocated. Thidagngie eliminates the requirement to
establish the fair value of undelivered productd services and instead provides for separate reveuognition based upon management's
estimate of the selling price for an undeliveregintwhen there is no other means to determine thedke of that undelivered item. EITF 00-
21 previously required that the fair value of tinelelivered item be the price of the item eithedspla separate transaction between unrelated
third parties or the price charged for each itenemvthe item is sold separately by the vendor. UBdi€F 00-21, if the fair value of all of the
elements in the arrangement was not determindi#e, ievenue was deferred until all of the itemsendslivered or fair value was determined.
This new approach is effective prospectively forereue arrangements entered into or materially rmemtlih fiscal years beginning on or after
June 15, 2010. On January 1, 2011, the CompanytediédU 2009-13 on a prospective basis. The adoplid not have a material impact on
the Company's financial position or results of apiens, but could have an impact on how the Compacpunts for any future collaboration
agreements, should the Company enter into any agigements in the future.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the Financial Accounttgndards Board issued Accounting Standard Updat@®l1-11DPisclosures about
Offsetting Assets and Liabiliti€sASU No. 2011-11"), which will require disclosurs entities with financial instruments and detivas that
are either offset on the balance sheet in accoedaith ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 815-10-45, or subjech master netting arrangement. ASU
No. 201:-11 is effective for interim and annual periodsibegg on or after January 1, 2013. The Companyrsagompleted its review of
ASU No. 201111, but it does not expect its adoption to haveatenal impact on the Company's results of opemnatifinancial position or ca:
flows.

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board issued Accounting Standard Update Bibl-B5,Comprehensive Incom{@ASU
No. 201:-05"), which will require companies to present doenponents of net income and other comprehensoarie ("OCI") either as one
continuous statement or as two consecutive statism&8U No. 2011-05 eliminates the option to présen
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components of OCI as part of the statement of olsigstockholders' equity. The update does natgéhe items which must be reported in
OCI, how such items are measured or when they beustclassified to net income. In December 2014 Fihancial Accounting Standards
Board issued Accounting Standard Update No. 201 Déferral of the Effective Date for Amendments toRhesentation of Reclassifications
of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensivenhecin ASU 2011-08ASU No. 2011-12"), which defers the requiremenAiSU

No. 201:-05 that companies present reclassification adjestsnfor each component of accumulated OCI and @8U No. 201105 was set t
be effective for interim and annual periods begigrafter December 15, 2011, but is deferred by ABU2011-12. The Company does not
expect ASU No. 2011-05 or ASU No. 2011-12 to haweagerial impact on its financial statements oulssof operations.

In May 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Bdir Value Measurement (Topic 82)—Amendments téefefCommon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.FG#A IFRS("ASU No. 2011-04"). The amendments in this updeiteensure that fair
value has the same meaning in U.S. GAAP and in |&R5that their respective fair value measuremedtisclosure requirements are the
same. This update is effective prospectively foerim and annual periods beginning after Decembg@11. Early adoption by public entities
is not permitted, and the Company is thereforeireduo adopt this ASU on January 1, 2012. The Camgphas not completed its review of
ASU No. 201164, but it does not expect its adoption to haveatenal impact on the Company's results of opemnatifinancial position or ca:
flows.

3. Merger

As described in Note 1, the Company coneplet reverse merger transaction with the Former@ipg Company on May 17, 2011,
pursuant to which the Company changed its name WM&V Acquisition Corp. to Radius Health, Inc. aresamed the operations of the For
Operating Company. The accompanying financial statés and the related disclosures take into acaberitlerger and Short-Form Merger
transactions. In addition, all historical share gaed share amounts in the financial statementtimgléo the Former Operating Company have
been retroactively adjusted for all periods presgnd give effect to the 1:15 reverse stock splélbthe Former Operating Company's capital
stock (the "Reverse Stock Split"), including resifgng an amount equal to the reduction in paugéab additional paid-icapital, approved k
the Former Operating Company's Board of Directoicr fpo the Merger on May 17, 2011.

As of the effective time of the Merger (tligfective Time"), the legal existence of Merger€@ased and all of the shares of the Former
Operating Company's common stock, par value $0e05lpare, and shares of the Former Operating Coytspareferred stock, par value $0.01
per share, that were outstanding immediately gadhe Merger were cancelled and converted intaitid to receive shares of the Company's
common or preferred stock, as applicable. Eachtamding share of the Former Operating Company comshack outstanding immediately
prior to the Effective Time was automatically corted into the right to receive one share of the gany's common stock, $0.0001 par value
per share (the "Common Stock") and each outstargliage of the Company's preferred stock outstandingediately prior to the Effective
Time was automatically converted into the righteoeive one-tenth of one share of the Companyfepeel stock, $0.0001 par value per share
(the "Preferred Stock") as consideration for therd¢e. The December 31, 2010 financial
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statements, specifically common stock and additipagl-in-capital, have been adjusted to refleetdchange in common stock par value.

The Company assumed all options and warraiithe Former Operating Company outstanding imately prior to the Effective Time,
which became exercisable for shares of the Comp&gmmon Stock or Preferred Stock, as the casebmag@ontemporaneously with the
closing of the Merger, pursuant to the terms okeddinption Agreement dated April 25, 2011 by andragrtbe Company and its then-current
stockholder, the Company completed the repurchBS@®60,000 shares of Common Stock from its forswde stockholder in consideration of
an aggregate of $50 (the "Redemption™). The 5,@ghares constituted all of the then issued atstanding shares of the Company's capital
stock, on a fully-diluted basis, immediately priorthe Merger. Upon completion of the Merger arelRedemption, the former stockholders of
the Former Operating Company held 100% of the antBhg shares of capital stock of the Company.

Pursuant to the Merger, the Company asswathed the Former Operating Company's obligationder its existing contracts. In particu
the Company has assumed the rights and obligatiotiee Former Operating Company under that ce@aines A-1 Convertible Preferred
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 251284 amended, (the "Purchase Agreement") withcibrédin investors listed therein (the
"Investors") pursuant to which, among other thirtge, Company was obligated to issue and sell tdryestors up to an aggregate of 789,553
shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stoakyvplue $.0001 per share (the "Series A-1"), eaghpurchase price per share of $81.42, to
be completed in three closings for cash procee@§4f284. The transactions covered by the Purchgssement are referred to herein as the
"Series A-1 Financing". An initial closing was colefed on May 17, 2011 by the Former Operating Camigaior to the Merger.

4. Recapitalization

Subsequent to the Reverse Stock Split aiod to the Merger, the Former Operating Compangauwent a recapitalization pursuant to
which the preferred stock of the Company (SerigSovertible Preferred Stock ("Series A"), Serie€@vertible Preferred Stock ("Series |
and Series C Convertible Preferred Stock ("Serlg@sdollectively "Old Preferred Stock") was exchaddor a new series of convertible
preferred stock (Series A-2 Convertible Preferramtis ("Series A-2"), Series A-3 Convertible PregsehiStock ("Series A-3"), Series A-4
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A-4"), colieely with Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stot&dries A-5"), "New Preferred Stock") to
the extent that the existing stockholder parti@gah the Series A-1 Financing in an amount at latthe level its Pro Rata Share, as defined in
the Purchase Agreement. According to the amendéd s of Incorporation of the Former Operating Guamy, stockholders who did not
participate in the Series A-1 Financing in an ant@ineast equal to their Pro Rata Share amourd suject to a forced conversion (the
"Forced Conversion") to common stock, at a raté siiare of common stock for every 5 shares of Gdfiered Stock to be so converted. As a
result, 21,661 shares of Series A, 177,697 shdrBeries B and 314,496 shares of Series C convated 02,767 shares of the Company's
common stock on May 17, 2011.

The 9,832,133 shares of Series C converfit#ferred stock that remained outstanding dfeeiForced Conversion, were recapitalized and
exchanged for 9,832,133 shares of Series A-2, ##21300
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shares of Series B convertible preferred stockrgratined outstanding after the Forced Conversiene recapitalized and exchanged for
1,422,300 shares of Series A-3, and the 40,002sludrSeries A convertible preferred stock thataiewd outstanding after the Forced
Conversion, were exchanged for 40,003 shares a#sSAr4. All prior dividends that had accrued oa tiriginal Series B and Series C
Preferred Stock through May 17, 2011 were forfeligdhe holders as part of the recapitalizatioraddition, the holders of the original
Series B and Series C Preferred Stock waived togitingent redemption rights on such shares.

Certain investors participated in the SeAel Financing in an amount in excess of their Rata Share amount and as consideration for
investing such excess amount, received that nugftestditional shares of Series A-1 as set fortihinithe Purchase Agreement. The Former
Operating Company issued 1,327,506 additional shafr&eries A-1 in exchange for this additionakistment.

In accordance with the Purchase AgreentlkatStage | Closing occurred on May 17, 2011 asdlted in net proceeds of $20,347 as
consideration for the issuance of 2,631,845 shafr&gries A-1 which were converted in the Mergedescribed below into the right to receive
one-tenth of one share of SeriesdlAfhe issuance of the aforementioned additionadeshdid not generate a beneficial conversion feattithe
date of issuance or at December 31, 2011.

Subsequent to the recapitalization andhfiireg, pursuant to the Merger, each outstandingesbigpreferred stock was converted into the
right to receive one-tenth of one share of Prete8wck. After the recapitalization, Series A-1 &wdies A-5 (as described in Note 16)
financings and the Merger, the Company had theviolig shares of preferred stock outstanding at Bees 31, 2011, which include the sh:
of Series A-1 issued in the Stage Il Closing aray8tlll Closing as discussed below:

Class Number of Shares
Series /1 939,61
Series /-2 983,20t
Series /3 142,22
Series /4 3,99¢
Series /5 6,44:

The Company has accounted for the rec@atadn and exchange of the Old Preferred StockHerNew Preferred Stock as an
extinguishment of the Old Preferred Stock due &slignificance of the changes to the substantimractual terms of the preferred stock,
which included the forfeiture of accrued dividemasthe Series A and B, the removal of the contihgetdemption feature pursuant to which
the Series B and Series C was redeemable at tlenagitthe holder at a future determinable date, the addition of a mandatory conversion
provision to common stock upon the listing of then@pany's Common Stock on a national securitiesangd, among other changes. Refer to
Note 11 for the rights and preferences on the NefeRed Stock. Accordingly, the Company has reedrthe difference between the fair ve
of the new shares of Preferred Stock issued ieticeange and the carrying value of the Old Prefle®teck shares as a gain of $60,937 that
was recorded within stockholders' deficit. The Campallocated $8,269 to additional paid-in capitalecover the amount of additional paid-
capital that had previously been reduced by dividesccreted
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on Series B and Series C that was forfeited asgbahe recapitalization, and the balance of $52 s recorded to accumulated deficit. The
gain on extinguishment is reflected as a prefestedk redemption in the calculation of net incomailable to common stockholders in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codificatl&SC") 260Earnings Per ShareThe fair value of the Series A-1, Series A-2,i&eA-3
and Series A-4 was determined using the probahilgighted expected return method. (See Note 7).

In connection with the Series A-1 Finangitige Former Operating Company issued to a placeagant, and in the Merger, the Company
assumed, a warrant to purchase 818 shares of efid2referred Stock. The warrant has an exerdise pf $81.42 and expires on May 17,
2016. The warrant is classified as a liability hea Company's balance sheet and was recorded aspoeent of the issuance costs related ti
Series A-1 Financing. The Company recorded theamaat a fair value of $35, calculated using thacRBiScholes option pricing model. The
revaluation of the warrant at December 31, 2011 wedisnaterial to the financial statements.

Subsequent to the exchange of outstandiages of preferred stock for the right to receime-tenth of one share of Preferred Stock, in
accordance with the Purchase Agreement, the St&gjeding occurred on November 18, 2011 and redutienet proceeds of approximately
$20,977 through the sale of 263,178 shares of SArie. On December 14, 2011, the Stage Il Closiogurred resulting in net proceeds of
approximately $20,973 through the sale of 263, 80es of Series A-1. The issuance of the shargeiStage Il and Stage Ill Closings did not
generate beneficial conversion features at theafdsuance or at December 31, 2011.

In connection with the Stage Il and Stdg€losings, the Former Operating Company issuead ptacement agent, warrants to purchase
1,636 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock. Theants have an exercise price of $81.42 and exfiiee fave (5) years. The warrant is
classified as a liability on the Company's balasiveet and was recorded as a component of the sigansts related to the Series A-1
Financing. The Company recorded the warrant air adue of $68, calculated using the Black-Schalpson pricing model. The revaluation
of the warrant at December 31, 2011 was not materihe financial statements.
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Basic and diluted net loss per share isutaled as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except share and per share amount 2011 2010 2009
Numerator:
Net loss $ (42,47¢) $ (14,630 $ (15,089
Extinguishment of preferred sto 60,931 —
Accretion of preferred stoc (10,939 (12,149 (11,409
Earnings attributable to participating preferred
stockholder: (7,275 —
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stockho—basic 258 (26,779 (26,499

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto —

Earnings (loss) attributable to common stockholders
diluted $ 255 $ (26,77) $ (26,499

Denominator
Weightec-average number of common shares use

earnings (loss) per sh—basic 499,94 320,94 320,42-

Effect of dilutive options to purchase common st 464,93: — —

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto 2,489,39! — —
Weighted-average number of common shares used in

earnings (loss) per sh—diluted 3,454,217 320,94. 320,42
Earnings (loss) per sh—basic $ 051 $ (83.42 $ (82.69)

Effect of dilutive options to purchase common st (0.29) — —

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto (0.20 — —
Earnings (loss) per sh—diluted $ 0.07 $ (8349 $ (82.6¢

The following potentially dilutive secuss, prior to the use of the treasury stock methade been excluded from the computation of
diluted weighted-average shares outstanding, gsvtbeld be anti-dilutive:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Convertible preferred stoc 5,419,941 11,808,29  11,808,29
Options to purchase common stc 894,16( 1,461,86! 1,216,71
Warrants 8,86( 1,33¢ 1,33¢
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Available-for-sale marketable securitied aash and cash equivalents consist of the follgwin

December 31, 2011

Gross Gross
Carrying Unrealized Unrealized
Value Gains Losses Fair Value

Cash and cash equivaler

Cash $ 5,00 $ — $ — $ 5,00¢

Money marke 20,12t — — 20,12¢

Domestic corporate commercial pa — — —

Domestic corporate debt securit — — — —
Total $ 2512¢ $ — $ — $ 25,12¢
Marketable securitie:

Domestic corporate debt securit 10,26( — (6) 10,25¢

Domestic orporate commercial paj 18,98 11 — 18,99¢

U.S. government securitis 2,32¢ — — 2,32¢
Total $ 3157 $ 11 $ (6) $ 31,58(

December 31, 201/

Gross Gross
Carrying Unrealized Unrealized
Value Gains Losses Fair Value

Cash and cash equivaler

Cash $ 23z % — $ — 3 23z

Money marke 6,452 — — 6,452

Domestic corporate commercial pa 2,89: — — 2,892

Domestic corporate debt securit 1,00¢ — — 1,00¢
Total $ 10,58 $ — $ — $ 10,58:
Marketable securitie:

Domestic corporate debt securit 5,02z — (©)] 5,02(

Domestic orporate commercial pa| 2,94¢ — — 2,94¢
Total $ 7972 % — $ 3 $ 7,96¢

There were no debt securities that had bean unrealized loss position for more than 12ithe at December 31, 2011. The Company
evaluated the securities for other-than-tempornanyairments based on quantitative and qualitaticeofa, noting none. There were 7 debt
securities that had been in an unrealized losgipodbr less than 12 months at December 31, 20h#&.aggregate unrealized loss on these
securities was $7 and the fair value was $8,018.@dmpany considered the decline in market valuéhfese securities to be primarily
attributable to current economic conditions. Ais ihot more likely than not that the Company wél fequired to sell these securities before the
recovery of their amortized cost basis, which mayraturity, the Company does not consider thesesinvents to be other-than-temporarily
impaired as of December 31, 2011.
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The following tables summarize the assetsl@bilities measured at fair value on a rec@itirasis in the accompanying balance sheets as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010 based on the criestaissed in Note 2:

December 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 5,00: $ — $ — $ 5,00
Money marke 20,12¢ — — 20,12¢
Marketable securitiet
Domestic corporate debt securit — 10,25¢ — 10,25¢
Domestic orporate commercial pa| — 18,99¢ — 18,99¢
U.S. government securitit — 2,32¢ — 2,32¢
Stock dividend assi — — 3,37¢ 3,37¢
$ 25,12¢ $ 31,58( $ 3,37¢ $ 60,08
December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Liabilities
Warrant liability $ — $ — $ 45 $ 45C
Other liability — — 10,47( 10,47(
$ — $ — $ 10,92( $ 10,92
December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivale! $1058. $ — $ — $ 10,58.
Marketable securitie:
Domestic corporate debt securit — 5,02( — 5,02(
Domestic corporate commercial pa — 2,94¢ — 2,94¢
$ 10,58: $ 796¢ $§ — $ 18,55:

Fair value for Level 1 is based on quotexdtkat prices. Fair value for Level 2 is based ooted prices for similar instruments in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similatinments in markets that are not active and modeséd valuation techniques for which all
significant assumptions are observable in the ntarkean be corroborated by observable marketfdatsubstantially the full term of the
assets. Inputs are obtained from various sour@isdimg market participants, dealers and brokea#. \Falue for Level 3 is based upon the fair
values determined using the probability-weightepeseted return method, or PWERM, as discussed b&twanges in fair value of the Level 3
assets and liabilities are recorded as other ingexgense) in the statement of operations.
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The stock dividend asset represents theamtebalance of the accrued stock dividend (“oliladility" or "stock liability") to issue shares
Series A-6 convertible preferred stock ("Series"Até Nordic (Note 16) and the amount of reseanuth development expense related to stock
dividend amounts being recognized ratably overestanated per patient treatment period. The fdirevaf the stock liability is based upon the
fair value of the Series A-6 shares as determis#itglPWERM which considers the value of preferned @@mmon stock based upon analysis
of the future values for equity assuming variousifel outcomes. Accordingly, share value is baseuh dipe probability-weighted present value
of expected future net cash flows, considering ed¢he possible future events, discount rate ésroéned using the capital asset pricing
model, as well as the rights and preferences df share class. PWERM is complex as it requires mouseassumptions relating to potential
future outcomes of equity, hence, the use of tlethiod can be applied: (i) when possible future @ukes can be predicted with reasonable
certainty; and (ii) when there is a complex capstalicture (i.e., several classes of preferredcamaimon stock). The Company had previously
used the option-pricing method to value its comrsimtk. The option-pricing method treats commonistoad preferred stock as call options
on the enterprise's value, with exercise pricegdbas the liquidation preference of the prefertedls The Company utilized the PWERM
approach in its most recent valuation based oi€Ctirapany's expectations regarding the time to bewgmilisted, publiclytraded entity as we
as the recent Series A-1 financing and the inittatf BA058 Injection Phase 3 study that resolugfficdent uncertainty regarding a discrete
range of outcomes that could be identified andwatald. As such the valuation of the stock dividend other current asset was determined to
be a Level 3 valuation.

The warrant liability represents the ligtgifor the warrants issued to the placement ageobnnection with the Series A-1 Financings
(Note 4) and to the lenders in connection withltban and Security Agreement (Note 11). The wariabtlity is calculated using the Black-
Scholes option pricing method. This method of vatuwaincludes using inputs such as the fair valiithe Company's various classes of
preferred stock, historical volatility, the termtbe warrant and risk free interest rates. Thevaiue of the Company's shares of common and
preferred stock was estimated using PWERM, as ibestabove. As such the valuation of the warraltility was determined to be a Level 3
liability.

The other liability represents the lialyilib issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordic for sswirendered in connection with the Company's
Phase 3 clinical study of BAO58 Injection (Note .IBje liability is calculated based upon the numidfeshares earned by Nordic through the
performance of clinical trial services multiplieg the estimated fair value of the Company's Seki€sat each reporting date. The estimated
fair value of the Series &-is determined using PWERM, as described aboveusk the valuation of the warrant liability wasedenined to b
a Level 3 liability.

The following table provides a roll forwanéithe fair value of the assets, including stoaldgo Nordic in advance of services being
rendered, where fair value is determined by Levielp8its:

Balance at January 1, 20 $ —
Additions 3,48:
Change in fair valu (103)
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 3,37¢
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The following table provides a roll forwanfithe fair value of the liabilities, includingostk dividends payable to Nordic, where fair value
is determined by Level 3 inputs:

Balance at January 1, 20 $ —
Additions 10,75¢
Change in fair valu 161
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 10,92(

8. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of thefilhg:

December 31

Estimated Useful Life (In Years) 2011 2010
Furniture and fixture 5 $ 66 $ 36
Computer equipment and softws 3 254 23¢
Leasehold improvemen Shorter of usefu 497 367

life or remaining

lease tern

Laboratory equipmer 5 — —
817 641
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (650) (610)
Net Property Plant and Equipme $ 167 $ 31

In September 2010, the Company disposeahdfsubsequently sold laboratory equipment witbréginal cost of $628 and accumulated
depreciation of $579 for proceeds of $149. The Camymssessed whether property and equipment agsetsmpaired during the year ended
December 31, 2011 and noted no impairment indisator

9. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,

2011 2010
Research cos $ 2,27¢ $ 1,91:
Payroll and employee benef 58€ 473
Professional fee 472 243
Vacation 79 79
Restructuring — 63
Interest 177 —
Total accrued expens $ 3,59C $ 2,771
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In September 2010, the Company recordecuetaring charges of $217 related to lease tertitinaosts associated with vacating its
laboratory space. The restructuring liability islirded in accrued expenses in the balance shBetcaimber 31, 2010. All remaining payments
were made by February 28, 2011.

The following table displays the restrugtgractivity and liability balances:
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 63

Payment: (63
Balance at December 31, 20

&

On January 14, 2011, the Company signetiease agreement for office space in Cambridgesskizhusetts that expired on July 31,
2011. Monthly rental payments under this sublease=\89 and the Company moved into the space iruBgbf011. On July 15, 2011, the
Company entered into an operating lease agreemeetrain in the same Cambridge, Massachusettsdacdthe term of the lease is Augus
2011 through July 31, 2014. Monthly rental paymemtger the new lease are approximately $15 fofitsiel2 months and approximately $16
for the 24 months thereafter.

Rent expense was $138 and $535 for thesysated December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
11. Loan and Security Agreement

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered iflttaa and security agreement (the "Loan and Segcfigteement") with Oxford Finance LL
and General Electric Capital Corporation (colleetyy the "Lender") pursuant to which the Lendereagrto lend the Company up to $25,000.
Upon entering into the Loan and Security Agreemigig,Company borrowed $6,250 from the Lender ("Teoan A") on May 23, 2011 and
additional $6,250 from the Lender ("Term Loan BH)Movember 21 2011. Under the terms of the LoanSexlrity Agreement, the Company
may, in its sole discretion, subject to customamditions, borrow from the Lender up to an addisilodl2,500, at any time on or before
May 22, 2012 ("Term Loan C," collectively with Tedoean A and Term Loan B, the "Term Loans"). The @amy's obligations under the
Loan and Security Agreement are secured by agirstity security interest in substantially all thie assets of the Company.

The Company is required to pay interesthenoutstanding Term Loan A on a monthly basisughoand including December 1, 2011.
Beginning December 1, 2011 through the maturityem Loan A on November 22, 2014, the Company bélrequired to make payments of
outstanding principal and interest on Term LoamA&6 equal monthly installments. Interest is pagaii Term Loan A at an annual interest
rate of 10.16%. The Company is required to pay@steon the outstanding Term Loan B on a monthsjsbdarough and including June 1,
2012. Beginning June 1, 2012, through the matwfitferm Loan B on November 24, 2014, the Comparlbeirequired to make payments
outstanding principal and interest on Term Loam B6 equal monthly installments. Interest is pagain Term Loan B at an annual interest
rate of 10%. If the Company enters into Term Loain@rest on the term loan will accrue at an ahfixed rate equal to greater of (i) 10% or
(i) the sum of (a) the three-year Treasury Ratpuddished by the Board of Governors of the Fedeesdlerve System in Federal Reserve
Statistical Release H.15 entitled "Selected IntdRedes,"

107




Table of Contents

Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
11. Loan and Security Agreement (Continued)

plus (b) 9.19%. Payments due under Term Loan Kprifowed, are interest only, payable monthly, iears, for six months following the
funding of each term loan, and will consist of 3&1&80 payments of principal and interest, respebtjwvhich are payable monthly, in arrears,
and all unpaid principal and accrued and unpakr@st on Term Loan C would be due and payable 4&hma@fter the funding of any each
term loan.

Upon the last payment date of the amouatsolved under the Loan and Security Agreement, indrein the maturity date of one of the
Term Loans, on the date of any prepayment or ouldte of acceleration in the event of a default, Glompany will be required to pay the
Lender a final payment fee equal to 3.5% of anthefTerm Loans borrowed. In addition, if the Compeapays all or a portion of the Term
Loans prior to maturity, it will pay the Lender eepayment fee of three percent of the total ampuepaid if the prepayment occurs prior to
first anniversary of the funding of the relevantd_oan, two percent of the total amount prepaithéf prepayment occurs between the first
and second anniversary of the funding of the rele¥arm Loan, and one percent of the total amotepaid if the prepayment occurs on or
after the second anniversary of the funding ofrtevant Term Loan.

Upon the occurrence of an event of defandluding payment defaults, breaches of covenantsaterial adverse change in the collateral,
the Company's business, operations or conditioaiftial or otherwise) and certain levies, attachsand other restraints on the Company's
business, the interest rate will be increased sy fiercentage points and all outstanding obligatieii become immediately due and payable.
The Loan and Security Agreement also contains pestite acceleration clause, which provides thedsgrihe ability to demand repayment of
the loan early upon a material adverse changegfased. The portion of the Term Loan A and Term h@athat is not due within 12 months of
December 31, 2011 has been classified as long-tsithhe Company believes a material adverse chamgmote.

In connection with each Term Loan, the Campissued to the Lender a Warrant to purchasé3badres of the Company's Series A-1
Preferred Stock (the "Warrant"). The Warrants aer@sable, in whole or in part, immediately, arad la per share exercise price of $81.42
may be exercised on a cashless basis. The Wagaciishave a term of 10 years. The exercise prigeb@adjusted in the event the Company
issues shares of the Series A-1 at a price lovesr $#81.42 per share. The Warrants are classifiediability in the Company's balance sheet
and will be remeasured at their estimated fair @@tueach reporting period. The changes in fairesare recorded as other income (expense) ir
the Statement of Operations.

The initial fair value of the Warrant issui@ connection with Term Loan A was $183 and wexorded as a discount to Term Loan A. The
fair value of the warrant at December 31, 2011 $4&8&3. The Company also paid the Lender a facidigydf $250 and reimbursed the Lender
certain costs associated with the Loan and Seciigtgement of $117, both of which were also recdrae a discount to Term Loan A. The
discount is being amortized to interest expense thee42 month period that Term Loan A is outstagdising the effective interest method.

The initial fair value of the Warrant issii@ connection with Term Loan B was $178 and vem®rded as a discount to Term Loan B. The
fair value of the warrant at December 31, 2011 $&8&. The Company also reimbursed the Lender ocectats associated with Term Loan B
of $18, which was
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also recorded as a discount to Term Loan B. Theodist is being amortized to interest expense dwed® month period that Term Loan B is
outstanding using the effective interest method.

Future principal payments under the Loath Security Agreement at December 31, 2011, arelmsis:

Principal

Paxments
2012 $ 3,18¢
2013 4,12¢
2014 5,031
Total $ 12,34«
Current portion of net payab 3,18¢
Discount on current portion of note paya (30§)
Current portion of net payable, net of disco $ 2,88(
Discount on noncurrent portion of note paye (270)
Note payable, net of current portion and discc $ 8,88¢

12. Convertible Preferred Stock and Redeemable Coevtible Preferred Stock
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

The rights, preferences, and privilegethefSeries A Preferred Stock, Series B PreferredkSand Series C Preferred Stock (collectiv
the "Old Preferred Stock™) which were outstandisgphDecember 31, 2010 are as follows:

Conversion

Each Preferred stockholder has the righher option at any time, to convert any suchrebaf Old Preferred Stock into such number of
fully paid shares as is determined by dividing dhiginal purchase price by the conversion pricee €bnversion price of the Old Preferred
Stock as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 was $8d4Hn 00 per share for Series C Preferred StockarfBeries B and A Preferred Stock,
respectively, which in each case represents a 1 fmnversion ratio to common stock.

Redemptior

At the request of holders of at least 68%ating power of the shares of Series B and S&iPseferred Stock then outstanding, made at
any time on or after the fourth anniversary of dhiginal Series C Preferred Stock issuance dageCthmpany will be required to redeem all of
the outstanding shares of Series B and Series férRye Stock at a redemption price equal to thgimal Series B or Series C Preferred Stock
purchase price of $15.00 and $8.14, respectivélg, @ny declared or accrued but unpaid dividendgdBnds accrue at eight percent per
annum, compounding annually, commencing on the afagsuance of the Series B and C Preferred Stespectively.
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If the Company, at any time, breaches dntsgepresentations, warranties, covenants, aradjeeements set forth in the Stockholders'
Agreements between the Company and the Series Beanieks C Preferred Stockholders specified in tlaggeements, holders of at least 68%
of the voting power of the Series B and Series €dPred Stock may elect, at their sole discretiftine breach is not cured within 60 days, to
accelerate the maturity of the rights of all thei&eB and Series C Preferred Stockholders ancedliesimmediate redemption of all the shares
of Series B and Series C Preferred Stock.

The Series A Preferred Stock is not reddsena
Dividends

Following payment in full of required diwidds to the holders of Series C Stock and Serte®Bk, Series A Preferred Stockholders are
entitled to receive dividends on shares of Seriég&erred Stock, when, if and as declared by tdaedof directors at a rate to be determined
by the board of directors.

Following payment in full of required diwidds to the holders of Series C Stock, Series BiPeel Stockholders are entitled to receive
dividends at the rate of 8% per annum, compoundimrgually, which will accrue on a quarterly basismoeencing on the date of issuance of the
Series B Preferred Stock. Dividends will be payahteaccrued, upon liquidation, event of sale, mgateon date, and conversion to common
stock (whether declared or not) as specified intuekholders' Agreement. The holders of shar&eaks B Preferred Stock are also entitle
dividends declared or paid on any shares of comstaek.

Series C Preferred Stockholders are edtitgeceive dividends at the rate of 8% per anreompounding annually, which will accrue on
a quarterly basis commencing on the date of issuahthe Series C Preferred Stock. Dividends vélplayable, as accrued, upon liquidation,
event of sale, redemption date, and conversiomtunton stock as (whether declared or not) specifiede Stockholders' Agreement. The
holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stocklaceemtitled to dividends declared or paid on amrss of common stock.

Voting
The Old Preferred Stockholders are entittedote together with the holders of the commarlstas one class on an as if converted basis.

In addition, the Series B and Series Cd®refl Stockholders, voting as a separate classofSereferred Stockholders), have the exclusive
right to elect six members of the board of direstor

Liguidation

The Series C Preferred Stock ranks semidmaior to the Series B Preferred Stock, Seriéréferred Stock, and the Company's common
stock. The Series B Preferred Stock ranks senidpaior to the Series A Preferred Stock and the amy's common stock, and junior to the
Series C Preferred Stock. The Series A PreferreckStnks senior and prior to the Company's comstock.
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In the event of a liquidation, dissolutiam,winding-up of the Company, the holders of tleei&s C Preferred Stock are entitled to be paid
first out of the assets available for distributibefore any payment shall be made to the SeriesdBSaries A Preferred Stockholders. Payment
to the Series C Preferred Stockholders shall cbobibie original issuance price of $8.14, plusaaitrued but unpaid dividends and interest.
After the distribution to the Series C PreferredcRholders, the holders of Series B Preferred Stac# then Series A Preferred Stock, will be
entitled to receive an amount per share equale®tiginal purchase price per share of $15.00, ahysdeclared and unpaid dividends. If the
assets of the Company are insufficient to pay titlepfeferential amounts to the Series C Prefe8extkholders, the assets will be distributed
ratably among the Series C Preferred Stockholdepsdportion to their aggregate liquidation prefexe amounts. If the assets of the Company
are insufficient to pay the full preferential amtaito the Series B and Series A Preferred Stockns|dfter payment to the Series C Preferred
Stockholders, the Series B Stockholders shall $instre ratably in any remaining distribution ofeassiccording to the respective amounts
which would be repayable to them in respect ofstmeres of Series B Preferred Stock held upon sistfibdition. The Series A Preferred
Stockholders would only share in the distributidrassets once the Series B Preferred Stockholdees treceived their full preferential
amounts.

In the event of, and simultaneously witte tlosing of an Event of Sale of the Company émdd in the Stockholders' Agreement), the
Company shall redeem all of the shares of Seri€Sefies B, and Series C Preferred Stock then oulisig at the Special Liquidation Price. If
the Event of Sale involves consideration other ttesh, the Special Liquidation Price may be paith wiich consideration having a value ec
to the Special Liquidation Price. The Special Ldption Price shall be equal to an amount per skdrieh would be received by each Old
Preferred Stockholder if, in connection with theeBvof Sale, all the consideration paid in exchdiogéhe assets or the shares of capital stock
of the Company was actually paid to and receivethbyCompany, and the Company was immediatelydmfeld thereafter and its assets
distributed pursuant to the liquidation terms above

Convertible Preferred Stock

The rights, preferences, and privilegethefSeries A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series Aetjes A-5 and Series A-6 Preferred Stock,
(collectively, the "New Preferred Stock") which weauthorized as part of the recapitalization andrfcing, and in connection with the Mer¢
are as follows:

Conversion

Each holder of New Preferred Stock hagitite, at their option at any time, to convert auwgh shares of New Preferred Stock into such
number of fully paid shares of Common Stock asiteanined by dividing the original purchase pri€&®1.42 by the conversion price
("Optional Conversion"). The conversion price of tew Preferred Stock as of December 31, 2011 ®4dst3 per share (the "Conversion
Price"), which represents a conversion ratio of sim&re of New Preferred Stock into ten shares ofi@on Stock. Upon the Optional
Conversion, the holder of the converted New PreteBtock is entitled to payment of all accrued, thleeor not declared, but unpaid dividend
in shares of the Common Stock of the Company athibe effective conversion price of shares of Neefétred Stock.
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In the event an investor does not timelg eompletely fulfill their future funding obligatis as defined in the Purchase Agreement (as
described in Note 4) (i) the shares of the Newd?refl Stock then held by the investor automaticadiyvert into shares of the Company's
common stock at a rate of one share of common dtwakvery ten shares of New Preferred Stock todreverted and (ii) the Company has the
right to repurchase all of the shares of CommomrlSissued upon conversion at a purchase price ¢qtiaé par value of the repurchased
shares of Common Stock ("Subsequent Closing Adjeistth Upon a Subsequent Closing Adjustment, tHddraf the converted New
Preferred Stock is entitled to payment of any dedar accrued, but unpaid dividends in shares@fdommon Stock of the Company.

Each share of the New Preferred Stocktisraatically convertible into fully paid and non-assable shares of Common Stock at the
applicable Conversion Price then in effect upora@ote of the holders of at least 70% of the auiding shares of Series A-1, Series A-2 and
Series A-3 to convert all shares of New PreferreatiSor (ii) the Common Stock becoming listed f@ding on a national stock exchange
("Special Mandatory Conversion™"). Upon a SpeciahBtory Conversion, all accrued, whether or notated, but unpaid dividends shall be
paid in cash or shares at the discretion of the g2zomy's board of directors, at the then effectiveveosion price of shares of New Preferred
Stock.

Redemption
The shares of New Preferred Stock are moently redeemable.
Dividends

Holders of shares of Series A-1 are euntittereceive dividends at a rate of 8% per anniompounding annually, which accrue on a
quarterly basis commencing on the date of issuahtiee shares of Series A-1. Dividends are payad@ccrued, upon liquidation, event of
sale, and conversion to common stock as describegea The holders of shares of Series A-1 areeisitied to dividends declared or paid on
any shares of Common Stock.

Following payment in full of required diwidds to the holders of Series A-1, holders of Seki@ are entitled to receive dividends at a
of 8% per annum, compounding annually, which acoma quarterly basis commencing on the date o&isse of the shares of Series A-2.
Dividends are payable, as accrued, upon liquidageant of sale, and conversion to common stoaeasribed above. The holders of share
Series A-2 are also entitled to dividends declamepgaid on any shares of Common Stock.

Following payment in full of required diwidds to the holders of Series A-1 and Series AoRigns of Series A-3 are entitled to receive
dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, compoundimgialty, which accrue on a quarterly basis commenoimthe date of issuance of the sh
of Series A-3. Holders of Series A-5 are entitledeceive the Series A-5 Accruing Dividend paidlirares of Series A-6 as described in
Note 14. Holders of shares of Serie-6 are entitled to receive dividends on shareseoieS A-6, when and if declared by the board odédivrs
at a rate to be determined by the board of dirscividends are payable, as accrued, upon liguidagvent of sale
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and conversion to Common Stock as described alAtweeholders of shares of Series A-3, A-5 ané Are also entitled to dividends declare
paid on any shares of Common Stock.

Following payment in full of required diidds to the holders of Series A-1, Series A-2,686ki-3, and Series A-5, holders of Series A-4
are entitled to receive dividends on shares ofeSe&i4, when and if declared by the board of directois fate to be determined by the boar
directors. Dividends are payable, as accrued, ligardation, event of sale, and conversion to Comr8tock as described above. The holders
of shares of Series A-4 are also entitled to divéitedeclared or paid on any shares of Common Stock.

Dividends on the New Preferred Stock argpte, at the sole discretion of the board of does; in cash or in shares of the Company's
common stock, when and if declared by the boauwirettors, upon liquidation or upon an event oésatlthe current market price of shares of
common stock. Upon optional conversion, dividengspayable in shares of the common stock at theeffective conversion price of shares
of Preferred Stock.

The Company has accrued dividends of $1,86800 and $579 on Series A-1, A-2 and A-3, respaly, as of December 31, 2011.
Voting

The New Preferred Stockholders are entitbegbte together with the holders of the Commarcktas one class on an as-if converted
basis.

In addition, as long as the shares of Sekid are outstanding, the holders of Series Aeling as a separate class, have the right to elect
two members of the Company's board of directors.

Liquidation

The shares of Series A-1 rank senior tothler classes of New Preferred Stock. Series &aRg junior to Series A-1 and senior to
Series A-3, Series A-4, Series A-5 and Series 8dies A-3, Series A-5 and Series A-6 rank equallyjunior to Series A-1 and Series A-2
and senior to Series A-4. Series A-4 ranks sepitihé Company's Common Stock.

In the event of a liquidation, dissoluti@n,winding-up of the Company, the holders of tieei€& A-1 are entitled to be paid first out of the
assets available for distribution, before any paynemade to the Series A-2, Series A-3, Seriels Beries A-5 and Series &-Payment to tt
holders of Series A-1 shall consist of the origiisabance price of $81.42, plus all accrued bugithgividends. After the distribution to the
holders Series A-1, the holders of Series A-2, ballentitled to receive an amount per share equaktoriginal purchase price per share of
$81.42, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends.rAfte distribution to the holders Series A-1 ande3eA-2, the holders of Series A-3,

Series A-5 and Series A-6, will be entitled to ieeean amount per share equal to the original mselprice per share of $81.42, plus any
accrued but unpaid or declared and unpaid divideeslappropriate. After the distribution to thedwsk Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3,
Series A-5 and Series A-6, the holders of Serigswill be entitled to receive an amount per shapgaéto the original purchase price per share
of $81.42, plus any declared and unpaid dividelidbe assets of the Company are insufficient tp e full preferential amounts to the
holders of Series A-1, the assets
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will be distributed ratably among the holders ofi&eA-1 in proportion to their aggregate liquidatipreference amounts. If the assets of the
Company are insufficient to pay the full preferahtimounts to the holders of Series A-2, the asgidlitbe distributed ratably among the

holders of Series &-in proportion to their aggregate liquidation jpreince amounts. If the assets of the Company suficient to pay the ful
preferential amounts to the holders of Series 8&jes A-5 and Series A-6, the assets will beitlisied ratably among the holders of Series A-
3, Series A-5 and Series A-6 in proportion to tlagjgregate liquidation preference amounts. If 82t of the Company are insufficient to pay
the full preferential amounts to the holders ofi&eA-4, the assets will be distributed ratably agthe holders of Series A-4 in proportion to
their aggregate liquidation preference amountserAdtl liquidation preference payments have beedenta the holders of the New Preferred
Stock, the holders of the New Preferred Stock ghatiicipate in the distribution of the remainirggats with the holders of the Company's
Common Stock on an as-if converted basis.

In the event of, and simultaneously wittg tlosing of an event of sale of the Company &imed in the Company's Amended Articles of
Incorporation), the Company shall redeem all ofghares of Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3,eSeki4, Series A-5 and Series A-6 then
outstanding at the Special Liquidation Price, died. If the event of sale involves consideratiher than cash, the Special Liquidation Price
may be paid with such consideration having a valpeal to the Special Liquidation Price. The Spelciglidation Price shall be equal to an
amount per share, which would be received by eamh Rreferred Stockholder if, in connection with #went of sale, all the consideration f
in exchange for the assets or the shares of capitek of the Company was actually paid to andiveceby the Company, and the Company
was immediately liquidated thereafter and its asdistributed pursuant to the liquidation termswebo

Registration Rights

In accordance with the Amended and Restatedkholders Agreement (the "Stockholders Agredthathe Company was required to
file a registration statement with the Securitied Exchange Commission (the "SEC") covering thésteggion of at least 85% of the
outstanding shares of the New Preferred Stock wighi days of the closing of the Merger. Pursuartiéaterms of the Stockholders Agreem
if the registration statement was not filed witbih days of the closing of the Merger or if the stgition statement was not been declared
effective by the SEC at the later of (i) 90 dayerafhe closing date of the Merger or (ii) in theiet the SEC reviews the registration statement
and has comments, 180 days after the closing dfiérger, the Company would have been required ydigaidated damages on a monthly
basis equal to 1% of the aggregate purchase paicey the holders of the New Preferred Stock. foit@ amount of liquidated damages was
limited to 16% of the aggregate purchase price pgithe holders of the New Preferred Stock. The gamy filed its registration statement and
was declared effective and therefore was not reduiv pay these damages.
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Common Stock
The Company has reserved the following nemud shares of common stock at December 31, 26d2@10:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2011 2010

Conversion of Series A Preferred St — 63
Conversion of Series B Preferred St — 1,60(
Conversion of Series C Preferred St — 10,147
Conversion of Series-1 Preferred Stoc 10,00( —
Conversion of Series-2 Preferred Stoc 9,832 —
Conversion of Series-3 Preferred Stoc 1,42: —
Conversion of Series-4 Preferred Stoc 40 —
Conversion of Series-5 Preferred Stoc 70 —
Conversion of Series-6 Preferred Stoc 8,00( —
Stock options and Warrar 19,12¢ 1,76¢
Total 48,49: 13,57t

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

All components of comprehensive incomes)ase required to be disclosed in the condenseaidial statements. Comprehensive income
(loss) is defined as the change in equity of aress enterprise during a period from transactiang,other events and circumstances from non-
owner sources and consists of net loss and chamgesealized gains and losses on available-fa-saturities. The components of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ("AOCI") @sdollows for the years ended December 31, 22010 and 2009:

Available-for- Accumulated
Sale Other
Securities Comprehensive
Adjustment Loss
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 15 $ 15
Unrealized (loss) gain from available-for-sale
securities (18) (18)
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 3) $ ?3)
Unrealized (loss) gain from available-for-sale
securities 8 8
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 5 % 5

14. Stock-based Compensation

The company recognizes compensation costinpioyee stock-based awards using the straightatiathod over the requisite service
period of the award, which is typically the vestipgriod, based on their fair values as of the datgant.
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The Company has the following stock-basstmensation plans as of December 31, 2011 undehvejuity awards have been granted to
employees, directors and consultants:

. 2003 Lon¢-Term Incentive Plan; ar

. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

The 2011 Equity Incentive Plan replaced26@3 Long-Term Incentive Plan when the board téaors approved the new plan on
November 7, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, an ggdgeeof approximately 4,671,000 shares have beto@zed for issuance under t
Company's stock-based compensation plans, wittoappately 3,950,000 options outstanding. The nuntbf@ommon shares available for
granting of future awards to employees and dirsatimider these plans was 250,000 at December 31, 201

2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company's 2003 Lofigrm Incentive Plan (the "Incentive Plan") providesthe granting of incentive stock options andauaealified
options to key employees, directors and consultaintise Company. The exercise price of the incensitock options, as determined by the
board of directors, must be at least 100% (110%ercase of incentive stock options granted t@ekstolder owning in excess of 10% of the
Company's common stock) of the common stock fdireras of the date of the grant. The provisionthefincentive Plan limit the exercise of
incentive stock options, but in no case may thease period extend beyond ten years from the dfaggant (five years in the case of incentive
stock options granted to a stockholder owning icess of 10% of the Company's common stock). Stptkms generally vest over a four-year
period. Certain options contain explicit performamonditions. The Company authorized approxima2éit 6,000 shares of common stock for
issuance under the Incentive Plan.

2011 Equity Incentive Plan

The Company's 2011 Equity Incentive Pl&we (Equity Plan™) provides for the granting of intige stock options and nonqualified
options to key employees, directors and consultaintise Company. The exercise price of the incensitock options, as determined by the
board of directors, must be at least 100% (110%ercase of incentive stock options granted t@ekstolder owning in excess of 10% of the
Company's common stock) of the common stock fdiresas of the date of the grant. The provisionthefincentive Plan limit the exercise of
incentive stock options, but in no case may thease period extend beyond ten years from the dfageant (five years in the case of incentive
stock options granted to a stockholder owning icess of 10% of the Company's common stock). Stptkms generally vest over a four-year
period. Certain options contain explicit performamonditions. The Company has authorized approxiyn&;655,000 shares of common stock
for issuance under the Equity Plan. In additior,ghares remaining available for issuance undenttentive Plan were assumed as shares
authorized under the Equity Plan.
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A summary of stock option activity for thiear ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:

Weighted-
Average Weighted-
Exercise Average
Price (in Contractual Aggregate
dollars per Life (In Intrinsic
(In thousands, except per share amounts) Shares share) Years) Value
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 1,462 $ 1.2C
Granted 2,831 3.6¢
Exercisec (220) 0.9:
Cancellec (123) 2.71
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 3,95 $ 2.94 858 § 3,74«
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 1,077 $ 1.31 50¢ $ 2,78¢
Options vested or expected to vest at Decembe
2011 3,84: $ 2.94 8.5t $§ 3,70¢

The weighted-average grant-date fair valueptions granted during 2011, 2010 and 2009 v2a87 $0.60 and $0.75, respectively. The
total grant-date fair value of stock options thasted during 2011 was approximately $384. The aggesntrinsic value of options exercised
(i.e., the difference between the market pricexat@se and the price paid by employees to exethiseption) during 2011 was approximately

$229.

During the years ended 2011, 2010 and 20@3Company's board of directors granted approein@17,000, 258,000 and 2,000 stock
options, respectively, to Board members of the CaomgpThe Company records stock-based compensatpmse for such options using the
straight-line method over the requisite servicéqueof the award, which is typically the vestingipd, based on their fair values as of the date
of grant. During the years ended December 31, 28010 and 2009, the Company recorded approxim&tdy, $34 and $25 of stock-based

compensation expense related to non-employee awasgectively.
Valuation and Expense Information

The following table summarizes stock-basaahpensation expense by financial statement line:

Years Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Research and developm: $ 11€ $ 37 $ 14z
General and administrati\ 18€ 97 (29
Share-based compensation exper
included in operating expens $ 304 $ 134 $ 12F

As of December 31, 2011, there was appratetg $5,060 of total unrecognized compensatiorergp related to unvested employee
share-based compensation arrangements, which étxpto be recognized over a weighted-averagegefiapproximately 4.0 years.
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The Company used the Black-Scholes optadnation model to estimate the grant date fair @alfiits employee stock options. The
weighted-average assumptions used in the Blacki€gloption valuation model and the resulting wedgkaverage estimated grant date fair
values of its employee stock options were as fdaléov the years ended December 31, 2011, 20102@0D@t

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Expected term (year: 6.2 6.2 6.2
Volatility 60% 58% 57-5%%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 1.35% 1.92% 2.6-2.7%

The expected term of the stock options tg@nepresents the period of time that optionstgrhare expected to be outstanding. For op
granted prior to January 1, 2008, the expected teammcalculated using the "simplified" method asspribed by the SEC's Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 Share-Based Paymenfor options granted after January 1, 2008, weutated the expected term using similar assumptions
The expected volatility is a measure of the amdynivhich our stock price is expected to fluctuateiry the term of the options granted. We
determine the expected volatility based on a reaéthe historical volatility of similar publiclydld companies in the biotechnology field over
a period commensurate with the options expected. tdfe have never declared or paid any cash divislencour common stock and we do not
expect to do so in the foreseeable future. Accglginve use an expected dividend yield of zero. fitlefree interest rate is the implied yield
available on U.S. Treasury issues with a remaififagonsistent with the option's expected ternttmndate of grant.

The Company has historically granted stogtions at exercise prices not less than the firevof its common stock as determined by its
board of directors, with input from management. Twmpany's board of directors has historically aeteed, with input from management,
the estimated fair value of the Company's commockson the date of grant based on a number of tgeand subjective factors, including:

. the prices at which the Company sold shares of enitle preferred stock;

. the superior rights and preferences of securigesos to the Company's common stock at the timeash grant;

. the likelihood of achieving a liquidity event sua$ a public offering or sale of the Compa

. the Company's historical operating and financiafggenance and the status of its research and ptathvelopment efforts; and
. achievement of enterprise milestones, includingrmémg into collaboration and license agreements.

The Company's board of directors also a®red valuations provided by management in deténgithe fair value of its common stock.
Such valuations were prepared as of December &, Z¥cember 2, 2009, October 1, 2010, June 30,,ZBddtember 30, 2011 and November
28, 2011 and valued common stock at $1.05, $1235$$2.96, $3.22 and $3.89 per share, respegtiVhk
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valuations have been used to estimate the faievaflicommon stock as of each option grant datediahd in calculating stock-based
compensation expense. The Company's board of disgkis consistently used the most recent valugtiovided by management for
determining the fair value of common stock unlespecific event occurs that necessitates an intesiomation.

The valuations were based on the guidame theValuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as Compensatitiat
was developed by staff of the American Institut€eftified Public Accountants and a task force cosimy representatives from the appraisal,
preparer, public accounting, venture capital, aratlamic communities. The option-pricing method selscted to value the Company's
common stock-based on the Company's stage of gawelat and the degree of uncertainty surroundindutiee success of clinical trials for
the Company's product candidates. For the valuatioepared as of December 3, 2008, December 2,&t0Dctober 1, 2010, the option-
pricing method treats common stock and preferrecksas call options on the enterprise's value, exidrcise prices based on the liquidation
preference of the preferred stock. Under this nattiee common stock has value only if the fundslalwke for distribution to stockholders
exceed the value of the liquidation preferenc&atime of a liquidity event (for example, mergésale), assuming the enterprise has funds
available to make a liquidation preference meanihafid collectible by the shareholders.

In the model, the exercise price is based oomparison with the enterprise value rather,tha in the case of a "regular” call option, a
comparison with a per-share stock price. Thus, comstock is considered to be a call option witte@nt on the enterprise at an exercise price
equal to the remaining value immediately afterghreferred stock is liquidated. The Company usedihek-Scholes model to price the call
option. Under the option-pricing method, the Comphad to consider the various terms of the stoakdrohgreements—including the level of
seniority among the securities, dividend policypwersion ratios, and cash allocations—upon liqudtetf the enterprise.

For the valuations prepared as of Jun€@01, September 30, 2011 and November 28, 201 T dhgpany utilized the probability-
weighted expected return method, or PWERM, asrmdlin the AICPA Technical Practice AMaluation of Privately-Held-Company Equity
Securities Issued as Compensatiam Practice Aid, which considers the value offpned and common stock based upon the probability-
weighted present value of expected future net lasls, considering each of the possible future éveams well as the rights and preferences of
each share class. PWERM is complex as it requiregenous assumptions relating to potential fututeames of equity, hence, the use of this
method can be applied: (i) when possible future@uies can be predicted with reasonable certainty{i§ when there is a complex capital
structure (i.e., several classes of preferred anghoon stock). The Company utilized the fair valfiemammon stock derived from the
September 30, 2011 valuation for purposes of theeNiber 7, 2011 option grants and the fair valueoofimon stock derived from the
November 28, 2011 valuation for purposes of thedbdwer 15, 2011 option grants. The Company concludegurposes of the November
2011 grants, that there were no significant chatgéise assumptions used in the PWERM model bet@egtember 30, 2011 and
November 7, 2011 that would impact the fair valiemmmon stock. The Company concluded, for purpo$éise December 15, 2011 grar
that there were no significant changes to the agans used in the PWERM model between Novembe2@8] and December 15, 2011 that
would impact the fair value of common stock. Then@any also used this methodology to estimate therditue of preferred
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stock, which was used in the preferred stock existgnent (Note 4), and to determine the fair vaiighares of series A-6 convertible
preferred stock due to Nordic (Note 16).

15. License Agreements

On September 27, 2005, the Company entiatea license agreement (the "Ipsen Agreemeng"graended, with SCRAS S.A.S, a Fre
corporation on behalf of itself and its affiliatgsllectively, "Ipsen"). Under the Ipsen Agreemédpgsen granted to the Company an exclusive
right and license under certain Ipsen compoundi@dgy and related patents to research, developufaeture and commercialize certain
compounds and related products in all countriesggixJapan and (subject to certain co-marketingcanaromotion rights retained by Ipsen)
France. With respect to France, if Ipsen exerdtsaso-marketing and co-promotion rights then Ipsey elect to receive a percentage of the
aggregate revenue from the sale of products by fertties in France (subject to a mid-double digittpntage cap) and Ipsen shall bear a
corresponding percentage of the costs and expéraesed by both parties with respect to such mimgeand promotion efforts in France;
Ipsen shall also pay Radius a mid-single digit lyyan Ipsen's allocable portion of aggregate rexeiiom the sale of products by both parties
in France. BA058 (the Company's bone growth drsigubject to the Ipsen Agreement. Ipsen also gilaheeCompany an exclusive right and
license under the Ipsen compound technology ardie@patents to make and have made compoundsduqbiia Japan. Ipsen also granted the
Company an exclusive right and license under cetfaien formulation technology and related patsalsly for purposes of enabling the
Company to develop, manufacture and commerciabrepounds and products covered by the compound déadnlicense in all countries,
except Japan and (subject to certain co-marketidgpao-promotion rights retained by Ipsen) Frameeonsideration for these licenses, the
Company made a nonrefundable, non-creditable patyai&250 to Ipsen, which was expensed during 2008. Ipsen Agreement provides for
further payments in the range of €10,000 to €36($02,973 to $46,702) to Ipsen upon the achievemiecrtain development and
commercialization milestones specified in the IpAgneement, and for the payment of fixed 5% rogalton net sales of any product by the
Company or our sublicensees on a country-by-courdsjs until the later of the last to expire of lisensed patents or for a period of 10 years
after the first commercial sale in such countrany product that includes the compound licenseuh fifgsen or any analog thereof.

If the Company sublicenses the rights lsazhfrom Ipsen, then the Company will also be meglio pay Ipsen a percentage of certain
payments received from such sublicensee (in liemitgfstone payments not achieved at the time dfi sublicense). The applicable percentage
is in the low double digit range. In addition, liet Company or its sublicensees commercialize augtdatiat includes a compound discovere(
it based on or derived from confidential Ipsen krwow, it will be obligated to pay to Ipsen a fixkeav single digit royalty on net sales of such
product on a country-bgeuntry basis until the later of the last to exiféts patents that cover such product or for @ogeof 10 years after tt
first commercial sale of such product in such courih connection with the Ipsen Agreement, the @any recorded approximately $1,007,
$1,227 and $1,117 in research and developments itotite years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 &0®] B&spectively. The costs were
incurred by Ipsen and charged to the Company ®ntanufacture of the clinical supply of the liceahsempound.
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On May 11, 2011, the Company entered irdeand amendment to the Ipsen Agreement pursmaritich Ipsen agreed to accept shares
of Series A-1 in lieu of cash as considerationafanilestone payment due to Ipsen following thdatiiin of the first BA0O58 Phase 3 study. The
number of shares of Series A-1 to be issued tmlpses determined based upon the U.S. dollar exeheatg for the euro two business days
prior to closing. On May 17, 2011, the Company ésk7,326 shares of Series A-1 to Ipsen to sétebligation. Accordingly, the Company
recorded research and development expense of $d#i the three-month period ended June 30, 214 expense represents the fair value
of the Series A-1 shares of $81.42 per share.

16. Research Agreements

The Company entered into a letter of inteithh Nordic (the "Letter of Intent") on Septemi®r2010, pursuant to which it funded
preparatory work by Nordic in respect of a Phasérical study of BAO58 Injection. The Letter oftent was extended on December 15, 2010
and on January 31, 2011. On March 29, 2011, thepgaasnand Nordic entered into a Clinical Trial Seed Agreement, a Work Statement NB-
1 (the "Work Statement") under such Clinical T&a&rvices Agreement and a related Stock Issuanceefrggnt. Pursuant to the Work
Statement, Nordic is managing the Phase 3 clisicaly (the "Clinical Study") of BA058 Injection atdbrdic will be compensated for such
services in a combination of cash and shares 6¢SAr6.

Pursuant to the Work Statement, the Comjmngquired to make certain per patient paymeeatothinated in both euros and U.S. dollars
for each patient enrolled in the Clinical Studyldeled by monthly payments for the duration of thedg and final payments in two equal euro-
denominated installments and two equal U.S. Dakweminated installments. Changes to the Clinibadysschedule may alter the timing, but
not the aggregate amounts, of the payments. Thé& \Btatement as amended on December 9, 2011, peofddapproximately €35,819
($46,468) of euro-denominated payments and apprtein$5,289 of U.S. Dolladenominated payments over the course of the CliSizaly.

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemenrtliblagreed to purchase the equivalent of €372eofes A-5 Preferred Stock at $8.142 per
share. 64,430 shares of Series A-5 were issuedtdidNon May 17, 2011, which generated proceed585b to the Former Operating
Company. These shares were exchanged in the Miemgan aggregate of 6,443 shares of Series A-5.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNloadlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dietidls, payable in shares of Series A-6, or
shares of common stock if the Company's prefert@ckshas been automatically converted in accordavitteits amended certificate of
incorporation, having an aggregate value of up3®,&15 ($47,760), or the Series A-5 Accruing DivideThis right to receive the Series A-5
Accruing Dividend is non-transferrable and will raimwith Nordic in the event it sells the shareSefies A-5 or in the event the shares of
Series A-5 are converted into common stock in ataoee with the Company's amended Certificate afriparation.

The Series A-5 Accruing Dividend is detared based upon the estimated period that will baired to complete the Clinical Study. On
the last Business Day of each calendar quarteh(@axc'Accrual Date"), beginning with the quarteded June 30, 2011, the Company has a
liability to issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordiattis referred to as the Applicable Quarterly Amtoand is equal to
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(A) €36,815 minus the aggregate value of any Brnies A5 Accruing Dividend accrued divided by (B) the nwenbf calendar quarters it w
take to complete the Clinical Study. To calculdite aggregate number of shares of Series A-6 dNetwic in each calendar quarter, the
Company converts the portion of €36,815 to acanugich calendar quarter into U.S. dollars usingstinple average of the exchange rate for
buying U.S. dollars with euros for all Mondays irck calendar quarter. The Company then calculbgeaggregate number of shares of
Series A-6 to accrue in such calendar quarter Wididig the U.S. dollar equivalent of the Applicalearterly Amount, by the greater of (i) the
fair market value as of the applicable Accrual Datd (i) $8.142 and rounding down the resultingtignt to the nearest whole number. Such
shares due to Nordic will be issued when declargzh@ by the Company's board of directors, whorageired to do so upon Nordic's request,
or upon an event of sale. As of December 31, 2067,518 shares of Series A-6 are due to Nordic.

Prior to the issuance of shares of Serigsté Nordic, the liability to issue shares of 8srA-6 will be accounted for as a liability in the
Company's Balance Sheet. As of December 31, 2B&Xatr value of the liability was $10,470 basedmphe fair value of the Series A-6 as
determined using PWERM (Note 7). Changes in thaeslom the date of accrual to the date of issuafitiee shares are recorded as a gain or
loss in other income (expense) in the Stateme@parations.

The Company recognizes research and dewelopexpense for the amounts due to Nordic undeWtbrk Statement ratably over the
estimated per patient treatment period beginniranwgnrollment in the Clinical Study, or a twentymtoperiod. The Company recorded
$10,955 of research and development expense iyetireended December 31, 2011 reflecting costsfieddor preparatory and other start-up
costs to initiate the Clinical Study in April 201The Company recorded an additional $5,121 of rekeand development expense in the year
ended December 31, 2011 for per patient coststieddor patients that had enrolled in the Clini8aldy as of December 31, 2011. As of
December 31, 2011, in addition to the $10,470 liiglthat is reflected in other liabilities on tiBalance Sheet that will be settled in shares of
Series A-6, as noted above, the Company has anrasséting from payments to Nordic of approximgi$b,166 that is included in prepaid
expenses on the Balance Sheet.

The Company is also responsible for cepaiss through costs in connection with the Clingtaldy. Pass through costs are expensed as
incurred or upon delivery. The Company recognizsitarch and development expense of $4,987 fortipassyh costs in the year ended
December 31, 2011.

17. Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2011 the Company hadrddnd state net operating loss (NOL) carryfodsarf approximately $129,268 and
$111,417, respectively, which may be used to ofigetre taxable income. The Company also had féadech state tax credits of $2,822 and
$235, respectively, to offset future tax liabil&ieThe NOL and tax credit carryforwards will expétevarious dates through 2031, and are
subject to review and possible adjustment by fdderd state tax authorities. The Internal RevenogeC:ontains provision that may limit the
NOL and tax credit carryforwards available to bedim any given year in the event of certain charigehe ownership interests of significi
stockholders under Section 382 of the Internal RegeCode.
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A reconciliation of income taxes computathg the U.S. federal statutory rate to that réélddn operations follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010

Income tax benefit using U.S. federal statutorg $ (14,509 $ (4,979
State income taxes, net of federal ber (1,859 411
Stock-based compensatic 49 34
Research and development tax cre (385) (320
Change in the valuation allowan 17,04 4,83¢
Permanent item 91 3
Other (433 8
$ — 3 —

The Company is subject to Massachusettaagh taxes, not based on income, which is largéflset by allowable tax credits and
recorded as a component of operating expenses.

The principal components of the Compangfeded tax assets are as follows:

December 31
2011 2010

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 49,83t $ 33,00¢

Capitalized research and developn 1,431 1,78¢

Research and development cre 2,971 2,59:

Depreciation and amortizatic 12¢ 12€

Other 331 14¢
Gross deferred tax assi 54,70¢ 37,66¢
Valuation allowanct (54,709 (37,669
Net deferred tax ass $ — $ =

The Company has recorded a valuation abmeagainst its deferred tax assets in each ofahes ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
because the Company's management believes thahdre likely than not that these assets will reotdalized. The increase in the valuation
allowance in 2011 primarily relates to the net logsirred by the Company.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company &tbpew accounting guidance related to accountingticertainty in income taxes. The
Company's reserves related to taxes are basedetemsmination of whether and how much of a tax bietaken by the Company in its tax
filings or positions is more likely than not to tealized following resolution of any potential cogiencies present related to the tax benefit. As
a result of the implementation of the new guidartice Company recognized no material adjustmentfioecognized income tax benefits. At
the adoption date on January 1, 2009, and throwggiember 31, 2011, the Company had no unrecograzdoenefits or related interest and
penalties accrued. The Company has not, as yeducted a study of research and development
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(R&D) credit carryforwards. In addition, the Compamas not, as yet, conducted an Internal Revenae Section 382 study, which could
impact its ability to utilize NOL and tax creditregforwards available to be used. These studies mesyit in adjustments to the Company's
R&D credit carryforwards and NOL carryfowards; hawe until a study is completed and any adjustnekhown, no amounts are being
presented as an uncertain tax position. A full @atn allowance has been provided against the Copp&&D credits and, if an adjustment is
required, this adjustment would be offset by austthient to the valuation allowance. Thus, therelvbe no impact to the balance sheet or
statement of operations if an adjustment were requirhe Company would recognize both accruedésteand penalties related to
unrecognized benefits in income tax expense. Thepgaoy has not recorded any interest or penaltiemgrunrecognized benefits since
inception.

The statute of limitations for assessmerthie Internal Revenue Service and Massachuseattutaorities is closed for tax years prior to
December 31, 2007, although carryforward attribthies were generated prior to tax year 2007 mélybstiadjusted upon examination by the
IRS or state tax authorities if they either haverber will be used in a future period. The Comp#fleg income tax returns in the United States
and Massachusetts. There are currently no fedesthte audits in progress.

Qualifying Therapeutic Discovery Project Grants

In October 2010, the Company received iwatifon from the Internal Revenue Service thatasvawarded three separate grants in the
aggregate amount of $733 pursuant to the qualifihegapeutic discovery grant program establishetheynternal Revenue Service and the
Secretary of Health and Human Services under thierR#@rotection and Affordable Care Act of 2010eTgrants were made with respect to
certain of the Company's qualifying research angigment programs. The Company received the fubunt related to these grants in 2010,
and this amount was recorded as other income istdtement of operations for the year ended Dece8he2010.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a—-15(b) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the 2884our management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officeur principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer, respectively, conducted an
evaluation as of the end of the period coverechisyAnnual Report on Form 10-K of the effectivenekthe design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on H#adw&tion, our Chief Executive Officer and Chieh&icial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effectitkeateasonable assurance level in ensuring tfa@tiation required to be disclosed by us in
the reports that it files or submits under the 1884is recorded, processed, summarized and repwitéin the time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We are not currently required to complyhaitection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and aneetbie not required to make an assessment
of the effectiveness of our internal control ovieahcial reporting. Further, our independent reged public accounting firm has not been
engaged to express, nor have they expressed, miopin the effectiveness of our internal contnarofinancial reporting. In connection with
our becoming a public company, we intend to hirgitiwhal accounting personnel with public compangd &EC reporting experience and to
focus on implementing appropriate internal conteoid other procedures.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE.

The following table sets forth the nameg agd position of each of our executive officerd dimectors as of January 31, 2012.

Name Age Position

Michael S. Wyzg: 56 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

C. Richard Lyttle, Ph.D 66 Chief Scientific Officer

B. Nicholas Harvey 51 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secrete

Louis Brenner, M.D. 42 Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Offi

Gary Hattersley, Ph.D 45 Senior Vice President, Preclinical Developm

Alan H. Auerbach(2)(3 42 Director

Jonathan J. Fleming(. 54 Director

Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D.(2)(z 53 Director

Kurt C. Graves(2)(3 44 Chairman of the Boar

Martin Miinchbach, Ph.D.(] 41 Director

Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.(1 61 Director

(1) Member of the audit committe
2 Member of the nominating and corporate governaoocentittee.

3) Member of the compensation committ

Michael S. Wyzgahas served as our President and Chief Executiviegd#ind as a member of our board of directorsesibecember
2011. Prior to joining us, Mr. Wyzga served in eais senior management positions at Genzyme Corpoyat global biotechnology company.
Mr. Wyzga joined Genzyme in February 1998 and mestntly served as Executive Vice President, Fiedraom May 2003 until November
2011 and as Chief Financial Officer from July 12@8il November 2011. He served as a director fau®\Pharmaceuticals Inc. from 2004 to
2009. Mr. Wyzga received an M.B.A. from Provide@@lege and a B.S. in business administration fRuffolk University. We believe
Mr. Wyzga is qualified to serve as a member oftmaard of directors because of his extensive oparatiknowledge of, and executive level
management experience in, the biopharmaceuticaktngand significant financial experience.

C. Richard Lyttle, Ph.D., has served as our Chief Scientific Officer sibeeember 2011 and as a member of our board oftdieeand
as our President and Chief Executive Officer froovéimber 2010 to December 2011. Dr. Lyttle serveth@a$resident and Chief Executive
Officer and as a member of the board of directbth® Former Operating Company from August 2004l tim¢ Merger. Dr. Lyttle is the form
Vice President of Discovery for Women's Health &uwthe, from 1998 to 2004, and of the Women's HeRéthearch Institute at Wyeth, from
1993 to 2004. Prior to joining Wyeth, Dr. Lyttle siResearch Professor of Obstetrics, GynecologyPé&agmacology at the University of
Pennsylvania from 1979 to 1993. He received a Pih.Biochemistry from Queen's University.

B. Nicholas Harveyhas served as our Senior Vice President, ChiefnEiahOfficer, Treasurer and Secretary since Nowen2010, and
served as a member of our board of directors frawelhber 2010 until the consummation of the Mergeviay 2011. Mr. Harvey served as
the Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presidef the Former Operating Company from Decemb@®62intil the Merger. Prior to joining
the Former Operating Company, Mr. Harvey servelllasaging Director of Shiprock Capital, LLC, a vergtwcapital firm, from 2003 to 2006.
Prior to Shiprock Capital,
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Mr. Harvey served as Chief Financial Officer oftamber of venture-backed companies over a 10-ygardyencluding LifetecNet from 2001
to 2002, Transfusion Technologies from 1999 to 2@0@ Transcend Therapeutics from 1993 to 1999 Hdrvey received a Bachelor of
Economics degree and a Bachelor of Laws degreefinsthclass honors from the Australian Nationaliwémsity and an M.B.A. from the
Harvard Business School.

Louis Brenner, M.D. , has served as our Senior Vice President and Gtedical Officer since November 2011. Prior to jamus, he
served as Senior Vice President at AMAG Pharmacalstia biotechnology company, from September 20@ecember 2010 where he was
responsible for the Phase 3 studies and the sdatesgulatory submission for Feraheme. Prior tat the served in progressively senior role
Genzyme Corporation from June 2002 to Septembe,200ere he advanced the development and comnigatiah of products to treat
metabolic bone disease by co-inventing the fornutafior Renvela, an oral phosphate binder to thgatrphosphatemia, and by leading the
acquisition of Bone Care International, manufaatefeHectorol, a synthetic vitamin D analog for tineatment of hyperparathyroidism. He
received a B.S. in Biology from Yale University, &hD. from Duke University and an M.B.A. from HamngbBusiness School.

Gary Hattersley, Ph.D., has served as our Senior Vice President of PiealiDevelopment since December 2011. He servedia¥ice
President of Biology from May 2011 to December 2ah#l served in the same capacity at the FormerafipgrCompany from April 2008
until the Merger. He also served as Senior DireofdResearch of the Former Operating Company frof62o 2008 and as Director of Dise
Biology & Pharmacology from 2003 to 2006. Priofjaming the Former Operating Company, Dr. Hatterstas a Senior Scientist at
Millennium Pharmaceuticals from 2000 to 2003 witsponsibility for the discovery and developmenmafel small-molecule agents for the
treatment of osteoporosis and other metabolic biiseases. Dr. Hattersley also held positions ae@Geninstitute/Wyeth Research from 1992
to 2000 investigating the application of the bor@mphogenetic proteins in bone and connective tisspair and regeneration. Dr. Hattersley
received a Ph.D. in Experimental Pathology fromG&torge's Hospital Medical School.

Alan H. Auerbach has served on our board of directors since May 20itilserved as a member of the board of direcfared-ormer
Operating Company from October 2010 until the Mertyr. Auerbach is currently the Founder, Chief Extéve Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Puma Biotechnology, laccpmpany dedicated to in-licensing and develogiugs for the treatment of cancer and
founded in 2010. Previously, Mr. Auerbach foundexi@ar Biotechnology in May 2003 and served as timepany's Chief Executive Officer,
President and as a member of its board of directatis July 2009 when Cougar was acquired by Johi&dohnson for approximately
$1 billion. From July 2009 until January 2010, Muerbach served as the Co-Chairman of the Integr&teering Committee at Cougar (as
part of Johnson & Johnson) that provided leaderahgpoversight for the development and global coroiakzation of Cougar's lead product
candidate, abiraterone acetate, for the treatnfeadvanced prostate cancer. Prior to founding Coudgam June 1998 to April 2003,

Mr. Auerbach was a Vice President, Senior Reseanatyst at Wells Fargo Securities, where he wagarsible for research coverage of
small-and middle-capitalization biotechnology comipea, with a focus on companies in the field ofaogy. Mr. Auerbach received a B.S. in
Biomedical Engineering from Boston University amdM.S. in Biomedical Engineering from the Univeysif Southern California. We belie
Mr. Auerbach is qualified to serve as a memberuwflmard of directors because of his business eofégsional experience, including his
leadership of Cougar Biotechnology in drug develepmprivate and public financings and a successfid of the business.

Jonathan J. Fleminghas served on our board of directors since May 20iilserved as a member of the board of direcfdred-ormer
Operating Company from March 2009 until the Merdér. Fleming is the Managing General Partner of@afBioscience Partners, an
international venture capital firm specializinglifie science technology-based investments, whicjoimed in August 1996 as
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a General Partner. Prior to joining Oxford BiosciefPartners, Mr. Fleming was a Founding GenerahBaof MVP Ventures from 1988 to
1996. Mr. Fleming is also a co-founder of MedicanW(ge Partners, a venture capital investment fipecilizing in early-stage healthcare and
biotechnology companies in Israel. Mr. Fleming eutly serves on the board of directors of Avaxial@jics, Inc., Cytologix Corporation,
Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, IMCOR Pharmaceuticals, Lraboratory Partners, Inc., Molecular Biometries,. and Railrunner Systems NA Inc.
Mr. Fleming also currently serves on the board ahagers of Leerink Swann Holdings LLC and on thertd@f trustees of Leerink Swann
Massachusetts Business Trust. He previously semmdte board of directors of Memory PharmaceutiCalgp. from 2006 to 2008. He recei\
an M.P.A. from Princeton University and a B.A. frahe University of California, Berkeley. We belieMr. Fleming is qualified to serve as a
member of our board of directors because of hifnegs and professional experience, and bringsrtbaard of directors strategic insight and
experience with his long career in venture caitel investing in life sciences technology-baseddifor over 20 years.

Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D. has served on our board of directors since May 20ilserved as a member of the board of direcfdreo
Former Operating Company from November 2003 unéiNerger. Dr. Gadicke has been the Co-FoundeMarthging Director of MPM
Capital, a venture capital firm, since August 1996.Gadicke received an M.D. from J.W. Goethe @mity in Frankfurt. Dr. Gadicke is a
director of Dragonfly Sciences, Inc., Solasia PreaKrK. and Verastem, Inc. He served on the boadirettors of Pharmasset, Inc. from 1999
to 2007 and PharmAthene, Inc. from 2004 to 2007 béaleeve Dr. Gadicke is qualified to serve as a ienof our board of directors because
of his business and professional experience.

Kurt C. Graves has served on our board of directors since May 28itfce October 2009, Mr. Graves has been an imdiepe
consultant. He has been serving as Executive ChaiwhIntarcia Therapeutics, a biotechnology compaimce August 2010 and as Executive
Chairman of Biolex Therapeutics, a biotechnologgpany, since November 2010. Previously, he sergdekacutive Vice President, Chief
Commercial Officer and Head of Strategic Developtatrv/ertex Pharmaceuticals Inc. from July 200Dttober 2009, where he led the
development of the company's HCV and CF prograssal as the acquisition of Virochem Pharmaceidid@rior to joining Vertex,

Mr. Graves held various leadership positions ataMts Pharmaceuticals from 1999 to June 2007, dictuserving as a member of the
Executive Committee and the Global Head of the G#rMedicines Business. He was also the first Chiafketing Officer for the
Pharmaceuticals division from September 2003 t@ A007. He currently serves as a director of AlevRharmaceuticals, Biolex
Therapeutics, Intarcia Therapeutics, Pulmatrix &peutics and Springleaf Therapeutics. Mr. Gravesived a B.S. in Biology from Hillsdale
College. We believe Mr. Graves is qualified to seag a member of our board of directors becaubes @fxtensive business and professional
experience.

Martin Minchbach, Ph.D. has served on our board of directors since May 2DtIMiinchbach has managed BB Biotech Ventures II,
venture capital fund, since he launched it in 2@4 .Munchbach received a Ph.D. in Protein ChemistiM.Sc. in Biochemistry and a Master
in Industrial Engineering and Management from tinésS Federal Institute of Technology (ETH). Dr. Mtibach currently serves on the board
of directors of Atlas Genetics LTD, BioVascular InBonetik AG and Tioga Pharmaceuticals Inc, angdmeed as a director of Optimer
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from 2005 to 2008. We bel@reMiinchbach is qualified to serve on our bodrdirectors because of his extensive
business and professional experience.

Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.has served on our board of directors since May 2Dt1Stoner has been a Managing Director at MPMit@h
since October 2007. Dr. Stoner is the Chief Devalept Officer of Rhythm Pharmaceuticals, a biotedbgy company. Prior to joining MPM
Capital, Dr. Stoner served in various roles, mesently as Senior Vice President of Global Clinidavelopment Operations at Merck
Research Laboratories, since 1985. Dr. Stoner milyrserves as a director of
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Momenta Pharmaceuticals Inc., and she served msciat of Metabasis Therapeutics, Inc. from 2002@10. Dr. Stoner received an M.D.
from Albert Einstein College of Medicine, an M.8.Chemistry from the State University of New YotkStony Brook and a B.S. in Chemistry
from Ottawa University, Kansas. We believe Dr. ®fois qualified to serve on our board of directeesause of her knowledge and expertise in
the development of pharmaceutical products.

Terms of Office; Voting Arrangements as to Directos

Our board of directors currently considtseven members, all of whom were elected as diregiursuant to the board composition
provisions of our stockholders' agreement amongnaisour stockholders. Our directors and officerehHzeen appointed for a one-year term or
until their respective successors are duly eleatetiqualified or until their earlier resignationremoval in accordance with our By-Laws.

Pursuant to a stockholders' agreement endestificate of incorporation:

(i) for solong as any shares of sefiespreferred stock are outstanding, the holders wfajority of the shares of series A-1 preferred
stock outstanding, voting as a separate clasd, s the right to elect two (2) members of thardoof directors;

(i) Oxford Bioscience Partners IV L.Bodether with Saints Capital VI, L.P. and theinrestive affiliates and certain transferees),
HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. (together with itfil&ftes and certain transferees) and The Wellcdmust Limited as trustee of The Wellcome
Trust (together with its affiliates and certainnséerees) (collectively, the G3 Holders and indistlly, each a Group) voting as a separate class
shall have the right to elect one (1) member oftbard of directors of the Corporation by majoritte of the shares of series A-1 preferred
stock held by them; provided, however, that in otdebe eligible to vote or consent with respedhi® election of such member of the board of
directors, a G3 Holder together with members ohdB8 Holders' Group must hold greater than tweetg@nt (20%) of the shares of series A-
1 preferred stock purchased under the series Aefeped stock Purchase Agreement by such G3 Halagthe members of such G3 Holders'
Group; and

(i) MPM Capital L.P., voting as a sep@ralass, shall have the right to elect one (1) beamof the board of directors of the Corporation
by majority vote of the shares of serieslAreferred stock held by MPM Capital L.P.; prowdbat such member of the board of directors ¢
be an individual with particular expertise in thevdlopment of pharmaceutical products; and, praliflether, that in order to be eligible to
vote or consent with respect to the election ohsmember of the board of directors, MPM Capital.ltdgether with members of the MPM
Group (as defined in the Stockholders' Agreemenigtrhold greater than 20% of the shares of serigégpreferred stock purchased under the
series A-1 preferred stock Purchase Agreement byiMRpital L.P. and the members of the MPM Group.

The balance of the board is elected byfathe stockholders acting as a single class atidyon an as-converted basis.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of business comghacethics that applies to all of our employeeicefs and directors, including those officers
responsible for financial reporting. The code ofibess conduct and ethics is available on our webswww.radiuspharm.com. Any
amendments to the code, or any waivers of its rements, will be disclosed on our website. Infolioratontained on or accessible through
website is not incorporated by reference into thort, and you should not consider informationtaomed on or accessible through our website
to be part of this report.
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Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has establishedualit @ommittee, a compensation committee and a matinig and corporate governance
committee, each of which operates under a chdrédhias been approved by our board. Our boardeétdirs has determined that each of the
members of the audit committee, the compensatiomtittee and the nominating and corporate governaooenittee are independent as
defined under the applicable rules and regulatidriee SEC, including, in the case of each of tleeniers of our audit committee, the
independence requirements contemplated by Rule3L0Ader the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdets or the Exchange Act.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee oversees our corpaeat®unting and financial reporting process. Amotigomatters, the audit committee:

. appoints the independent registered public accogtiitim;

. evaluates the independent registered public acowufitm's qualifications, independence and perfance;

. determines the engagement of the independent eegfispublic accounting firm;

. reviews and approves the scope of the annual andithe audit fee

. discusses with management and the independentaegigublic accounting firm the results of thewadraudit and the revie

of our quarterly consolidated financial statements;

. approves the retention of the independent regidteublic accounting firm to perform any proposedhissible non-audit
services;

. monitors the rotation of partners of the indepemdegistered public accounting firm on our engageinbeam as required by la

. reviews our consolidated financial statements amchwanagement's discussion and analysis of finkosraition and results ¢

operations to be included in our annual and qusrteports to be filed with the SEC;
. reviews our critical accounting policies and estigsaand

. annually reviews the audit committee charter ardcthmmittee’s performanc

The current members of the audit committeeJonathan J. Fleming, Martin Miinchbach and BéitaStoner. Mr. Fleming serves as the
chairman of the committee. All members of our agdinmittee meet the requirements for financiatdity under the applicable rules and
regulations of the SEC. Our board of directorsdetermined that Mr. Fleming is an "audit committieancial expert" as defined under the
applicable rules of the SEC.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee reviews andmegends policies relating to compensation and benefiour officers and employees. The
compensation committee:

. reviews and approves corporate goals and objeatdlegant to compensation of our Chief Executivd@f and other executiv
officers;

. evaluates the performance of these officers irt lijlthose goals and objectives;

. sets the compensation of these officers based @nestaluations;

. approves grants of stock options and other awanderour stock plans; at
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. will review and evaluate, at least annually, thefguenance of the compensation committee and its begs) including
compliance of the compensation committee with higrter.

The members of the compensation committeékan H. Auerbach, Ansbert K. Gadicke and Kur@BZaves. Mr. Gadicke serves as the
chairman of the committee.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
The nominating and corporate governancencittee is responsible for:

. making recommendations to our board of directogsurging candidates for directorships and the siecamposition of ou
board of directors;

. overseeing our corporate governance policies; and

. reporting and making recommendations to our bo&directors concerning governance matters.

The members of the nominating and corpagateernance committee are Alan H. Auerbach, Andbe@adicke and Kurt C. Graves.
Mr. Graves serves as the chairman of the committee.

Stockholder Communication with the Board of Directas

Stockholders may send communications tdboard of directors by writing to us, c/o Radiusahie, Inc., 201 Broadway, 6th FlI.,
Cambridge, MA 02116, Attention: Board of Directors.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The following table summarizes all compeiosaearned by our President and Chief Executiviec@f and other named executive officers
during 2011 and 2010.

Non-Equity
Option Incentive Plan All Other
Salary Awards Compensation  Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year $) 3@ ($)(8) ($)(9) ($)

Michael S. Wyzga 2011  38,141(5) 3,351,77: 0 0 3,389,91:
President and Chie 201C 0 0 0 0 0
Executive Officer(1

C. Richard Lyttle 2011 389,98( 504,02¢ 155,99 1,71t 1,051,711
Chief Scientific 201C 378,62: 0 189,31: 1,71¢ 569,64
Officer(2)

B. Nicholas Harvey 2011 288,93¢ 157,50¢ 82,34, 1,30¢ 530,09¢
Treasurer and Chief  201C 278,49: 0 105,82 1,30¢ 385,62
Financial Officer

Louis Brenner 2011 47,50((6) 957,40: 14,14: 20 1,019,06!
Chief Medical Officer 201( 0 0 0 0 0
3)

Louis O'Dea 2011 347,12¢ 176,40¢ 0 46,21( 569,74
Former Sr. Vice 201C 319,36 0 130,93¢ 1,032 451,33¢

President and
Chief Medical Officer

(4)

(1)  Mr. Wyzga became our President and Chief Exec@ifieer on December 5, 201

(2 Dr. Lyttle served as our President and Chief Exeeudfficer until December 5, 2011.

3 Dr. Brenner joined our company on November 9, 28dd became Chief Medical Officer on December 11201

4) Dr. O'Dea resigned as our employee on Novembe2d4].

(5) The amount shown represents actual salary earri@&@flih based upon an annual base salary of $500,000.

(6) The amount shown represents actual salary earri@&@flih based upon an annual base salary of $330,000.

(7) Represents the aggregate grant date fair valugarfds of stock options granted during the year ageipin accordance
with FASB ASC 718. For additional information, inding information regarding the assumptions usednwraluing the
awards, refer to Note 2 to our financial stateméntkided elsewhere in this report.

(8) Represents bonus amounts earned under our anni@hpence-based cash bonus program.

(9) Except for Dr. O'Dea in 2011, all amounts are laditidble to life insurance premiums paid by us. Z0&1 amount for
Dr. O'Dea represents $1,452 attributable to lilzimance premiums paid by us and $41,118 in severaanents and

$3,640 for medical and dental insurance premiumieirsements made in connection with his resignataur
employee

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Prior to the Merger in May 2011, we paidaomnpensation to our named executive officers amdhad no contracts, agreements, plans or
arrangements, whether written or unwritten, thavjuted for payments to any nhamed executive offiddmwvever, to provide meaningful
disclosure, we have included in the table abovepesreation that was paid to our named executivearffiby the Former
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Operating Company prior to the Merger as well aspensation that we paid to named executive offifmtawing the Merger.

We do not currently, and the Former Opaga€ompany did not prior to the Merger, have amynfa policy for determining the
compensation of executive officers. Base salabesdir named executive officers have been estadisitrough arm's length negotiation at the
time an executive was hired, whether by us or byRbrmer Operating Company. The Former Operatingg2my's board of directors annually
reviewed and evaluated, with input from the Presided Chief Executive Officer, the need for adjustt of the base salaries of named
executive officers based on changes and expectathel in the scope of an executive's responsgsilitncluding promotions, the individual
contributions made by and performance of the exexwaluring the prior fiscal year, the executiveesfprmance over a period of years, overall
labor market conditions, the relative ease orditty of replacing the executive with a well-quidd person, the Former Operating Company's
overall growth and development as a company andrgéralary trends in the Former Operating Comggangustry.

Each named executive officer is eligiblegoeive an annual performance-based cash bonas,amount up to a fixed percentage of his
base salary. Prior to the Merger, at the beginnirngach year the Former Operating Company's boardldped, with input from the President
and Chief Executive Officer, a list of goals foethear that would be used as a guideline to asisesmnual performance of the named
executive officers. As soon as practical aftentbar was completed, the board reviewed actual paeince against the stated goals and
determined subjectively what it believed to bedperopriate level of cash bonus, if any. Followihg Merger, our compensation committee
continued this practice for calendar year 2011.

Dr. O'Dea resigned as our employee on Ndezrh4, 2011. Under the terms of a separation aggatebetween us and Dr. O'Dea, we
agreed to pay Dr. O'Dea an aggregate severancenamiodil64,472, paid in accordance with our norpagjroll procedures over the six-month
period commencing on the next regularly schedubadqil date after the effective date of the agresimé/e also agreed to reimburse
Dr. O'Dea for the portion of any COBRA premiums gihhe incurs that we would have paid had he rerdagngployed by us during such six-
month period. In addition, the severance agreem@vides that Dr. O'Dea forfeited any stock optithret were unvested as of November 14,
2011 and may exercise the portion of his stockomgtithat was vested as of November 14, 2011 uelitdary 14, 2012, subject to the terms
and conditions of the applicable stock incentivengland Dr. O'Dea's continued compliance witheéhms of his separation agreement and a
confidentiality and non-competition agreement betvas and Dr. O'Dea, pursuant to which Dr. O'Deaaugeed not to compete with the
business of the Company or solicit for hire our Eayppes for a period of one year following his temation.

Each of the named executive officers, othan Dr. O'Dea, are at-will employees eligible digcretionary bonus and equity incentive
awards with certain severance rights discussetidutielow. The following named executive officeesé the following target bonus
percentages:

. Mr. Wyzga—50%
. Dr. Lyttle—40%
. Mr. Harvey—30%

. Mr. Brenne—30%

For 2011, each named executive officereothan Mr. Wyzga, had the opportunity to achieb®aus equal to the named executive
officer's respective target bonus by achievemeimdi¥idual performance goals, with the compensatommittee reserving the right to award
amounts in excess of target bonus on a discretidrasis. Mr. Wyzga was not eligible for a bonu@11. The individual goals for 2011 were
of different weighted importance and included coatiph of certain financing and
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public offering objectives, completion of organipaial objectives and the implementation and sudaksgecution of various elements related
to the preclinical studies and clinical trials farr products, including the Phase 3 study for o®583 Injection product. In December 2011,
compensation committee considered performance sighiese goals and determined to award the nanesiitaxe officers bonus payments in
the amounts set forth in the Non-Equity Incentil@nFCompensation column of the summary compensédiae above. Dr. O'Dea did not
qualify to receive a bonus in 2011.

Employment, Severance and Change in Control Arrangaents

On December 1, 2011, we entered into arlemployment agreement with Mr. Wyzga, pursuanmthich Mr. Wyzga agreed to serve as
our Chief Executive Officer effective December 612. The letter agreement provides for an initaddsalary of $500,000 and the opportu
to earn an annual cash incentive award based dorpemce with a target value equal to 50% of Mr.288/s annual base salary beginning in
2012. In addition, Mr. Wyzga is eligible to rece®ne-time special bonus ranging from 25% to 56%ioannual base salary based upon the
attainment of certain milestones relating to ourstonmation of a successful financing transaction.

In the event Mr. Wyzga's employment is teated by us without cause or due to Mr. Wyzgasggretion for good reason, then subject to
his executing a general release of claims, Mr. Vey&dl be entitled to receive:

. base salary continuation payments for 12 months;
. payment of, or reimbursement for, continued medieaé premiums for 12 months; a
. the annual bonus that he would have earned ifin@ireed employed through the end of the year in whis termination occurs,

based upon actual performance as determined dyotiel.

If Mr. Wyzga's employment is terminatedheitit cause or due to Mr. Wyzga's resignation fadgeason within 12 months following a
change in control of us, then subject to his exagud general release of claims, Mr. Wyzga willdmgitled to receive the severance benefits
described in the first two bullet points abovesurth case, Mr. Wyzga will also be entitled to reeei

. payment of his target annual bonus for the yeavrtiith termination occurs; ar

. accelerated vesting of all outstanding equity awz

On November 30, 2011, we entered into @sitepn agreement with Dr. Lyttle pursuant to whigh Lyttle resigned as our President and
Chief Executive Officer and as a member of our badrdirectors, effective as of December 5, 20t} agreed to serve as our Chief Scientific
Officer through June 1, 2012, unless the agreemseagdrlier terminated. The transition agreemenvigies that Dr. Lyttle will continue to
receive his base annualized salary at the ratffdnteas of immediately prior to the effective dafehe agreement and will be eligible to earn
for 2012 a discretionary cash performance bonuguodr bonus plan or program applicable to seniecetives based on a target bonus
amount equal to 40% of Dr. Lyttle's annualized kseary, but with the actual amount of any suchusdoeing determined on the basis of the
attainment of Company performance metrics andfdividual performance objectives, in each case stabéished and approved by our boar
directors in its sole discretion.

We or Dr. Lyttle can terminate the trarmgitagreement at any time and for any reason afeeciMl1, 2012. In the event Dr. Lyttle's
employment is terminated due to his death pridvigmch 1,
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2012 or for any reason other than for cause aftarchl1, 2012 (including automatic termination onela, 2012), Dr. Lyttle will be entitled to
receive:

. his 2012 bonus, prorated based on the number afidaye calendar year through the date of ternunaif his employment; ar

. any vested and outstanding options to purchasesloéour common stock held by Dr. Lyttle on suakedwill remain
exercisable until the later to occur of:

. the first anniversary of the date of terminatiorhisf employment; or

. the date that is 30 days after the date on whicttommon stock first becomes listed on a natiotaadksexchange,
subject in each case to Dr. Lyttle's execution mflaease of claims.

On November 9, 2011, we entered into @detinployment agreement with Dr. Brenner pursuantttich Dr. Brenner commenced
employment on that date and agreed to serve aStuaf Medical Officer effective December 1, 201heTletter agreement provides for an
initial base salary of $330,000 and the opportutdtgarn an annual cash incentive award basedrorpence with a target value equal to @
of Dr. Brenner's annual base salary, prorateddgrpartial year of employment.

In the event Dr. Brenner's employment imteated by us without cause or due to Dr. Bresmesignation for good reason, then subje
his executing a general release of claims, Dr. Beewill be entitled to receive:

. base salary continuation payments for nine mot
. payment of, or reimbursement for, continued mediea¢ premiums for six montt
. a prorated portion of his annual bonus for the yeavhich his termination occurs, if the board detmes to award him a bonus

for the year; and

. if the termination occurs within the first twelveonths of his employment, accelerated vesting obhtstanding equity awart
that would have vested based solely upon the pasgagne during the six-month period following bésmination.

If Dr. Brenner's employment is terminateithaut cause or due to Dr. Brenner's resignatiomgfmd reason within 12 months following a
change in control of us, then subject to his exagu general release of claims, Dr. Brenner vélieintitled to receive the severance benefits
described in the first two bullet points abovesirth case, Dr. Brenner will also be entitled tehes:

. payment of a prorated portion of his target antaaius for the year in which termination occurs; and

. accelerated vesting of all outstanding equity award

Mr. Harvey's agreement provides that ifdrigployment is terminated without cause or he reswith good reason, he will receive six
months' salary in severance payments, payablecoréance with the payroll practice then in effectg the continuation of health insurance at
no cost to him for six months and all options whiabuld have vested in the six months following stermination shall become immediately
exercisable. If we are acquired, 50% of his thevested options will become immediately vested aratasable.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table sets forth informaticegarding the outstanding equity awards held bynauned executive officers as of
December 31, 2011. Prior to the Merger, we didgnaht equity awards to our named executive offidersonnection with the Merger, we
assumed all the options granted to our named exeaufficers by the Former Operating Company.

Number of
Securities Underlying

Unexercised Options Option Option

Exercise Expiration

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date

Michael S. Wyzg: 0 1,530,00(1)$ 3.8 12/14/21
C. Richard Lyttle 108,33: 0 $ 15C 10/28/1¢
91,84t 0 $ 09 7/12/17

202,67: 0 $ 12¢ 5/8/18

86,37¢ 0 $ 1.2¢ 12/3/18

17,37z 260,57(2)$ 3.22 11/6/21

B. Nicholas Harve 53,38¢ 0 $ 0.9C 7/12/17
63,33t 0 $ 1.2¢ 5/8/18

20,24 6,74¢3)$ 1.2C 12/3/18

5,42¢ 81,42¢2)$ 3.22 11/6/21
Louis Brennel 0 351,40((4)$ 3.8¢ 12/14/21
0 62,70((5)$ 3.8¢ 12/14/21
0 37,60((6)$ 3.8¢ 12/14/21

Louis O'Dee 22,64 0 $ 1.5C 2/14/12
41,54 0 $ 0.9 2/14/12

70,93t 0 $ 1.2¢ 2/14/12

22,67°¢ 0 $ 1.2¢ 2/14/12

6,081 0 $ 32z 2/14/12

Q) These stock options vest as to 25% of the undeylgirares on December 5, 2012 and as to 6.25% bfstizzes on th
first day of each calendar quarter thereafter.

(2)  These stock options vest in fifteen substantiadjya installments on the first day of each calemplearter beginning on
January 1, 2012.

3) These stock options vest in four equal installmentshe first day of each calendar quarter endiogpker 1, 2012.

(4)  These stock options vest as to 25% of the undeylgivares on November 9, 2012 and as to 6.25% bfshares the first
day of each calendar quarter thereafter.

(5) These stock options vest, if at all, upon the dadt the board of directors resolves that an NDiofor BAO58 Injection
product has been submitted to the FDA on or pda $pecified date.

(6) These stock options vest, if at all, upon the dtlad¢ the board of directors determines that ceganoliment targets are
achieved on or prior to a specified date with respethe Phase 3 study of our BA058 Injection jigic
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Director Compensation

The following table summarizes the compg&asdor director services earned by our remployee directors during 2011. No director \
is also an employee receives additional compemnsé&tioproviding director services. Historically,itieer we nor the Former Operating
Company has had any formal policy governing thepemsation of directors, instead negotiating comaims for individual directors at the
time they commence providing services. Mr. Gravesr. Auerbach each receive an annual cash retafr§r,500 and $1,500 per board or
committee meeting attended. None of our other threaeceive cash compensation for providing dimeservices to us.

We have adopted a non-employee directopemsation policy that will become effective upoa tisting of our common stock on a
national securities exchange. The policy providesibn-employee directors to receive an annual gatsimer of $25,000 plus one or more
additional annual cash retainers ranging from $5100510,000 for service on a board committee, elfag grants of options to purchase
30,000 shares of our common stock upon their coreingrservice with us (vesting over a four-year payiand 10,000 shares of our common
stock annually thereafter (vesting within one yelgrant).

During 2011, we did not grant equity-basegrds as compensation to any of our non-emploieetdrs other than Dr. Stoner and
Mr. Graves, each of whom received an option tolpase shares of our common stock in November 20idcimgnition of commencing service
on our board of directors. Dr. Stoner received jgtioo to purchase up to 60,000 shares, and Mr. &rasceived an option to purchase up to
256,666 shares. These options vest in twelve égsialiments, with the first installment vesting tie grant date and the remaining
installments vesting on the first day of each cdéerguarter through July 1, 2014. The exerciseepidhese options is $3.22 per share, the fair
value of our common stock on the date of grantetsrchined by our board of directors.

Fees Earned o1 Option

Paid in Cash Awards Total
Name and Principal Position ($) ($)(1) $)
Alan H. Auerbach(2 9,00( 0 9,00(
Jonathan J. Fleming(. 0 0 0
Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D.(4 0 0 0
Kurt C. Graves(5 12,50C 457,50 470,00
Martin Munchbach, Ph.D.(¢ 0 0 0
Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.(i 0 106,94¢ 106,94¢

Q) Represents the aggregate grant date fair valugarfds of stock options granted during the year agegpin accordance with FAS
ASC 718. For additional information, including infieation regarding the assumptions used when vathi@gwards, refer to Note 2 to
our financial statements included elsewhere inrgiort.

(2)  As of December 31, 2011, Mr. Auerbach held no seekrds and 256,666 options to purchase sharasr @bonmon stock

(3)  As of December 31, 2011, Mr. Fleming did not hahy atock awards or option awards.

(4)  As of December 31, 2011, Dr. Gadicke did not haig stock awards or option awards.

(5)  As of December 31, 2011, Mr. Graves held no steekrds and 256,666 options to purchase shares afasomon stock

(6) As of December 31, 2011, Dr. Munchbach did not fasig stock awards or option awards.

(7)  As of December 31, 2011, Dr. Stoner held no stegkrds and 60,000 options to purchase shares afanmon stock.
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2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan

In the Merger, we assumed the Former Opgr&ompany's 2003 Long Term Incentive Plan, orab@3 Plan, and all options to acquire
common stock of the Former Operating Company issiuetunder. The 2003 Plan is intended to assiahdsur affiliates in attracting and
retaining employees and consultants of outstanalilgy and to promote the identification of theiterests with those of our stockholders and
our affiliates. Only incentive stock options, od§ and norstatutory stock options have been granted unde2@f8 Plan. As of December :
2011, we had 1,256,078 options issued and unegercisder the 2003 Plan, 1,017,519 of which weréedes$n connection with the adoption
and approval of the 2011 Equity Incentive Plandegermined not to make any further awards unde2@®3 Plan after November 7, 2011,
which we refer to as the "suspension” of the 20@8.Mo new awards may be granted under the 2088 But awards outstanding at the time
of suspension remain outstanding in accordancetivitin terms. If an option or right expires or témates for any reason (other than
termination by virtue of the exercise of a relatg@dtion or related right, as the case may be) withawing been fully exercised, if shares of
restricted stock are forfeited, or if shares cogtdrg an incentive share award or performance aamgaot issued or are forfeited, the unissued
or forfeited shares that had been subject to trerélvecome available for the grant of additionadels under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

Administration. The compensation committee of the board ofcttirs administers the 2003 Plan. In the eventttiexe is no
compensation committee, the board of directors aeirs the plan. The committee or the board méggage authority to administer the 2003
Plan to any other committee.

Incentive Stock Options.ISOs are intended to qualify as ISOs underi@ed??2 of the Internal Revenue Code and are gigmtesuant
to incentive stock option agreements. The plan athtnator determines the exercise price for an MRQch may not be less than 100% of the
fair market value of the stock underlying the optaetermined on the date of grant. Notwithstandirgforegoing, incentive options granted to
employees who own, or are deemed to own, more1B& of our voting stock, must have an exerciseepniat less than 110% of the fair
market value of the stock underlying the optiored@ined on the date of grant.

Nonstatutory Stock Options.Nonstatutory stock options are granted purst@nbnstatutory stock option agreements. The plan
administrator determines the exercise price foorestatutory stock option.

Vesting. Options granted under the plan generally vedsi quarterly installments, each quarterly instalt being equal in number of
shares as possible (as determined by us in ourmabk discretion), with the first quarterly inttaént vesting one quarter after the date of the
grant, and an additional quarterly installment vggsbn the first day of each calendar quarter thiéee, until all of the shares subject to the
option are fully vested and the option may be egettas to 100% of the shares issuable upon egdtwseof.

Changes to Capital Structure.In the event of certain types of changes incaynital structure, such as a share split, the murabshares
and exercise price or strike price, if applicableall outstanding awards will be appropriatelywsigd.

Dividends. Any award under the 2003 Plan may confer uperrécipient the right to receive dividend paymemtdividend equivalent
payments with respect to the shares subject tawlsed. Such dividend payments may be paid curremtbredited to an account in favor of the
recipient. Such dividends may be settled in casdhares, as determined by the plan administrator.
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2011 Equity Incentive Plan

We adopted a new equity incentive plantiedtithe 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, or the 201danPbn November 7, 2011, which our board
of directors voted to amend on December 15, 2081lJanuary 31, 2012, and which has been approvedibstockholders. The 2011 Plan was
adopted for the benefit of employees, consultamdiscur non-employee directors and our affiliates.

The 2011 Plan provides for the grant of$3@employees, and for the grant of nonqualiftedlsoptions to purchase shares of common
stock, restricted stock, restricted stock unitsclstappreciation rights, stock grants, performamtiés and performance awards to employees,
consultants and non-employee directors, for thegaes of encouraging their ownership of commonrksaémd providing additional incentives
to promote the success of our business througfrtrg of awards of or pertaining to the commonlstt8Os are intended to be "incentive
stock options,"” as that term is defined in Sectig@ of the Code.

The Employee Retirement Income Security &974 does not govern the 2011 Plan. In additiom 2011 Plan does not qualify under
Section 401(a) of the Code.

Securities Subject to the 2011 Plan

Under the terms of the 2011 Plan, the agageenumber of shares of common stock that maybjest to options and other awards is e
to the sum of (1) 2,655,064 shares of common saock(2) any shares underlying awards outstandidgrutime 2003 Plan as of November 7,
2011 that, on or after that date, are forfeitethpse without the issuance of shares. The maximumber of shares of common stock that may
be issued under the 2011 Plan, including 1SOs,2582953. The shares of common stock covered bgQhé& Plan are authorized but unissued
shares, treasury shares or common stock purchastnd @pen market. These figures do not includéntmease of 750,000 shares of common
stock that our board of directors approved on JanBia, 2012.

To the extent that an award terminatesiregr lapses for any reason or is settled in,casy shares subject to the award (to the exte
such termination, expiration, lapse or cash setttglmmay be used again for new grants under thé Pdn. Shares tendered or withheld to
satisfy the grant or exercise price or tax withlrggdobligation pursuant to any award or the exerpisce of an option may be used again for
new grants under the 2011 Plan.

The maximum number of shares of commonkstioat may be subject to one or more awards taticyeant pursuant to the 2011 Plan
during any calendar year is 1,250,000 and the maxiramount that may be paid to a participant in ¢asing any calendar year with respect
to cashbased awards is $2,000,000. However, these limitsiot apply to certain awards granted under tB22Plan until the earliest to oce
of the first material modification of the 2011 PEmfiowing the date the shares are listed on acyses exchange or designated on an
interdealer quotation system, or the Public Traddage, the issuance of all of the shares resermedguance under the 2011 Plan, the
expiration of the 2011 Plan or the first meetingof stockholders at which directors are to betetethat occurs after the close of the third
calendar year following the calendar year in witeh Public Trading Date occurs.

Administration

The 2011 Plan provides that the compensationmittee of our board of directors, or the congagion committee, currently administers
the 2011 Plan, although our board of directors magrcise any powers and responsibilities assigméitet compensation committee at any t

The compensation committee has the authtmriadminister and interpret the 2011 Plan, initigdhe power to determine eligibility, the
types and sizes of awards, the price, timing ahdraierms and conditions of awards and the acdilarar waiver of any vesting or forfeiture
restriction.
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The compensation committee may delegate to an éxeafficer or officers the authority to grant aua to non-officer employees and to
consultants, in accordance with any guidelinehasdmpensation committee may determine.

Eligibility

Persons eligible to participate in the 2@14n include employees, consultants and our napleree directors and our affiliates, as
determined by the compensation committee. Onlyeouployees and certain of our parent and subsidiamyorations are eligible to receive
grants of options intended to qualify as ISOs.

Stock Options

The 2011 Plan authorizes the grant of sttlons, including ISOs and nonqualified stockiaps. Under the 2011 Plan, the exercise price
of ISOs granted pursuant to the 2011 Plan willbbetess than the fair market value of the commooksbn the date of grant, and the exercise
price of nonqualified stock options granted pursdarthe 2011 Plan will be determined by the consaéion committee. Stock options are
subject to such vesting and exercisability condgias are determined by the compensation comnaitigeet forth in a written stock option
agreement. In no event may an ISO have a term of than ten years. ISOs granted to any person wins,cas of the date of grant, stock
possessing more than 10% of the total combineshgqtower of all classes of our stock, however rageired to have an exercise price that is
not less than 110% of the fair market value ofdbemon stock on the date of grant and may not hateem of more than 5 years. The
aggregate fair market value of the shares witheetsip which options intended to be 1ISOs are egabte for the first time by an employee in
any calendar year may not exceed $100,000, orathen amount as the Code provides without beiregérkas a nonqualified stock option.

Stock Appreciation Rights

A stock appreciation right, or SAR, is tiight to receive payment of an amount equal tcetkeess of the fair market value of a share of
common stock on the date of exercise of the SAR the=grant price of the SAR. The grant price afre8AR granted under the 2011 Plan
be no less than the fair market value of a shaomafmon stock on the date of grant of the SAR. Chmpensation Committee is authorized to
issue SARs in such amounts and on such terms amlitioms as it may determine, consistent with #rens of the 2011 Plan.

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock is the grant of sharesoofimon stock at a price, if any, determined bydbmpensation committee, which shares are
nontransferable and may be subject to forfeituté specified vesting conditions are met. Restdcs¢éock will be evidenced by a written
agreement. During the period of restriction, restd stock is subject to restrictions and vesteguirements, as provided by the compensation
committee. The restrictions may lapse in accordavittea schedule or other conditions determinedhgycompensation committee.

Restricted Stock Units

A restricted stock unit provides for theuance of a share of common stock at a futureugaie the satisfaction of specific conditions set
forth in the applicable award agreement. The corsgion committee will specify, or permit the restied stock unit holder to elect, the
conditions and dates upon which payments underetiteicted stock units will made, which dates maybe earlier than the date as of which
the restricted stock units vest and which condgiand dates will be subject to compliance with 8act09A of the Code. On the distribution
dates, we will transfer to the participant
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one unrestricted, fully transferable share of themon stock (or the fair market value of one su@re of common stock in cash) for each
restricted stock unit scheduled to be paid outuahslate and not previously forfeited.

Performance Units

Performance units represent the particlpaight to receive an amount, based on the vdltieeocommon stock, if performance goals
established by the compensation committee are \eathid he compensation committee will determineagglicable performance period, the
performance goals and such other conditions thalyap the performance unit.

Performance Awards

A performance award is cash bonus awaodkdtonus award, performance award or incentivaéeat is paid in cash, shares of
common stock or a combination of both, as deterchimethe compensation committee. The compensatonittee will determine the
applicable performance period, the performancesgaadl such other conditions that apply to the perémce award.

Stock Grants

A stock grant is a grant in the form of Esaof common stock. The number or value of shafrasly stock grant will be determined by the
compensation committee.

Qualified Performance-Based Awards

Any award under the 2011 Plan, other thatoek grant, may be issued as a qualified perfoo@dased award that is earned based on the
attainment of performance criteria. The compensatmmmittee may grant qualified performance-baseards to employees who are or may
be "covered employees," as defined in Section 1p2frthe Code, that are intended to be performdrased compensation within the meaning
of Section 162(m) of the Code in order to preseéineedeductibility of these awards for federal ineotax purposes. The qualified performance-
based awards may be linked to any one or moreeopéinformance criteria set forth in the 2011 Plaatber specific criteria determined by the
compensation committee.

Dividends, Dividend Equivalents

The 2011 Plan authorizes the compensatiomdttee to provide a participant with the rightréceive dividends or dividend equivalents
with respect to shares of common stock coveredhigmveard granted under the 2011 Plan. Dividendsdaridend equivalents may be settled in
cash or shares of common stock, as determinedebgaimpensation committee.

Payment Methods

The Compensation Committee determines thods by which payments by any option granted utiae2011 Plan may be paid,
including, without limitation, by:

. cash or check

. placing a market sell order with a broker with msto shares of common stock then-issuable upercise or vesting of an
award, and directing the broker to pay a sufficmtion of the net proceeds of the sale to usiisfaction of the aggregate
payments required (provided that payment of suoke®ds is then made to us upon settlement of slej) s

. shares of common stock issuable pursuant to thedasvgpreviously held; or

. such other legal consideration deemed acceptabiieebgompensation committee.
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Forfeiture of Unvested Awards; Leave of Absence

Upon the termination of service of the lewldf an option or stock appreciation right, unlefgerwise provided by the compensation
committee, the award generally will expire on aedadt later than three months after the terminatiogservice. Except as otherwise determined
by the compensation committee, in the event thaethployment or services of the holder of an avwstdrminated, the unvested portion of the
award will generally be forfeited or may be subjectepurchase by us, and will cease to vest cornecexercisable after the termination.

The compensation committee may provide @dhaaward will continue to vest for some or altheg period of a leave of absence, or that
vesting of an award will be tolled during a lea¥@bsence, consistent with applicable law.

Transferability

Generally, awards under the 2011 Plan nmhy loe transferred by will or the laws of descemd distribution, unless and until such award
has been exercised or the shares underlying suaiddvave been issued and all restrictions appkcabsuch shares have lapsed. However,
subject to certain terms and conditions, the corsaigon committee may permit a holder to transfeorqualified stock option or shares of
restricted stock to any "family member" under aggihle securities laws.

Adjustments; Corporate Transactions

In the event of a declaration of a stockd#ind, stock split, reverse stock split, recajtalon, reclassification, reorganization or simila
occurrence, the compensation committee will malg@piate adjustments to:

. the number and kind of shares available for fugrents;

. the number and kind of shares covered by eachamdisty award;
. the grant or exercise price under each outstaralirayd; and

. the repurchase right of each share of restriceks

In the event that such a corporate actmucs that is not included in the list of actions@red in the immediately preceding sentence, the
compensation committee may equitably adjust angtantling awards under the 2011 Plan in such mamiémay deem equitable and
appropriate.

In the event of a merger or consolidatibe, sale or exchange of all common stock, the salesfer or disposition of all or substantially
of our assets or our liquidation or dissolutiore tompensation committee may take one or moreedfolfowing actions with respect to
outstanding options and SARs:

. provide for the assumption or substitution of theeds;

. cancel the award:

. accelerate the awards in whole or in part;

. cash out the awards;

. convert the awards into the right to receive ligtion proceeds; ¢
. any combination of the abov

Upon our liquidation or dissolution, excagtotherwise provided in an applicable award agese, all forfeiture restrictions and/or
performance goals with respect to an award wilbeatically be deemed terminated or satisfied, pticgble.
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In the event of a "change of control" (afimkd in the 2011 Plan), our compensation committdl take any action it deems necessary or
appropriate, including to accelerate an award inle/lor in part. A SAR granted in tandem with a Ktoption that can only be exercised during
limited periods following a change of control of msly entitle the holder to receive an amount basethe highest price paid or offered for the
common stock in a transaction relating to the ckasfgcontrol or paid during the thirgay period immediately preceding the change ofrobi

Termination or Amendment

Our board of directors may terminate, amenchodify the 2011 Plan at any time. However, khmdder approval of an amendment is
required to increase the aggregate share limingghe description of eligible participants othe extent necessary to comply with applicable
law.

The term of the 2011 Plan will expire ongdano ISO may be granted pursuant to the 2011 ¢taor after, November 7, 2021.
Tax Withholding

We may require participants to discharggiepble withholding tax obligations with respegtany award granted to the participant. The
plan administrator may in its discretion allow dd®y to meet any such withholding tax obligatiogsaltecting to have us withhold shares of
common stock otherwise issuable under any awardli@w the return of shares of common stock) hawrigir market value equal to the sums
required to be withheld.

Risk Assessment in Compensation Programs

We have assessed our compensation prograthsoncluded that our compensation practices tloreate risks that are reasonably likely
to have a material adverse effect on us.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement

The following table sets forth informaticegarding beneficial ownership of our common staslof December 31, 2011 by: (i) each
person known by us to be the beneficial owner ¢ated in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1) promwédainder the Exchange Act of more
than five percent of the outstanding shares of comatock; (ii) each of our directors and executffecers; and (iii) all officers and directors
as a group. Unless otherwise stated in the tahits éwotnotes, the person and entities listedwélave the sole voting power and investment
power with respect to the shares set forth neghids name. Unless otherwise noted, the addresscbfstockholder below is c/o Radius
Health, Inc., 201 Broadway, 6th Floor, Cambridged B2139.

Percentage of

Shares Converted
Beneficially Title of Percentage of common
Name, (Title) and Address Owned Class Class(1)(a) stock(1)(b)
Michael S. Wyzga 0 0% 0%
(Chief Executive Officer, President ar
Director)
C. Richard Lyttle, Ph.D. 590,63(2) Common 50.5%
(Chief Scientific Officer) Stock
Convertel 2.7%
Common
Stock
B. Nicholas Harvey 179,51(3) Common 22.6%
(Senior Vice President, Chief Financii Stock
Officer,
Treasurer, and Secretal Convertel 0.8%
Common
Stock
Louis Brenner 0 0% 0%
(Senior Vice President and Chief
Medical Officer)
Gary Hattersley 86,163(4) Common 11.€%
(Senior Vice President of Preclinical Stock
Development
Convertel 0.4%
Common
Stock
Dr. Ansbert K. Gadicke 8,397,07/(5) Common 92.%
(Director) Stock
384,26(6) Series /- 40.%
1
Preferred
Stock
402,157) Series A- 40.%
2
Preferred
Stock
53,331(8) Series 4 37.5%
3
Preferred
Stock
Convertel 39.2%
Common

Stock
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Name, (Title) and Address
Alan H. Auerbach
(Director)

Jonathan J. Fleming
(Director)

Kurt C. Graves
(Director)

Dr. Martin Minchbach
(Director)

Dr. Elizabeth Stoner
(Director)

Entities affiliated with MPM Capital
200 Clarendon St., 54th |

Boston, MA 0211¢

Shares
Beneficially Title of
Owned Class

Percentage of
Class(1)(a)

Percentage of
Converted
common
stock(1)(b)

106,94(9) Common
Stock

Converted

Common
Stock

1,364,83(10) Common
Stock
109,71¢11) Series A-2
Preferred
Stock
25,23412) Series A-3
Preferred
Stock
Converted
Common
Stock

42,78((13) Common
Stock

Convertec

Common
Stock

1,896,98(14) Common
Stock
84,53¢(15) Series A-1
Preferred
Stock
105,16(16) Series A-2
Preferred
Stock
Converted
Common
Stock

10,00((17) Common
Stock

Converted

Common
Stock

8,397,07/(18) Common
Stock
384,26(19) Series /1
Preferred
Stock
402,15%20) Series /-2
Preferred
Stock
53,33](21) Series /3
Preferred
Stock
Convertec
Common
Stock
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14.2%

68.4%
11.2%

17.%

6.2%

74.€%

9.C%

10.7%

1.5%

92.%

40.%%

40.%%

37.5%

0.£%

6.4%

0.2%

8.5%

0.C%

39.2%
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Name, (Title) and Address
The Wellcome Trust Limited as trustee
The Wellcome Trus
215 Euston Road 2B
London NW1
England

HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P.
55 Cambridge Parkwe
Suite 102
Cambridge, MA 0214:

Entities affiliated with Saints Capital
475 Sansome Stre
Suite 185(
San Francisco, CA 941:

BB Biotech Ventures Il, L.P.
Traflagar Cour
Les Banque
St. Peter Pol
Guernsey
Channel Island
GY1 3QL

Shares

Beneficially Title of

Owned Class

Percentage of
Class(1)(a)

Percentage of
Converted
common
stock(1)(b)

2,868,91((22) Common
Stock
76,56€(23) Series 1
Preferrec
Stock
210,32t Series A2

Preferred
Stock
Convertec

Common
Stock

2,292,05/(24) Common
Stock
58,95%(25) Series /1
Preferrec
Stock
98,27¢ Series /-2

Preferred
Stock
63,66: Series A3

Preferred
Stock
Convertec

Common
Stock

1,856,10(26) Common
Stock
49,127(27) Series /-1
Preferrec
Stock
109,71{28) Series A2

Preferred
Stock
25,23(29) Series /-3

Preferred
Stock
Convertec

Common
Stock

1,896,98((30) Common
Stock
84,53¢(31) Series /1
Preferrec
Stock
105,16: Series /-2
Preferred
Stock
Convertec

Common
Stock

81.€%

8.2%

21.4%

80.5%
6.3%

10.(%

44.&%

74.1%
5.2%

11.1%

17.7%

74.€%

9.C%

10.1%

13.4%

10.7%

8.7%

8.¢%
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Name, (Title) and Address

Entities affiliated with Oxford Bioscienc

Partners
222 Berkley Stree
Suite 1650

Boston, MA 02116

Healthcare Private Equity Limited
Partnership
Edinburgh One
Morrison Street

Edinburgh EH3 8BE
Stock

Brookside Capital Partners Fund, L.P.
c/o Bain Capital, LLC
John Hancock Towe

200 Clarendon Stre:
Boston, MA 0211¢

Biotech Growth N.V.
Asset Management BAB N.\
Ara Hill Top Building,

Unit A-5
Pletterijweg Oost :
Curacao, Dutch Caribbean

Ipsen Pharma SAS
65, quai Georges Gor:
92100 Boulogne Billancou

France

Shares
Beneficially Title of
Owned Class

Percentage of
Class(1)(a)

Percentage of
Converted
common
stock(1)(b)

1,364,83.(32) Common
Stock

109,71¢(33) Series A-
2
Preferrec
Stock
25,23%(34) Series £
3
Preferrec
Stock
Convertes

Common
Stock

765,02((35) Common
Stock

20,41¢ Series A-
1
Preferrec
U.K.
56,08¢ Series /4
2
Preferred
Stock
Convertet

Common
Stock

1,228,20i(36) Common
Stock

122,82( Series /-
1
Preferrec
Stock
Convertes

Common
Stock

1,228,20((37) Common
Stock

122,82( Series /4
1
Preferrec
Stock
Convertet

Common
Stock

173,26((38) Common
Stock

17,32¢ Series /-
1
Preferrec
Stock
Convertes

Common

68.4%

11.2%

17.7%

54.2%

2.2%

5.7%

65.€%
13.1%

65.€%
13.1%

21.2%

1.8%

6.4%

3.6%

5.7%

5.7%

0.6%



Stavros C. Manolagas
35 River Ridge Circle
Little Rock, AR 72227

Stock

91,04( Common
Stock

Convertet

Common
Stock
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Percentage of

Shares Converted
Beneficially Title of Percentage of common
Name, (Title) and Address Owned Class Class(1)(a) stock(1)(b)
Nordic Bioscience 64,43((39) Common 9.1%
Herlev Hovedgade 2C Stock
2730 Herlev 6,44: Series A- 10C%
5
Denmark Preferrec
Stock
Convertel 0.2%
Common
Stock
Louis O'Dea 193,08°(40) Common 23.5%
566 Main Stree Stock
Hingham, MA 02043 Convertel 0.S%
Common
Stock
Michael Rosenblatt 43,91541) Common 6.8%
130 Lake Ave Stock
Newton, MA 0245¢ Convertel 0.2%
Common
Stock
Patricia Rosenblatt 41,35] Common 6.4%
876 Beacon Street, Apt. No. Stock
Newton, MA 02459 Convertel 0.2%
Common
Stock
John Katzenellenbogen Trust 56,065(42) Common 8.7%
704 West Pennsylvania Aven Stock
Urbana, lllinois 61801 Convertel 0.2%
Common
Stock
Chris Miller 63,85:(43) Common 9.4%
11 Edgar Walker Cou Stock
Hingham, MA 0204: Convertel 0.2%
Common
Stock
John Thomas Potts, Jr. 69,93:(44) Common 10.8%
Massachusetts General Hosp Stock
149 13th Street, MC 14940t Convertel 0.2%
Charlestown, MA 0212-2000 Common
Stock
All Officers and Directors as a group (1 12,674,92 Common 96.(%
individuals) Stock
Convertel 56.8%
Common
Stock

@ (a) Because shares of preferred stock vote tegetith common stock on an-converted basis the percentage
beneficial ownership reported in this column do madtect the beneficial owner's voting percentafew outstanding
capital stock. See Note (1)(b). Because each o$tmekholders is a party to certain agreements aithother
stockholders, which agreements contain, among titiregs, certain voting agreements and limitationghe sale of the



shares of common stock, each of our stockholdeyshaaleemed to be a member of a "group," withimtle@ning of
Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. The percesgayf beneficial ownership presented in this colarencalculated in
accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1) promulgated ulkdefExchange Act, excluding in the case of eaclefigal owner,
the shares held by any other beneficial ownerp agiich each beneficial owner disclaims benefioighership
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1)

(@)

3)

(4)

®)

(b) A more accurate reflection of each benefioigher's voting percentage is their percentageepteferred stock and
the common stock voting together as a single ¢thgs"Converted common stock"), assuming the caieerof all issue
and outstanding shares of preferred stock. In dalprovide accurate disclosure of the relevanefieial ownership
percentage of each beneficial owner included ig tidfible we have set forth each such beneficial owownership
percentage (calculated in accordance with Rule3L8tithe Exchange Act) of the Converted commonisiocthis
column. See Note (1)(a).

Includes 523,971 options to purchase our commarkstoticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysrditecember 31,
2011.

Includes 149,513 options to purchase our commarksinticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysraitecember 31,
2011.

Consists of 86,163 options to purchase our comrtark aanticipated to be exercisable within 60 dayerd&ecember 31,
2011.

Includes 82,220 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 8,222 shares of our series A-leprefl stock,
121,940 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 12,194 shares of our series A-2 prefertedks 29,850
shares of common stock issuable upon conversi@P8b shares of our series A-3 preferred stocleissa MPM
BioVentures Ill, L.P. ("BV llI"), in the Merger (adefined below), and 68,740 shares of common sgstlable upon
conversion of 6,874 shares of our series A-1 prefestock issued to BV Il at subsequent closingsuo series A-1
preferred stock financing; 1,222,900 shares of comstock issuable upon conversion of 122,290 shafrear series At
preferred stock, 1,813,640 shares of common stmtkable upon conversion of 181,364 shares of oigss&-2 preferred
stock, and 443,950 shares of common stock issugdale conversion of 44,395 shares of our seriespheBrred stock
issued to MPM BioVentures III-QP, L.P. ("BV Il QR'in the Merger, and 1,022,380 shares of commacksssuable
upon conversion of 102,238 shares of our seriegpfeferred stock issued to BV IIl QP at subseqatgings of our
series A-1 preferred stock financing; 103,350 shafecommon stock issuable upon conversion of B)sB@res of our
series A-1 preferred stock, 153,270 shares of comshack issuable upon conversion of 15,327 shdrearcseries A-2
preferred stock, and 37,520 shares of common s$$sclable upon conversion of 3,752 shares of oigsér3 preferred
stock issued to MPM BioVentures Il GmbH & Co. Bétrings K.G. ("BV Il KG"), in the Merger, and 8800 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 8,640eshafrour series A-1 preferred stock issued to BKG at
subsequent closings of our series A-1 preferreckdioancing; 36,930 shares of common stock issiapbn conversion
of 3,693 shares of our serieslMreferred stock, 54,770 shares of common statlatde upon conversion of 5,477 shi
of our series A-2 preferred stock, and 13,400 shafeommon stock issuable upon conversion of 1sdées of our
series A-3 preferred stock issued to MPM BioVergdteParallel Fund, L.P. ("BV Il PF"), in the Mger, and 30,860
shares of common stock issuable upon conversi@086, shares of our series A-1 preferred stoaleidso BV Il PF at
subsequent closings of our series A-1 preferreckdioancing; 23,680 shares of common stock issuapbn conversion
of 2,368 shares of our serieslpreferred stock, 35,110 shares of common staelatde upon conversion of 3,511 shi
of our series A-2 preferred stock, and 8,590 shafesmmon stock issuable upon conversion of 8&®eshof our
series A-3 preferred stock issued to MPM Asset Manzent Investors 2003 BVIII LLC ("AM LLC") in the btger, and
19,780 shares of common stock issuable upon caowen$ 1,978, shares of our series A-1 preferredlstssued to

AM LLC at subsequent closings of our series A-Ifgnred stock financing; 540,010 shares of commoaoksissuable
upon conversion of 54,001 shares of our seriespfeferred stock, and 1,842,420 shares of commaik ssuable upon
conversion of 184,242 shares of our series A-2epredl stock issued to MPM Bio IV NVS Strategic FuhdP. ("MPM
NVS") in the Merger, and 605,360 shares of commoaksissuable upon conversion of 60,536, sharesipéeries A-1
preferred stock issued to MPM NVS at subsequesirds of our series A-preferred stock financing. MPM BioVentu
Il GP, L.P. ("BV Illl LP") and MPM BioVentures IILLC ("BV3LLC") are the direct and indirect genegartners of BV
I, BV Il QP, BV Il KG, and BV Il PF. MPM BioVentures IV GP LLC ("BV IV GP") and MPM BioVenture¥ ILLC
("BVALLC") are the direct and indirect general pemnts of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the General Partner of Bl LP.
Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos;iiel Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nicholas Simonkant Wheeler
are the Members of BV3LLC and the managers of AMCLAIl members of BV3LLC share all power to votegaire,
hold and dispose of all shares and warrants. Eashbar disclaims beneficial ownership of the semsriéxcept to the
extent of their pecuniary interest therein. BV4LIsSGhe Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadickeke Evnin,
Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, James Paul ScopaghMaiyl. Kailian and Steven St. Peter are the MembEkPM
BioVentures IV LLC. All members share all powenate, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares amdants. Each
member disclaims beneficial ownership of the s¢i@sriexcept to the extent of their pecuniary irgetherein. Each entit
mentioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaim benefmialership of all shares not held by it or him @fard. Beneficial
ownership information is based on information kndemis and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC onelbdser 27
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(6)

(7)

(8)

2011 by BV 1lI, BV 1l QP, BV Il KG, BV Ill PF, AMLLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC,
Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos;iMiel Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas SimonDi&nnis Hennel
Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James Paul Scopay&t St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes of 8,222 shares of our series A-1 prefesteck issued to BV Il in the Merger, and 6,8Rhéres of our series A-
1 preferred stock issued to BV Ill at subsequensiolgs of our series A-1 preferred stock financit2g,290 shares of our
series A-1 preferred stock issued to BV Il QPHa Merger, and 102,238 shares of our series A{feipesl stock issued
to BV Il QP at subsequent closings of our seriet greferred stock financing; 10,335 shares ofsauies A-1 preferred
stock issued to BV Il KG in the Merger, and 8,&tares of our series A-1 preferred stock issu@&Mdll KG at
subsequent closings of our series A-1 preferreckdioancing; 3,693 shares of our series A-1 prefistock issued

to BV Ill PF in the Merger, and 3,086 shares of series A-1 preferred stock issued to BV Ill PE@bsequent closings
of our series A-1 preferred stock financing; 2,368&res of our series A-1 preferred stock, issugdMd_LC in the
Merger, and 1,978 shares of our series A-1 prafesteck issued to AM LLC at subsequent closingswfseries A-1
preferred stock financing; and 54,001 shares ofeties A-1 preferred stock issued to MPM NVS i Kerger, and
60,536 shares of our series A-1 preferred stoalesso MPM NVS at subsequent closings of our sekidspreferred
stock financing. BV Il LP and BV3LLC, are the diteand indirect general partners of BV IIl, BV QP, BV Il KG,

and BV lll PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direatdhindirect general partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLCli® Genere
Partner of BV Il LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evniticholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Herieholas
Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3LL@ #re managers of AM LLC. All members share all po¥o
vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares amdants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownershipe securities
except to the extent of their pecuniary interestem. BV4LLC is the Managing Member of BV IV GPngbert Gadicke,
Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, Jamed Baopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and Steven St. Petetle@eMembers
of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members share allyer to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all sharel warrants.
Each member disclaims beneficial ownership of g#migties except to the extent of their pecuniatgriest therein. Each
entity mentioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaimefieral ownership of all shares not held by it anfof record.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infation known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$iEC on
December 27, 2011 by BV I, BV Il QP, BV Il K&V Ill PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP,
BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Gal#ds, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas &infil,
Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, Jafasal Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes 12,194 shares of our series A-2 prefesteck issued BV Il in the Merger; 181,364 sharkesw series A-2
preferred stock issued to BV Il QP in the Merdis,327 shares of our series A-2 preferred stoaled8V Il KG in the
Merger; 5,477 shares of our series A-2 preferredksissued to BV Il PF in the Merger; 3,511 sharkeur series A-2
preferred stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger; drgdt,242 shares of our series A-2 preferred steskad to MPM
NVS in the Merger. BV Il LP and BV3LLC, are theréct and indirect general partners of BV Ill, BV @QP, BV Il KG,
and BV lll PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direatdhindirect general partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLCli® Genere
Partner of BV Ill LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evniicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis HerNigholas
Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3LL@ #re managers of AM LLC. All members share all po¥o
vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares amamts. Each member disclaims beneficial ownershthe securities
except to the extent of their pecuniary interestéin. BVALLC is the Managing Member of BV IV GPngbert Gadicke,
Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, Jamed Baopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and Steven St. PetetleeMembers
of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members share allyger to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shared warrants.
Each member disclaims beneficial ownership of g#migties except to the extent of their pecuniatgriest therein. Each
entity mentioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaimefieral ownership of all shares not held by it anfof record.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infation known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$EC on
December 27, 2011 by BV IIl, BV Il QP, BV Il K&V Ill PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP,
BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Gal#ds, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas &infil,
Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, Jaffasl Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes 2,985 shares of our series A-3 preferteckgssued to BV 11l in the Merger; 44,395 shavésur series A-3
preferred stock issued BV Ill QP, in the Mergef 52 shares of our series A-3 preferred stock issu®&Y 111 KG, in the
Merger; 1,340 shares of our series A-3 preferredksissued to BV Il PF, in the Merger; and 859rslseof our series &
preferred stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger. BMLP and BV3LLC, are the direct and indirect geslgpartners

of BV IIl, BV Il QP, BV Il KG, and BV lll PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirect geheeatners of
MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the Generz
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Partner of BV Il LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evniticholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis HerXieholas
Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3LL@ #re managers of AM LLC. All members share all po¥o
vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares amdants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownershipe securities
except to the extent of their pecuniary interestéin. BVALLC is the Managing Member of BV IV GPngbert Gadicke,
Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, Jamed Baopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and Steven St. PetetleeMembers
of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members share allyer to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all sharel warrants.
Each member disclaims beneficial ownership of g#migties except to the extent of their pecuniatgriest therein. Each
entity mentioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaimefieral ownership of all shares not held by it anfof record.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infation known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$iEC on
December 27, 2011 by BV Ill, BV Il QP, BV Il K&V Ill PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP,
BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Gal#ds, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas &infil,
Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, Jafasal Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Consists of 106,943 options to purchase our comstmek anticipated to be exercisable within 60 dafyesr
December 31, 2011.

Includes 15,173 shares of common stock and 1,08&R8res of common stock issuable upon conver$i@08628
shares of our series Apreferred stock, 249,830 shares of common s&slable upon conversion of 24,983 shares ¢
series A-3 preferred stock (the "OBP IV Sharesti lérectly by OBP IV—Holdings LLC ("OBP IV"); and51 shares of
common stock and 10,900 shares of common stockliswpon conversion of 1,090 shares of our séri2gpreferred
stock, 2,500 shares of common stock issuable upowession of 250 shares of our serie8 preferred stock (the "'mRM
Il Shares") held directly by mRNA Il—Holdings LLCiRNA 1I"). The OBP IV Shares and the mRNA |l Shawgge
referred to herein as the "Oxford Shares." The OBBhares are indirectly held by Oxford Biosciefatners IV L.P.
("OBP LP"), a member of OBP IV. The mRNA Il Shaege indirectly held by mRNA Fund Il L.P. ("mRNA LR'a
member of MRNA Il. The Oxford Shares are indiretyd by OBP Management IV L.P. ("OBP Managemeri},lthe
sole general partner of each of OBP LP and mRNAJdRathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the individustheral
partners of OBP Management IV; Saints Capital Geahi.P. ("Saints LP"), a member of OBP IV and mRNMASaints
Capital Granite, LLC ("Saints LLC"), the sole gealgrartner of Saints LP; and Scott Halsted, Davi@®&inlivan, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers of SdihC. Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the indiil general
partners of OBP Management IV, share all voting iamdstment power on behalf of OBP Management batSHalsted
David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, thevrdlial managers of Saints LLC, share all voting emvéstment
power on behalf of Saints LLC. Each of the entitied individuals mentioned above disclaim benédfimenership withir
the meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Act bewtise of such portion of the Oxford Shares inchtsuch entity or
individual has no actual pecuniary interest therBeneficial ownership information is based on infation known to us
and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 22,120y OBP 1V, mRNA Il mRNA Fund Il, OBP Managemé¥(t
Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Wrltecott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennetlsBwyer.

Includes 108,628 shares of our series A-2 prefesteck held directly by OBP IV (the "OBP IV A-2 Skes") and 1,090
shares of our series A-2 preferred stock held tirely mRNA Il (the "mRNA Il A-2 Shares"). The OB A-2 Shares
are indirectly held by OBP LP, a member of OBP T¥ie mRNA Il A-2 Shares are indirectly held by mRNMR, a
member of MRNA Il. The OBP IV A-2 Shares and theMARI A-2 Shares are referred to herein as the 'GDxiA-2
Shares". The Oxford A-2 Shares are indirectly igld®BP Management IV, the sole general partheaochef OBP LP
and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton,ititévidual general partners of OBP Management 18in& LP, a
member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sgkneral partner of Saints LP; and Scott HalstedjdDR.
Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individualnagers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alantdtiakhe
individual general partners of OBP Management hare all voting and investment power on behalf BPOManagemetl
IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennBthSawyer, the individual managers of Saints LLIGre all voting
and investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eafctne entities and individuals mentioned aboveldim beneficial
ownership within the meaning of Section 16 of tixel&nge Act or otherwise of such portion of then®A-2 Shares in
which such entity or individual has no actual peanninterest therein. Beneficial ownership infotioa is based on
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwine SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA I, mRIRAnd I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonaflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qiviah, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 24,983 shares of our series A-3 prefesteck held directly by OBP IV (the "OBP IV A-3 Sleal’) and 250
shares of our series-3 preferred stock held directly by mRNA Il (the mRMN A -3 Shares"). Th
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OBP |V A-3 Shares are indirectly held by OBP LP, a memb&@R®B® 1V. The mRNA Il /-3 Shares are indirectly held
MRNA LP, a member of mRNA Il. The OBP |V A-3 Shaeesl the mRNA Il A-3 Shares are referred to heasithe
"Oxford A-3 Shares". The Oxford A-3 Shares aretiaclly held by OBP Management IV, the sole gengaainer of each
of OBP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alantévea the individual general partners of OBP Maragat 1V;
Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saint<l_the sole general partner of Saints LP; andt3dalsted, Davi
P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individumalnagers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Xaitton, the
individual general partners of OBP Management R4re all voting and investment power on behalf BPOManagemet
IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennBthSawyer, the individual managers of Saints LLi@Gre all voting
and investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eafctine entities and individuals mentioned aboveldisn beneficial
ownership within the meaning of Section 16 of tketange Act or otherwise of such portion of then&aA-3 Shares in
which such entity or individual has no actual peagninterest therein. Beneficial ownership infotioa is based on
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwihie SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA II, mRKAnd I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonafflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qiviah, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Consists of 42,780 options to purchase our comrtark aanticipated to be exercisable within 60 dayerd&ecember 31,
2011.

Includes 435,960 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 43,596 shares of our series Aetepred stock (the
"BBBV LP A-1 preferred stock"), and 1,051,620 stsané common stock issuable upon conversion of Bbghares of
our series A-2 preferred stock (together with tiBBB LP A-1 preferred stock the "BBBV LP Shares'$ugd to BB
Biotech Ventures Il L.P. ("BBBV LP") in the Mergeaand 409,400 shares issuable upon conversion 8#i@Ghares of
our series A-1 preferred stock issued to BBBV LBuisequent closings of our series A-1 preferrecksinancing. BB
Biotech Ventures GP (Guernsey) Limited ("BBBV Liett) is the General Partner of BBBV LP. Jan Bootshescal
Mahieux, and Ben Morgan are the directors of BBB®ited. Dr. Miinchbach, the Senior Investment AdwviBdvate
Equity at Bellevue Asset Management AG, advisesegkanagement BAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursuanto
services agreement with BAM AG, advises the dinectd BBBV Limited mentioned above. Jan Bootsmadaa
Mahieux and Ben Morgan share all voting and investihnpower over the BBBV LP shares. Each of thedoiry, except
BBBV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Shares, disckineneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shares extefthe exter
of their pecuniary interest therein, if any. Benefi ownership information is based on informatikmown to us and a
Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on December 29,1281 BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal Malx,
Ben Morgan, and Martin Minchbach.

Includes 43,596 shares of our series A-1 prefesteck issued to BBBV LP in the Merger, and 40,948res of our
series A-1 preferred stock issued to BBBV LP atssgjient closings of our series A-1 preferred sfimgncing. Voting
and investment power with respect to these shargisared by the general partners of this fund. BRBdted is the
General Partner of BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma, Pascalitddtand Ben Morgan are the directors of BBBV Lt

Dr. Minchbach, the Senior Investment Advisor Pevaguity at Bellevue Asset Management AG, adviseseA
Management BAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursuant to arsices agreement with BAM AG, advises the directufr
BBBYV Limited mentioned above. Jan Bootsma, Pascati®lux and Ben Morgan share all voting and investrpewer
over the BBBV LP shares. Each of the foregoingepx&BBV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Shares, ldisgs
beneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shares excephe extent of their pecuniary interest therdiany. Beneficial
ownership information is based on information kndemus and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC onebbdzer 29, 201
by BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal MahieBen Morgan, and Martin Minchbach.

Includes 105,162 shares of our serie? preferred stock issued to BBBV LP in the Merdésting and investment pow:
with respect to these shares is shared by the ggpentners of this fund. BBBV Limited is the GealePartner of

BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Ben Moggarthe directors of BBBV Limited. Dr. Minchbatihe Seniol
Investment Advisor Private Equity at Bellevue Adgkinagement AG, advises Asset Management BAB N.V.

("AMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agreementtvBAM AG, advises the directors of BBBV Limited mté&ned
above. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Ben Motgane il voting and investment power over the BBBY/shares.
Each of the foregoing, except BBBV LP in the cakthe BBBV LP Shares, disclaims beneficial ownepshii the

BBBV LP Shares except to the extent of their peayninterest therein, if any. Beneficial ownershiformation is based
on information known to us and a Schedule 13D filgtth the SEC on December 29, 2011 by BBBV LP, BBBWited,
Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, Ben Morgan, and MEttinchbach.

Consists of 10,000 options to purchase our comrtark aanticipated to be exercisable within 60 dayerd&ecember 31,
2011.
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Includes 82,220 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 8,222 shares of our series A-leprefl stock,
121,940 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 12,194 shares of our series A-2 prefertedks 29,850
shares of common stock issuable upon conversi@P8b shares of our series A-3 preferred stocleissa MPM
BioVentures Ill, L.P. ("BV llI"), in the Merger, ah68,740 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 6,874
shares of our series A-1 preferred stock issu@&Mdll at subsequent closings of our seried Areferred stock financin
1,222,900 shares of common stock issuable uponecsion of 122,290 shares of our series A-1 prediesteck,
1,813,640 shares of common stock issuable uponecsion of 181,364 shares of our series A-2 prediesteck, and
443,950 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 44,395 shares of our series A-3 prefertedksissued to
MPM BioVentures III-QP, L.P. ("BV Il QP"), in th#erger, and 1,022,380 shares of common stock isswgion
conversion of 102,238 shares of our series A-lgpredl stock issued to BV 1l QP at subsequent olgsbf our series A-
1 preferred stock financing; 103,350 shares of comstock issuable upon conversion of 10,335 slafrear series A-1
preferred stock, 153,270 shares of common stoclaide upon conversion of 15,327 shares of our sévi2 preferred
stock, and 37,520 shares of common stock issugiale conversion of 3,752 shares of our series Ae8gpred stock
issued to MPM BioVentures IIl GmbH & Co. BeteiliggmK.G. ("BV Il KG"), in the Merger, and 86,400aies of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 8,640eshafrour series A-1 preferred stock issued to BXG at
subsequent closings of our series A-1 preferreckdioancing; 36,930 shares of common stock issiapbn conversion
of 3,693 shares of our serieslMreferred stock, 54,770 shares of common statlatde upon conversion of 5,477 shi
of our series A-2 preferred stock, and 13,400 shafeommon stock issuable upon conversion of 1sdées of our
series A-3 preferred stock issued to MPM BioVergdteParallel Fund, L.P. ("BV Il PF"), in the Mger, and 30,860
shares of common stock issuable upon conversi@086, shares of our series A-1 preferred stoaleidso BV Il PF at
subsequent closings of our series A-1 preferreckdioancing; 23,680 shares of common stock issuapbn conversion
of 2,368 shares of our serieslpreferred stock, 35,110 shares of common staelatde upon conversion of 3,511 shi
of our series A-2 preferred stock, and 8,590 shefesmmon stock issuable upon conversion of 8&®eshof our
series A-3 preferred stock issued to MPM Asset Manzent Investors 2003 BVIII LLC ("AM LLC") in the btger, and
19,780 shares of common stock issuable upon caowen$ 1,978, shares of our series A-1 preferredlstssued to

AM LLC at subsequent closings of our series A-Ifgnred stock financing; 540,010 shares of commoaoksissuable
upon conversion of 54,001 shares of our seriespfeferred stock, and 1,842,420 shares of commaik stsuable upon
conversion of 184,242 shares of our series A-2epredl stock issued to MPM Bio IV NVS Strategic FuhdP. ("MPM
NVS") in the Merger, and 605,360 shares of commoaksissuable upon conversion of 60,536, sharesipéeries A-1
preferred stock issued to MPM NVS at subsequesimgs of our series A-1 preferred stock financiélyj voting and
investment power is shared with Dr. Gadicke andother general partners of these funds. BV IlI loid 8V3LLC are thi
direct and indirect general partners of BV IlI, BYQP, BV Il KG, and BV Ill PF. BV IV GP and BVY LLC are the
direct and indirect general partners of MPM NVS.RY.C is the General Partner of BV Ill LP. Ansberadicke, Luke
Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dsriénner, Nicholas Simon and Kurt Wheeler are teenlders of
BV3LLC and the managers of AM LLC. All members o BLLC share all power to vote, acquire, hold anspdise of a
shares and warrants. Each member disclaims bealediwnership of the securities except to the extétibeir pecuniary
interest therein. BV4ALLC is the Managing MembeBdf IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Foldphn Vande
Vort, James Paul Scopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and 3t&te Peter are the Members of MPM BioVentures DCLAII
members share all power to vote, acquire, holddisybse of all shares and warrants. Each membelaihss beneficial
ownership of the securities except to the extetheir pecuniary interest therein. Each fund mewtabove disclaims
beneficial ownership of all shares not held byfitexord. Beneficial ownership information is basedinformation
known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SBE@ecember 27, 2011 by BV IlI, BV Il QP, BV lll K@V Il PF,
AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos,
Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas Simon Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, éarRaul
Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes of 8,222 shares of our series A-1 prefesteck issued to BV Il in the Merger, and 6,8Rres of our series A-
1 preferred stock issued to BV Ill at subsequensiolgs of our series A-1 preferred stock financit2g,290 shares of our
series A-1 preferred stock issued to BV Ill QPHa Merger, and 102,238 shares of our series Afeipesl stock issued
to BV Il QP at subsequent closings of our serie$ greferred stock financing; 10,335 shares ofsauies A-1 preferred
stock issued to BV Il KG in the Merger, and 8,&tares of our series A-1 preferred stock issu@&mtdll KG at
subsequent closings of our series A-1 preferreckdioancing; 3,693 shares of our series A-1 prefistock issued

to BV Il PF in the Merger, and 3,086 shares of series A-1 preferred stock issued to BV Il PBatsequent closings
of our series A-1 preferred stock financing; 2,368&res of our series A-1 preferred stock, issugdMd_LC in the

Merger, and 1,978 shares of our series A-1 predesteck issued to AM LLC at subsequent closingswfseries A-1
preferred stock financing; and 54,001 shares ofeties /1 preferred stock issued to MPM N\
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in the Merger, and 60,536 shares of our seri-1 preferred stock issued to MPM NVS at subsequestrgs of oul
series A-1 preferred stock financing. Voting angeistment power is shared with Dr. Gadicke and therageneral
partners of these funds. BV Ill LP and BV3LLC, #&ne direct and indirect general partners of BVBY, 11l QP, BV I
KG, and BV Ill PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the dateand indirect general partners of MPM NVS. BV3LIsGhe
General Partner of BV Ill LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Lukenin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Defenner,
Nicholas Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the MembeB\WLLC and the managers of AM LLC. All members ghatl
power to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of altehand warrants. Each member disclaims benefigiakrship of the
securities except to the extent of their pecuniiatgrest therein. BVALLC is the Managing MembeB&f IV GP. Ansber
Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vaames Paul Scopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and SteveRe3ér are the
Members of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members shall power to vote, acquire, hold and disposdlafteares and
warrants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownprehthe securities except to the extent of thegymiary interest
therein. Each fund mentioned above disclaims beiafownership of all shares not held by it of retdeneficial
ownership information is based on information kndemis and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC onebdser 27, 201
by BV Ill, BV Il QP, BV lll KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke
Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Mictsteinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas Simon Ill, Denrfenner, Tod
Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James Paul Scopa, St&teRPeter and John Vander Vort.

Includes 12,194 shares of our series A-2 prefesteck issued to BV Il in the Merger; 181,364 sisawéour series A-2
preferred stock issued to BV Il QP, in the Mer@8r327 shares of our series A-2 preferred stoaleidso BV Il KG in
the Merger; 5,477 shares of our series A-2 prefiessteck issued to BV Ill PF, in the Merger; 3,5hhies of our series A-
2 preferred stock issued to AM LLC in the Mergergdd 84,242 shares of our series A-2 preferred stgstled to MPM
NVS in the Merger. All voting and investment povieshared with Dr. Gadicke and the other genendhpes of these
funds. BV Il LP and BV3LLC, are the direct and irett general partners of BV 11, BV Ill QP, BV IKG, and BV llI
PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirgeneral partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the Gendraltner

of BV Il LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Nichol&alakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nash&imon and
Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3LLC and the ngema of AM LLC. All members share all power to vatequire,
hold and dispose of all shares and warrants. Eashbar disclaims beneficial ownership of the semsriéxcept to the
extent of their pecuniary interest therein. BV4LIsSGhe Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadickeke Evnin,
Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, James Paul ScopaghMaiyl. Kailian and Steven St. Peter are the MembEkPM
BioVentures IV LLC. All members share all powenate, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares amdants. Each
member disclaims beneficial ownership of the s¢i@sriexcept to the extent of their pecuniary irgetherein. Each fund
mentioned above disclaims beneficial ownershipliaftares not held by it of record. Beneficial owstep information is
based on information known to us and a Schedulefil@®with the SEC on December 27, 2011 by BV BV IlI

QP, BV Il KG, BV lll PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert
Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz tKuiheeler, Nicholas Simon IIl, Dennis Henner, Tdéddey, Vaughr
M. Kailian, James Paul Scopa, Steven St. Petedahd Vander Vort.

Includes 2,985 shares of our series A-3 preferrecksssued to BV Il in the Merger; 44,395 shaoésur series A-3
preferred stock issued to BV Il QP in the Merg&i752 shares of our series A-3 preferred stoclesa BV 11l KG, in
the Merger; 1,340 shares of our series A-3 prediesteck issued BV Ill PF, in the Merger; and 858rsis of our series A-
3 preferred stock issued to AM LLC in the Mergell. voting and investment power is shared with Dadizke and the
other general partners of these funds. BV Ill LB BV3LLC, are the direct and indirect general parsnof BV I, BV Il
QP, BV lll KG, and BV Ill PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLCra the direct and indirect general partners of MRWS.
BV3LLC is the General Partner of BV Ill LP. Ansb&adicke, Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michateli@netz,
Dennis Henner, Nicholas Simon and Kurt WheelettiageMembers of BV3LLC and the managers of AM LLdL A
members share all power to vote, acquire, holddisbse of all shares and warrants. Each membelaths beneficial
ownership of the securities except to the extertheir pecuniary interest therein. BV4ALLC is the Mging Member

of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Fpldohn Vander Vort, James Paul Scopa, Vaughn Miakaand
Steven St. Peter are the Members of MPM BioVentlirdd_C. All members share all power to vote, aaguihold and
dispose of all shares and warrants. Each memberiiiss beneficial ownership of the securities ext¢efhe extent of
their pecuniary interest therein. Each fund memtibabove disclaims beneficial ownership of all sharot held by it of
record. Beneficial ownership information is basedrdormation known to us and a Schedule 13D filatth the SEC on
December 27, 2011 by BV I, BV Il QP, BV Il K&V Ill PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP,
BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Gal#ds, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas &infil,
Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, Jafasal Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John Vander
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Includes 255,220 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 25,522 shares of our seriekgkeferred stock, ar
2,103,250 shares of common stock issuable uponeesion of 210,325 shares of our series A-2 prefiesteck issued to
The Wellcome Trust Limited as trustee of The WetleoTrust in the Merger, and 510,440 shares of comstack
issuable upon conversion of 51,044 shares of aigssA-1 preferred stock issued to The WellcomesT bumited as
trustee of The Wellcome Trust at subsequent clesiigur series A-1 preferred stock financing. Resbility for the
activities of the Wellcome Trust lies with the Bdaf Governors of The Wellcome Trust Limited, whistcomprised of
William Castell, Kay Davies, Peter Davies, ChristepFairburn, Richard Hynes, Anne Johnson, Rodétakt, Eliza
Manningham-Buller, Peter Rigby and Peter Smith. Bbard of Governors share all voting and investnpenter with
respect to the shares held by The Wellcome Trumited as trustee of the Wellcome Trust. Benefioighership
information is based on information known to us arfsichedule 13D filed with the SEC on DecembeR@21 by The
Wellcome Trust Limited as trustee of The Wellconmast.

Responsibility for the activities of the Wellcomeust lies with the Board of Governors of The Wette Trust Limited,
which is comprised of William Castell, Kay Davié®xter Davies, Christopher Fairburn, Richard HyAesie Johnson,
Roderick Kent, Eliza Manningham-Buller, Peter Rigimd Peter Smith. The Board of Governors shaneotithg and
investment power with respect to the shares hel@ige/Wellcome Trust Limited as trustee of the Wathe Trust.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infation known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$iEC on
December 23, 2011 by The Wellcome Trust Limitetrastee of The Wellcome Trust.

Includes 83,113 shares of common stock and 19&Bafes of common stock issuable upon conversid®,651 shares
of our series A-1 preferred stock, 982,780 shafemmmon stock issuable upon conversion of 98,2ié8es of our
series A-2 preferred stock, 636,630 shares of comstack issuable upon conversion of 63,663 shdrearcseries A-3
preferred stock issued to HealthCare VentureslVR, ("HCVVII") in the Merger, and 393,020 shardscommon stock
issuable upon conversion of 39,302 shares of aigssA-1 preferred stock issued to HCVVII at suhsag closings of
our series At preferred stock financing. HealthCare PartnetsVP. ("HCPVII") is the General Partner of HCVVIThe
General Partners of HCPVII are James H. Cavand®igh., Harold R. Werner, John W. Littlechild, Cloisher
Mirabelli, Ph.D., and Augustine Lawlor. The Gendpaktners of HCPVII share all voting and investmamwer on behalf
of HCPVII. Beneficial ownership information is basen information known to us and a Schedule 13&ifivith the SE(
on January 3, 2012 by HCVVII, HCPVII, James H. Geauggh, Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, John W. Littlechidhristophe
Mirabelli, Ph.D., and Augustine Lawlor.

HealthCare Partners VII, L.P. ("HCPVII") is the Geal Partner of HCVVII. The General Partners of NMORwre James
H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, John Wldgttild, Christopher Mirabelli, Ph.D., and Augustihawlor. The
General Partners of HCPVII share all voting andstment power on behalf of HCPVII. Beneficial owstép
information is based on information known to us arfsichedule 13D filed with the SEC on January 3226y HCVVII,
HCPVII, James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Harold R. Werdan W. Littlechild, Christopher Mirabelli, Ph,and Augustin
Lawlor.

Includes (i) 15,173 shares of common stock (theP@B Common Shares") held directly by OBP IV; (iiB22,520
shares of common stock (the "OBP IV Conversion &iaand, together with the OBP IV Common Shares; @BP |V
Saints Shares") issuable to OBP IV upon the coimersf 48,641 shares of our series A-1 preferredlsheld directly by
OBP 1V, 108,628 shares of our series A-2 prefestedk held directly by OBP IV and 24,983 shareswfseries A-3
preferred stock held directly by OBP IV; (iii) 15hares of common stock (the "mRNA 1l Common Sharesld directly
by mRNA lI; (iv) 18,260 shares of common stock (theRNA Il Conversion Shares" and, together with tie@NA 11
Common Shares, the "mRNA Saints Il Shares") issuabimRNA Il upon the conversion of 486 shareswfseries A-1
preferred stock held directly by mRNA 11, 1,090 skgaof our series A-2 preferred stock held direbgymRNA 1l and
250 shares of our seriesPpreferred stock held directly by mRNA 1l. The OBPSaints Shares and the mRNA Saint
Shares are referred to herein as the "Saints Shadites Saints Shares are indirectly held by Sdiftsa member of OBP
IV and Saints LLC, the sole general partner of &dif?, and the individual managers of Saints LL@e Thdividual
managers of Saints LLC are Scott Halsted, Davi@uHnlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer. The individualnagers of
Saints LLC share all voting and investment powebehalf of Saints LLC. Additionally, other than tvitespect to the
common stock issuable upon the conversion of th@448shares of our serieslApreferred stock held directly by OBP
and the 486 shares of our series A-1 preferreksteld directly by mRNA I, the Saints Shares anditiectly held by
OBP LP, a member of OBP IV. The mRNA Il Sharesiadérectly held by mRNA LP, a member of mRNA II. &saints
Shares are indirectly held by (i) OBP Managementlii¢ sole general partner of each of OBP LP antlARP and

(if) Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the indivddigeneral partners of OBP Management IV. Jonafieming and
Alan Walton, the individual general partners of OBBnagement IV, share all voting and investmentgroon behalf of
OBP Management IV. Each of the entities and indiald
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mentioned above disclaim beneficial ownership waiitthie meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Adthberwise of
such portion of the Saints Shares in which suchyenit individual has no actual pecuniary interésgtrein. Beneficial
ownership information is based on information kndemis and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on RIay2011 by
OBP IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OBP Management IVaiits LP, Saints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walt®cott
Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 48,641 shares of our series A-1 prefesteck held directly by OBP IV (the "OBP IV A-1 Sleafl), and 486
shares of our series A-1 preferred stock held thiréy mRNA 1l (together with the OBP IV A-1 Shardke "Saints A-1
Shares"). The Saints AShares are indirectly held by Saints LP, a mernb&BP IV and mRNA I, Saints LLC, the s¢
general partner of Saints LP, and the individuahaggers of Saints LLC. The individual managers oftSd_.LC are Scott
Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyéie individual managers of Saints LLC share atingpand
investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eachtgmtientioned above and Messrs. Halsted, Quinlivah@awyer
disclaim beneficial ownership within the meaningSefction 16 of the Exchange Act or otherwise ohguartion of the
Saints A-1 Shares in which such entity or individuas no actual pecuniary interest therein. Berafawwvnership
information is based on information known to us arfsichedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 27, 263 DBP IV,
MRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OBP Management IV, Saints, $aints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Sétatsted,
David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 108,628 shares of our series A-2 prefesteck held directly by OBP IV (the "OBP IV A-2 Siea") and 1,090
shares of our series A-2 preferred stock held tiréy mRNA Il (together with the OBP IV A-2 Sharghe "Saints A-2
Shares"). The Saints A-2 Shares are indirectly hgl®BP Management 1V, the sole general partneach of OBP LP
and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton,ititévidual general partners of OBP Management 18in& LP, a
member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sgkneral partner of Saints LP; and Scott Halstedjd®.
Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individualnagers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alantdviathe
individual general partners of OBP Management hare all voting and investment power on behalf BPOManagemet
IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennBthSawyer, the individual managers of Saints LL@rstall voting an
investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eachheféntities and individuals mentioned above distlaéneficial
ownership within the meaning of Section 16 of txetange Act or otherwise of such portion of then&aA-2 Shares in
which such entity or individual has no actual peagninterest therein. Beneficial ownership infotioa is based on
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwihie SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA II, mRKAnd I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonafflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qiviah, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 24,983 shares of our series A-3 prefesteck held directly by OBP IV (the "OBP IV A-3 Sleaf'); and 250
shares of our series A-3 preferred stock held thiréay mRNA 1l (together with the OBP IV A-3 Shardke "Saints A-3
Shares"). The Saints A-3 Shares are indirectly hgl®@BP Management IV, the sole general partneach of OBP LP
and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton,itldévidual general partners of OBP Management I&in& LP, a
member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sgkneral partner of Saints LP; and Scott HalstedjdR.
Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individualnagers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alantdtiakhe
individual general partners of OBP Management R4re all voting and investment power on behalf BPOManagemet
IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennBthSawyer, the individual managers of Saints LL@rslell voting an
investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eachheféntities and individuals mentioned above distlaéneficial
ownership within the meaning of Section 16 of tixel&nge Act or otherwise of such portion of then&A-3 Shares in
which such entity or individual has no actual peanninterest therein. Beneficial ownership infotioa is based on
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwine SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA I, mRIRAnd I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonaflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qiviah, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 435,960 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 43,596 shares of our series Aetepred stock (the
"BBBV LP A-1 preferred stock"), and 1,051,620 stsané common stock issuable upon conversion of Bbghares of
our series A-2 preferred stock (together with tleBB LP A-1 preferred stock the "BBBV LP Shares'$ugd to BB
Biotech Ventures Il L.P. ("BBBV LP") in the Mergaand 409,400 shares of common stock issuable upovecsion of
40,940 shares of our series A-1 preferred stoaleis$o BBBV LP at subsequent closings of our sekidspreferred
stock financing. BB Biotech Ventures GP (Guerndag)ited ("BBBV Limited") is the General Partner BBBV LP. Jan
Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, and Ben Morgan are tleetirs of BBB Limited and share all investment aating power
with respect to these shares. Additionally, Maliilnchbach, the Senior Investment Advisor Privataifycat Bellevue
Asset Management AG, advises Asset Management BAB (NVAMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agreernaith
BAM AG, advises the directors of BBBV Limited, mhg deemed to have voting and investment contral theeshares
held by BBBV LP given such advisory role. Each o
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foregoing, except BBBV LP in the case of the BBBW Bhares, disclaims beneficial ownership of the BRI Share:
except to the extent of their pecuniary interestemm, if any. Beneficial ownership informationbiased on information
known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SE@®ecember 29, 2011 by BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, JaodBsma,
Pascal Mahieux, Ben Morgan, and Martin Minchbach.

BB Biotech Ventures GP (Guernsey) Limited ("BBB\nited") is the General Partner of BBBV LP. Jan Bowd, Pasci
Mahieux, and Ben Morgan are the directors of BBBiteéd and share all investment and voting poweln wéspect to
these shares. Additionally, Martin Minchbach, tkeaiSr Investment Advisor Private Equity at Belle\Agset
Management AG, advises Asset Management BAB NAMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agreement \&itkiv
AG, advises the directors of BBBV Limited, may keeched to have voting and investment control ovesstiares held k
BBBYV LP given such advisory role. Each of the farieg), except BBBV LP in the case of the BBBV LP &isa
disclaims beneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Slsescept to the extent of their pecuniary intetlestein, if any.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infation known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$EC on
December 29, 2011 by BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Booa, Pascal Mahieux, Ben Morgan, and Martin Miachb

Includes the OBP IV Shares and the mRNA |l Sharks. OBP IV Shares are indirectly held by OBP Lieamber of
OBP IV. The mRNA Il Shares are indirectly held bRMA LP, a member of mRNA Il. The Oxford Shares iadirectly
held by OBP Management IV, the sole general padheach of OBP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming) &lan
Walton, the individual general partners of OBP Mgeraent IV; Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and mRNA |
Saints LLC, the sole general partner of Saintsdriet Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KenrtBawyer, the
individual managers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Flenand Alan Walton, the individual general partner©8P
Management IV, share all voting and investment pawebehalf of OBP Management IV. Scott HalstedviD#.
Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individualnagers of Saints LLC share all voting and investnpemwer on
behalf of Saints LLC. Each of the entities and witlials mentioned above disclaim beneficial ownigrs¥ithin the
meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or otleswf such portion of the OBP IV Shares and mRNAd-II Shares
in which such entity or individual has no actuatyeiary interest therein. Beneficial ownership mfation is based on
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwiie SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA II, mRKAnd I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonafflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qiviah, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 108,628 shares of our series A-2 prefesteck held directly by OBP IV and 1,090 shareswfseries A-2
preferred stock held directly by mRNA Il. The OxdoA-2 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manageni¢nthe sole
general partner of each of OBP LP and mRNA LP; tlmraFleming and Alan Walton, the individual geheartners of
OBP Management IV; Saints LP, a member of OBP I mfRNA IlI; Saints LLC, the sole general partnefSaints LP;
and Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KeniietBawyer, the individual managers of Saints LL&athan Fleming
and Alan Walton, the individual general partner©&P Management IV, share all voting and investnpenter on beha
of OBP Management IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managdr

Saints LLC share all voting and investment powebehalf of Saints LLC. Each of the entities andvitthals mentioned
above disclaim beneficial ownership within the niegrof Section 16 of the Exchange Act or othervgigsuch portion ¢
the Saints A-2 Shares in which such entity or iiilial has no actual pecuniary interest therein.eieial ownership
information is based on information known to us arfsichedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 27, 263 DBP IV,
MRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OBP Management IV, Saints, $aints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Sétatsted,
David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 24,983 shares of our series A-3 prefesteck held directly by OBP IV and 250 shares of senies A-3
preferred stock held directly by mRNA Il. The OxdoA-3 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manageni¢nthe sole
general partner of each of OBP LP and mRNA LP; tlmraFleming and Alan Walton, the individual geheartners of
OBP Management IV; Saints LP, a member of OBP I mfRNA IlI; Saints LLC, the sole general partnefSaints LP;
and Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KentetBawyer, as the individual managers of Saintst@la@ranite, LLC
Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the individuaieyal partners of OBP Management 1V, share alingpéind
investment power on behalf of OBP Management \otSdalsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. $armyvthe
individual managers of Saints LLC share all votamgl investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eafttne entities ar
individuals mentioned above disclaim beneficial ewahip within the meaning of Section 16 of the Eatde Act or
otherwise of such portion of the Saints A-2 Shameshich such entity or individual has no actuatyiary interest
therein. Beneficial ownership information is basednformation known to us and a Schedule 13D filéith the SEC on
May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OB®anagement IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonathan Fgm
Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, &wehneth B. Sawye
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Includes 204,160 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 20,416 shares of our seriekpkeferred stock, ar
560,860 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 56,086 shares of our series A-2 prefertedks Healthcare
Private Equity Limited Partnership ("HPELP") isimited partnership which has one general partnexy&tiey
Healthcare Private Equity Limited ("Waverley GPhdaone limited partner, Scottish Widows plc. As grah partner,
Waverley GP has authority under the HPELP limitadnpership agreement ("LPA") to conduct and marihgdusiness
of HPELP. Andrew November and Archie Strutherstheedirectors of Waverly GP and share all of thiéngpand
investment power over the shares held by HPELP.cbhérolling shareholder of Waverley GP is SWIP @rdimited.
The ultimate controlling entity of SWIP Group Lired is Lloyds Banking Group plc, a public listed gany with many
shareholders. The board of directors of Lloyds Bagmksroup plc consists of nine non-executive dwex{Sir Winifried
Bischoff, Lord Leitch, Anita Frew, Glen Moreno, De\Roberts, T Timothy Ryan Jr., Martin Scicluna arhony
Watson) and three executive directors (Antonitotbk@sorio, G Truett Tate and Tim Tookey). The Ciain (Sir
Winifried Bischoff) is responsible for leadershiptbe board. The Group Chief executive (Antonio tdeDsorio) is
responsible for the day to day management of tisebas of Lloyds Banking Group plc, in accordandé the strategy
and long term objectives approved by the board.nihe non-executive directors and three executirextbrs of Lloyds
Banking Group plc do not have any sole or shard¢mgmr investment power with respect to the shaedd by HPELP.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infation known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$iEC on
January 27, 2012 by HPELP, Waverly GP, ScottishdMivs plc and Lloyds Banking Group plc.

Includes 1,228,200 shares of common stock issugiga conversion of 122,820 shares of our seriegpeferred stock.
Brookside Capital Investors, L.P. ("Brookside Inees") is the sole general partner of Brooksidei@apartners

Fund, L.P. ("Partners Fund"). Brookside Capital Bigement, LLC is the sole general partner of Bratkénvestors. The
control persons of Brookside Capital Managemen&xexutive Committee members: Dewey J. Awad, Doméni
Ferrante, Matthew V. McPherron, William E. PappekdV and John M. Toussaint. The Executive Comraitteembers
share all voting and investment power on behaBroiokside Capital Management, LLC. Beneficial ovamngp
information is based on information known to us arfsichedule 13D filed with the SEC on February0lL22by Partners
Fund.

Includes 1,228,200 shares of common stock issugima conversion of 122,820 shares of our seriegpfeferred stock.
Biotech Growth N.V. ("Biotech Growth") is a whollywned subsidiary of BB Biotech AG ("BB Biotech")ad directors
and executive officers of BB Biotech are Dr. ThorbasSzucs, Chairman and Director; Dr. Clive Mearnwéice
Chairman and Director; and Dr. Erich Hunziker, Btor. The directors and executive officers of Babt€srowth are

Dr. Thomas D. Szucs, Statutory Director; Deannan@iig, Statutory Director; and Hugo Jan van Neutedgtatutory
Director. Beneficial ownership information is basedinformation known to us and a Schedule 13DQifiléth the SEC o
January 3, 2012 by BB Biotech and Biotech Growtte @irectors and executive officers of BB Biotecdk 8iotech
Growth share all voting and investment power withprect to these shares.

Includes 173,260 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 17,326 shares of our series Aetepred stock.
Ipsen Pharma SAS ("Ipsen Pharma") is a sociétagans simplifiée organized under the laws of Eeaand is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Ipsen S.A. ("Ipsen”), a soc#tényme organized under the laws of France. Ipseajority
shareholder is Mayroy, a société anonyme organinelér the laws of Luxembourg. The directors andetiee officers
of Ipsen Pharma are Christophe Jean, Director;del@ertrand, Director; Etienne De Blois, Directehilippe Robert-
Gorsse, Director; Eric Drape, Director; Claire GireDirector; Jean Fabre, Director; Jean-Pierreuaubirector; Didier
Veron, Director; and Marc De Garidel, Presidente Tirectors of Ipsen are Marc De Garidel, Direetod Chief
Executive Officer; Anne Beaufour, Director; Hened&ufour, Director; Hervé Couffin, Director; Antoiféochel,
Director; Gérard Hauser, Director; Pierre Martiritector; René Merkt, Director; Yves Rambaud, Dicg; Klaus-Peter
Schwabe, Director and Christophe Vérot, Directdre Executive officers of Ipsen are Claire Giratigiihe de Blois,
Christophe Jean, Claude Bertrand, and Eric Drape.directors of Mayroy are Anne Beaufour, AntoinecRel, Beech
Tree SA, Bee Master B.V. Holding BV, Henri Beaufokifaus Peter Schwabe, and Jean-Pierre Diehl. Tketdrs and
officers of Ipsen, Mayroy and Ipsen Pharma shdrecting and investment powers with respect to ¢hesares. Benefici
ownership information is based on information kndemis and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC ore 28) 2011 by
Ipsen Pharma and Ipsen.

Includes 64,430 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 6,443 shares of our series A-5apredl stock held
by Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A/SNprdic VII"). Nordic VII beneficially owns 0.40%fahe Fully-
Diluted Shares. Nordic VIl is a wholly-owned subarg of Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development A{Slordic A/S").
Nordic A/S is whollyewned subsidiary of Nordic Bioscience Holding A’Si¢rdic Holding"). Nordic Holding is majorit
owned by C.C. Consulting A/S ("C.C. Consulting")a@s Chrstiansen, MD, and Bente Riis Chrstianseh ean 50% of
C.C. Consulting and share all voting ¢
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investment power with respect to these sharesentites and individuals mentioned above disclaandficial ownershi
of the share except to the extent of their pecyriigerest therein. Beneficial ownership informatie based on
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwie SEC on January 20, 2012 by Nordic VII.

Includes 163,880 options to purchase our commarkstoticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysrditecember 31,
2011.

Includes 852 options to purchase our common statikipated to be exercisable within 60 days aftec&@mber 31, 2011.

Includes (i) 15,627 shares of common stock hellbyKatzenellenbogen and (ii) 40,438 shares of camistock held b
the John A. Katzenellenbogen Trust Under Agreerdaéd August 2, 1999 (the "Katzenellenbogen Trust")

Mr. Katzenellenbogen is the trustee of the Katdenbbgen Trust. The Katzenellenbogen Trust maydeeng:d to
beneficially own the shares held by Mr. Katzenddlagen.

Includes 30,498 options to purchase our commorkstoticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysrdtecember 31,
2011.

Includes (i) 699 options to purchase our commoanksgmticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysrditecember 31,
2011, (ii) 49,641 shares of common stock held byHdtts and (iii) 20,291 shares of common stock bglthe Dr. John
Potts, Jr and Susanne K. Potts Irrevocable Trustigphen K. Potts dated 6-15-05 (the "Potts TyuBt. Potts is a
trustee of the Potts Trust. Dr. Potts may be deexmééneficially own the shares held by the PottssT

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

See Part I, Item 5, "Equity CompensatitemRnformation.”
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
Transactions with Related Persons

Since January 1, 2011, we have engagdukifotlowing transactions with our directors, extdaei officers and holders of more than five
percent of our voting securities, and affiliatesmmediate family members of our directors, exeaitfficers and holders of more than five
percent of our voting securities. We believe thadfathese transactions were on terms as favorableould have been obtained from unrelated
third parties.

Reporting and Overhead

From October 2010 until the closing of Merger, the Former Operating Company funded oupimggExchange Act filing requirements
and other costs associated with investigating awadlyaing an acquisition. Management estimates aunbunts to be de minimis. We have used
the office space and equipment of MPM Asset ManagerLC, our sole stockholder prior to the redempttompleted in connection with the
Merger, and those of the Former Operating Compeoy time to time, in all cases, at no cost to us.

Transactions with Former Operating Company RelatedPersons

As described above, Dr. Lyttle, a formeedtor and current Chief Scientific Officer, wag tAresident and Chief Executive Officer of the
Former Operating Company prior to the Merger, aacheof Dr. Lyttle and Mr. Auerbach, Dr. Gadicke aid Fleming, each current directors,
served as directors of the Former Operating Compaioy to the Merger. In addition, certain investrhunds affiliated with MPM Asset
Management LLC (our sole stockholder prior to thertyer), including MPM BioVentures Il Fund, werev@stors in the Former Operating
Company prior to the Merger. Dr. Gadicke, the Mangdirector of MPM Capital was a control persoroafs prior to the Merger and
affiliated with major stockholders of the Formeredating Company prior to the Merger. The shared hgIMPM Asset Management LLC
were repurchased by us for an aggregate purchaseqir$50,000 plus reimbursement of certain cfustgrior audit and legal fees, SEC filing
fees, taxes and postage in the aggregate amo@atl6f725 contemporaneously with the closing ofMteeger.

Series A-1 Preferred Stock Financing

On May 11, 2011, certain accredited invessho a series A-1 convertible preferred stockiitiag entered into an irrevocable legally
binding commitment to purchase $64.3 million ofieg®\-1 preferred stock in three closings. The fitesing occurred on May 17, 2011 and
resulted in gross proceeds of approximately $24lMbomthrough the sale of 2,631,845 shares offbemer Operating Company's series A-1
preferred stock. Those shares were exchanged Mehger for an aggregate of 263,177 shares of eties A-1 preferred stock. The second
closing occurred on November 18, 2011 and we recdegross proceeds of approximately $21.4 millionudlgh the sale of 263,178 shares of
our series At preferred stock. The third closing occurred orddeber 14, 2011 and we received gross proceegspobdmately $21.4 milliol
through the sale of 263,180 shares of series Aefemed stock. Each share of our series A-1 prediestock is convertible into 10 shares of our
common stock.
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The following table sets forth the numbesloares of our series A-1 preferred stock thatsseed at the three closings:

Shares of

series A-1
Name(1) preferred stock
Entities affiliated with MPM Capital(2 384,26:
The Wellcome Trus 76,56¢
HealthCare Ventures V 58,95:
Entities affiliated with Saints Capital(: 49,127
BB Biotech Ventures | 84,53¢t
Scottish Widows (Healthcare Private Equ 20,41¢
Raymond F. Schina: 1,487
David E. Thompson Revocable Tri 58¢
H.Watt Gregory, Ill 397
The Richman Trus 19t
Breining Family Trus 12C
Brookside 122,82(
Biotech Growth N.V. 122,82(
Ipsen 17,32¢
Total 939,61

(D) See "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Overend Management and Related Stockholder Mattershére information abot
shares held by these entities.

2) Consists of 15,096 shares issued to MPM BioVentlites.P., 224,528 shares issued to MPM BioVensulie-QP, L.P., 18,975 shares
issued to MPM BioVentures IIl GmbH & Co. BeteiliggmK.G., 6,779 shares issued to MPM BioVenturePdllallel Fund, L.P., 4,346
shares issued to MPM Asset Management Investor3 BRIl LLC and 114,537 shares issued to MPM BioNW'S Strategic
Fund, L.P.

(3) Consists of 48,641 shares issued to OB—Holdings LLC and 486 mRNA —Holdings LLC.
Series A-5 Preferred Stock Issuance

Concurrently with the first closing of teeries A-1 preferred stock financing, the Formee@png Company issued 64,430 shares of
series A-5 Preferred Stock to Nordic for gross paats of approximately $0.5 million. These sharegw&changed in the Merger for 6,443
shares of our series A-5 convertible preferredkstoc

Our Stockholders' Agreement

The stockholders' agreement among us andtockholders, which is filed as an exhibit testhéport, provides our stockholders with
certain resale, demand and piggback registratgimgi The registration rights provisions of ourcktwlders' agreement also contains custol
crossindemnification provisions, pursuant to which we abligated to indemnify the selling stockholdershe event of material misstatem
or omissions in a registration statement attribletédn us, and the selling stockholders are obldy&andemnify the us for material
misstatements or omissions attributable to them.

161




Table of Contents
Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transaatins

Our board of directors has adopted a writedated person transaction policy to set forthghblicies and procedures for the review and
approval or ratification of related person trangad. This policy covers, with certain exceptioesferth in Item 404 of Regulation S-K under
the Securities Act, any transaction, arrangemenglationship, or any series of similar transactiarrangements or relationships in which we
were or are to be a participant, where the amowatived exceeds $120,000 and a related personrhaill bave a direct or indirect material
interest, including, without limitation, purchasgfsgoods or services by or from the related permoentities in which the related person has a
material interest, indebtedness, guarantees obtadaess and employment by us of a related person.

As provided by our audit committee chartenm, audit committee will be responsible for reviegvand approving in advance any related
party transaction.

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined &lladf our directors, other than Mr. Wyzga, aredpdndent directors, as defined by the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC. Iningakuch determination, the board of directors wered the relationships that each such
non-employee director has with our company andthkr facts and circumstances that the board etttirs deemed relevant in determining
their independence, including the beneficial owhigref our capital stock by each non-employee dxec

There are no family relationships among ahgur directors or executive officers.

For additional information regarding oureditors and their committee memberships see Raltelin 10, "Directors, Executive Officers
and Corporate Governance."

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Ernst & Young LLP provided audit servicesie Company consisting of the annual audit ofGbenpany's 2011 consolidated financial
statements contained in the Company's Annual RegpoForm 10-K and reviews of the financial stateta@ontained in the Company's
Quarterly Reports on Form 1Q-for fiscal year 2011. The following table sumrmaas the fees of Ernst & Young LLP billed to the Qamy for
the last two fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Fiscal
Fee Category 2011 % of Total 2010 % of Total
(dollars in thousands)
Audit Fees) $ 32¢ 60.6%$ 105 48.2%
Audit-Related Fee®) 19¢ 34.4% 10z 47 5%
Tax Feedd 59 1.7% 9 4.1%
Total Fees $ 57¢ 10C%$ 217 10(%

Q) Audit fees consist of fees for the audit of our @alrfinancial statements and review of the intefilmncial statements included in our
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q during fiscal ye@t 2.

(2)  Audit-related fees consist of fees for assurance anttdetrvices that are reasonably related to tHernpeance of the audit and tl
review of our financial statements and which areraported under "Audit Fees". Auditlated fees reported in fiscal year 2011 rela
the review of registration statements on Form ®d.leorm S-8, and filings on Form 8-K.

(3) Tax fees consist of fees for tax compliance, taxadand tax planning services. Tax complianceisesy which relate to the review
our U.S. tax returns, accounted for $9,000 andGEBdd the
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total tax fees for fiscal year 2011 and 2010, re8pely. Fiscal year 2011 tax fees also includeragimately $50,000 of fees for tax
advice and planning services.

The Audit Committee has adopted a forméicgaoncerning approval of audit and non-audivgss to be provided to the Company by
its independent registered public accounting flEmst & Young LLP. The policy requires that all\6ees to be provided by Ernst & Young
LLP, including audit services and permitted audiated and non-audit services, must be pre-approydde Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee pre-approved all audit and non-auditisesv/provided by Ernst & Young LLP during fiscall20and fiscal 2010.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES.
(@) Financial Statements

The following financial statements and depgentary data are included in Part Il of Iteml&diof this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm 84
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 85
Statements of Operations for the years ended Dese8ih 2011, 201

and 200¢ 86

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Reden@dnvertible Preferre
Stock and Stockholders' Deficit for the years endedember 31, 2011, 2010

and 200¢ 87
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Dese®ih 2011, 201

and 200¢ 89
Notes to Financial Statemer 9C

(b) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have bamitted because they are not applicable or areewptired, or because the information requ
to be set forth therein is included in the consaikdl financial statements or notes thereto.

(c) Exhibits
The Exhibit Index follows the signature padnereof and is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, régistrant has duly caused this annual r¢
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedeti@o duly authorized.

RADIUS HEALTH, INC.

By: /s/ MICHAEL S. WYZGA

Michael S. Wyzga
President and Chief Executive Offic
Date: February 6, 201

SIGNATURES AND POWER OF ATTORNEY

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this annual report hanistgned by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ MICHAEL S. WYZGA President, Chief Executive Officer and

Director (Principal Executive Officer)

February 6, 201
Michael S. Wyzg:

s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY Chief Financial Officer (Principal

Accounting and Financial Officer)

February 6, 2012
B. Nicholas Harve!

/sl ALAN H. AUERBACH

Director February 6, 2012
Alan H. Auerbact
/s/ JONATHAN J. FLEMING
Director February 6, 2012
Jonathan J. Flemir
/s/ ANSBERT K. GADICKE
Director February 6, 2012
Ansbert K. Gadicki
/sl KURT C. GRAVES
Director February 6, 2012
Kurt C. Graves
/sI MARTIN MUNCHBACH
Director February 6, 2012
Martin Miinchbact
/s/ ELIZABETH STONER
Director February 6, 2012

Elizabeth Stone
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Exhibit No.
2.1

3.1

3.2

41

10.1

10.Z

10.:

10.4

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.€

10.1(

10.11

10.1%

10.1:

(9)

(16)

()

(13)

(8)(9)

(13)

(6)

(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(14)

(10)

(10)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 25, 2

Certificate of Incorporation, as amenc
By-Laws, as amende

Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreement, datefiMay 17, 2011, as
amended, by and among the Company and the stoakisgidrty theretc

Clinical Trial Services Agreement and Work Statetri¢B-1, dated March 29,
2011, by and between the Company, as successadiofHealth, Inc., and
Nordic BioScience Clinical Development VII A

Clinical Trial Services Agreement Amendment Noo MWork Statement NB;
effective as of December 9, 2011, by and betweerCdmpany and Nordic
Bioscience Clinical Development VII A/

Amended and Restated Stock Issuance Agreement] Metg 16, 2011, by ar
between the Company, as successor to Radius Healthand Nordic
BioScience Clinical Development VII A/

Side Letter, dated March 29, 2011, by and betwkerCompany, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Nordic BioScience ChhiDevelopment VII A/<

License Agreement, dated September 27, 2005, bypaiwteen the Company,
as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and SCRAS SAS, oalbehitself and its
Affiliates

Pharmaceutical Development Agreement, dated Jard&§06, by and
between the Company, as successor to Radius Heathand Beaufour Ipsen
Industrie SAS

Amendment No. 1 to Pharmaceutical Development Ages#, dated
January 1, 2007, by and between the Company, asssar to Radius
Health, Inc., and Beaufour Ipsen Industrie £

License Agreement Amendment No. 1, dated Septedthet007, by and
between the Company, as successor to Radius Healthand SCRAS SA

Amendment No. 2 to Pharmaceutical Development Agesd, dated
January 1, 2009, by and between the Company, asssar to Radius
Health, Inc., and Beaufour Ipsen Industrie £

Amendment No. 3 to Pharmaceutical Development Agesg, dated June 16,
2010, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., and
Beaufour Ipsen Industrie S£

Amendment No. 4 to Pharmaceutical Development Agesd, entered into as
of December 15, 2011, by and between the Compashaaufour Ipsen
Industrie S.A.S

License Agreement Amendment No. 2, dated May 1112By and between
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.|psen Pharma SA

Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock Issuanceefigrent, dated May 11,
2011, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., and
Ipsen Pharma SA
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Exhibit No.
10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

10.21

10.22

10.2:

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3(

(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(15)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

Description
Development and Manufacturing Services &grent, dated October 16, 2007,
by and between the Company, as successor to Rddalth, Inc., and LONZ/
Sales Ltd

Work Order No. 2, dated January 15, 2010, by atddrn the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and LONZA Satds

Amendment No. 3 to Work Order No.2, dated Decenise2010, by and
between the Company, as successor to Radius Heathand LONZA
Sales Ltd

Work Order No. 4, dated December 23, 2011, by ateiden the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and LONZA Satds

Development and Clinical Supplies Agreement, ddtete 19, 2009, by and
among the Company, as successor to Radius Headth ahd 3M Co. and 3M
Innovative Properties Ci

Amendment No. 1, dated December 31, 2009, to thé&8Welopment
Agreement, by and among the Company, as succesBRadius Health, Inc.,
and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative Properties !

Amendment No. 2, dated September 16, 2010, tokh®8velopment
Agreement, by and among the Company, as succesBRadius Health, Inc.,
and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative Properties !

Amendment No. 3, dated September 29, 2010, tokh®8velopment
Agreement, by and among the Company, as succesBRadius Health, Inc.,
and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative Properties !

Change Order Form—Amendment No. 5, dated Februa2@#1, to the 3M
Development Agreement, by and among the Comparsuy@asessor to Radius
Health, Inc., and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative PromsriCo.

Amendment No. 4, dated March 2, 2011, to the 3Mdbepment Agreement,
by and among the Company, as successor to RadalthHknc., and 3M Co.
and 3M Innovative Properties C

Change Order Form #6, dated June 20, 2011, toNhB&velopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #7, dated August 2, 2011, t@kh®evelopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #8, dated July 28, 2011, to kh®8velopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Addendum to Change Order Form #8, dated Augus?Q®], to the 3M
Development Agreement, by and between the Compadhy3 &

Change Order Form #9, dated August 12, 2011, t@th®evelopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #10, dated October 3, 2011 et@Ith Development
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Laboratory Services and Confidentiality Agreemelated March 31, 2004, by
and between the Company, as successor to Nuvinsaimd Charles River
Laboratories, Inc
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Exhibit No.
10.31

10.32

10.3:

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3i

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.4(

10.41

10.4%

10.4:

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.47

(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(10)

(17)

1)

(2)(3)

(2)(3)

(2)3)

(2)3)

)

(2)(3)

(2)(3)

(2)(3)

(2)3)

(2)3)

Description
First Amendment to Laboratory Services @uafidentiality Agreement, dated
November 7, 2008, by and between the Company,@essor to Radit
Health, Inc., and Charles River Laboratories,

Letter of Payment Authorization, dated NovemberZZil0, by and between
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.Charles River
Laboratories Preclinical Services Montréal |

Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Februarg@(1, by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., iadl€s River Laboratories
Preclinical Services Montréal In

License Agreement, dated June 29, 2006, by andeeetthe Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Eisai Cd.,

Series A-1 Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 26¢nd among the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc.,lenthtestors listed therein,
as amende

Amendment No. 1 to Series A-1 Convertible Prefe@eatk Purchase
Agreement, dated May 11, 20

Redemption Agreement, by and between MPM Acquisi@orp. and MPM
Asset Management LLC, dated April 25, 2(

Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) 2003 Lofgrm Incentive Plan,
assumed in the Merg

Radius Health, Inc. First Amendment to 2003 LongnT éncentive Plan
effective as of December 15, 2006, assumed in thegy bt

Radius Health, Inc. Second Amendment to 2003 Loegrlincentive Plan
effective as of March 28, 2008, assumed in the ke

Radius Health, Inc. Third Amendment to 2003 Longriéncentive Plan
effective as of November 14, 2008, assumed in tbegir

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plamfr of Stock Option
Agreemen

Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) 2003 Lofgrm Incentive Plan Stock
Option Agreement, dated October 28, 2004, by amndd®En the Company, as
successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Richard Lyttle fgtiGn No. 0~103

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweetmepany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for Optida. 07-08

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between tmepgaay, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for Optida. 0¢-09

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betviee@ampany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Richard é yttt Option No. 0-14

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated February 15, 2006, by and bettvee@ompany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'De®ption No. 0-07
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Exhibit No.
10.4¢

10.4¢

10.5(

10.51

10.52

10.5:

10.5¢

10.5¢

10.5¢

10.57

10.5¢

10.5¢

10.6(

10.61

10.62

10.6:

(2)(@3)

(2)(3)

(2)3)

(2)3)

(2)3)

(2)3)

(2)(3)

(2)(3)

(2)(3)

(2)(3)

(2)3)

(3)(10)

(3)(10)

(4)
(4)

(4)

Description
Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IntbexnPlan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweetmepany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Option N¢-07

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between tmepg@ay, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Option B€-05

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betviee@ampany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'De®ption No. 0-10

Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) 2003 Lofigrm Incentive Plan Stock
Option Agreement, dated December 16, 2003, by ahdden the Company,
successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Gary HattersleyOiption No. 0:-001

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated February 15, 2006, by and bettvee@ompany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Ha&efsir Option No. 0-02

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweeRtmapany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley for Opftit;m 07-06

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thepgaay, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley for Opfit;m 0¢-08

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betveeGdmpany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hagtefelr Option No. 0-13

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweetmepany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Nick Harvey for Option 0@-09

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between tmepg@ay, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Nick Harvey for Option 198-06

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plarehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betviee@ampany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Nick HareeyOption No. 0-11

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Pléock Option Agreement,
dated October 12, 2010, by and between the ComaaahyAlan Auerbach for
Option No. 101

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Pléock Option Agreement,
dated October 12, 2010, by and between the ComgrachyAlan Auerbach for
Option No. 102

Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive P

Form of Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity IncentivarPStock Option
Agreemen

Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan tOption Agreement, dated
November 7, 2011, by and between the Company amdXuGraves fo
Option No. 1-01
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Exhibit No
10.6¢

10.6¢

10.6¢

10.67

10.6¢

10.6¢

10.7(

10.71

10.72

10.7:

10.7¢

10.7¢

10.7¢

10.77

10.7¢

10.7¢

10.8(

10.81

10.8-

10.8:

(4)

(2)

(12)

()

(@)

(@)

(12)

(18)

(2)

(@)

(@)

)

)

)

(@)

(18)

(2)

(2)

(2)

(@)

Description
Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity IncentivarPStatutory Stock Option
Agreement, dated November 7, 2011, by and betwee@bompany and Kurt
C. Graves for Option No. -02

Employment Letter Agreement, dated July 2, 2004aiy between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and C. RidBdmund Lyttle

Transition Agreement, dated December 1, 2011, bytetween the Company
and C. Richard Edmund Lytt

Employment Letter Agreement, November 14, 2003ty between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Gariekséy

Employment Letter Agreement, dated January 30, 200@&nd between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., ané1lO'Dee

Employment Letter Agreement, dated November 156209 and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., aiidBolas Harve

Letter Agreement, dated December 1, 2011, by atwdes the Company and
Michael S. Wyzg:i

Employment Letter Agreement, dated November 9, 2B¢%nd between the
Company and Louis Brenn

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bg between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., axsthét K. Gadick

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bg between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., afddBard Edmund Lyttl

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bg between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., aaxtifVMinchbact

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bg between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., @amatldan Flemin

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bg between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., amd®raves

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bg between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., imabeth Stone

Indemnification Agreement, dated October 12, 2@}0and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., #udl Auerbact

Indemnification Agreement, dated December 5, 20%1and between the
Company and Michael S. Wyz

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@93nd between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and MicRaskenblatt, M.D

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@93nd between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Chhigtoplirabelli

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@93nd between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Augeit@wlor

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@§3and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Edwastchdli, M.D.
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Exhibit No.
10.8¢

10.8¢

10.8¢

10.8i

10.8¢

10.8¢

10.9(

10.91

10.92

10.9¢

10.9¢

10.9¢

10.9¢

10.97

10.9¢

10.9¢

23.1

31.1

31.z

(7)

(7)

()

(2)(3)

(13)

(13)

()

(5)

(5)

()

(11)

()

(5)

(11)

(11)

(7)

(18)

(18)

(18)

Description
Consent to Sublease, dated January 14, ®1dnd among the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., Sonos, Inc. Brnddway/Hampshire
Associates Limited Partnerst

Sublease, dated January 14, 2011, by and betwedDatmpany, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Sonos, |

Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase Commeok, $tated May 17,
2011, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., and
SVB Financial Grouj

Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 Convertible Predesteck, dated May 17,
2011, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., and
Leerink Swann LLC

Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 Convertible Prefiesteck issued by the
Company to Leerink Swann LLC on November 18, 2

Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 Convertible Prefesteck issued by the
Company to Leerink Swann LLC on December 14, Z

Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 23, 201th ®eneral Electric
Capital Corporation as agent and a lender, andr@mance LLC as a lend

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCthmpany to General
Electric Capital Corporation in the principal amobohup to $12,500,00

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCthmpany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of $3,125,(

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCthmpany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of up to $9,3®

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCthmpany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of up to $6,Z8D

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Converfibéferred Stock, dated
May 23, 2011, issued by the Company to GE Capitalitlf Investment:

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Converfibéferred Stock, dated
May 23, 2011, issued by the Company to Oxford Fiear C

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Converfibéferred Stock, dated
November 21, 2011, issued by the Company to GEt&8ldpguity Investment

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Converfibéferred Stock, dated
November 21, 2011, issued by the Company to Oxfamence LLC

Lease by and between Broadway Hampshire Assodiatéted Partnership
and Radius Health, Inc. 201 Broadway Cambridge Sdetsusetts, dated
July 15, 2011

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registdtablic Accounting
Firm

Certification by CEO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(al’bd-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Se80@ of the Sarbanes-
Oxley

Act of 2002

Certification by CFO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(albd-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Se80@ of the Sarbanes-



Oxley
Act of 2002
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Exhibit No. Description
32.1 (18)  Certification by CEO pursuant to 18 U.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant
to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

32.z (18) Certification by CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secfti850, as adopted pursuant
to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS (18) XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCt (18) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL (18) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.LAB (18) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE (18) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

101.DEF (18) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docum

1) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfform 8-K filed on April 29, 2011.

2) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfform 8-K filed on May 23, 2011.

3) Share numbers and per share prices are preseetd&teperse Split completed by Radius Health, Indviay 17, 2011.
4) Incorporated by reference to our Registration $tate on Form S-1/A filed on November 7, 2011.
(5) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfform 8-K filed on May 27, 2011.

(6) Incorporated by reference to our Periodic Reporform 10-Q/A filed on October 24, 2011.

©) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporftorm 8-K/A filed on September 30, 2011.

(8) Confidential Treatment Granted. Redacted PortidedFbeparately with the Commission.

9) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoffamm 8-K/A filed on October 24, 2011.

(10) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofform 8-K filed on November 7, 2011.

(11) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfform 8-K filed on November 23, 2011.

(12) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfform 8-K filed on December 5, 2011.

(13) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfform 8-K filed on December 15, 2011.

(14) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfarm 8-K filed on December 21, 2011.

(15) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporform 8-K filed on December 30, 2011.

(16) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tatg on Form S-1/A filed on October 6, 2011.
(17) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tatg on Form S-1 filed on June 23, 2011.

(18) Filed herewith
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Exhibit 10.71
November 9, 201

Louis Brenner, MD
90 Fairlee Road
Newton, MA, 0246¢

Dear Lou:

On behalf of Radius Health, Inc. (the "Camy"), with offices at 201 Broadway, Cambridge, M2 139, | am pleased to offer you full-
time employment with the Company effective as of/aber 9", 2011. You will serve as the Chief Medical Offia#ithe Company effective
on December 1, 2011 or such earlier date as detethily the Company. This position currently reptotthe Chief Executive Officer.

In the course of your employment with Comypayou will be subject to and required to complghvall Company policies, and applicable
laws and regulations. The term "Agreement" as bstolv shall mean this letter agreement.

Cash Compensation

In this position, you will earn a salarytla¢ semi-monthly rate of $13,750, annualized rat@ of $330,000, or such greater amounts as
subsequently determined by the Board of Directbthe® Company (your "Annual Base Salary"). All cognpation amounts payable pursua
this Agreement shall be subject to all applicableand other withholdings.

In addition, subject to approval of the Bbaf Directors of the Company (the "Board"), yoill we eligible for an annual discretionary
bonus (your "Annual Bonus"), which Annual Bonuslkha targeted at 30% (your "Target") of your AnhBase Salary, subject to pro-ration
during any year in which you are employed for I the full year. The Board also has the disonetth award a bonus in excess of your
Annual Target Bonus for exemplary performance. Ampual Bonus will be based on both individual andporate performance and the
amount of any such Annual Bonus will be determihgdhe Company. Annual Bonuses shall be paid towioen generally paid to other ser
executives of the Company.

Equity Incentive

Subject to approval by the Board and withireasonable time after the commencement of yopiayment, the Company will grant to
you an initial stock option (the "Initial Optiontinder the Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity IncenBlen (the "Plan") for the purchase
351,400 shares of common stock of the Company ('l@omStock™) at a price per share equal to thenfairket value of such Common Stock,
as determined by the Board at the time of suchaygbr The Initial Option shall be subject to alintes, vesting schedules and other provisions
set forth in the Plan and in a separate optioneageat.

In addition, subject to your continued eayphent with the Company on the applicable datehepany will grant you stock options (the
“Incentive Options") under the Plan (or a succeptam) for the purchase of: (i) 37,600 shares ah@mn Stock (which number of shares shall
be adjusted to reflect any stock splits or reveteek splits) at a price per share equal to thenfarket value of such Common Stock at the |
of Board approval, if 2400 subjects are enrollethinPhase 3 study of BA058 Injection by May 151 2(nd (ii) 62,700 shares of Common
Stock (which number of shares shall be adjustedftect any stock splits or reverse stock splits) price per share equal to the fair market
value at the time of Board approval, if the New @Application for BA058 Injection is submitted toet United States Food And Drug
Administration by December 31, 2014. The Incen@®yions shall be subject to all terms, vesting dakess and other provisions set forth in
Plan and in a separate option agreement.




In addition, you will be eligible to receiannual equity awards in the discretion of the gamy and the terms of any such awards will be
substantially similar to the terms provided to $amy situated employees.

Benefits

You will be eligible to participate in af the employee benefits and benefit plans thaCii@pany generally makes available to its full-
time regular employees, including group health gldife, disability and AD&D insurances, a 401k mpléuition reimbursement, parking or
public transportation and various types of paicetioff, subject to the terms and conditions of doehefits and plans. You will be eligible to
accrue up to 20 days of vacation (in addition tonpany holidays), which will accrue over the firglay and may be used with the advance
approval of the Chief Executive Officer. The Compa@serves the right to terminate, modify or addgdenefits and benefit plans at any ti

Term and Termination

a. Term. This Agreement shall commence on November 2120d may be terminated at any time by you ohbyGompany with or
without cause, subject to the severance provisenorth below. You and the Company acknowledgkagree that your employment is and
shall continue to be atill and that nothing in this Agreement shall canfigon you any right with respect to continuatidremployment by th
Company, nor shall it interfere in any way with yoight or the Company's right to terminate youmpémgment at any time.

b. Termination Upon Death or Disability. Your employment shall terminate automaticalppn your death. If the Company
determines in good faith that your Disability, a&fided below, has occurred during the term of A&gseement, it may give you written notice
its intention to terminate your employment. In seefent, your employment shall terminate effectinettee 30th day after you receive such
notice, provided that, within the 30 days aftertstexceipt, you shall not have returned to full-tipggformance of your duties. For purposes of
this Agreement, "Disability” shall mean your indtyilto perform the essential duties of your jobaofull-time basis for 180 calendar days
during any consecutive twelve-month period or forc@nsecutive days as a result of incapacity dumetotal or physical illness. Upon
termination as the result of Disability, the Comypahall have no further obligations to you othertho pay your Base Salary and accrued,
unused vacation time through the date of terminatilbe "Accrued Obligations").

c. Termination for Cause or without Good ReasoriThe Company may terminate your employment gitiame during the term of this
Agreement for Cause, as defined below, and youmsign from employment without Good Reason, anddfbelow, and the Company shall
have no obligations to you other than to pay yoocréed Obligations.

d. Termination without Cause or for Good Reasornhe Company may terminate your employment gitime during the term of this
Agreement without Cause (as defined below, whidil stot include termination due to Disability) ooy may terminate your employment with
Good Reason (as defined below) within 90 days falig an event that constitutes Good Reason, byyiragi the other party in writing of
its/your intent to terminate your employment with@ause or for Good Reason, and you shall be edtitl receive, in addition to your Accrt
Obligations and subject to subsection (e) regartliegRelease:

(i) Any unpaid Annual Bonus that the BibaAas determined to award you for performancéénptrior calendar year, which
amount, if any, shall be paid on the First Payniate (as defined below);

(ii) A prorata Annual Bonus for the calendar year in whichryemployment terminates through the date of yermination if thi
Board determines to award you an Annual Bonusdoh<alendar year, which amount, if any, shall biel pn the later of (A) the First
Payment Date,




or (B) the date of the next regular payroll paymdste after the Board determines to pay you suckrgte Annual Bonus;

(i) An aggregate amount equaPtoi2of your Annual Base Salary, which amount shall aiel pver the nine month period
following the date of your termination in accordamith the Company's normal payroll procedures;

(iv) Inthe event such termination occwithin twelve (12) months of your first day of eropment with the Company, vesting
acceleration of all outstanding equity awards ef @ompany held by you that would have vested duhiegsix-month period after your
termination based solely on the passage of time;

(v) Direct payment to the carrier forrermbursement to you for the premiums necessarydarto continue to participate in the
Company's then applicable group medical plan, amit be changed from time to time, for the six rhqueriod immediately following
your termination; and

(vi) In the event such termination occwithin twelve (12) months immediately following @&&nhge of Control (as defined in the
Plan, except that clause (d) of such definitionlist@ constitute a Change of Control), (y) vestaageleration of all outstanding equity
award of the Company held by you, and (z) in liéarmy potential payment under clause (ii) aboverarata Annual Bonus for the
calendar year in which your employment terminatesugh the date of your termination, at Target,clilamount shall be paid on the
later of (A) the First Payment Date, or (B) theadtitat the Company pays annual bonuses to its,tingitarly situated employees, in
respect of performance during such calendar yegiinino event later than March 15 of the calengsr following the year in which
your employment terminates.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Causell sii@an: (i) your commission of an act of fraud,lernzlement or theft against the Company;
(i) your conviction of, or a plea of no contest &felony; (iii) willful nonperformance by you (wér than by reason of illness) of your material
duties as an employee of the Company; (iv) yourenitbreach of this Agreement or any other maltagaeement between you and the
Company; or (v) your gross negligence, willful naaduct or any other act of willful disregard foet@ompany's best interests.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Good Re&ashall mean, without your written consent: (iydailure by the Company to comply with
any of the provisions of this Agreement relatin@tse Salary, Annual Bonus or Equity Compensatiteu this Agreement, excluding for
such purpose any isolated, insubstantial, and ix@elnt action not taken in bad-faith and whicheimedied by the Company promptly after
receipt of written notice thereof from you; (iin@aterial diminution in your duties, responsibilitier authority; (iii) the imposition by the
Company of any requirement that you relocate ydiiceoto a location greater than a 30 mile distafioe the Company's current offices at
Broadway, Cambridge, MA, 02139 and (iv) a mateigach by the Company of any material written agieg between the Company and
you. In order for a termination of employment byuyto be considered to have been made for Good Regso must first provide the Compe
with notice of your intent to resign for Good Remsahich notice shall provide a detailed explanmatd what events triggered Good Reason,
and the Company must fail to substantially curendood Reason events within 30 days following thee @f such notice.

e. Release of Claims. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything edsatained in this Agreement to the contrary, priothe payment
by the Company of the termination payments andfiisrgrovided for in this Agreement as the restilidermination of your employment, and
as a condition to such payments, you must sigmamndevoke a general release of all potential cdapour may have against the Company or
any of its affiliates in the form provided to yoy the Company (the "Release"), which Release meisigned on or following your date of
termination and become effective within thirty (2i@ys following the date of your termination. Forposes of this Agreement,
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the "First Payment Date" shall mean the first ndnpagroll payment date falling on or after the tigith (301") day after the date of termination
of your employment with the Company and notwithdiag anything in this Agreement to the contraryy aaverance payments that would
have been paid before the First Payment Date, Bhglhid on the First Payment Date and the vesiiogleration shall not occur until the date
the Release becomes effective.

Tax Liability

Anything in this Agreement to the contrantwithstanding, if (A) on the date of terminatiohyour employment with the Company, any
of the Company's stock is publicly traded on aaldighed securities market or otherwise (withinreaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of 1
Internal Revenue Code (the "Code")), (B) if it et&kmined by the Company that you are a "specéiagloyee” within the meaning of
Section 409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code, (C) the paymenxiseed the amounts permitted to be paid pursoantsasury Regulations section 1.409A-
1(b)(9)(iii) and (D) such delay is required to avtiie imposition of the tax set forth in Sectior®AQa)(1) of the Code as a result of such
termination, you would receive any payment thaseab the application of this paragraph, would bgesi to interest and additional tax
imposed pursuant to Section 409A(a) of the Code rasult of the application of Section 409A(2)(Bi the Code, then no such payment shall
be payable prior to the date that is the earlieét)06 months after your termination date, (2) ydeath or (3) such other date as will cause
payment not to be subject to such interest andiaddi tax (with a catch-up payment equal to th@ s all amounts that have been delayed to
be made as of the date of the initial payment).tAimg in this Agreement notwithstanding, you widitrbe entitled to any severance payments
or benefits under this Agreement unless your teation of employment also constitutes a "separdtiom service" within the meaning of the
regulations under Section 409A of the Code. Eagimeat under this Agreement shall be consideregaraée and distinct payment for
purposes of Section 409A of the Code. It is theritibn of the parties that payments or benefitapbeyunder this Agreement not be subject to
the additional tax imposed pursuant to Section 46Bthe Code.

Full Services to Company

The Company requires that, as a full-timmpleyee, you devote your full business time, aitentskill, and efforts to the tasks and duties
of your position as assigned by Company. If youwigsrequest consent to provide services (for ampodorm of compensation) to any other
person or business entity while employed by the gamy, please discuss that with me in advance @ity another position, provided
however, that we understand that you will contitmperform the charitable work you were performatdhe time of your hire as long as it d
not materially interfere with your duties to ther@oany.

Contingencies
This offer, and any employment pursuarthts offer, is conditioned upon the following:

. Your ability to provide satisfactory documentarpf of your identity and right to work in the Unité&tates of America prior to
your commencement of employment by the Company.

. Your return of the enclosed coof this letter and the Company's standard Confidétytand Nor-Competition Agreement. B
signing and accepting this offer, you representwartant that you are not subject to any pre-exgstiontractual or other legal
obligation with any person, company or businessrgnise which may be an impediment to your emplaymméth, or your
providing services to, the Company as its employee.
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Successor:

a. This Agreement is personal to yod &ithout the prior written consent of the Compgoy shall not assign your obligations under
this Agreement, otherwise than by will or the laafslescent and distribution. This Agreement shalté to the benefit of and be enforceabl
your legal representative

b.  This Agreement shall inure to thedfé of and be binding upon the Company and itesssors and assigns, provided that the
Company may not assign this Agreement other thatessribed below.

c. The Company will require any sucoeg®hether direct or indirect, by purchase, mergensolidation or otherwise) to all or
substantially all of the business and/or assetsofCompany to assume this Agreement. As useddmitireement, "Company" shall mean the
Company as hereinbefore defined and any succes#sriiusiness and/or assets as aforesaid.

Indemnification

The Company will indemnify you to an extémdt is not materially less favorable than theemdification provisions in its charter and by-
laws as in effect as of the date hereof, with resfzeany action suit or proceeding to which yos mrade, or threatened to be made, a party by
reason of the fact that you are or were an offidehe Company. In addition, during the term of yemployment, the Company shall maintain
a directors and officers insurance policy upon gecims and in such amount as shall be determingdeo€ompany. This paragraph shall
terminate automatically and have no further fonceftect upon the consummation of a Change of @biais defined in the Plan).

Applicable Law

This Agreement has been made under antilghabnstrued and enforced in accordance withative of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, notwithstanding its choice of laesto the contrary.

Notice

Any notice, statement or demand requireldetgiven under this Agreement shall be in writhmgl shall be sent by hand delivery against
receipt, certified mail, return receipt requestethypa nationally recognized overnight carrieriie tiddress of the parties first listed above.

Waiver

The failure of either party to insist upstrict performance of any of the terms or provisiofi this Agreement or to exercise any option,
right or remedy contained in this Agreement, shatlbe construed as a waiver or as a relinquishffioetiie future of such term, provision,
option, right or remedy, but the same shall corgiand remain in full force and effect. No waiverdither party of any term or provision of t
Agreement shall be deemed to have been made wxpssssed in writing and signed by such party.

Entire Agreement

If you accept this offer, this Agreementidhe Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreemshall constitute the complete agreement
between you and the Company with respect to tmest@nd conditions of your employment. Any priocontemporaneous representations
(whether oral or written) not contained in this Agment or the Confidentiality and Non-Competitiogréement or contrary to those contained
in this Agreement or the Confidentiality and Nonaguetition Agreement that may have been made tcayewexpressly cancelled and
superseded by this offer. Except as




otherwise specified herein, the terms and conditmfyour employment may not be changed, excephather written agreement, signed by
you and an authorized representative of the Comy

I look forward to you accepting this oferd to a mutually rewarding relationship.
Sincerely,
/sl C. Richard Lyttle

C. Richard Lyttle
Chief Executive Officer

| accept the above-described Agreement, on thestsanforth therein.

Dated: November 9, 201 /s/ LOUIS BRENNEF

Signature
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Exhibit 10.79
INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

THIS INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT (the ‘Agreement”) is made and entered into as of December 5, P@tdeerRadius
Health, Inc. , a Delaware corporation (theCompany "), and Michael S. Wyzga (hdemnitee").

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, highly competent persons have becmore reluctant to serve corporations as dire@pin other capacities unless they are
provided with adequate protection through insurasrcadequate indemnification against inordinatesrisf claims and actions against them
arising out of their service to and activities ahalf of the corporation;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Canyp (the "Board ") has determined that, in order to attract andineualified individuals,
the Company will attempt to maintain on an ongdiagis, at its sole expense, liability insurancprtiect persons serving the Company and its
subsidiaries from certain liabilities. Although thenishing of such insurance has been a custoaragywidespread practice among United
States-based corporations and other business gags;pthe Company believes that, given currenkataronditions and trends, such insurance
may be available to it in the future only at higheemiums and with more exclusions. At the same tidirectors, officers, and other persons in
service to corporations or business enterprisebeirg increasingly subjected to expensive and-ioresuming litigation relating to, among
other things, matters that traditionally would hée=n brought only against the Company or busieetsprise itself. The Bylaws and
Certificate of Incorporation of the Company requirdemnification of the officers and directors bétCompany. Indemnitee may also be
entitled to indemnification pursuant to the Gen&afporation Law of the State of Delaward)GCL "). The Bylaws, Certificate of
Incorporation and the DGCL expressly provide thatindemnification provisions set forth therein ao¢ exclusive, and thereby contemplate
that contracts may be entered into between the @oynand members of the board of directors, offiegid other persons with respect to
indemnification;

WHEREAS, the uncertainties relating to singurance and to indemnification have increaseditfiiculty of attracting and retaining su
persons;

WHEREAS, the Board has determined thatrtheeased difficulty in attracting and retainingbupersons is detrimental to the best
interests of the Company's stockholders and tlea€tbhmpany should act to assure such persons #ratihill be increased certainty of such
protection in the future;

WHEREAS, it is reasonable, prudent and seasy for the Company contractually to obligatelit®d indemnify, and to advance expenses
on behalf of, such persons to the fullest extentitéed by applicable law so that they will serwecontinue to serve the Company free from
undue concern that they will not be so indemnified,;

WHEREAS, this Agreement is a supplemerartd in furtherance of the Bylaws and Certificaténabrporation of the Company and any
resolutions adopted pursuant thereto, and shabb@aleemed a substitute therefor, nor to diminisiboogate any rights of Indemnitee
thereunder; and

WHEREAS, Indemnitee does not regard théggtmn available under the Company's Bylaws andifi@ate of Incorporation and
insurance as adequate in the present circumstaerugsnay not be willing to serve as a director withadequate protection, and the Company
desires Indemnitee to serve in such capacity. Imitex is willing to serve, continue to serve andetce on additional service for or on behal
the Company on the condition that he be so indeethiind




NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Indetaals agreement to serve as a director from andtaft date hereof, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

1. Indemnity of Indemnitee. The Company hereby agrees to hold harmlesénaednnify Indemnitee to the fullest extent perndttey
law, as such may be amended from time to timeutthérance of the foregoing indemnification, antheut limiting the generality thereof:

(a) Proceedings Other Than Proceedings by or inRight of the Company. Indemnitee shall be entitled to the rights of
indemnification provided in thiSection I(a)if, by reason of his Corporate Status (as hereenaltfined), the Indemnitee is, or is
threatened to be made, a party to or participaahinProceeding (as hereinafter defined) other hBroceeding by or in the right of 1
Company. Pursuant to th&ection 1(a) Indemnitee shall be indemnified against all Exggen(as hereinafter defined), judgments,
penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlemeniadigtand reasonably incurred by him, or on hisdilin connection with such
Proceeding or any claim, issue or matter theréiie Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a matime Indemnitee reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best isteref the Company, and with respect to any crifrifnaceeding, had no reasonable
cause to believe the Indemnitee's conduct was dnlaw

(b) Proceedings by or in the Right of the Companyndemnitee shall be entitled to the rightsrafémnification provided in th
Section 1(b)f, by reason of his Corporate Status, the Indeesnis, or is threatened to be made, a party taudicjpant in any
Proceeding brought by or in the right of the Compdtursuant to thiSection 1(b) Indemnitee shall be indemnified against all
Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by ttentmitee, or on the Indemnitee's behalf, in conoeaetith such Proceeding if the
Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manneirtiemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not epddo the best interests of the
Company; provided, however, if applicable law sovides, no indemnification against such Expensali B made in respect of any
claim, issue or matter in such Proceeding as tehvhlidemnitee shall have been adjudged to be liabllee Company unless and to the
extent that the Court of Chancery of the State @lvare shall determine that such indemnificati@y tne made.

(c) Indemnification for Expenses of a Party Whwisolly or Partly Successful. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, to the extent that Indemnitee is, bgoaaf his Corporate Status, a party to and isessfal, on the merits or otherwise, in
any Proceeding, he shall be indemnified to the mari extent permitted by law, as such may be amefidedtime to time, against all
Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by hiondris behalf in connection therewith. If Indenagiis not wholly successful in st
Proceeding but is successful, on the merits omofise, as to one or more but less than all claisssies or matters in such Proceeding,
the Company shall indemnify Indemnitee againsEaflenses actually and reasonably incurred by hiondris behalf in connection
with each successfully resolved claim, issue ottenalFor purposes of this Section and without ltiétn, the termination of any claim,
issue or matter in such a Proceeding by dismisstd,or without prejudice, shall be deemed to Iseiecessful result as to such claim,
issue or matter.

2. Additional Indemnity. In addition to, and without regard to any liatibns on, the indemnification provided forSection 1of this
Agreement, the Company shall and hereby does inifigmmd hold harmless Indemnitee against all Expengidgments, penalties, fines and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonablyred by him or on his behalf if, by reason &f Gorporate Status, he is, or is threatened
to be made, a party to or participant in any Prdieg(including a Proceeding by or in the rightleé Company), including, without limitation,
all liability arising out of the negligence or aior passive wrongdoing of Indemnitee. The omhijthtion that shall exist upon the Company's
obligations pursuant to this Agreement shall b¢ e Company shall not be obligated to make aynget to Indemnitee that is finally
determined (under the procedures, and subjecetprbsumptions, set forth Bections &nd7 hereof) to be unlawful.




3. Contribution.

(&) Whether or not the indemnificatiomyided inSections Jand2 hereof is available, in respect of any threatepedding or
completed action, suit or proceeding in which tlemPany is jointly liable with Indemnitee (or woueé if joined in such action, suit or
proceeding), the Company shall pay, in the firstance, the entire amount of any judgment or settfe of such action, suit or
proceeding without requiring Indemnitee to conttéto such payment and the Company hereby waivesedinquishes any right of
contribution it may have against Indemnitee. ThenBany shall not enter into any settlement of artipacsuit or proceeding in which
the Company is jointly liable with Indemnitee (oowd be if joined in such action, suit or procegglinnless such settlement provides
for a full and final release of all claims assergainst Indemnitee.

(b) Without diminishing or impairing tlobligations of the Company set forth in the prengdiubparagraph, if, for any reason,
Indemnitee shall elect or be required to pay ally portion of any judgment or settlement in amgétened, pending or completed
action, suit or proceeding in which the Companipiistly liable with Indemnitee (or would be if jo#a in such action, suit or
proceeding), the Company shall contribute to thewmhof Expenses, judgments, fines and amountsipaiettiement actually and
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Indeseriit proportion to the relative benefits receitsigdhe Company and all officers,
directors or employees of the Company, other thaemnitee, who are jointly liable with Indemnitee (vould be if joined in such
action, suit or proceeding), on the one hand, addrhnitee, on the other hand, from the transaétam which such action, suit or
proceeding arose; provided, however, that the ptagodetermined on the basis of relative beneéiynto the extent necessary to
conform to law, be further adjusted by referenctheorelative fault of the Company and all officedsectors or employees of the
Company other than Indemnitee who are jointly kaith Indemnitee (or would be if joined in suchiaw, suit or proceeding), on the
one hand, and Indemnitee, on the other hand, inemiion with the events that resulted in such egpgnjudgments, fines or settlement
amounts, as well as any other equitable considerativhich the Law may require to be considered.r€laive fault of the Company
and all officers, directors or employees of the @any, other than Indemnitee, who are jointly lialvieh Indemnitee (or would be if
joined in such action, suit or proceeding), ondhe hand, and Indemnitee, on the other hand, Baaletermined by reference to, am
other things, the degree to which their actionsaweotivated by intent to gain personal profit ovaatage, the degree to which their
liability is primary or secondary and the degre&tdch their conduct is active or passive.

(c) The Company hereby agrees to fullemnify and hold Indemnitee harmless from any ctarficontribution which may be
brought by officers, directors or employees of@mpany, other than Indemnitee, who may be joiilyle with Indemnitee.

(d) To the fullest extent permissible endpplicable law, if the indemnification providft in this Agreement is unavailable to
Indemnitee for any reason whatsoever, the Comparigu of indemnifying Indemnitee, shall contrileub the amount incurred by
Indemnitee, whether for judgments, fines, penalégsise taxes, amounts paid or to be paid inese&ht and/or for Expenses, in
connection with any claim relating to an indemrbfeevent under this Agreement, in such proporéisiis deemed fair and reasonable
in light of all of the circumstances of such Pratiag in order to reflect (i) the relative benefiexeived by the Company and Indemn
as a result of the event(s) and/or transaction(#gcause to such Proceeding; and/or (ii) thatied fault of the Company (and its
directors, officers, employees and agents) andnhmitee in connection with such event(s) and/ordaation(s).

4. Indemnification for Expenses of a Witness\otwithstanding any other provision of this Agment, to the extent that Indemnitee is,
by reason of his Corporate Status, a witness, miaide (or asked to) respond to discovery requiestsly Proceeding to which Indemnitee is
not a party, he




shall be indemnified against all Expenses actually reasonably incurred by him or on his behatfonnection therewith.

5. Advancement of ExpensesNotwithstanding any other provision of this Agment, the Company shall advance all Expenses
incurred by or on behalf of Indemnitee in connettigth any Proceeding by reason of Indemnitee'p@uate Status within thirty (30) days
after the receipt by the Company of a statemestaiements from Indemnitee requesting such advanadvances from time to time, whether
prior to or after final disposition of such Procegd Such statement or statements shall reasoeailgnce the Expenses incurred by
Indemnitee and shall include or be preceded orrapemied by a written undertaking by or on behalfnofemnitee to repay any Expenses
advanced if it shall ultimately be determined timatemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified agasush Expenses. Any advances and
undertakings to repay pursuant to tBection Shall be unsecured and interest free.

6. Procedures and Presumptions for DeterminatibBmtitlement to Indemnification. It is the intent of this Agreement to secure fo
Indemnitee rights of indemnity that are as favagadd may be permitted under the DGCL and publicyalf the State of Delaware.
Accordingly, the parties agree that the followinggedures and presumptions shall apply in the eveay question as to whether Indemnitee
is entitled to indemnification under this Agreement

(a) To obtain indemnification under thigreement, Indemnitee shall submit to the Compawyitien request, including therein
or therewith such documentation and informatioisasasonably available to Indemnitee and is regtsigmecessary to determine
whether and to what extent Indemnitee is entitteshdlemnification. The Secretary of the Companyisheomptly upon receipt of such
a request for indemnification, advise the Boar@®wéctors in writing that Indemnitee has requestemnification. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, any failure of Indemnitee to provéieeh a request to the Company, or to provide auglguest in a timely fashion, shall
not relieve the Company of any liability that it ynaave to Indemnitee unless, and to the extent siiah failure actually and materially
prejudices the interests of the Company.

(b) Upon written request by Indemniteeif@emnification pursuant to the first sentenc&ettion 6(ahereof, a determination
with respect to Indemnitee's entitlement theretdldle made in the specific case by one of the¥alg four methods, which shall be
the election of the board: (1) by a majority votere disinterested directors, even though less ghquorum, (2) by a committee of
disinterested directors designated by a majorite wb the disinterested directors, even thoughtless a quorum, (3) if there are no
disinterested directors or if the disintereste@dtiors so direct, by independent legal counsehimitien opinion to the Board of
Directors, a copy of which shall be delivered te thdemnitee, or (4) if so directed by the Boardokctors, by the stockholders of the
Company. For purposes hereof, disinterested direete those members of the board of directors@tompany who are not parties
the action, suit or proceeding in respect of whinckemnification is sought by Indemnitee.

(c) If the determination of entitlemeatibdemnification is to be made by Independent Geupursuant t&ection 6(bhereof, th:
Independent Counsel shall be selected as provid#gdsiSection 6(c) The Independent Counsel shall be selected bBdaed of
Directors. Indemnitee may, within 10 days afterrsuitten notice of selection shall have been gjdgiiver to the Company a written
objection to such selection; provided, howevert ugh objection may be asserted only on the gréaicthe Independent Counsel so
selected does not meet the requirementdiedépendent Counsel' as defined irSection 13f this Agreement, and the objection shall
set forth with particularity the factual basis ath assertion. Absent a proper and timely objectioe person so selected shall act as
Independent Counsel. If a written objection is madeé substantiated, the Independent Counsel sélewig not serve as Independent
Counsel unless and until such objection is withdrawa court has determined that such objectiovitteout merit. If, within 20 days
after submission by Indemnitee of a written reqé@sindemnification pursuant t8ection 6(ahereof, no Independent Counsel shall
have been selected and not objected to, eitheCdingpany or Indemnitee may petition the Court of iiZteay of the




State of Delaware or other court of competent dlicison for resolution of any objection which shiallve been made by the Indemnitee
to the Company's selection of Independent Couns#ba for the appointment as Independent Counselpgrson selected by the court
or by such other person as the court shall desigaad the person with respect to whom all objest&re so resolved or the person so
appointed shall act as Independent Counsel uddetion 6(bhereof. The Company shall pay any and all reaserfekks and expenses
of Independent Counsel incurred by such Indepen@euntsel in connection with acting pursuangaztion 6(bhereof, and the
Company shall pay all reasonable fees and expémsdent to the procedures of ti8ection 6(c) regardless of the manner in which
such Independent Counsel was selected or appointed.

(d) In making a determination with redpecentitiement to indemnification hereunder, fle@son or persons or entity making
such determination shall presume that Indemniteatisled to indemnification under this Agreemefryone seeking to overcome this
presumption shall have the burden of proof anddtireen of persuasion by clear and convincing evideNeither the failure of the
Company (including by its directors or independegtl counsel) to have made a determination poithé commencement of any
action pursuant to this Agreement that indemnifaeats proper in the circumstances because Indemtias met the applicable stanc
of conduct, nor an actual determination by the Camyp(including by its directors or independent legaunsel) that Indemnitee has not
met such applicable standard of conduct, shall teefense to the action or create a presumptionitidamnitee has not met the
applicable standard of conduct.

(e) Indemnitee shall be deemed to hatexddda good faith if Indemnitee's action is basadhe records or books of account of the
Enterprise, including financial statements, ormioimation supplied to Indemnitee by the officefshe Enterprise (as hereinafter
defined) in the course of their duties, or on theiee of legal counsel for the Enterprise or ominfation or records given or reports
made to the Enterprise by an independent certifidalic accountant or by an appraiser or other exgeected with reasonable care by
the Enterprise. In addition, the knowledge andfioas, or failure to act, of any director, officagent or employee of the Enterprise
shall not be imputed to Indemnitee for purposedetérmining the right to indemnification under thigreement. Whether or not the
foregoing provisions of thiSection 6(efre satisfied, it shall in any event be presumad ltidemnitee has at all times acted in good
faith and in a manner he reasonably believed tio loe not opposed to the best interests of the GommpAnyone seeking to overcome
this presumption shall have the burden of prooftedourden of persuasion by clear and convincindesice.

(f) If the person, persons or entity emwpred or selected und8ection @o determine whether Indemnitee is entitled to
indemnification shall not have made a determinatitthin sixty (60) days after receipt by the Comypaf the request therefor, the
requisite determination of entitlement to indenuéfion shall be deemed to have been made and Irithensiall be entitled to such
indemnification absent (i) a misstatement by Indiéeenof a material fact, or an omission of a matdect necessary to make
Indemnitee's statement not materially misleading,annection with the request for indemnification(ii) a prohibition of such
indemnification under applicable law; provided, lewer, that such 60-day period may be extended feasonable time, not to exceed
an additional thirty (30) days, if the person, passor entity making such determination with respeentitlement to indemnification in
good faith requires such additional time to obtirvaluate documentation and/or information retathereto; and provided, further,
that the foregoing provisions of thection 6(fshall not apply if the determination of entitlemémindemnification is to be made by
stockholders pursuant fection 6(bpf this Agreement and if (A) within fifteen (15) yafter receipt by the Company of the request
for such determination, the Board of Directorsha Disinterested Directors, if appropriate, resatveubmit such determination to the
stockholders for their consideration at an annusgting thereof to be held within seventy-five (days after such receipt and such
determination is made thereat, or (B) a specialtimg®f stockholders is called within fifteen (1ddys after such receipt for the




purpose of making such determination, such meéihgld for such purpose within sixty (60) day®afiaving been so called and such
determination is made thereat.

() Indemnitee shall cooperate with thespn, persons or entity making such determinatitim respect to Indemnitee's
entitlement to indemnification, including providing such person, persons or entity upon reasomalance request any documenta
or information which is not privileged or otherwigemtected from disclosure and which is reasonabilable to Indemnitee and
reasonably necessary to such determination. Angpeddent Counsel, member of the Board of Direaipstockholder of the Compa
shall act reasonably and in good faith in makirpgermination regarding the Indemnitee's entitlent@imdemnification under this
Agreement. Any costs or expenses (including atysfees and disbursements) incurred by Indeminitee cooperating with the
person, persons or entity making such determinatiati be borne by the Company (irrespective ofttermination as to Indemnitee's
entitlement to indemnification) and the Companyebhgrindemnifies and agrees to hold Indemnitee hesstherefrom.

(h) The Company acknowledges that aesattht or other disposition short of final judgmeraty be successful if it permits a
party to avoid expense, delay, distraction, disampand uncertainty. In the event that any actidaim or proceeding to which
Indemnitee is a party is resolved in any manneerdtfian by adverse judgment against Indemnite¢ugimy, without limitation,
settlement of such action, claim or proceeding witlithout payment of money or other considergtibshall be presumed that
Indemnitee has been successful on the merits ernwibe in such action, suit or proceeding. Anyosekeng to overcome this
presumption shall have the burden of proof andotireen of persuasion by clear and convincing eviden

(i) The termination of any Proceedingpbany claim, issue or matter therein, by judgmender, settlement or conviction, or
upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivaldrdll 10t (except as otherwise expressly providetthisi Agreement) of itself adversely
affect the right of Indemnitee to indemnificationaveate a presumption that Indemnitee did noiregbod faith and in a manner which
he reasonably believed to be in or not opposellddest interests of the Company or, with resgeany criminal Proceeding, that
Indemnitee had reasonable cause to believe thabhiduct was unlawful.

7. Remedies of Indemnitee.

(&) Inthe event that (i) a determinati®®made pursuant ®ection 6f this Agreement that Indemnitee is not entitied t
indemnification under this Agreement, (ii) advanesinof Expenses is not timely made pursua@dotion Sof this Agreement, (iii) no
determination of entitlement to indemnificatiomisde pursuant t8ection 6(bpf this Agreement within 90 days after receipt by t
Company of the request for indemnification, (ivypeent of indemnification is not made pursuant fe thgreement within ten (10) da
after receipt by the Company of a written requiestefor or (v) payment of indemnification is notaeawithin ten (10) days after a
determination has been made that Indemnitee idezhtd indemnification or such determination igueed to have been made pursuant
to Section 6of this Agreement, Indemnitee shall be entitledricadjudication in an appropriate court of thee&StdtDelaware, or in any
other court of competent jurisdiction, of Indemelgeentitiement to such indemnification. Indemngball commence such proceeding
seeking an adjudication within 180 days followihg tate on which Indemnitee first has the rightdmmence such proceeding
pursuant to thiSection 7(a) The Company shall not oppose Indemnitee's rigeeek any such adjudication.

(b) Inthe event that a determinationlidiave been made pursuant3ection 6(bpf this Agreement that Indemnitee is not
entitled to indemnification, any judicial proceeglicommenced pursuant to ti8sction &hall be conducted in all respects as a de novo
trial on the merits, and Indemnitee shall not kejuyaticed by reason of the adverse determinatioedection 6(b)

(c) If a determination shall have beedenpursuant t&ection 6(bpf this Agreement that Indemnitee is entitled to
indemnification, the Company shall be bound by sdetermination in any judicial proceeding commengedsuant to thiSection 7,
absent (i) a misstatement by




Indemnitee of a material fact, or an omission ofaterial fact necessary to make Indemnitee's nésatnt not materially misleading in
connection with the application for indemnificatjan (ii) a prohibition of such indemnification uedapplicable law.

(d) Inthe event that Indemnitee, pursuarthisSection 7, seeks a judicial adjudication of his rights underto recover damages
for breach of, this Agreement, or to recover urater directors' and officers' liability insurancdipi@s maintained by the Company, the
Company shall pay on his behalf, in advance, ayadirexpenses (of the types described in the diefinof Expenses isection 13f
this Agreement) actually and reasonably incurredhibyin such judicial adjudication, regardless d¢father Indemnitee ultimately is
determined to be entitled to such indemnificatmavancement of expenses or insurance recovery.

(e) The Company shall be precluded freseding in any judicial proceeding commenced pamsto thisSection #hat the
procedures and presumptions of this Agreementatrealid, binding and enforceable and shall stifgila any such court that the
Company is bound by all the provisions of this Agrent. The Company shall indemnify Indemnitee againy and all Expenses and,
if requested by Indemnitee, shall (within ten (i8ys after receipt by the Company of a written estjtherefore) advance, to the extent
not prohibited by law, such expenses to Indemniténch are incurred by Indemnitee in connectiorhveiby action brought by
Indemnitee for indemnification or advance of ExpEnom the Company under this Agreement or undgidérectors' and officers'
liability insurance policies maintained by the Canp, regardless of whether Indemnitee ultimatefjeiermined to be entitled to such
indemnification, advancement of Expenses or instgaacovery, as the case may be.

(H Notwithstanding anything in this Aggment to the contrary, no determination as tdlemtént to indemnification under this
Agreement shall be required to be made prior tditta disposition of the Proceeding.

8. Non-Exclusivity; Survival of Rights; Insurané&jmacy of Indemnification; Subrogation.

(&) The rights of indemnification as pa®d by this Agreement shall not be deemed exatughany other rights to which
Indemnitee may at any time be entitled under applilaw, the Certificate of Incorporation, the 8yk, any agreement, a vote of
stockholders, a resolution of directors or otheew the Company. No amendment, alteration orakegiethis Agreement or of any
provision hereof shall limit or restrict any righftIndemnitee under this Agreement in respect gfastion taken or omitted by such
Indemnitee in his Corporate Status prior to suckradment, alteration or repeal. To the extent tt@taage in the DGCL, whether by
statute or judicial decision, permits greater indditation than would be afforded currently undee Certificate of Incorporation,
Bylaws and this Agreement, it is the intent of ffaeties hereto that Indemnitee shall enjoy by Agjseement the greater benefits so
afforded by such change. No right or remedy hereirferred is intended to be exclusive of any otlght or remedy, and every other
right and remedy shall be cumulative and in additevery other right and remedy given hereund&ioa or hereafter existing at law
or in equity or otherwise. The assertion or emplegtrof any right or remedy hereunder, or otherwss@ll not prevent the concurrent
assertion or employment of any other right or reyned

(b) To the extent that the Company maistan insurance policy or policies providing ligliinsurance for directors, officers,
employees, or agents or fiduciaries of the Compargf any other corporation, partnership, jointtea, trust, employee benefit plan
other enterprise that such person serves at theseqf the Company, Indemnitee shall be covereslioh policy or policies in
accordance with its or their terms to the maximutet of the coverage available for any directfficer, employee, agent or fiduciary
under such policy or policies. If, at the time loé treceipt of a notice of a claim pursuant to #xens hereof, the Company has director
and officer liability insurance in effect, the Coamy shall give prompt notice of the commencememstuch proceeding to the insurer:
accordance with the procedures set forth in theeets/e policies. The Company shall thereafter @lkaecessary or desirable action to
cause such insurers




to pay, on behalf of the Indemnitee, all amountgapée as a result of such proceeding in accordatitbethe terms of such policies.

(c) Inthe event of any payment undes thijreement, the Company shall be subrogated textaat of such payment to all of the
rights of recovery of Indemnitee, who shall exealtgapers required and take all action necegsesgcure such rights, including
execution of such documents as are necessary lbeeth@ Company to bring suit to enforce such sght

(d) Except as provided in paragraph fove, the Company shall not be liable under thissAment to make any payment of
amounts otherwise indemnifiable hereunder if anhéoextent that Indemnitee has otherwise actuallgived such payment under any
insurance policy, contract, agreement or otherwise.

(e) Except as provided in paragraph bove, the Company's obligation to indemnify or atheaExpenses hereunder to
Indemnitee who is or was serving at the requett@Company as a director, officer, employee onagéany other corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust, employee ber@éih or other enterprise shall be reduced by amyumt Indemnitee has actually
received as indemnification or advancement of egpsifirom such other corporation, partnership, jeémture, trust, employee benefit
plan or other enterprise.

9. Exception to Right of Indemnification. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreemehe Company shall not be obligated under
this Agreement to make any indemnity in connectidth any claim made against Indemnitee:

(a) for which payment has actually beexdento or on behalf of Indemnitee under any instegolicy or other indemnity
provision, except with respect to any excess beybadmount paid under any insurance policy orratidemnity provision; or

(b) for an accounting of profits madenfrthe purchase and sale (or sale and purchasedeynhitee of securities of the Comp
within the meaning oBection 16(bpf the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenalesimilar provisions of state statutory law or
common law; or

(c) in connection with any Proceedingdoy part of any Proceeding) initiated by Indemmiiacluding any Proceeding (or any
part of any Proceeding) initiated by Indemniteeimgtahe Company or its directors, officers, empley or other indemnitees, unless
(i) the Board of Directors of the Company authadiziee Proceeding (or any part of any Proceedinigy jpo its initiation or (ii) the
Company provides the indemnification, in its salkccetion, pursuant to the powers vested in the fizom under applicable law.

10. Duration of Agreement. All agreements and obligations of the Compamytained herein shall continue during the period
Indemnitee is an officer or director of the Comp#oiyis or was serving at the request of the Com@eana director, officer, employee or agent
of another corporation, partnership, joint venttingst or other enterprise) and shall continueghgter so long as Indemnitee shall be subject to
any Proceeding (or any proceeding commenced udeletion Hhereof) by reason of his Corporate Status, whethaot he is acting or serving
in any such capacity at the time any liability @pense is incurred for which indemnification cangoevided under this Agreement. This
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to theebieof and be enforceable by the parties heratbtheir respective successors (including
any direct or indirect successor by purchase, mmecgasolidation or otherwise to all or substahtiall of the business or assets of the
Company), assigns, spouses, heirs, executors asdrad and legal representatives.

11. Security. To the extent requested by Indemnitee and apprby the Board of Directors of the Company, tlken@any may at an
time and from time to time provide security to Ind@tee for the Company's obligations hereunderugincan irrevocable bank line of credit,
funded trust or other collateral. Any such secugtyce provided to Indemnitee, may not be revokegleased without the prior written
consent of the Indemnitee.




12. Enforcement.

(&) The Company expressly confirms angéegthat it has entered into this Agreement aadnass the obligations imposed on it
hereby in order to induce Indemnitee to serve asfiécer or director of the Company, and the Compacknowledges that Indemnitee
is relying upon this Agreement in serving as aticeffor director of the Company.

(b) This Agreement constitutes the erdigeeement between the parties hereto with respeéioe subject matter hereof and
supersedes all prior agreements and understandiraiswritten and implied, between the partieshewith respect to the subject
matter hereof.

13. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement:

(a) "Corporate Status" describes the status of a person who is or wdigeator, officer, employee, agent or fiduciarytioé
Company or of any other corporation, partnershumtjventure, trust, employee benefit plan or oreerprise that such person is or
was serving at the express written request of thragany.

(b) "Disinterested Director" means a director of the Company who is not ansl med a party to the Proceeding in respect of
which indemnification is sought by Indemnitee.

(c) "Enterprise " shall mean the Company and any other corporagiartnership, joint venture, trust, employee ben@én or
other enterprise that Indemnitee is or was serairthe express written request of the Companydieator, officer, employee, agent or
fiduciary.

(d) "Expenses' shall include all reasonable attorneys' feesiinets, court costs, transcript costs, fees of expeitness fees,
travel expenses, duplicating costs, printing amdlinig costs, telephone charges, postage, deliezwce fees and all other
disbursements or expenses of the types custonmacilyred in connection with prosecuting, defendimgparing to prosecute or defe
investigating, participating, or being or prepartode a witness in a Proceeding, or respondingrtobjecting to, a request to provide
discovery in any Proceeding. Expenses also shdlidie Expenses incurred in connection with any appesulting from any Proceedi
and any federal, state, local or foreign taxes iseploon the Indemnitee as a result of the actudéemed receipt of any payments under
this Agreement, including without limitation thegpnium, security for, and other costs relating tp emst bond, supersede as bond, or
other appeal bond or its equivalent. Expenses, hieryshall not include amounts paid in settlemgnindemnitee or the amount of
judgments or fines against Indemnitee.

(e) 'Independent Counsel' means a law firm, or a member of a law firm, tisatxperienced in matters of corporation law and
neither presently is, nor in the past five years been, retained to represent: (i) the Companpderhnitee in any matter material to
either such party (other than with respect to msittencerning Indemnitee under this Agreementf otleer indemnitees under similar
indemnification agreements), or (ii) any other paat the Proceeding giving rise to a claim for imgéfication hereunder.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term "Independ@ounsel” shall not include any person who, uniderapplicable standards of
professional conduct then prevailing, would haweflict of interest in representing either the Qamy or Indemnitee in an action to
determine Indemnitee's rights under this Agreenieme. Company agrees to pay the reasonable febg dfidependent Counsel refer
to above and to fully indemnify such counsel agaamy and all Expenses, claims, liabilities and dges arising out of or relating to
this Agreement or its engagement pursuant hereto.

() "Proceeding" includes any threatened, pending or completeidmcsuit, arbitration, alternate dispute resolutinechanism,
investigation, inquiry, administrative hearing oryaother actual, threatened or completed proceedihgther brought by or in the right
of the Company or otherwise and whether civil, anih administrative or investigative, in which Brdnitee was, is or will be involved
as a party or otherwise, by reason of the factltidgmnitee is or was an officer or director of @@mpany, by reason of any action
taken by him or of any inaction on his part whitgiag as an officer or director of the Companybpreason of the fact that he is or




was serving at the request of the Company as atditefficer, employee, agent or fiduciary of dmetcorporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other Enterprise; in each casetidr or not he is acting or serving in any sugsecdy at the time any liability or
expense is incurred for which indemnification canpbovided under this Agreement; including one jremdn or before the date of this
Agreement, but excluding one initiated by an Indeempursuant t&ection 7f this Agreement to enforce his rights under this
Agreement.

14. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any preion hereof shall in no way affect the validityamforceability of any
other provision. Without limiting the generality thfe foregoing, this Agreement is intended to confson Indemnitee indemnification rights to
the fullest extent permitted by applicable lawstha event any provision hereof conflicts with applicable law, such provision shall be
deemed modified, consistent with the aforementidngght, to the extent necessary to resolve suofiicb

15. Modification and Waiver. No supplement, modification, termination or awh@ent of this Agreement shall be binding unless
executed in writing by both of the parties her@&to.waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreernshall be deemed or shall constitute a
waiver of any other provisions hereof (whether ar similar) nor shall such waiver constitute a @mning waiver.

16. Notice By Indemnitee. Indemnitee agrees promptly to notify the Conypianwriting upon being served with or otherwiseew®ing
any summons, citation, subpoena, complaint, indéattminformation or other document relating to &mgceeding or matter which may be
subject to indemnification covered hereunder. Hikeife to so notify the Company shall not reliere Company of any obligation which it
may have to Indemnitee under this Agreement orrafise unless and only to the extent that suchraitr delay materially prejudices the
Company.

17. Notices. All notices and other communications given @de pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing shall be deemed
effectively given: (a) upon personal delivery te trarty to be notified, (b) when sent by confirnedettronic mail or facsimile if sent during
normal business hours of the recipient, and ifssotonfirmed, then on the next business day, ¥e)(®) days after having been sent by
registered or certified mail, return receipt reqadspostage prepaid, or (d) one (1) day after siepoth a nationally recognized overnight
courier, specifying next day delivery, with writtearification of receipt. All communications shbi sent:

(@) To Indemnitee at the address seh floetow Indemnitee signature hereto.
(b) To the Company at:

Radius Health, Inc.

201 Broadway, 6th floor
Cambridge, MA 02139

Attention: Chief Executive Officer

or to such other address as may have been furnishademnitee by the Company or to the Companindgmnitee, as the case may be.

18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or moreterparts, each of which shall be deemed annatdigbut all of
which together shall constitute one and the santedgent. This Agreement may also be executed dina il by facsimile signature and in
two or more counterparts, each of which shall benuked an original, but all of which together shalhstitute one and the same instrument.

19. Headings. The headings of the paragraphs of this Agre¢meninserted for convenience only and shall modéemed to
constitute part of this Agreement or to affect tbastruction thereof.

20. Governing Law and Consent to JurisdictionThis Agreement and the legal relations amoegptirties shall be governed by, and
construed and enforced in accordance with, the tdwise State of Delaware, without regard to iteftiot of laws rules. The Company and
Indemnitee hereby irrevocably and unconditionaliyagree that any action or proceeding arisingafwr in connection




with this Agreement shall be brought only in thea@tery Court of the State of Delaware (tH2elaware Court"), and not in any other state
federal court in the United States of America oy eaurt in any other country, (ii) consent to subtaithe exclusive jurisdiction of the
Delaware Court for purposes of any action or prdizeearising out of or in connection with this Agraent, (iii) waive any objection to the

laying of venue of any such action or proceedinthenDelaware Court, and (iv) waive, and agregmpiead or to make, any claim that any
such action or proceeding brought in the DelawarerChas been brought in an improper or inconverfaam.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto hexecuted this Agreement on and as of the day aadfirst above written.

RADIUS HEALTH, INC.

By: /s/ KURT C. GRAVES

Name: Kurt C. Graves
Title: Chairman
INDEMNITEE

/sl MICHAEL S. WYZGA

Name: Michael S. Wyzg:
Address: 80 Beacon Street
Boston, MA 0210¢
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe Registration Statements (Form S-1 No. BA&91 and Form S-8 No. 333-177880) of
Radius Health, Inc. and in the related Prospectokesr report dated February 6, 2012, with respeetihe financial statements of Radius
Health, Inc. included in this Annual Report (FortK) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLF
Boston, Massachusetts
February 6, 201
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification of Michael S. Wyzga
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
[, Michael S. Wyzga, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Radileslth, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omdt&te a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaha@gaorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contants procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in registrant&srnal control over financial reporting the ooewdl during the registrant's m
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisit's internal control over financial reportingpan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financi:
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatammmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize aprt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifrodain the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 6, 2012 /s| MICHAEL S. WYZGA

Michael S. Wyzga
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification of B. Nicholas Harvey
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
[, B. Nicholas Harvey, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Radileslth, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgt&te a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaha@gaorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contants procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in registrant&srnal control over financial reporting the ooewdl during the registrant's m
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisit's internal control over financial reportingpan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financi:
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatammmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize aprt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifrodain the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 6, 2012 /s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY

B. Nicholas Harvey
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, 3sarer and Secreta
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RedHealth, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K foeffiscal year ended December 31, 2011
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseiothe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Michael\§/zga, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sasb@rkey Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctiadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/sl MICHAEL S. WYZGA

Michael S. Wyzga
President and Chief Executive Officer
February 6, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiots staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RedHealth, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K foeffiscal year ended December 31, 2011
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseiothe date hereof (the "Report"), I, B. Nichdiesvey, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sasb@rkey Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctiadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY

B. Nicholas Harvey

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

February 6, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiats staff upon request.
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